

Section I
Notices of Development of Proposed Rules
and Negotiated Rulemaking

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE INTERNAL IMPROVEMENT TRUST FUND

Notices for the Board of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund between December 28, 2001 and June 30, 2006, go to <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/> under the link or button titled "Official Notices."

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

RULE NO.: 33-601.820 RULE TITLE: Maximum Management

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose and effect of the proposed rule is to reflect the Deputy Director of Health Services (Clinical) as a member of the MMRT instead of the Deputy Assistant Secretary of Health Services (Clinical) and modify Form DC6-171 to include information to assist staff in correctly processing the form.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Maximum management.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 944.09 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 944.09 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT IS: Dorothy M. Ridgway, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2500

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS:

33-601.820 Maximum Management.

(1) Definitions.

(a) No change.

(b) Maximum Management Review Team – refers to the committee in Central Office that has approval authority for placement in maximum management and the modification of conditions and restrictions imposed at the time an inmate is initially placed in maximum management. The Maximum Management Review Team shall consist of the following staff or those acting in that capacity:

1. through 3. No change.

4. Deputy ~~Director~~ ~~Assistant Secretary~~ of Health Services (Clinical).

(2) through (4) No change.

(5) Initial Placement Hearing and Decision Process.

(a) No change.

(b) The inmate shall be present for the hearing, unless:

1. through 2. No change.

3. If the inmate did not attend the hearing, the reasons the inmate did not appear at the hearing shall be included in the ICT recommendation entered on Form DC6-171, Report of Maximum Management. Form DC6-171 is hereby incorporated by reference. Copies of this form are available from the Forms Control Administrator, Office of Research, Planning and Support Services, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida, 32399-2500. The effective date of this form is _____ ~~4-13-06~~.

(c) through (m) No change.

(6) through (9) No change.

Specific Authority 944.09 FS. Law Implemented 944.09 FS. History-- New 12-7-00, Amended 11-23-03, 4-1-04, 4-13-06,_____.

COMMISSION ON ETHICS

RULE NO.: 34-7.010 RULE TITLE: List of Forms and Instructions

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed amendment is to make revisions to various forms that are required to be filed by the Code of Ethics, and which are adopted by reference in Rule 34-7.010, Florida Administrative Code. Most changes are relatively minor changing the date, correcting statutory citations, updating addresses, etc.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: CE Form 1, CE Form 1F, CE Form 6, CE Form 6F, CE Form 9, CE Form 10, CE Form 3A, and CE Form 30 will be affected by this rulemaking.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Art. II, Sec. 8(f), (h), Fla. Const., 112.3144, 112.3145, 112.3147, 112.3215(13), 112.322(7), (10), 112.324 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Art. II, Sec. 8(a), (f), (h), Fla. Const., 112.313(9), (12), 112.3143, 112.3144, 112.3145, 112.3148, 112.3149, 112.3215 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: August 15, 2006, 2:00 p.m.

PLACE: Conference Room, Commission on Ethics, 3600 Maclay Boulevard South, Suite 201, Tallahassee, FL

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT IS: Julia Cobb Costas, Senior Attorney, Commission on Ethics, telephone: (850)488-7864

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS:

34-7.010 List of Forms and Instructions.

(1) The following forms and instructions are adopted by reference and are used by the Commission in its dealings with the public:

(a) Form 1, Statement of Financial Interests. To be utilized by state officers, local officers, candidates for state or local office and specified state employees for compliance with Section 112.3145(2) and (3), Florida Statutes. Effective 1/2007 ~~1/2006~~.

(b) No change.

(c) Form 6, Full and Public Disclosure of Financial Interests. To be utilized by all elected constitutional officers, candidates for such offices, other statewide elected officers, and others as prescribed by law for compliance with Article II, Section 8(a) and (h), Florida Constitution, as specified in Chapter 34-8 of these rules. Effective 1/2007 ~~1/2006~~.

(d) No change.

(e) Form 3A, Statement of Interest in Competitive Bid for Public Business. To be utilized by persons wishing to do business with their agency or to have employment or a contractual relationship with a business entity doing business with their agency, provided that the business is awarded under a system of sealed, competitive bidding, under Subsection 112.313(12)(b), Florida Statutes. Effective 1/2007 ~~1/95~~.

(f) through (k) No change.

(l) Form 9, Quarterly Gift Disclosure. To be utilized by persons who are required to file Form 1 or Form 6 and by State procurement employees for compliance with the quarterly gift disclosure requirements of Section 112.3148(8), Florida Statutes. Effective 1/2007 ~~1/2001~~.

(m) Form 10, Annual Disclosure of Gifts from Governmental Entities and Direct Support Organizations and Honorarium Event Related Expenses. To be utilized by persons who are required to file Form 1 or Form 6 and by State procurement employees for compliance with the gift disclosure requirements of Section 112.3148(6), Florida Statutes, and the honorarium disclosure requirements of Section 112.3149(6), Florida Statutes. Effective 1/2007 ~~1/2002~~.

(n) Form 30, Donor's Quarterly Gift Disclosure. To be utilized by political committees, committees of continuous existence, lobbyists (persons who for compensation sought to influence the governmental decisionmaking, proposal, or recommendation of an agency), and the partners, firms, principals, and employers of lobbyists for compliance with the gift disclosure requirements of Section 112.3148(5), Florida Statutes. Effective 1/2007 ~~1/2001~~.

(o) Form 1F, Final Statement of Financial Interests. To be filed within 60 days of leaving public office or employment. Effective 1/2007 ~~1/2006~~.

(p) Form 6F, Final Full and Public Disclosure of Financial Interests. To be filed within 60 days of leaving public office. Effective 1/2007 ~~1/2006~~.

(q) through (r) No change.

(2) No change.

PROPOSED EFFECTIVE DATE JANUARY 1, 2007.

Specific Authority Art. II, Sec. 8(i), Fla. Const., 112.3144, 112.3145, 112.3147, 112.3215(14), 112.322(9) FS., Chapter 2005-359, LOF. Law Implemented 112.313(9), (12), 112.3143, 112.3144, 112.3145, 112.3148, 112.3149, 112.3215 FS., Art. II, Sec. 8(a), (f), (h), Fla. Const., Chapter 2005-359, LOF. History—New 4-11-76, Formerly 34-7.10 through 7.22, 8.10, Amended 2-23-77, 4-7-77, 5-17-77, 10-20-77, 2-25-79, 1-29-80, 4-29-81, 1-12-82, 3-25-82, 2-21-83, Formerly 34-7.10, Amended 7-10-88, 3-4-91, 10-6-91, 10-29-91, 12-22-91, 7-5-92, 10-15-92, 12-6-92, 11-10-93, 12-27-93, 11-21-94, 2-16-95, 12-26-95, 1-27-97, 1-1-98, 11-19-98, 12-28-99, 1-1-00, 12-4-00, 12-21-00, 10-14-01, 11-22-01, 1-1-02, 1-1-03, 1-1-04, 1-1-05, 1-1-06, 6-15-06, 1-1-07.

WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICTS**South Florida Water Management District**

RULE CHAPTER NO.: RULE CHAPTER TITLE:

40E-4 Environmental Resource Permits

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: To develop supplemental water quality criteria for environmental resource permits for new development in the Upper and Lower Kissimmee, Lake Okeechobee, St. Lucie Estuary and Caloosahatchee Estuary basins.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Environmental Resource Permitting Water Quality criteria in Lake Okeechobee and Estuary Watersheds Basin.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 373.044, 373.113 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 373.413, 373.416 FS.

RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOPS WILL BE HELD AT THE DATES, TIMES AND PLACES SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: August 22, 2006, 10:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m.

PLACE: South Florida Water Management District, Okeechobee Service Center, 205 North Parrott Avenue, Suite 201 (second floor of the Bank of America building), Okeechobee, FL 34972

DATE AND TIME: August 24, 2006, 10:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m.

PLACE: Indian River Community College, 2400 S.E. Salerno Road, Stuart, FL 34997

DATE AND TIME: August 29, 2006, 10:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m.

PLACE: Lower West Coast Regional Service Center, Large Conference Room, 2301 McGregor Blvd., Fort Myers, FL 33901

DATE AND TIME: September 12, 2006, 1:00 p.m. – 3:00 p.m.

PLACE: Osceola County Extension, Osceola Heritage Park, 1921 Kissimmee Valley Lane, Kissimmee, FL 34744-6107

Although Governing Board meetings, hearings and workshops are normally recorded, affected persons are advised that it may be necessary for them to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which any appeal is to be based. Persons with disabilities or handicaps who need assistance may contact the South

Florida Water Management District Clerk's Office, at (561)682-2087 at least two business days in advance to make appropriate arrangements.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS: Damon Meiers, Deputy Director, Environmental Resource Regulation Department, South Florida Water Management District, Post Office Box 24680, West Palm Beach, FL 33416-4680, telephone 1(800)432-2045, extension 6876 or (561)682-6876, or by email to dmeiers@sfwmd.gov. For procedural questions please contact Jan Sluth, Paralegal, South Florida Water Management District, Post Office Box 24680, West Palm Beach, FL 33416-4680, telephone 1(800)432-2045, extension 6299 or (561)682-6299, or by email to jsluth@sfwmd.gov.

A draft of the rule text will be available on August 15, 2006, on the District's website located at: my.sfwmd.gov/permitting in the right hand column under "rule development" and the District's LOER website located at: <http://www.sfwmd.gov/site/index.php?id=727>. Copies can also be obtained by contacting Jan Sluth, Paralegal at the contact information provided above.

WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICTS

South Florida Water Management District

RULE CHAPTER NO.: RULE CHAPTER TITLE:

40E-41 Surface Water Management Basin
and Related Criteria

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: To develop supplemental water quality criteria for environmental resource permits for new development in the Upper and Lower Kissimmee, Lake Okeechobee, St. Lucie Estuary and Caloosahatchee Estuary basins.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Environmental Resource Permitting Water Quality criteria in Lake Okeechobee and Estuary Watersheds Basin.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 373.044, 373.113 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 373.413, 373.416 FS.

RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOPS WILL BE HELD AT THE DATES, TIMES AND PLACES SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: August 22, 2006, 10:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m.

PLACE: South Florida Water Management District, Okeechobee Service Center, 205 North Parrott Avenue, Suite 201 (second floor of the Bank of America building), Okeechobee, FL 34972

DATE AND TIME: August 24, 2006, 10:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m.

PLACE: Indian River Community College, 2400 S.E. Salerno Road, Stuart, FL 34997

DATE AND TIME: August 29, 2006, 10:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m.

PLACE: Lower West Coast Regional Service Center, Large Conference Room, 2301 McGregor Blvd., Fort Myers, FL 33901

DATE AND TIME: September 12, 2006, 1:00 p.m. – 3:00 p.m.

PLACE: Osceola County Extension, Osceola Heritage Park, 1921 Kissimmee Valley Lane, Kissimmee, FL 34744-6107

Although Governing Board meetings, hearings and workshops are normally recorded, affected persons are advised that it may be necessary for them to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which any appeal is to be based. Persons with disabilities or handicaps who need assistance may contact the South Florida Water Management District Clerk's Office, at (561)682-2087 at least two business days in advance to make appropriate arrangements.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS: Damon Meiers, Deputy Director, Environmental Resource Regulation Department, South Florida Water Management District, Post Office Box 24680, West Palm Beach, FL 33416-4680, telephone 1(800)432-2045, extension 6876 or (561)682-6876, or by email to dmeiers@sfwmd.gov. For procedural questions please contact Jan Sluth, Paralegal, South Florida Water Management District, Post Office Box 24680, West Palm Beach, FL 33416-4680, telephone 1(800)432-2045, extension 6299 or (561)682-6299, or by email to jsluth@sfwmd.gov.

A draft of the rule text will be available on August 15, 2006, on the District's website located at: my.sfwmd.gov/permitting in the right hand column under "rule development" and the District's LOER website located at: <http://www.sfwmd.gov/site/index.php?id=727>. Copies can also be obtained by contacting Jan Sluth, Paralegal at the contact information provided above.

DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Enterprise Information Technology Services

RULE CHAPTER NO.: RULE CHAPTER TITLE:

60EE-1 Not Available

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: To consider promulgation of rules implementing recent legislation on accessibility of electronic and information technology.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Purpose and Scope of Proposed Rule Chapter; Definitions; Standards; Procurement and Development of Electronic and Information Technology.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 282.604 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 282.601-.606 FS.

THREE RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOPS WILL BE HELD AT THE DATES, TIMES AND PLACES SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: Monday, August 14, 2006, 9:00 a.m. – 11:00 a.m.

PLACE: Betty Easley Center Room 166, 4075 Esplanade Way, Tallahassee, Florida 32399

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, August 16, 2006, 9:00 a.m. – 11:00 a.m.

PLACE: Embassy Suites Orlando North, 225 Shorecrest Drive, Altamonte Springs, Florida 32701

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, August 29, 2006, 9:00 a.m. – 11:00 a.m.

PLACE: Embassy Suites-Ft. Lauderdale, 1100 S. E. 17th Street, Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33316

Pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing special accommodations to participate in these meetings should advise the Department at least 2 business days before the workshop, by contacting Susan Counts at (850)487-3423. Please be aware that American Sign Language Interpreters, Certified Real Time Captioning, Audio/Visual Accommodations and alternative formats will be available on site.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Susan Counts, Management Review Specialist, ADA Working Group, 4030 Esplanade Way, Ste. 315, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0950; (850)487-3423 Susan.Counts@dms.myflorida.com

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Board of Professional Engineers

RULE CHAPTER NO.: RULE CHAPTER TITLE:

61G15-30 Rules for Aluminum Structures

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: Purpose and effect is to develop rules concerning the appropriate and inappropriate uses of design manuals for aluminum and other structures.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Rules concerning the appropriate and inappropriate uses of design manuals for aluminum and other structures.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 471.008, 471.033 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 471.033 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Paul Martin, Executive Director, Board of Professional Engineers, 2507 Callaway Road, Suite 200, Tallahassee, Florida 32301

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Board of Professional Engineers

RULE CHAPTER NO.: RULE CHAPTER TITLE:

61G15-31 Rules for Aluminum Structures

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: Purpose and effect is to develop rules concerning the appropriate and inappropriate uses of design manuals for aluminum and other structures.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Rules concerning the appropriate and inappropriate uses of design manuals for aluminum and other structures.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 471.008, 471.033 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 471.033 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Paul Martin, Executive Director, Board of Professional Engineers, 2507 Callaway Road, Suite 200, Tallahassee, Florida 32301

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Board of Professional Surveyors and Mappers

RULE NOS.: RULE TITLES:

61G17-3.0021 Education

61G17-3.0025 Domestic Equivalency Education

Program Criteria for Applicants

Who Graduated from Non-ABET

Accredited Surveying and Mapping

Degree Programs

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Florida Board of Professional Surveyors and mappers is amending Rule 61G17-3.0021, F.A.C. to clarify what types of courses an applicant applying for licensure pursuant to Section 472.013(2)(b), F.S., must complete to qualify for licensure. The Florida Board of Professional Surveyors and Mappers is creating new Rule 61G17-3.0025, F.A.C., to establish domestic degree equivalency criteria for applicants who graduated from a United States Non-ABET accredited surveying and mapping degree program.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Education; Domestic Equivalency Education Program Criteria for Applicants Who Graduated from Non-ABET Accredited Surveying and Mapping Degree Programs.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 472.013 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 472.005, 472.013, 472.013 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Rick Morrison, Executive Director, Board of Professional Surveyors and Mappers, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0767

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Board of Professional Surveyors and Mappers

RULE NOS.:	RULE TITLES:
61G17-5.001	Continuing Education Requirements for Reactivation of Inactive License
61G17-5.0043	Obligations of Continuing Education Providers

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Florida Board of Professional Surveyors and Mappers is amending Rule 61G17-5.0043, F.A.C., to revise an incorrect citation. The Florida Board of Professional Surveyors and Mappers is amending Rule 61G17-5.001, F.A.C., to revise the continuing education requirements for reactivating an inactive license.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Obligations of Continuing Education Providers; Continuing Education Requirements for Reactivation of Inactive License.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 455.2178, 455.219, 472.008, 472.011, 472.018, 472.019(2) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 455.2123, 472.018, 455.271(9), 472.019(2) FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Rick Morrison, Executive Director, Board of Professional Surveyors and Mappers, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0767

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Florida Real Estate Appraisal Board

RULE NO.:	RULE TITLE:
61J1-4.001	Education Requirements

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Florida Real Estate Appraisal Board is amending Rule 61J1-4.001, F.A.C., to implement changes to Section 475.617 of the Florida Statutes. Specifically, the Florida Real Estate Appraisal Board is increasing the number of classroom hours required to become registered as a trainee appraiser.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Education Requirements.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 475.614 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 475.613, 475.615, 475.617 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT IS: Michael E. Murphy, Acting Director, Division of Real Estate, 400 West Robinson Street, Hurston Building, North Tower, Suite N801, Orlando, Florida 32801

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS:

61J1-4.001 Education Requirements.

(1)(a) Persons desiring to become registered as a trainee appraiser must satisfactorily complete 100 ~~75~~ classroom hours, inclusive of examination, of Board approved academic courses in subjects related to real estate appraisal, which shall include coverage of the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice. ~~Effective January 1, 2008, persons desiring to become registered as a trainee appraiser must satisfactorily complete 100 classroom hours, inclusive of examination, of Board approved academic courses in subjects related to real estate appraisal, which shall include coverage of the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice.~~

(b) If a registration expires due to failure to renew pursuant to Rule 61J1-4.007, F.A.C., the original classroom hours taken at any time to become initially registered will be invalid and may not be used to secure another registration. ~~Effective January 1, 2008, persons desiring to become registered as a trainee appraiser must satisfactorily complete 100 classroom hours, inclusive of examination, of Board approved academic courses in subjects related to real estate appraisal, which shall include coverage of the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice.~~

(c) No change.

(2) Persons desiring to become certified as a residential appraiser must successfully complete 120 classroom hours, inclusive of examination, of Board approved academic courses in subjects related to real estate appraisal, which shall include the 15-hour National USPAP course or its equivalent, taught by an AQB certified USPAP instructor. The 120 classroom hours may include the previous 75 or the current 100 classroom hour requirement for becoming registered or the 90 classroom hour requirement for becoming licensed as an appraiser.

(3) Persons desiring to become certified as a general appraiser must successfully complete 180 classroom hours, inclusive of examination, of Board approved academic courses in subjects related to real estate appraisal, which shall include the 15-hour National USPAP course or its equivalent, taught by an AQB certified USPAP instructor. The 180 classroom hours may include the previous 75 or the current 100 classroom hour requirement for becoming registered, the 90 classroom hour requirement for becoming licensed as an appraiser, or the 120 classroom hour requirement for becoming certified as a residential appraiser.

(4) through (14) No change.

Specific Authority 475.614 FS. Law Implemented 475.613, 475.615, 475.617 FS. History—New 10-15-91, Formerly 21VV-4.001, Amended 1-9-94, 3-10-98, 9-6-98, 10-10-99, 5-25-04, 5-15-05, 1-17-06,_____.

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Notices for the Department of Environmental Protection between December 28, 2001 and June 30, 2006, go to <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/> under the link or button titled "Official Notices."

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Division of Beaches and Shores

RULE NOS.:	RULE TITLES:
62B-33.002	Definitions
62B-33.004	Exemptions from Permit Requirements
62B-33.005	General Criteria
62B-33.007	Structural and Other Requirements Necessary for Permit Approval
62B-33.008	Permit Application Requirements and Procedures
62B-33.013	Permit Modifications, Time Extensions, and Renewals
62B-33.014	Emergency Procedures
62B-33.024	Thirty-Year Erosion Projection Procedures
62B-33.0051	Coastal Armoring and Related Structures
62B-33.0081	Survey Requirements
62B-33.0085	Permit Fees
62B-33.0155	General Permit Conditions

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The proposed amendment will clarify and/or update rule requirements for exemptions, denials, evaluation of impacts from discharges of water or other fluids, sand-filled geotextile container armoring procedures, emergency protection measures, permit application requirements, survey requirements, permit time extensions, emergency reporting procedures, general permit conditions, permit compliance reporting forms, and 30-year erosion projection procedures. Also this amendment will add and/or amend definitions for government entity, survey datum NAD 83/90, protective value, and rebuilding.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Rules and procedures for construction and excavation seaward of the coastal construction control line.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 161.052, 161.053, 161.0535, 161.085 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 161.052, 161.053, 161.0535, 161.054, 161.085 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: August 15, 2006, 2:00 p.m. – 4:00 p.m.

PLACE: Bureau of Beaches and Coastal Systems, Building B, Room 309 (Training Room), 5050 West Tennessee Street, Tallahassee, FL.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Leesia Koutz, (850)488-7816. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Leesia Koutz, Operations Review Specialist, Department of Environmental Protection, Bureau of Beaches and Coastal Systems, Mail Station #300, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Tallahassee, FL 32399-3000, call (850)488-7816 or e-mail: leesia.koutz@dep.state.fl.us.

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS AVAILABLE AT NO CHARGE FROM THE CONTACT PERSON LISTED ABOVE.

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES

Economic Self-Sufficiency Program

RULE NO.:	RULE TITLE:
65A-1.205	Eligibility Determination Process

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The proposed rule amendment clarifies the department's eligibility processing procedures applicable to all public assistance programs. It also removes reference to the Relative Caregiver Program (RCP) as the provision has been moved to Administrative Rule 65A-4.208, F.A.C., since it is only pertinent to individuals who meet Temporary Cash Assistance (TCA) eligibility factors.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: The proposed rule amendment provides for the use of a paper or electronic/web based application to apply for public assistance. It also provides clarification on the department's eligibility determination process and removes reference to the RCP.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 409.919, 414.45 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 414.095, 414.31, 409.903, 409.904, 409.919, 410.033 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW.

DATE AND TIME: August 28, 2006, 1:30 p.m.

PLACE: 1317 Winewood Boulevard, Building 3, Room 455, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0700

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS: Eileen Schilling, Program Administrator, Food Stamp/TANF Policy, 1317 Winewood Boulevard, Building 3, Room 450, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0700, telephone 414-5643

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES

Economic Self-Sufficiency Services

RULE NOS.:	RULE TITLES:
65A-1.301	Citizenship
65A-1.704	Family-Related Medicaid Eligibility Determination Process
65A-1.705	Family-Related Medicaid General Eligibility Criteria

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: Amendment to the proposed rules will align citizenship requirements for Medicaid applicants and recipients in accordance with the federal law, the Deficit Reduction Omnibus Reconciliation Act (DRA) Of 2005 (Public Law 109-171).

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Proposed amendments will revise language to be consistent with federal requirements for individuals who declare to be a U.S. citizen or national. These individuals are required to provide documentation of U.S. citizenship and identity.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 409.918, 409.919, 414.45 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 409.902, 409.903, 409.904, 409.818, 409.919, 410.033, 414.095(3), 414.31 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: August 28, 2006, 1:30 p.m.

PLACE: 1317 Winewood Boulevard, Building 3, Room 455, Tallahassee, FL 32399

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS: Pat Whitford, Economic Self-Sufficiency Services, telephone (850)410-3479
THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES

Economic Self-Sufficiency Services

RULE NOS.:	RULE TITLES:
65A-1.707	Family-Related Medicaid Income and Resource Criteria
65A-1.713	SSI-Related Medicaid Income Eligibility Criteria

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of these proposed amendments are to align policies and procedures on income and asset exclusions for Medicaid coverage groups. The Social Security Protection Act of 2004 included several policy changes on income and asset exclusions for the Supplemental Security Income (SSI) program. By law these provisions must also apply to SSI-related Medicaid programs and State Funded Programs (Optional State Supplementation and Home Care for Disabled Adults). The Farm Bill of 2002 allows some state flexibility to align food stamp income related policies to those used by TANF and 1931 Medicaid programs. Florida is aligning the policies to further simplify program policies and procedures.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: The proposed amendments contain specific provisions for income exclusions for infrequent or irregular earned and unearned income; interest and dividends; and educational grants, loans, scholarships, fellowships and gifts.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 409.919 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 409.903, 409.918, 409.919 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: August 28, 2006, 2:30 p.m.

PLACE: 1317 Winewood Boulevard, Building 3, Room 455, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0700

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Pat Whitford, Economic Self-Sufficiency, telephone (850)410-3479

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES

Economic Self-Sufficiency Program

RULE NO.: 65A-4.209
 RULE TITLE: Income

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed rule amendment is to align policies and procedures on income and asset exclusions for Temporary Cash Assistance (TCA). The Social Security Protection Act of 2004 included several policy changes on income and asset exclusions for the Supplemental Security Income (SSI) program. By law, these provisions must also apply to SSI-related Medicaid programs and State Funded Programs (Optional State Supplementation and Home Care for Disabled Adults). The Farm Bill of 2002 allows some state flexibility to align food stamp income and asset polices to those used by the Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) and 1931 Medicaid programs. Florida is aligning the policies to further simplify program policies and procedures.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: The proposed rule amendment contains specific provisions for TCA income exclusions for infrequent or irregular earned and unearned income; interest and dividends; and educational grants, loans, scholarships, fellowships and gifts.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 414.45 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 414.095 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW.

DATE AND TIME: August 28, 2006, 2:30 p.m.

PLACE: 1317 Winewood Boulevard, Building 3, Room 455, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0700

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Eileen Schilling, Program Administrator, Food Stamps/TANF Policy, Economic Self-Sufficiency, 1317 Winewood Boulevard, Building 3, Room 414, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0700, telephone 414-5643

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE NO.: 68A-1.004
 RULE TITLE: Definitions

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose and effect of this rule development effort is to define “captive wildlife,” “critical incident,” “natural disaster,” “reptiles of concern,” and “venomous reptiles.”

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: The proposed rule will define “captive wildlife,” “critical incident,” “natural disaster,” “reptiles of concern,” and “venomous reptiles.”

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Florida Constitution.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Florida Constitution.
RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOPS WILL BE HELD AT THE DATES, TIMES AND PLACES SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: August 21, 2006, 6:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m.

PLACE: Doyle Connor Building, Department of Agriculture, Division of Plant Industry, 1911 S.W. 34th Street, 1st Floor Auditorium, Gainesville, FL 32608-1201

DATE AND TIME: August 22, 2006, 6:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m.

PLACE: Tampa Port Authority, 1101 Channelside Drive, 1st Floor Board Room, Tampa, FL 33602

DATE AND TIME: August 23, 2006, 6:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m.

PLACE: Broward County Main Library, 100 S. Andrews Avenue, 8th Floor, Rooms 8A & 8B, Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33301-1830

DATE AND TIME: August 28, 2006, 6:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m.

PLACE: Pensacola Junior College, 1000 College Blvd., Hagler Auditorium, Bldg. 2 Room 252, Pensacola, FL 32504-8910

DATE AND TIME: August 29, 2006, 6:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m.

PLACE: Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, Bryant Building, 620 S. Meridian Street, 2nd Floor, Room 272, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1600

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS: Captain Linda Harrison, Division of Law Enforcement, Investigations Section, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600, (850)488-6253

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS:

68A-1.004 Definitions.

The following definitions are for the purpose of carrying out the provisions of the rules of the Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission relating to wild animal life and freshwater aquatic life. As used herein, the singular includes the plural. The following shall be construed respectively to mean:

(1) through (19) No change.

(20) Captive Wildlife – Any wildlife, specifically birds, mammals, reptiles, or amphibians maintained in captivity for exhibition, sale, personal use, propagation, preservation, rehabilitation, protection or hunting purposes.

(20) through (22) renumbered (21) through (23) No change.

(24) Critical Incident – Any condition which results in the release or escape of captive wildlife from its enclosure, cage, leash, or other constraint.

(23) through (47) renumbered (25) through (49) No change.

(50) Natural Disaster –A hurricane or other severe storm, flood, fire, or any other natural or man made disaster.

(48) through (64) renumbered (51) through (67) No change.

(68) Reptiles of Concern – As designated by the Commission, any member of the class Reptilia, including subspecies, taxonomic successors or hybrids thereof, which due to its nature, habits or potential to impact the environment, may be possessed and housed only in accordance with the regulations provided for reptiles of concern.

(65) through (86) renumbered (69) through (90) No change.

(91) Venomous Reptiles – All members of the class Reptilia including their taxonomic successors, subspecies or any hybrid thereof, regardless of surgical alteration, belonging to the families Elapidae, Crotalidae, Viperidae, and Hydrophiidae; all animals in the genus Heloderma; and all animals in the family Colubridae belonging to the genera Rhabdophis, Boiga, Dispholidus, Thelatornis, and Atractapsis; or their taxonomic successors and any other reptile species determined to have the potential to cause serious human injury due to the toxic effects of its venom or poison.

(87) through (91) renumbered (92) through (97) No change.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. History–New 8-1-79, Amended 6-15-81, 11-17-81, 6-21-82, 7-1-83, 7-1-84, 7-1-85, Formerly 39-1.04, Amended 6-1-86, 5-10-87, 10-8-87, 3-1-88, 4-13-88, 4-27-89, 4-11-90, 7-1-92, 4-20-93, 3-1-94, 7-1-94, 4-1-96, 11-23-97, 7-1-98, 6-23-99, Formerly 39-1.004, Amended 7-1-00, 5-1-01, 5-1-03, 7-1-04, 5-26-05, 7-1-06, _____.

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE CHAPTER NO.: RULE CHAPTER TITLE:

68A-6	Wildlife in Captivity
RULE NOS.:	RULE TITLES:
68A-6.0022	Possession of Class I, II, or III Wildlife in Captivity; Permit Requirements
68A-6.003	Facility and Structural Caging Requirements for Class I, II and III Wildlife
68A-6.004	Standard Caging Requirements for Captive Wildlife
68A-6.007	Reptiles of Concern; Prohibited Species

68A-6.0071	Regulations Governing Dealers of Live Venomous Reptiles or Reptiles of Concern; Reporting Requirements
68A-6.0072	Regulations Governing Identification of Venomous Reptiles and Reptiles of Concern; Escape

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose and effect of this rule development effort is to address the possession and housing of captive wildlife, venomous reptiles and reptiles of concern. The proposed rules will provide clarification regarding permitting requirements, facility and land area requirements, standard caging requirements, record keeping and reporting requirements for the possession of captive wildlife, venomous reptiles or reptiles of concern, and identification of non-native venomous reptiles and reptiles of concern.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Subject areas to be covered in the proposed rules include possession and housing of captive wildlife, venomous reptiles and reptiles of concern. Proposed rules will: Require safety entrances for enclosures housing capuchin, spider and woolly monkeys; Address land area requirements for facilities housing Class I or Class II wildlife; Consolidate and clarify caging requirements for reptiles and amphibians; Develop minimum caging requirements for large constrictor snakes; Consolidate portions of Rule 68A-25.002 with Rule 68A-25.006 to create Rule 68A-6.007, F.A.C., addressing the possession, exhibition, and caging or venomous reptiles, and reptiles of concern, and prohibited species; Require development of Natural Disaster Plan or Critical Incident Plan for all permittees authorized to possess captive wildlife, venomous reptiles or reptiles of concern; Require development and posting of Bite Protocol and Cage Card Identification at venomous reptile facilities; Develop record keeping and reporting requirements for dealers of live venomous reptiles or reptiles of concern; Develop requirements for the permanent marking/identification of venomous reptiles and reptiles of concern; Require reporting within 24 hours of discovery of the escape of any non-native venomous reptile or reptile of concern.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Florida Constitution.
LAW IMPLEMENTED: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Florida Constitution.
RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOPS WILL BE HELD AT THE DATES, TIMES AND PLACES SHOWN BELOW:
DATE AND TIME: August 21, 2006, 6:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m.
PLACE: Doyle Connor Building, Department of Agriculture, Division of Plant Industry, 1911 S.W. 34th Street, 1st Floor Auditorium, Gainesville, FL 32608-1201
DATE AND TIME: August 22, 2006, 6:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m.
PLACE: Tampa Port Authority, 1101 Channelside Drive, 1st Floor Board Room, Tampa, FL 33602
DATE AND TIME: August 23, 2006, 6:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m.

PLACE: Broward County Main Library, 100 S. Andrews Avenue, 8th Floor, Rooms 8A & 8B, Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33301-1830

DATE AND TIME: August 28, 2006, 6:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m.

PLACE: Pensacola Junior College, 1000 College Blvd., Hagler Auditorium, Bldg. 2 Room 252, Pensacola, FL 32504-8910

DATE AND TIME: August 29, 2006, 6:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m.

PLACE: Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, Bryant Building, 620 S. Meridian Street, 2nd Floor, Room 272, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1600

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Captain Linda Harrison, Division of Law Enforcement, Investigations Section, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600, (850)488-6253

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

FUTURE DRAFTS OF THE PROPOSED RULES WILL BE AVAILABLE AT NO CHARGE AND MAY BE OBTAINED FROM THE CONTACT PERSON LISTED ABOVE.

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE CHAPTER NO.: RULE CHAPTER TITLE:

68A-25 Rules Relating To Reptiles

RULE NO.: RULE TITLES:

68A-25.002 General Provisions for Taking, Possession and Sale of Reptiles

68A-25.006 Possession, Exhibition and Caging Venomous Reptiles: Prohibited Species

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose and effect of this rule development effort is to consolidate regulations pertaining to the possession and housing of venomous reptiles in captivity with other regulations pertaining to wildlife in captivity found in Chapter 68A-6, Florida Administrative Code. The effect will be to amend Section 68A-25.002 and repeal Rule 68A-25.006, F.A.C.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Subject areas to be covered includes the deletion of language pertaining to permitting requirements for authorization to possess venomous reptiles in Rule 68A-25.002 and repeal of Rule 68A-25.006, F.A.C.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Florida Constitution.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Florida Constitution.

RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOPS WILL BE HELD AT THE DATES, TIMES AND PLACES SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: August 21, 2006, 6:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m.

PLACE: Doyle Connor Building, Department of Agriculture, Division of Plant Industry, 1911 S.W. 34th Street, 1st Floor Auditorium, Gainesville, FL 32608-1201

DATE AND TIME: August 22, 2006, 6:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m.

PLACE: Tampa Port Authority, 1101 Channelside Drive, 1st Floor Board Room, Tampa, FL 33602

DATE AND TIME: August 23, 2006, 6:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m.

PLACE: Broward County Main Library, 100 S. Andrews Avenue, 8th Floor, Rooms 8A & 8B, Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33301-1830

DATE AND TIME: August 28, 2006, 6:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m.

PLACE: Pensacola Junior College, 1000 College Blvd., Hagler Auditorium, Bldg. 2 Room 252, Pensacola, FL 32504-8910

DATE AND TIME: August 29, 2006, 6:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m.

PLACE: Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, Bryant Building, 620 S. Meridian Street, 2nd Floor, Room 272, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1600

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS: Captain Linda Harrison, Division of Law Enforcement, Investigations Section, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600, (850)488-6253

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS:

68A-25.002 General Provisions for Taking, Possession and Sale of Reptiles.

(1) No person shall buy, sell, take, possess, transport, or import any American alligator, or any part thereof, or the nests or eggs of any American alligator except under permit from the executive director, as otherwise provided by this Title, or as follows:

(a) Lawfully acquired, unskinned alligator carcasses with CITES tags legally affixed; skinned alligator carcasses with the CITES tag number and, if applicable, harvest tag number recorded on an attached tag; untanned hides with CITES tags legally affixed; and alligator feet, viscera, and skeletal parts may be bought, sold, possessed, transported, and imported without a permit provided that untanned alligator hides may only be bought by persons licensed pursuant to Section 372.66, F.S., and that records of transfers of alligator feet, viscera, and skeletal parts shall be maintained as specified in Rule 68A-25.052, F.A.C.

(b) Persons permitted pursuant to Section 372.921, F.S., and their employees may transport live, lawfully-possessed, untagged alligators to Florida locations for exhibition purposes and persons permitted pursuant to Section 372.921, F.S., may sell, and they and their employees may transport, such alligators to:

1. Other persons permitted pursuant to Section 372.921, F.S.;

2. To persons permitted to receive such alligators; or

3. To persons out of state, provided that all transports/transfers conducted pursuant to subparagraphs 68A-25.002(b)1., 2. and 3., F.A.C., shall be documented on a Captive Alligator and Egg Transportation/Transfer Document (FWC Form 1006AF).

4. All originating exhibitor/seller(s) acting pursuant to this paragraph shall complete and sign the Captive Alligator and Egg Transportation/Transfer Document before the transport, obtain the signature of the recipient on the document, if appropriate, and forward the document to the Commission within 30 days following the date of transport. A copy of the completed document must accompany the alligators during transport.

(2) Notwithstanding other provisions in this Title, untagged, lawfully-acquired, cured, and mounted crocodilian trophies; untagged, tanned crocodilian hides; and manufactured goods wholly or partly composed of crocodilian hide or other parts may be possessed, transported, and imported without a permit, but may only be sold in accordance with the following:

(a) Documentary evidence of the source of acquisition of such crocodilian products held for sale shall be maintained until the products are sold. Such products held for sale and documentary evidence of the source of acquisition shall be subject to inspection by Commission personnel during reasonable hours.

(b) No person shall sell such crocodilian products manufactured from a species declared to be endangered or threatened by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service or the Commission.

(c) No person shall sell any crocodilian product manufactured in the form of a stuffed baby crocodilian less than three feet in length as measured from the tip of the snout to the tip of the tail.

(3) Any alligator, crocodile, caiman or similar reptile, or any part thereof, seized or otherwise acquired by the Commission may be sold.

(4) The records of individuals or concerns selling any species of crocodilian will be subject to inspection and such individuals or concerns shall have in their possession invoices or other documentary evidence of the suppliers of such crocodilians. The advertisement or representation of any crocodilian other than American alligator, and meat and parts thereof, as alligator or "gator" and of caimans, and meat and parts thereof, as crocodile is prohibited.

(5) No person shall use, be in possession of or attend any hook, peg or other such device baited in such a manner as to be capable of taking alligators and suspended so that the bait is above water or submerged less than six inches except nuisance-alligator trappers taking nuisance alligators pursuant to Rule 68A-25.003, F.A.C., and except as otherwise provided in Rules 68A-25.032 and 68A-25.042, F.A.C.

(6) Freshwater turtles may be taken as prescribed in Rules 68A-23.012 and 68A-23.003, F.A.C., and manually or by baited hooks, bow, dip nets, traps so designed that any freshwater fish taken therein may escape, or by spearing only during daylight hours. The taking of turtles by bucket traps, snares, or shooting with firearms is prohibited. No person shall buy, sell, or possess for sale any alligator snapping turtle (*Macrolemys temmincki*), box turtle (*Terrapene carolina*), Barbour's map turtle (*Graptemys barbouri*), Escambia River map turtle (*Graptemys ernsti*), diamondback terrapin (*Malaclemys terrapin*), river cooter (*Pseudemys concinna*), or loggerhead musk turtle (*Sternotherus minor*), or parts thereof. No person shall possess more than two Barbour's map turtles, two Escambia River map turtles, two diamondback terrapins, two river cooters, two box turtles, two loggerhead musk turtles, or one alligator snapping turtle unless authorized by permit from the executive director as provided in Rules 68A-5.004, 68A-9.002, and 68A-27.002, F.A.C. River cooters may not be taken from 15 April to 31 July.

(7) No softshell turtles (*Apalone* spp.) or their eggs may be taken from the wild during the period 1 May to 31 July.

(8) No person shall possess more than 50 eggs taken from the wild in the aggregate of species of freshwater turtle native to Florida except as authorized by permit from the Executive Director as provided in Rules 68A-5.004, 68A-9.002, and 68A-27.002, F.A.C. Eggs of those turtle species enumerated in subsection 68A-25.002(6), F.A.C., are subject to the same possession limits as apply for those turtles. The purchase or sale of turtle eggs taken from the wild is prohibited.

(9) No person shall buy, sell, take or possess any gopher tortoise (*Gopherus polyphemus*), or any part thereof, unless authorized by permit from the executive director as provided in Rules 68A-5.004, 68A-9.002, and 68A-27.002, F.A.C.

(10) Possession of gopher tortoises may be authorized by permit from the executive director when the owner can demonstrate that such tortoise(s) was (were) legally acquired and possessed before July 1, 1988.

(11) No person shall possess any turtle or tortoise on which paint has been applied to its shell or body parts, provided that water-soluble, non-toxic identifying marking may be used in turtle racing contests.

(12) No person shall buy, sell or possess for sale any Florida pine snake (*Pituophis melanoleucus mugitus*), nor shall any person possess more than one Florida pine snake, except that said restrictions shall not apply to amelanistic (= "albino") specimens.

(13) Reptiles may be taken throughout the year in any manner not conflicting with other provisions of these rules.

~~(14) On or after July 1, 1990 any person or entity not currently permitted to possess or exhibit venomous reptiles must qualify for a permit by meeting the following criteria:~~

~~(a) Submit documentation in accordance with the criteria specified in paragraph 68A-6.0022(5)(c), F.A.C., showing a minimum of one (1) year substantial practical experience in the care, feeding, handling and husbandry of the family of venomous reptiles for which the permit is sought.~~

~~(b) Shall not have been convicted of a violation of venomous reptile regulations for three (3) years prior to application for such permit.~~

~~(c) Must be at least 18 years old at the time of application.~~

~~(14)(15) No leopard tortoise (*Geochelone pardalis*) or African spurred tortoise (*Geochelone sulcata*) shall be imported or transported into this state, without a special permit issued by the Commission. The basis for the issuance of such permit shall include:~~

~~(a) That each shipment is accompanied by a veterinary certificate stating that all specimens are free from external parasites;~~

~~(b) That all shipping containers used to transport such tortoises are incinerated within 24 hours;~~

~~(c) Such other conditions as may be necessary to insure that no tortoise infested with ticks capable of transmitting the Heartwater disease is imported into Florida.~~

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const., 372.6672, 372.6673, 372.86, 372.921, 372.922 FS. History—New 8-1-79, Amended 6-4-81, 6-21-82, 7-1-83, 7-1-84, 7-1-85, Formerly 39-25.02, Amended 6-1-86, 5-10-87, 10-8-87, 4-13-88, 2-14-89, 7-1-89, 7-1-90, 4-14-92, 4-1-96, 9-15-96, 4-12-98, 7-1-99, Formerly 39-25.002, Amended 4-30-00, 3-30-06, 5-18-06, _____.

68A-25.006 Possession, Exhibition and Caging Venomous Reptiles: Prohibited Species.

~~(1) Any person who keeps, possesses or exhibits poisonous or venomous reptiles shall comply with Sections 372.86, 372.87, 372.88, 372.89, 372.90 and 372.91, F.S.~~

~~(2) Venomous reptiles shall be kept enclosed in cages, cases, pits or enclosures of the following specifications:~~

~~(a) Cage may be constructed of a variety of materials including: plate glass of at least one-quarter inch thickness, break resistant plastic of similar strength, concrete reinforced with wire, sheet metal, molded fiberglass, plywood or interlocking lumber that has been treated to be impervious to moisture and is not less than one-half inch in thickness, or other materials which provide equivalent stability and security against escape and unauthorized intrusion. Cages and doors to cages shall be sealed. The doors of each cage shall be securely locked to prevent unauthorized intrusion.~~

~~(b) A room may contain poisonous reptiles in cages that are not locked provided that such a room is locked to prevent unauthorized intrusion, is inaccessible to unauthorized personnel, is constructed and maintained as to be escape proof, and, for commercial facilities, has been inspected and approved as conforming to these rules by Commission personnel prior to use.~~

~~(c) Outdoor open topped enclosures:~~

~~1. For venomous reptiles native to the United States, the floors of outdoor cages shall be of concrete or masonry construction at least two inches in thickness. Sides shall be of similar construction, at least eight inches in thickness, or strength equivalent, with a minimum height of four feet above the floor of the enclosure. Outdoor enclosures need not have concrete or masonry flooring if the enclosure meets the following additional specifications:~~

~~a. The enclosure shall have concrete or masonry walls, at least eight inches in thickness, or strength equivalent.~~

~~b. The enclosure shall have footers made of concrete, or strength equivalent, extending not less than three feet below the grade level, outside the perimeter.~~

~~c. The corners of enclosure shall be designed or guarded to prevent the escape of reptiles by climbing.~~

~~d. All landscaping of the enclosure shall be arranged to insure that vegetation or other structures do not allow for the escape of reptiles.~~

~~2. Entrance doors shall be kept securely locked on all outdoor enclosures to prevent escape and unauthorized intrusion and the enclosure shall be equipped with barriers to prevent visitors from falling into enclosures that are constructed below ground level.~~

~~3. For venomous reptile species not native to the United States, all outdoor enclosures shall be topped with close meshed wire or an equivalent barrier to provide additional security.~~

~~(3) All species of snakes commonly known as sea snakes or sea kraits, belonging to the families Elapidae, Hydrophiidae or Laticaudidae are prohibited from being imported or possessed, except under the provisions of Section 370.081(4), F.S.~~

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented 370.081, 372.86, 372.87, 372.88, 372.89, 372.90, 372.91, 372.92 FS. History—New 8-1-79, Amended 6-21-82, Formerly 39-25.06, Amended 5-10-87, 4-1-96, 9-15-96, Formerly 39-25.006, Amended 11-17-99, Repealed _____.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

Division of State Fire Marshal

RULE CHAPTER NO.: RULE CHAPTER TITLE:

69A-40 Uniform Fire Safety standards for Assisted Living facilities

RULE NOS.: RULE TITLES:

69A-40.024 Scope
69A-40.027 Definitions
69A-40.037 Intergenerational Respite Care Assisted Living Facility

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: To adopt standards for assisted living facilities which are also intergenerational respite care facilities.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Assisted living facilities that are also intergenerational respite care facilities.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 400.441, 633.01, 633.022 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 400.441, 633.022 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW. (IF A WORKSHOP IS NOT REQUESTED, NO WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD):

DATE AND TIME: September 7, 2006, 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 noon

PLACE: Room 116, Larson Building, 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS: Jim Goodloe, Chief, Bureau of Fire Prevention, Division of State Fire Marshal, 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0342, phone: (850)413-3171; Fax: (850)922-2553

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this program, please advise the Department at least 48 hours before the program by contacting Kimberly Riordan, (850)413-3170.

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS:

69A-40.024 Scope.

(1) These rules apply to any institution, building, or buildings, residence, private home, boarding home, home for the aged, or any other place, whether operated for profit or not, which is an assisted living facility under the definitions of Chapter 400, F.S., and of Chapter 58A-5, F.A.C., and include the intergenerational respite care assisted living facility created pursuant to Section 400.4071, F.S. These rules do not apply to transient rentals, as defined in Section 212.03, F.S.

(2) No change.

Specific Authority 400.441, 633.01, 633.022 FS. Law Implemented 400.441, 633.022 FS. History—New 11-29-89, Amended 1-7-97, Formerly 4A-40.024, Amended.

69A-40.027 Definitions.

(1) through (5) No change.

(6) “Intergenerational Respite Care Assisted Living Facility” means a facility licensed pursuant to a 5 year pilot program established by the Agency for Health Care Administration to provide temporary personal, respite and custodial care to minors and adults with disabilities and elderly persons with special needs who do not require 24-hour nursing services, and that provides respite care services for minors and adults with disabilities and elderly persons with special needs for a period of at least 24 hours but not more than 14 consecutive days, in which minors and adults reside in distinct

and separate living units, with a maximum of 48 beds located in Miami-Dade County, and is operated as a not-for-profit entity.

(7)(6) “NFPA” is the abbreviation for the National Fire Protection Association.

(8)(7) “Owner” shall refer to the person, partnership, association, or corporation that owns the assisted living facilities enterprise, whether licensed or not. In the event a facility is operated by a person that leases the physical plant which is owned by another person, “owner” means the person that operates the facility. When the person that owns the physical plant is an affiliate of the person that operates the facility and has significant control over the day-to-day operation for the facility, he is considered an owner of the facility.

(9)(8) “Point of Safety” shall be as defined in Chapter 22 and 23, NFPA 101, Life Safety Code, incorporated by reference in subsection 69A-40.028(1), F.A.C.

(10)(9)(a) “Satisfactory Firesafety Inspection” shall mean there are no uncorrected firesafety deficiencies in the facility associated with fire alarm systems, installed fire sprinkler systems, or means of egress/escape components. For purposes of this definition, firesafety deficiencies associated with maintenance items, such as “an exit light burned out” or “an electrical wall outlet cover plate missing”, would not be considered as items for an unsatisfactory firesafety inspection.

(b) Facilities shall be granted a period of time to correct firesafety deficiencies that are determined by the firesafety authority having jurisdiction citing the deficiencies. The time periods granted shall be based on the risk to life and property created by the violation and the ease of correction. Those existing facilities that are required to install fire sprinkler systems shall be granted the time frames specified in Section 400.441(1)(a)2.i., F.S.

(c) During these time frames, the lack of a required fire sprinkler system shall not be grounds for denial of a “Satisfactory Firesafety Inspection.”

Specific Authority 400.441, 633.01, 633.022 FS. Law Implemented 400.441, 633.022 FS. History—New 11-29-89, Amended 1-7-97, Formerly 4A-40.027, Amended.

69A-40.037 Intergenerational Respite Care Assisted Living Facility.

(1) The living area for any minor, including the available means of egress, shall be on the level of exit discharge.

(2) Each living area or portion of living area for personal use, comprised of bathrooms, bathing areas, and sleeping areas serving minors, shall be served by exits separate from those serving other intergenerational respite care residents.

(3) Any exit designed to serve both minors and adults in any area other than the living area or portion of the living area for personal use referred to in subsection (2), such as living rooms and dining areas, shall be increased in size to 1.5 times the minimum required egress width.

Specific Authority 400.441, 633.01, 633.022 FS. Law Implemented 400.441, 633.022 FS. History--New _____.

**Section II
Proposed Rules**

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES

Division of Food Safety

RULE CHAPTER NO.: RULE CHAPTER TITLE:

5K-6 Food

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

5K-6.010 Grading Services for Shell Eggs

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services provides grading services to food establishments that process shell eggs through a cooperative agreement with the U.S. Department of Agriculture. The Department charges the egg processor an hourly fee to recover the costs of this service. This rule amendment increases the hourly fees charged to a processor.

SUMMARY: The rule amendment changes the fee and cost schedule for shell egg grading services provided by Department graders commensurate with increases in personnel salaries and benefits, insurance, travel and any other applicable costs.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No statement of estimated regulatory costs has been prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 570.07(23), 583.04 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 583.051, 583.052 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD):

DATE AND TIME: August 18, 2006, 10:00 a.m., Eastern Time

PLACE: Division of Dairy Conference Room, Room 27, The Conner Building, 3125 Conner Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida
Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this hearing is asked to advise the agency at least

48 hours before the hearing by contacting Dr. John Fruin at (850)245-5520. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Dr. John Fruin, Chief, Division of Food Safety, Bureau of Food and Meat Inspection, 3125 Conner Boulevard, Mail Stop C-18, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1650; telephone: (850)245-5520

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

5K-6.010 Grading Services for Shell Eggs.

(1) through (2) No change.

(3) Under that agreement and to offset the cost of providing the services to the producer who orders them, the department establishes the following schedule:

(a) Grader's time per hour for:

- 1. Resident location \$30.30 ~~27.50~~
- 2. Overtime \$34.30 ~~31.00~~
- 3. Non-resident location \$37.30 ~~34.00~~
- 4. Non-specified days \$37.30 ~~34.00~~

5. In addition to the charge for the grader's time per hour, an additional charge of \$1.40 per hour shall be charged to regular and overtime hours worked at a resident location on a shift beginning after 1:00 p.m.

(b) Travel time and costs:

1. Time for travel to and from the grader's headquarters for grading services at a non-resident or part-time resident location, or on non-specified days at a resident location shall be charged at the same rate as grading services provided.

2. Mileage and per diem to and from the grader's headquarters for grading services at a non-resident or part-time resident location, or on non-specified days at a resident location shall be reimbursed at the prevailing rates provided in Section 112.061, Florida Statutes.

(4) through (5) No change.

PROPOSED EFFECTIVE DATE: October 1, 2006

Specific Authority 570.07(23), 583.04 FS. Law Implemented 583.051, 583.052 FS. History--New 8-13-92, Formerly 5E-7.014, Amended 9-30-96, 9-5-01, 10-1-06.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Dr. John Fruin, Chief, Division of Food Safety, Bureau of Food and Meat Inspection, Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services

NAME OF PERSON OR SUPERVISOR WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Dr. Marion Aller, Director, Division of Food Safety, Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: July 18, 2006

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: July 7, 2006

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS**Florida Building Commission**

RULE CHAPTER NO.: 9B-3
 RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Florida Building Commission
 Operational Procedures

RULE NO.: 9B-3.047
 RULE TITLE: State Building Code Adopted

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: Implement the annual amendments of the 2004 edition of the Florida Building Code developed and approved by the Commission pursuant to Section 553.73, Florida Statutes.

SUMMARY: The Commission undertook review of amendments proposed to the 2004 code with the intent of limiting changes to issues related to hurricane resistance, standards updates and glitch issues arising from transition to the 2003 edition of the International Code Council family of codes as the base code. Pursuant to the authority granted in Section 1, Chapter 2006-65, Laws of Florida, the Commission also integrated the initial designation of the wind born debris region for the Panhandle after repeal of the legislative definition thereof. The rule proceeding implements those code amendments approved by the Commission.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 553.73(1), (2), (7) FS., Sections 21, 32, 33, 34, 36, 44, 46, 48, Chapter 2005-147, Laws of Florida, Section 1, Chapter 2006-65, Laws of Florida.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 553.72, 553.73(2), (3), (7), (9) FS., Sections 21, 32, 33, 34, 36, 44, 46, 48, Chapter 2005-147, Laws of Florida, Section 1, Chapter 2006-65, Laws of Florida.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD):

DATE AND TIME: August 22, 2006, 9:45 a.m.

PLACE: Don Shula's Hotel, 6842 Main St., Miami Lakes, Florida

Any person requiring special accommodation at the hearing because of a disability or physical impairment should contact: Ila Jones, Community Program Administrator, Department of Community Affairs, 2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Sadowski Building, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2100, (850)487-1824 at least seven days before the date of the hearing. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Department of Community Affairs using the Florida Dual Party Relay System which can be reached at 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) or 1(800)955-9771 (TDD).

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Mo Madani, Planning Manager, Department of Community Affairs, 2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2100, (850)921-2247

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

9B-3.047 State Building Code Adopted.

(1) The Florida Building Code as updated by the Florida Building Commission on July 1, 2005, ~~and is hereby adopted as the Florida Building Code, 2004 edition~~ as amended by the Commission on December 11, 2005, and _____ incorporated herein by reference is hereby adopted as the building code for the State of Florida.

(2) No change.

Specific Authority 553.73(1), (2), (7) FS., Sections 21, 32, 33, 34, 36, 44, 46, 48, Chapter 2005-147, Laws of Florida, Section 1, Chapter 2006-65, Laws of Florida, Law Implemented 553.72, 553.73(2), (3), (7), (9) FS., Sections 21, 32, 33, 34, 36, 44, 46, 48, Chapter 2005-147, Laws of Florida, Section 1, Chapter 2006-65, Laws of Florida. History–New 7-18-90, Amended 3-30-93, 10-17-93, 8-28-95, 9-24-96, 12-26-96, 4-27-97, 10-5-97, 10-14-97, 9-7-00, 11-28-00, 2-7-01, 12-16-01, 6-30-03, 4-3-05, 12-11-05, _____.

NOTE: The Florida Building Commission has approved a series of amendments to the Florida Building Code, 2004 Edition, in accordance with the procedures contained in Chapter 553, Florida Statutes. The full text of the Code amendments, published in legislative format, can be accessed online at www.floridabuilding.org. The following are the sections of the Code which have been amended, created or repealed:

BUILDING VOLUME

The following chapters are amended in the code:

Chapter 1, Administration, Chapter 2, Definitions, Chapter 3, Use and Occupancy Classification, Chapter 4, Special Detailed Requirements Based on Use and Occupancy, Chapter 7 Fire-Resistance-Rated Construction, Chapter 9, Fire Protection Systems, Chapter 10, Means of Egress, Chapter 11, Accessibility, Chapter 12, Interior Environment, Chapter 13, Energy Efficiency, Chapter 14, Exterior Walls, Chapter 15, Roof Assemblies and Rooftop Structures, Chapter 16, Structural Design, Chapter 17, Structural Tests and Special Inspections, Chapter 20, Light Metal Alloys, Chapter 21, Masonry, Chapter 22, Steel, Chapter 23, Wood, Chapter 24, Glass and Glazing, Chapter 26, Plastic, Chapter 27, Electrical, Chapter 30, Elevators and Conveying Systems, and Chapter 35, Referenced Standards,

TEST PROTOCOLS FOR HIGH-VELOCITY HURRICANE ZONES

The following protocols are amended in the code:

RAS 117, RAS 118, RAS 119, RAS 120, TAS 106, TAS 139, TAS 201, TAS 202, TAS 203, and TAS 301

EXISTING BUILDING

The following chapters are amended in the code:
Chapter 2, Definitions, and Chapter 5, Alterations - Level 1
MECHANICAL

The following chapters are amended in the code:
Table of Contents, Chapter 2, Definitions, Chapter 3, General
Regulations, Chapter 7, Combustion Air, and Chapter 15,
Referenced Standards
PLUMBING VOLUME

The following chapters are amended in the code:
Chapter 3, General Regulations, and Chapter 4, Fixtures,
Faucets & Fittings
RESIDENTIAL VOLUME

The following chapters are amended in the code:
Chapter 1, Administration, Chapter 2, Definitions, Chapter 3,
Building and Planning
Chapter 4, Foundations, Chapter 5, Floors, Chapter 6, Wall
Construction, Chapter 7, Wall Covering, Chapter 8,
Roof-Ceiling Construction, Chapter 9, Roof Assemblies,
Chapter 10, Chimneys and Fireplaces, Chapter 13, General
Mechanical System Requirements, Chapter 18, Chimneys and
Vents, Chapter 21, Hydronic Piping, Chapter 24, Fuel Gas,
Chapter 25, Plumbing Administration, Chapter 26, General
Plumbing Requirements, Chapter 33, General Requirements,
Chapter 43, Referenced Standards, and Chapter 44,
High-Velocity Hurricane Zones

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Mo Madani, Planning Manager, Department of Community
Affairs, 2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida
32399-2100, (850)921-2247

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED
THE PROPOSED RULE: Ila Jones, Community Program
Administrator, Department of Community Affairs, 2555
Shumard Oak Boulevard, Sadowski Building, Tallahassee,
Florida 32399-2100

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY
HEAD: July 11, 2006

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT
PUBLISHED IN FAW: April 14, 2006

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

RULE CHAPTER NO.: 14-15
RULE NO.: 14-15.0081
RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Incorporation by Reference
RULE TITLE: Toll Facilities Description and Toll
Rate Schedule

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of this rule
amendment is to set a toll rate schedule for a proposed
interchange at Pace Road and Polk Parkway. Section
338.155(1), Florida Statutes, does not permit the use of the
State's toll facilities without paying a toll. A hearing is being
scheduled to allow the public an opportunity to provide input

to changes in the Toll Facilities Description and Toll Rate
Schedule required by the construction of the Pace Road/Polk
Parkway interchange.

SUMMARY: The Florida Department of Transportation,
Florida's Turnpike Enterprise is proposing to construct a
SunPass-Only interchange in the area near Pace Road and the
Polk Parkway in Polk County. The project is located in Polk
County. Tolls are proposed to be collected from vehicles
accessing to and from the northbound direction. This new
interchange is located at Milepost 23 and is approximately two
miles north of the Eastern Toll Plaza and one mile south of the
interchange at Interstate 4. A public hearing is being held in
conjunction with a Project Development and Environment
(PD&E) public hearing for an interchange project, Financial
Project Identification 416537-2. The toll rate public hearing is
being held to allow the public an opportunity to comment on
the proposed toll rate schedule for the Florida Department of
Transportation's construction of a SunPass-Only interchange at
Pace Road located on the Polk Parkway. A rule development
workshop was not requested for this project.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 334.044(2), 338.155(1) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 338.222, 338.231, 338.155 FS.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED
REGULATORY COST: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory
cost has been prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the
statement of estimated regulatory costs or to provide a proposal
for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing
within 21 days of this notice.

A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND
PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: August 22, 2006, Open House 5:30 p.m. –
6:30 p.m., Public Hearing begins at 6:30 p.m.

PLACE: Lakeland Police Department, Community Room, 219
North Massachusetts Avenue, Lakeland, Florida 33801

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE
PROPOSED RULE IS: James C. Myers, Clerk of Agency
Proceedings, Florida Department of Transportation, Office of
the General Counsel, 605 Suwannee Street, Mail Station 58,
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0458

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULES IS:

14-15.0081 Toll Facilities Description and Toll Rate
Schedule.

The Toll Facilities Description and Toll Rate Schedule,
adopted November 15, 1987, and amended on February 8,
1988, August 1, 1988, February 2, 1989, May 10, 1989, July 1,
1991, August 1, 1991, November 6, 1991, July 11, 1993,
November 28, 1993, September 18, 1994, June 6, 1995, July 9,
1995, January 1, 1996, March 31, 1996, April 28, 1996, June 2,
1996, July 28, 1996, September 23, 1997, November 24, 1997,
February 12, 1998, June 30, 1998, July 29, 1998, January 6,

1999, February 9, 1999, April 29, 1999, June 21, 1999, September 4, 2001, March 26, 2002, April 10, 2003, October 1, 2003, December 11, 2003, March 7, 2004, May 20, 2004, November 1, 2005, February 5, 2006, July 27, 2006, and _____, is hereby incorporated by this rule and made a part of the rules of the Department. Copies of this Department of Transportation Toll Facilities Description and Toll Rate Schedule and any amendments thereto are available at no more than cost.

Specific Authority 334.044(2), 338.155(1) FS. Law Implemented 338.222, 338.231, 338.155 FS. History—New 11-15-87, Amended 2-8-88, 8-1-88, 2-2-89, 5-10-89, 7-1-91, 8-1-91, 11-6-91, 7-11-93, 11-28-93, 9-18-94, 6-6-95, 7-9-95, 1-1-96, 3-31-96, 4-28-96, 6-2-96, 7-28-96, 9-23-97, 11-24-97, 2-12-98, 6-30-98, 7-29-98, 1-6-99, 2-9-99, 4-29-99, 6-21-99, 9-4-01, 3-26-02, 4-10-03, 10-1-03, 12-11-03, 3-7-04, 5-20-04, 11-1-05, 2-5-06, 7-27-06, _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:

James Ely, Executive Director, Florida's Turnpike Enterprise

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED

THE PROPOSED RULE: Denver J. Stutler, Jr., P.E., Secretary

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY

HEAD: July 17, 2006

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT

PUBLISHED IN FAW: June 23, 2006

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE INTERNAL IMPROVEMENT TRUST FUND

Notices for the Board of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund between December 28, 2001 and June 30, 2006, go to <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/> under the link or button titled "Official Notices."

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

RULE NO.:

RULE TITLE:

33-102.101

Public Information and Inspection of Records

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose and effect of the proposed rule is to allow the department to charge a special service charge when a staff member's presence is necessary during the inspection of public records to protect the records from alteration or destruction and to modify Form DC1-201, Invoice for Production of Records, to add a line for calculating staff supervision time and hourly rate.

SUMMARY: Amends the rule to provide that the Department shall charge a special service charge for staff member's presence when it is necessary to protect records during public inspection of records.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 944.09 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 119.07, 120.53 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAW.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Sherry Toothman, Office of the General Counsel, Department of Corrections, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2500

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

33-102.101 Public Information and Inspection of Records.

(1) through (2) No change.

(3) In addition to the actual cost of materials and supplies, a special service charge will be assessed for providing information when the nature or volume of the records requested requires extensive clerical or supervisory assistance by departmental personnel. For the purpose of this rule, "extensive" means that it will take more than 15 minutes to locate, review for confidential information, copy and refile the requested material. The special service charge will be computed to the nearest quarter of an hour exceeding 15 minutes based on the current rate of pay for the paygrade of the person who performed the service and will be assessed regardless of the number of individual copies made. The special service charge shall also be imposed when it is necessary to have a staff member present during inspection of records when the nature of the records being inspected is such that they need a heightened degree of protection from alteration or destruction. The special service charge will be computed to the nearest quarter of an hour exceeding 15 minutes based on the current rate of pay for the paygrade of the person who performed the service.

(4) No change.

(5) When copies requested pursuant to this rule are available to be picked up or for mailing, the requestor shall be notified of the costs of reproduction as specified in subsections (2) and (3) on an Invoice for Production of Records, Form DC1-201. Form DC1-201 shall also indicate if any information is redacted from the copies provided as required by state law. Form DC1-201 is hereby incorporated by reference. Copies of this form are available from the Forms Control Administrator, Office of Research, Planning and Support Services, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2500. The effective date of Form DC1-201 is _____ ~~12-5-05~~.

Specific Authority 944.09 FS. Law Implemented 119.07, 120.53 FS. History—New 10-8-76, Amended 2-24-81, Formerly 33-1.04, Amended 6-9-86, 2-9-88, Formerly 33-1.004, Amended 10-29-01, 12-5-05, _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
 Rosa H. Carson, General Counsel
 NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED
 THE PROPOSED RULE: Tina Hayes, Acting Deputy
 Secretary
 DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY
 HEAD: July 17, 2006
 DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT
 PUBLISHED IN FAW: May 26, 2006

INTERLOCAL AGENCIES

Lake Apopka Natural Gas District

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
 54C-1.001 Tariff

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose is to develop amendments to existing Rule 54C-1.001, F.A.C., the tariff of Lake Apopka Natural Gas District (District), modifying the rate schedules for labor, equipment and material, residential sales service, commercial sales service, interruptible sales service, and transportation service by increasing the fees and charges made by the District, eliminating the rate schedule for residential air conditioning sales service, increasing the deposit requirement for residential customers and otherwise re-adopting the existing tariff. The effect will be that all classes of customers will experience an increase in the cost of gas, gas related services and deposit requirements. Otherwise, the tariff will remain as it currently exists.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No increase or decrease in regulatory costs is anticipated.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative, must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Section (12), Chapter 99-454, Laws of Florida, 1999.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Chapter 99-454, Laws of Florida, 1999.

A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: August 28, 2006, 10:00 a.m.
 PLACE: The office of Lake Apopka Natural Gas District at 1320 S. Vineland Road (CR 535), Winter Garden, Florida 34787

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: George F. Crabtree, General Manager, Lake Apopka Natural Gas District, 1320 South Vineland Road (CR 535), Winter Garden, Florida 34787; telephone: (407)656-2734, facsimile: (407)656-9371

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

54C-1.001 Tariff.

The full text of the proposed rule is set forth in Resolution number ~~0606~~ ~~0306~~ adopted by the Board of Commissioners of Lake Apopka Natural Gas District on ~~June 26, 2006~~, ~~November 24, 2003~~, which is hereby incorporated herein in its entirety by reference.

Specific Authority Section (12), Chapter 99-454, Laws of Florida, 1999. Law Implemented Chapter 99-454, Laws of Florida, 1999. History—New 8-11-99, Amended 5-13-01, 2-11-04,_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
 The Board of Commissioners of Lake Apopka Natural Gas District

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: The Board of Commissioners of Lake Apopka Natural Gas District

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: June 26, 2006

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: June 9, 2006

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Board of Professional Engineers

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
 61G15-20.006 Educational Requirements

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: Purpose and effect is to comply with the Mandate of the Court in Gaudet v. Board of Professional Engineers and promulgate more detailed rules regarding board approval of non-ECA/ABET approved engineering programs.

SUMMARY: The substantial revision of this rule complies with the Mandate of the Court in Gaudet v. Board of Professional Engineers and promulgates more detailed rules regarding board approval of non-ECA/ABET approved engineering programs.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 471.013(1)(a)3. FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 471.013(1)(a)3., 471.005(6) FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAW.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Paul Martin, Executive Director, Board of Professional Engineers, 2507 Callaway Road, Suite 200, Tallahassee, Florida 32301

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

61G15-20.006 Educational Requirements.

(1) The evaluation of curricula and standards of accreditation for approval of degree programs required by Section 471.013, F.S., shall be made by the Education Advisory Committee and shall be based upon an overview of engineering programs within the United States accredited by the Engineering Accreditation Commission of the Accreditation Board for Engineering and Technology, Inc., (EAC/ABET), and an evaluation of such programs and schools, following the definition of the practice of engineering set forth in Section 471.005(6), F.S. Acceptable curricula requirements and degree programs shall conform to the criteria for accrediting engineering programs set forth by the Engineering Accreditation Commission of the Accreditation Board for Engineering and Technology, Inc., (EAC/ABET) and found in the applicable Annual Report of EAC/ABET, based upon:

~~(a) An overview of engineering programs within the United States accredited by the Engineering Accreditation Commission of the Accreditation Board for Engineering and Technology, Inc., (ABET), and~~

~~(b) An evaluation of such programs and schools, following the definition of the practice of engineering set forth in Section 471.005(6), F.S.~~

(2) A non-EAC/ABET accredited engineering degree program (hereinafter "engineering program") which seeks certification pursuant to Section 471.005(6), Florida Statutes, shall submit the following to the Board:

(a) A completed application form and self-study report (which may be obtained from the Board by writing to: Executive Director, Florida Board of Professional Engineers, 2507 Callaway Road, Suite 200, Tallahassee, Florida 32304);

(b) A registration fee as prescribed by the Board;

(c) A survey fee as prescribed by the Board;

(d) A current catalog and student and faculty handbook.

~~(2) This rule shall not apply to Board approved engineering programs or where ABET accreditation is available to a school or college of engineering.~~

(3) The Board's survey and evaluation of an engineering program shall consist of two elements:

(a) A review of the documents submitted by the applicant. The purpose of the review is initially to determine if the application is complete. The applicant will be notified if the application is not complete. If the application is complete, the Board will begin the survey and evaluation of the engineering program and will provide the documents to any outside consultants which the Board may retain to survey and evaluate the engineering program.

(b) A visit to the engineering school, including visits to facilities at locations other than the main campus, at the expense of the applying engineering program. This site visit

will encompass all elements of the standards for certification set forth in this rule. A site visit is an essential requirement in the review of an engineering program seeking certification, without which no certification may be granted by the Board.

~~(3) Acceptable curricula requirements and degree programs shall conform to the criteria for accrediting engineering programs set forth by the Engineering Accreditation Commission of the Accreditation Board for Engineering and Technology, Inc., (ABET) and found in the applicable Annual Report of ABET.~~

(4) The Meaning of Certification.

(a) Purpose.

1. Certification of an engineering program is the responsibility of the Board and is based on standards established by the Board. The same standards as are applied in the accreditation of engineering programs by EAC/ABET will be applied for certification of an engineering program.

2. In practical terms a graduate of an engineering program that has been certified by the State of Florida will be eligible for the Fundamentals and Principles and Practice examinations, or for licensure by endorsement.

3. Certification is entirely voluntary on the part of the school.

(b) Standards.

1. To be certified, engineering programs must meet the standards set forth by the Board in this rule as judged by the Board. These standards are sometimes stated in a fashion that is not susceptible to quantification or to precise definition because the nature of the evaluation is qualitative in character and can be accomplished only by the exercise of professional judgment by qualified persons.

2. In these standards, the words "must" and "should" have been chosen with care. Use of the word "must" indicates that Florida considers meeting the standard to be absolutely necessary if the program is to be certified. Use of the word "should" indicates that Florida considers an attribute to be highly desirable and makes a judgment as to whether or not its absence may compromise substantial compliance with all of the requirements for certification.

~~(4) The evaluation of the applicant's transcript and degree program shall include a determination of whether such a transcript and degree program is comparable to the above mentioned model by the Education Advisory Committee as defined in Rule 61G15-18.015, F.A.C.~~

(5) Objectives.

(a) An essential objective of a program in engineering education leading to a BSE degree must be to meet the standards herein described for certification that its graduates will be prepared to qualify for licensure, to provide competent engineering services and to have the educational background necessary for lifelong learning. An engineering program may establish additional objectives consistent with its available resources. Objectives must be defined in writing and made

known to faculty and students. While recognizing the existence and appropriateness of diverse institutional missions and educational objectives, the Board subscribes to the proposition that local circumstances do not justify certification of a program that fails to meet the standards as set forth in this rule.

(b) Certification is awarded on the basis of evidence of an appropriate balance between the size of the enrollment in each class and the total resources of the program, including the faculty, physical facilities, curricular time and methods of instruction, and the budget. If there is to be substantial change in any of the above functions, the Board must be notified in writing so that reevaluation may be instituted.

~~(5) In order to verify the applicant's curriculum and engineering program the Board may require evidence from the applicant's institution(s) at the cost of the applicant as to the areas mentioned in subsection 61G15-20.006(3), F.A.C., including when the information necessary for the evaluation set forth in subsection (4) above is not available, a site visit by Educational Advisory Committee of the Board at the expense of the applicant.~~

(6) Governance.

(a) Preferably an engineering school should be a component of a university that has other graduate and professional degree granting programs. The environment of a university fosters intellectual challenge, the spirit of inquiry, the seeking of new knowledge and the habit of lifelong learning.

(b) The engineering school must be accredited by an accrediting organization recognized by the U.S. Department of Education.

(7) Administration.

(a) General.

1. Administrative officers and members of a engineering school faculty must be appointed by, or on the authority of, the governing body of the engineering school.

2. If the engineering school is part of a university, the dean must have ready access to the university chief executive officer and to such other university officials as may be necessary to fulfill the dean's responsibilities. If the engineering school is not part of a university, the dean must have ready access to the chief officer of the governing body.

3. The dean must be qualified by education and experience to provide leadership in engineering education, in scholarly activity and research, and in the practice of professional engineering. The dean should have the assistance of such professional associates and staff as are necessary for administration of admissions, student affairs, academic affairs, business affairs, physical facilities and other activities normally associated with the office of the dean.

4. The manner in which the engineering school is organized, including the responsibilities and privileges of administrative officers, faculty, students and committees must be formally set forth in writing. It is through committee

structure and function that faculty and at times students and others become involved in decisions concerning admissions, promotions, curriculum, library, research, etc. The number and composition of committees may vary among engineering programs.

5. A budget, showing available revenue sources and expenditures must be prepared for the engineering school at regular and specified periods. To facilitate effective planning, each engineering program should know in advance a reasonable estimate of its available operating resources.

(b) Geographically Separated Campuses.

1. If components of the program are conducted at sites geographically separated from the main campus of the engineering school, the administration of the engineering school must be fully responsible for the conduct, and maintenance of the quality of the educational experiences offered at these sites and for identification of the faculty at all sites. In order to ensure that all educational components of the school's program are equivalent in quality, the principal academic officer of each geographically separated site must be administratively responsible to the chief academic officer of the engineering school conducting the certified program. Similarly, the faculty in each discipline, in all sites, must be functionally integrated by administrative mechanisms that ensure comparable quality of the geographically separated segments of the program.

2. A large number of program sites or a significant distance between sites may require extra academic and administrative controls in order to maintain the quality of the entire program.

(c) Design and Management.

1. The program's faculty must be responsible for the design, implementation, and evaluation of the educational program. A faculty committee should undertake this responsibility with full support of the chief academic officer and staff. The curriculum of the program leading to the professional engineering degree must be designed to provide a general professional education, recognizing that, this alone, is insufficient to prepare a graduate for independent, unsupervised practice throughout a professional lifetime.

2. The committee responsible for curriculum should give careful attention to the impact on students of the amount of work required. The committee should monitor the content provided in each discipline in order that objectives for education of an engineer are achieved without attempting to present the complete, detailed, systematic body of knowledge in that discipline. The objectives, content, and methods of teaching and learning utilized for each segment of the curriculum, as well as for the entire curriculum, should be subjected to periodic evaluation. Undue repetition and serious omissions and deficiencies in the curriculum identified by these evaluations should be corrected. Review and necessary revision of the curriculum is an ongoing faculty responsibility.

(d) Content.

1. The engineering faculty is responsible for devising a curriculum that permits the student to learn the fundamental principles of engineering, to acquire skills of critical judgment based on evidence and experience, and to develop an ability to use principles and skills wisely in solving engineering problems. In addition, the curriculum must be designed so that students acquire an understanding of the scientific concepts underlying engineering. In designing the curriculum, the faculty must introduce current advances in the basic engineering sciences.

2. The curriculum cannot be all-encompassing. However, it must include the sciences basic to engineering and ethical, behavioral, and socioeconomic subjects pertinent to engineering. There should be presentation of material on engineering ethics and human values. The faculty should foster in students the ability to learn through self-directed, independent study throughout their professional lives.

3. The required subjects which must be offered are probability and statistics, differential calculus, integral calculus, and differential equations; general chemistry and calculus-based general physics, with at least a two semester (or equivalent) sequence of study in either area. Additional courses may include linear algebra, numerical analysis, and advanced calculus, life sciences (biology), earth sciences (geology), and advanced chemistry or physics.

4. The curriculum should provide grounding in the body of knowledge represented in the disciplines that support the fundamentals of engineering practice, such as, mechanics, thermodynamics, electrical and electronic circuits, and materials science. Courses in engineering design stress the establishment of objectives and criteria, synthesis, analysis, construction, testing, and evaluation. In order to promote breadth, at least one engineering course outside the major disciplinary area is required.

5. The faculty committee responsible for curriculum should develop, and the chief academic officer should enforce, the same rigorous standards for the content of each year of the program leading to the BSE. The final year should complement and supplement the curriculum of the individual student so that each student will acquire appropriate competence in general engineering care regardless of subsequent career specialty.

6. The curriculum should include elective courses designed to supplement the required courses and to provide opportunities for students to pursue individual scholarly interests. Faculty advisors must be available to guide students in the choice of elective courses. If students are permitted to take electives at other institutions, there should be a system centralized in the dean's office to screen the student's proposed extramural program prior to approval and to ensure the return of a performance appraisal by the host program. Another system, devised and implemented by the dean, should verify the credentials of students from other schools wishing to take

courses at the school, approve assignments, maintain a complete roster of visiting students, and provide evaluations to the parent schools.

(e) Evaluation of Student Performance.

1. The faculty must establish principles and methods for the evaluation of student performance and make decisions regarding promotion and graduation. The varied measures utilized should determine whether or not students have attained the school's standards of performance.

2. The faculty of each discipline should set the standards for performance by students in the study of that discipline. The faculty should review the frequency of examinations and their scheduling, particularly when the students are enrolled in several subjects simultaneously. Schools should develop a system of evaluation that fosters self-initiated learning by students rather than frequent tests which condition students to memorize details for short-term retention only. Examinations should measure cognitive learning, mastery of basic engineering skills, and the ability to use data in realistic problem solving. If geographically separated campuses are operated, a single standard for promotion and graduation of students should be applied.

3. The engineering school must publicize to all faculty members and students its standards and procedures for the evaluation, advancement, and graduation of its students and for disciplinary action. The school should develop and publish a fair and relatively formal process for the faculty or administration to follow when taking any action that adversely affects the status of a student.

4. The institutions must maintain adequate records. These records should include summaries of admission credentials, attendance, measurement of the performance and promotion of the student, and the degree to which requirements of the curriculum have been met. Evaluation of each student in each course should be part of the record.

5. Academic Counseling. The chief academic officer and the directors of all courses must design and implement a system of evaluation of the work of each student during progression through each course. Each student should be evaluated early enough during a unit of study to allow time for remediation. Course directors and faculty assigned to advise students should consider this duty a primary responsibility. All course directors or departmental heads, or their designates, should serve as expert consultants to the chief academic officer for facilitation of performance of both students and faculty.

(8) Resources for the Educational Program.

(a) Finances. The cost of conducting a certified educational program leading to the BSE must be supported by sufficient financial resources. Dependence upon tuition must not cause schools to seek enrollment of more students than their total resources can accommodate and provide with a sound education experience.

(b) Faculty.

1. Members of the faculty must have the capability and continued commitment to be effective teachers. Effective teaching requires knowledge of the discipline, and an understanding of pedagogy, including construction of a curriculum consistent with learning objectives, subject to internal and external formal evaluation. The administration and the faculty should have knowledge of methods for measurement of student performance in accordance with stated educational objectives and national norms.

2. Persons appointed to faculty positions must have demonstrated achievements within their disciplines commensurate with their faculty rank. It is expected that faculty members will have a commitment to continuing scholarly productivity, thereby contributing to the educational environment of the engineering school.

3. In each of the major disciplines basic to engineering sciences, a sufficient number of faculty members must be appointed who possess, in addition to a comprehensive knowledge of their major disciplines, expertise in one or more subdivisions or specialties within each of these disciplines.

4. In addition, engineers practicing in the community can make a significant contribution to the educational program of the engineering school, subject to individual expertise, commitment to engineering education, and availability. Practicing engineers appointed to the faculty, either on a part-time basis or as volunteers, should be effective teachers, serve as role models for students, and provide insight into contemporary engineering methods.

5. There must be clear written policies for the appointment, renewal of appointment, promotion, retention and dismissal of members of the faculty. The appointment process must involve the faculty, the appropriate departmental heads and the dean. Each appointee should receive a clear definition of the terms of appointment, responsibilities, line of communication, privileges and benefits.

6. The education of engineering students requires an academic environment that provides close interaction among the faculty members so that those skilled in teaching and research in the basic sciences can maintain awareness of the relevance of their disciplines to engineering problems.

7. The dean and a committee of the faculty must determine engineering school policies. This committee typically consists of the heads of major departments, but may be organized in any manner that brings reasonable and appropriate faculty influence into the governance and policymaking processes of the school. The full faculty should meet often enough to provide an opportunity for all to discuss, establish, or otherwise become acquainted with engineering school policies and practices.

(c) Library.

1. The engineering school library should be a major component of the school's program of teaching and learning. Attitudes of lifelong learning can only be instilled by

instruction in the production, storage and retrieval of new knowledge. Use and importance of the library can be imparted to students by example of faculty.

2. The engineering students and faculty must have ready access to a well-maintained and catalogued library, sufficient in size and breadth to support the educational programs offered by the institution. The library should receive the leading national and international engineering periodicals, the current numbers of which should be readily accessible. The library and any other learning resources should be equipped to allow students to learn new methods of retrieving and managing information, as well as to use self-instructional materials. A professional library staff should supervise the library and provide instruction in its use.

3. If the library serving the engineering school is part of a university library system, the professional library staff must be responsive to the needs of the engineering school, the faculty, resident staff and students who may require extended access to a journal and reference book collection, some of which may be virtual. The librarian should be familiar with the methods for maintaining relationships between the library and national library systems and resources, and with the current technology available to provide services in non-print materials. If the faculty and students served by the library are dispersed, the utilization of departmental and branch libraries should be facilitated by the librarian and by the administration and faculty of the school.

(9) Site Visit.

(a) The site visit team shall consist of the Educational Advisory Committee and individual(s) designated by the Board who are or have been engineering educators and practitioners experienced in engineering program evaluation. The applicant must assist the Board in making all necessary arrangements for the site visit, including the opportunity to meet trustees, owners or their representatives, administrators, faculty, students, and any others connected with the program.

(b) All costs incurred in making site visits to applicant facilities shall be paid by the applicant.

(c) Following the site visit, the Educational Advisory Committee will report its findings to the Board.

(10) Board Approval.

(a) Upon receipt of a report from the Educational Advisory Committee, the Board will notify the applicant of its intent to grant or deny certification. Certification must be denied if deficiencies found are of such magnitude as to prevent the students in the school from receiving an educational base suitable for the practice of engineering.

(b) If the Board gives notice of its intent to deny certification, the notice shall include a specific list of deficiencies and what the Board will require for compliance. The Board shall permit the applicant, on request, to demonstrate by satisfactory evidence, within 90 days, that it has remedied the deficiencies specified by the Board. The

Board shall deny certification if the applicant has not paid all fees and costs required of the Board in connection with the application.

(c) If the Board gives notice of its intent to grant certification, it shall specify which type it intends to grant: provisional or full certification.

(d) Provisional certification may be granted where deficiencies exist but are not of such magnitude to warrant denial of certification entirely. The Board shall determine the period of provisional certification, not to exceed three years, based on the nature of the deficiencies found, and an estimate of the reasonable period of time which may be necessary to remedy the deficiencies. Failure to remedy the deficiencies within the time specified by the Board may be grounds for denial of certification. The Board may, however, extend the period within which deficiencies may be remedied, if there is good cause to do so. A site visit may be required by the Board if it deems it necessary to determine whether the deficiencies have been adequately remedied and whether any other conditions may have changed during the period of provisional certification.

(e) Full certification will be granted to a engineering school which is in substantial compliance with all of the standards for certification set forth in this rule. The school shall submit to the Board evidence of continued compliance annually.

(f) Periodic surveys and evaluations of all certified schools shall be made at least every four years.

(g) Renewal applications will be evaluated on the basis of standards existing at the time renewal is acted upon by the Board. A site visit may be required as an element of the evaluation.

Specific Authority 471.013(1)(a)3. FS. Law Implemented 471.013(1)(a)3., 471.005(6) FS. History--New 8-18-87, Formerly 21H-20.006, Amended 12-26-94,_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Board of Professional Engineers
NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Board of Professional Engineers
DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: August 17, 2005
DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: September 23, 2005

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Florida Real Estate Appraisal Board

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
61J1-2.001 Fees

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Florida Real Estate Appraisal Board is removing Rule 61J1-2.001, F.A.C.'s existing fingerprint processing fee language and is replacing it with

new electronic fingerprint processing fee language to implement the electronic fingerprint requirement of Section 475.615(3), F.A.C., of the Florida Statutes, which became effective on July 1, 2006

SUMMARY: The Florida Real Estate Appraisal Board is removing Rule 61J1-2.001, F.A.C.'s existing fingerprint processing fee language and is replacing it with new electronic fingerprint processing fee language to implement the electronic fingerprint requirement of Section 475.615(3), F.A.C., of the Florida Statutes, which became effective on July 1, 2006.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATE REGULATORY COST: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated cost, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of the notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 475.614 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 215.34, 215.405, 455.217, 455.271, 455.2281, 475.6147, 475.615, 475.618, 475.619, 475.630 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAW.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Michael E. Murphy, Acting Director, Division of Real Estate, 400 West Robinson Street, Hurston Building, North Tower, Suite N801, Orlando, Florida 32801

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

- 61J1-2.001 Fees.
- (1) through (12) No change.
- (13) Electronic Fingerprinting Processing Fee \$61.00
Fingerprint Card Processing Fee \$47.00
- (14) through (15) No change.

Specific Authority 475.614 FS. Law Implemented 215.34, 215.405, 455.217, 455.2281, 475.6147, 475.615, 475.61, 455.271(6)(b) FS. History--New 10-15-91, Amended 6-7-92, 5-6-93, Formerly 21VV-20.02, Amended 9-22-93, 7-5-94, 5-22-95, 8-20-96, 11-11-97, 10-1-98, 1-17-99, 11-15-99, 11-15-99, 11-10-03, 2-21-06,_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Florida Real Estate Appraisal Board
NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Florida Real Estate Appraisal Board
DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: June 5, 2006
DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: June 23, 2006

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Florida Real Estate Appraisal Board

RULE NO.: 61J1-2.004
RULE TITLE: Exemption of Spouses of Members of Armed Forces from Renewal Provisions

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Florida Real Estate Appraisal Board is revising Rule 61J1-2.004, F.A.C., to comply with the Appraisal Qualifications Board’s new continuing education criteria adopted on or about March 22, 2006

SUMMARY: The Florida Real Estate Appraisal Board is revising Rule 61J1-2.004, F.A.C., to remove the licensure renewal exemption for the spouses of licensed and certified appraisers to comply with the Appraisal Qualifications Board’s March 22, 2006, continuing education criteria.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated cost, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of the notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 455.02, 475.614 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 455.02 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAW.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Michael E. Murphy, Acting Director, Division of Real Estate, 400 West Robinson Street, Hurston Building, North Tower, Suite N801, Orlando, Florida 32801

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

61J1-2.004 Exemption of Spouses of Members of Armed Forces from Renewal Provisions.

~~A registered trainee appraiser registrant, licensee or certificate holder~~ who is the spouse of a member of the Armed Forces of the United States now or hereafter on active duty and who is absent from the State of Florida because of the spouse’s duties with the Armed Forces shall be exempt from renewal provision under the Rules of the Florida Real Estate Appraisal Board. The exemption shall last during the absence from the state because of the spouse’s duties with the Armed Forces and for a period of six months after returning to the state.

Specific Authority 455.02, 475.614 FS. Law Implemented 455.02 FS. History--New 10-15-91, Formerly 21VV-2.004, Amended _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Florida Real Estate Appraisal Board

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Florida Real Estate Appraisal Board

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: June 5, 2006

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: June 23, 2006

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Florida Real Estate Appraisal Board

RULE NO.: 61J1-2.0045
RULE TITLE: Exemption of Members of Armed Forces from Renewal provisions

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Florida Real Estate Appraisal Board is creating new Rule 61J1-2.0045, F.A.C., to comply with the Appraisal Qualifications Board’s new continuing education criteria adopted on May 5, 2006

SUMMARY: The Florida Real Estate Appraisal Board is creating new Rule 61J1-2.0045, F.A.C., to require active military duty certified or licensed appraisers to complete all necessary continuing education within 180 days after being discharged from active military duty in order to comply with the Appraisal Qualifications Board’s new continuing education criteria adopted on May 5, 2006.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATE REGULATORY COST: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated cost, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative cost must do so in writing within 21 days of the notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 455.02, 475.614, 475.615(2) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 455.02 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAW.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Michael E. Murphy, Acting Director, Division of Real Estate, 400 West Robinson Street, Hurston Building, North Tower, Suite N801, Orlando, Florida 32801

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

61J1-2.0045 Exemption of Members of Armed Forces from Renewal provisions.

Any member of the Armed Forces of the United States now or hereafter on active duty who, at the time of becoming such member, was a certified appraiser in good standing with the Florida Real Estate Appraisal board (Board) and was entitled to practice or engage in real estate appraising in the state shall be kept in good standing by the Board, without registering, paying dues or fees, or performing any other act on his or her part to be performed, provided he or she is not engaged in his or her licensed profession or vocation in the private sector for profit. However, all certified or licensed appraisers must

complete all necessary continuing education requirements within 180 days after being discharged from active military duty with the United State Armed Forces.

Specific Authority 455.02, 475.614, 475.615(2) FS. Law Implemented 455.02 FS. History--New

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Florida Real Estate Appraisal Board
NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Florida Real Estate Appraisal Board
DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: June 5, 2005
DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: June 23, 2006

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Notices for the Department of Environmental Protection between December 28, 2001 and June 30, 2006, go to <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/> under the link or button titled "Official Notices."

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

RULE NOS.:	RULE TITLES:
62-302.300	Findings, Intent, and Antidegradation Policy for Surface Water Quality
62-302.400	Classification of Surface Waters, Usage, Reclassification, Classified Waters
62-302.500	Surface Waters: Minimum Criteria, General Criteria
62-302.530	Table: Surface Water Quality Criteria
62-302.700	Special Protection, Outstanding Florida Waters, Outstanding National Resource Waters
62-302.800	Site Specific Alternative Criteria

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Federal Clean Water Act requires states to conduct a comprehensive review of their surface water quality standards every three years ("triennial review"). The proposed rule amendments were developed under the current triennial review. Two public workshops were held on September 1, 2005 (Orlando) and September 7, 2005 (Tallahassee). A number of surface water quality criteria are revised and an amendment is made to the opening paragraph in Rule 62-302.530, F.A.C., to take into account natural and statistical variability when evaluating ambient waters for the purposes of determining impairment. In addition, a number of non-substantive, editorial changes are made to update cross-references and correct typographical errors.

SUMMARY: Proposed rule revisions include amendments to surface water quality criteria for Arsenic, Halomethanes, Cadmium, Iron, and Total Coliforms. In addition, clarifying language is proposed in the introductory paragraph to Rule 62-302.530, F.A.C., to take into account natural and statistical

variability when evaluating ambient waters for the purposes of determining impairment. Finally, a number of non-substantive, editorial changes are made to update cross-references and correct typographical errors.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost has been prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 403.061, 403.062, 403.087, 403.088, 403.504, 403.704, 403.804, 403.805 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 373.414, 403.021, 403.061, 403.062, 403.085, 403.086, 403.087, 403.088, 403.101, 403.141, 403.161, 403.182, 403.201, 403.502, 403.504, 403.702, 403.708, 403.802 FS.

A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: August 31, 2006, 9:00 a.m. to finish

PLACE: Florida Department of Environmental Protection, Marjory Stoneman Douglas Building, Conference Room A, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Eric Shaw with the Water Quality Standards and Special Projects Program at (850)245-8429. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULES IS: Eric Shaw, Division of Water Resource Management, Mail Station 3560, Florida Department of Environmental Protection, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400, telephone (850)245-8429, email: Eric.Shaw@dep.state.fl.us, or facsimile (850)205-8429

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULES IS:

62-302.300 Findings, Intent, and Antidegradation Policy for Surface Water Quality.

(1) through (9) No change.

(10)(a) through (b) No change.

(c) This is an even-handed and balanced approach to attainment of water quality objectives. The Commission has specifically recognized that the social, economic and environmental costs may, under certain special circumstances, outweigh the social, economic and environmental benefits if the numerical criteria are enforced statewide. It is for that reason that the Commission has provided for mixing zones, zones of discharge, site specific alternative criteria, exemptions

and other provisions in Chapters 62-302, 62-4, 62-600 and 62-660 ~~62-6~~, F.A.C. Furthermore, the continued availability of the moderating provisions is a vital factor providing a basis for the Commission's determination that water quality standards applicable to water classes in the rule are attainable taking into consideration environmental, technological, social, economic and institutional factors. The companion provisions of Chapters 62-4, 62-600 and 62-660 ~~62-6~~, F.A.C., approved simultaneously with these Water Quality Standards are incorporated herein by reference as a substantive part of the State's comprehensive program for the control, abatement and prevention of water pollution.

- (d) through No change.
- (11) through (18) No change.

Specific Authority 403.061, 403.062, 403.087, 403.088, 403.504, 403.704, 403.804, 403.805 FS. Law Implemented 373.414, 403.021, 403.061, 403.085, 403.086, 403.087, 403.088, 403.101, 403.141, 403.161, 403.182, 403.502, 403.702, 403.708, 403.802 FS. History—Formerly 17-3.041, Amended 1-28-90, Formerly 17-3.042, 17-302.300, Amended 12-19-94, 1-23-95, 12-26-96, 5-15-02,_____.

62-302.400 Classification of Surface Waters, Usage, Reclassification, Classified Waters.

- (1) through (5) No change.
- (6) Any person regulated by the Department or having a substantial interest in this chapter may seek reclassification of waters of the State by filing a petition with the Secretary in the form required by Section 120.57, F.S. Rule 62-103.040, F.A.C.

- (7) through (10) No change.
- (11) Unless otherwise specified, the following shall apply:
 - (a) The landward extent of a classification shall coincide with the landward extent of waters of the state, as defined in Rule 62-340.600 ~~62-301.400~~, F.A.C.
 - (b) No change.
 - (12) No change.

Specific Authority 403.061, 403.062, 403.087, 403.088, 403.504, 403.704, 403.804 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.061, 403.087, 403.088, 403.141, 403.161, 403.182, 403.502, 403.504, 403.702, 403.708 FS. History—Formerly 28-5.06, 17-3.06, Amended and Renumbered 3-1-79, Amended 1-1-83, 2-1-83, Formerly 17-3.081, Amended 4-25-93, Formerly 17-302.400, Amended 12-26-96, 8-24-00,_____.

62-302.500 Surface Waters: Minimum Criteria, General Criteria.

- (1) Minimum Criteria. All surface waters of the State shall at all places and at all times be free from:
 - (a) No change.
 - (b) Thermal components of discharges which, alone, or in combination with other discharges or components of discharges (whether thermal or non-thermal):
 - 1. No change.

2. Do not comply with applicable provisions of Rule 62-302.520 ~~subsection 62-302.500(3)~~, F.A.C.

- (c) No change.
- (2) General Criteria.
 - (a) through (d) No change.
 - (e) A violation of any surface water quality criterion as set forth in this ~~chapter~~ ~~chapter~~ constitutes pollution. For certain pollutants, numeric criteria have been established to protect human health from an unacceptable risk of additional cancer caused by the consumption of water or aquatic organisms. These numeric criteria are based on annual average flow conditions. However, this allowable annual average does not relieve any activity from complying with subsection 62-302.500(1), Rule 62-302.530, F.A.C., or any other provision of water quality standards.
 - (f) No change.

Specific Authority 403.061, 403.062, 403.087, 403.504, 403.704, 403.804 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.061, 403.087, 403.088, 403.141, 403.161, 403.182, 403.502, 403.702, 403.708 FS. History—Formerly 28-5.02, 17-3.02, Amended 10-28-78, Amended and Renumbered 3-1-79, Amended 1-1-83, 10-4-89, Formerly 17-3.051, Amended 4-25-93, Formerly 17-302.500, Amended 1-15-96, 12-26-96, 5-15-02,_____.

62-302.530 Table: Surface Water Quality Criteria.

The following table contains both numeric and narrative surface water quality criteria to be applied except within zones of mixing. The left-hand column of the Table is a list of constituents for which a surface water criterion exists. The headings for the water quality classifications are found at the top of the Table. Applicable criteria lie within the Table. The individual criteria should be read in conjunction with other provisions in water quality standards, including Rule 62-302.500, F.A.C. The criteria contained in Rule 62-302.500, F.A.C., also apply to all waters unless alternative or more stringent criteria are specified in Rule 62-302.530, F.A.C. Unless otherwise stated, all criteria express the maximum not to be exceeded at any time. In applying the numeric and narrative water quality criteria to ambient waters for purposes of assessing water bodies in accordance with sections 305(b) and 303(d) of the Federal Clean Water Act, the Department shall take into account the variability occurring in nature and shall recognize the statistical variability inherent in sampling and testing procedures as set forth in Chapter 62-303, F.A.C. In some cases, there are separate or additional limits, which apply independently of the maximum not to be exceeded at any time. For example, annual average (denoted as "annual avg." in the Table) means the maximum concentration at average annual flow conditions (see subsection 62-302.200(2), F.A.C.).

62-302.530, Criteria for Surface Water Quality Classifications							
Parameter	Units	Class III: Recreation, Propagation and Maintenance of a Healthy, Well-Balanced Population of Fish and Wildlife		Class IV: Agricultural Water Supplies	Class V: Navigation, Utility, and Industrial Use		
		Class I: Potable Water Supply	Class II: Shellfish Propagation or Harvesting			Predominantly Fresh Waters	Predominantly Marine Waters
(1) Alkalinity	Milligrams/L as CaCO ₃	Shall not be depressed below 20		Shall not be depressed below 20		≤ 600	
(2) Aluminum	Milligrams/L		≤ 1.5		≤ 1.5		
(3) Ammonia (un-ionized)	Milligrams/L as NH ₃	≤ 0.02		≤ 0.02			
(4) Antimony	Micrograms/L	≤ 14.0	≤ 4,300	≤ 4,300	≤ 4,300		
(5)(a) Arsenic (total)	Micrograms/L	≤ 10	≤ 50	≤ 50	≤ 50	≤ 50	≤ 50
(5)(b) Arsenic (trivalent)	Micrograms/L measured as total recoverable Arsenic		≤ 36		≤ 36		
(6) Bacteriological Quality (Fecal Coliform Bacteria)	Number per 100 ml (Most Probable Number (MPN) or Membrane Filter (MF))	MPN or MF counts shall not exceed a monthly average of 200, nor exceed 400 in 10% of the samples, nor exceed 800 on any one day. Monthly averages shall be expressed as geometric means based on a minimum of 5 samples taken over a 30 day period.	MPN shall not exceed a median value of 14 with not more than 10% of the samples exceeding 43, nor exceed 800 on any one day.	MPN or MF counts shall not exceed a monthly average of 200, nor exceed 400 in 10% of the samples, nor exceed 800 on any one day. Monthly averages shall be expressed as geometric means based on a minimum of 10 samples taken over a 30 day period.	MPN or MF counts shall not exceed a monthly average of 200, nor exceed 400 in 10% of the samples, nor exceed 800 on any one day. Monthly averages shall be expressed as geometric means based on a minimum of 10 samples taken over a 30 day period.		
Notes: (1) "ln H" means the natural logarithm of total hardness expressed as milligrams/L of CaCO ₃ . For metals criteria involving equations with hardness, the hardness shall be set at 25 mg/L if actual hardness is < 25 mg/L and set at 400 mg/L if actual hardness is > 400 mg/L; (2) This criterion is protective of human health not of aquatic life. (3) For application of dissolved metals criteria see 62-302.500(2)(d), F.A.C.							

(7) Bacteriological Quality (Total Coliform Bacteria)	Number per 100 ml (Most Probable Number (MPN) or Membrane Filter (MF))	≤1,000 as a monthly avg.; nor exceed 1,000 in more than 20% of samples examined during any month; nor exceed 2,400 at any time; using either MPN or MF counts.	Median MPN shall not exceed 70; and not more than 10% of the samples shall exceed an MPN of 230.	≤1,000 as a monthly average; nor exceed 1,000 in more than 20% of the samples examined during any month; ≤2,400 at any time. Monthly averages shall be expressed as geometric means based on a minimum of 10 samples taken over a 30 day period; using either the MPN or MF counts.	≤1,000 as a monthly average; nor exceed 1,000 in more than 20% of the samples examined during any month; ≤2,400 at any time. Monthly averages shall be expressed as geometric means based on a minimum of 10 samples taken over a 30 day period; using either the MPN or MF counts.		
(7)(8) Barium	Milligrams/L	≤ 1					
(8)(9) Benzene	Micrograms/L	≤ 1.18	≤ 71.28 annual avg.	≤ 71.28 annual avg.	≤ 71.28 annual avg.		
(9)(10) Beryllium	Micrograms/L	≤ 0.0077 annual avg.	≤ 0.13 annual avg.	≤ 0.13 annual avg.	≤ 0.13 annual avg.	≤ 100 in waters with a hardness in mg/L of CaCO ₃ of less than 250 and shall not exceed 500 in harder waters	
(10)(11) Biological Integrity	Per cent reduction of Shannon-Weaver Diversity Index	The Index for benthic macroinvertebrates shall not be reduced to less than 75% of background levels as measured using organisms retained by a U.S. Standard No. 30 sieve and collected and composited from a minimum of three Hester-Dendy type artificial substrate samplers of 0.10 to 0.15 m ² area each, incubated for a period of four weeks.	The Index for benthic macroinvertebrates shall not be reduced to less than 75% of established background levels as measured using organisms retained by a U. S. Standard No. 30 sieve and collected and composited from a minimum of three natural substrate samples, taken with Ponar type samplers with minimum sampling area of 225 cm ² .	The Index for benthic macroinvertebrates shall not be reduced to less than 75% of established background levels as measured using organisms retained by a U. S. Standard No. 30 sieve and collected and composited from a minimum of three Hester-Dendy type artificial substrate samplers of 0.10 to 0.15 m ² area each, incubated for a period of four weeks.	The Index for benthic macroinvertebrates shall not be reduced to less than 75% of established background levels as measured using organisms retained by a U. S. Standard No. 30 sieve and collected and composited from a minimum of three natural substrate samples, taken with Ponar type samplers with minimum sampling area of 225 cm ² .		

Notes: (1) "ln H" means the natural logarithm of total hardness expressed as milligrams/L of CaCO₃. For metals criteria involving equations with hardness, the hardness shall be set at 25 mg/L if actual hardness is < 25 mg/L and set at 400 mg/L if actual hardness is > 400 mg/L; (2) This criterion is protective of human health not of aquatic life. (3) For application of dissolved metals criteria see 62-302.500(2)(d), F.A.C.

(11)(12) BOD (Biochemical Oxygen Demand)		Shall not be increased to exceed values which would cause dissolved oxygen to be depressed below the limit established for each class and, in no case, shall it be great enough to produce nuisance conditions.					
(12)(13) Boron	Milligrams/L					≤ 0.75	
(13)(14) Bromates	Milligrams/L		≤ 100		≤ 100		
(14)(15) Bromine (free molecular)	Milligrams/L		≤ 0.1		≤ 0.1		
(15)(16) Cadmium	Micrograms/L See Notes (1) and (3).	$Cd \leq e^{(0.7409[\ln H]-4.719)}$ $e^{(0.7852[\ln H]-3.49)}$	≤ 8.8 9.3	$Cd \leq e^{(0.7409[\ln H]-4.719)}$ $e^{(0.7852[\ln H]-3.49)}$	≤ 8.8 9.3		
(16)(17) Carbon tetrachloride	Micrograms/L	≤ 0.25 annual avg.; 3.0 max	≤ 4.42 annual avg.	≤ 4.42 annual avg.	≤ 4.42 annual avg.		
(17)(18) Chlorides	Milligrams/L	≤ 250	Not increased more than 10% above normal background. Normal daily and seasonal fluctuations shall be maintained.		Not increased more than 10% above normal background. Normal daily and seasonal fluctuations shall be maintained.		In predominantly marine waters, not increased more than 10% above normal background. Normal daily and seasonal fluctuations shall be maintained.
(18)(19) Chlorine (total residual)	Milligrams/L	≤ 0.01	≤ 0.01	≤ 0.01	≤ 0.01		
(19)(20)(a) Chromium (trivalent)	Micrograms/L measured as total recoverable Chromium See Notes (1) and (3).	$Cr(III) \leq e^{(0.819[\ln H]+0.6848)}$		$Cr(III) \leq e^{(0.819[\ln H]+0.6848)}$		$Cr(III) \leq e^{(0.819[\ln H]+0.6848)}$	In predominantly fresh waters, ≤ $e^{(0.819[\ln H]+0.6848)}$
(19)(20)(b) Chromium (hexavalent)	Micrograms/L See Note (3)	≤ 11	≤ 50	≤ 11	≤ 50	≤ 11	In predominantly fresh waters, ≤ 11. In predominantly marine waters, ≤ 50
(20)(21) Chronic Toxicity (see definition in Section 62-302.200(4) 62-302.200(3), F.A.C. and also see below, "Substances in concentrations which...")							
Notes: (1) "ln H" means the natural logarithm of total hardness expressed as milligrams/L of CaCO ₃ . For metals criteria involving equations with hardness, the hardness shall be set at 25 mg/L if actual hardness is < 25 mg/L and set at 400 mg/L if actual hardness is > 400 mg/L; (2) This criterion is protective of human health not of aquatic life. (3) For application of dissolved metals criteria see 62-302.500(2)(d), F.A.C.							

(21)(22) Color, etc. (see also Minimum Criteria, Odor, Phenols, etc.)	Color, odor, and taste producing substances and other deleterious substances, including other chemical compounds attributable to domestic wastes, industrial wastes, and other wastes					Only such amounts as will not render the waters unsuitable for agricultural irrigation, livestock watering, industrial cooling, industrial process water supply purposes, or fish survival.	
(22)(23) Conductance, Specific	Micromhos/cm	Shall not be increased more than 50% above background or to 1275, whichever is greater.		Shall not be increased more than 50% above background or to 1275, whichever is greater.		Shall not be increased more than 50% above background or to 1275, whichever is greater.	Shall not exceed 4,000
(23)(24) Copper	Micrograms/L See Notes (1) and (3).	$Cu \leq e^{(0.8545[\ln H]-1.702)}$	≤ 3.7	$Cu \leq e^{(0.8545[\ln H]-1.702)}$	≤ 3.7	≤ 500	≤ 500
(24)(25) Cyanide	Micrograms/L	≤ 5.2	≤ 1.0	≤ 5.2	≤ 1.0	≤ 5.0	≤ 5.0
(25)(26) Definitions (see Section 62-302.200, F.A.C.)							
(26)(27) Detergents	Milligrams/L	≤ 0.5	≤ 0.5	≤ 0.5	≤ 0.5	≤ 0.5	≤ 0.5
(27)(28) 1,1-Dichloroethylene (1,1-dichloroethene)	Micrograms/L	≤ 0.057 annual avg.; ≤ 7.0 max	≤ 3.2 annual avg.	≤ 3.2 annual avg.	≤ 3.2 annual avg.		
(28)(29) Dichloromethane (methylene chloride)	Micrograms/L	≤ 4.65 annual avg.	$\leq 1,580$ annual avg.	$\leq 1,580$ annual avg.	$\leq 1,580$ annual avg.		
(29)(30) 2,4-Dinitrotoluene	Micrograms/L	≤ 0.11 annual avg.	≤ 9.1 annual avg.	≤ 9.1 annual avg.	≤ 9.1 annual avg.		
(30)(31) Dissolved Oxygen	Milligrams/L	Shall not be less than 5.0. Normal daily and seasonal fluctuations above this level shall be maintained.	Shall not average less than 5.0 in a 24-hour period and shall never be less than 4.0. Normal daily and seasonal fluctuations above these levels shall be maintained.	Shall not be less than 5.0. Normal daily and seasonal fluctuations above these levels shall be maintained.	Shall not average less than 5.0 in a 24-hour period and shall never be less than 4.0. Normal daily and seasonal fluctuations above these levels shall be maintained.	Shall not average less than 4.0 in a 24-hour period and shall never be less than 3.0.	Shall not be less than 0.3, fifty percent of the time on an annual basis for flows greater than or equal to 250 cubic feet per second and shall never be less than 0.1. Normal daily and seasonal fluctuations above these levels shall be maintained.
Notes: (1) "ln H" means the natural logarithm of total hardness expressed as milligrams/L of CaCO ₃ . For metals criteria involving equations with hardness, the hardness shall be set at 25 mg/L if actual hardness is < 25 mg/L and set at 400 mg/L if actual hardness is > 400 mg/L; (2) This criterion is protective of human health not of aquatic life. (3) For application of dissolved metals criteria see 62-302.500(2)(d), F.A.C.							

(31)(32) Dissolved Solids	Milligrams/L	≤ 500 as a monthly avg.; ≤ 1,000 max					
(32)(33) Fluorides	Milligrams/L	≤ 1.5	≤ 1.5	≤ 10.0	≤ 5.0	≤ 10.0	≤ 10.0
(33)(34) "Free Froms" (see Minimum Criteria in Section 62-302.500, F.A.C.)							
(34)(35) "General Criteria" (see Section 62-302.500 62-302.510, F.A.C. and individual criteria)							
(35)(36)(a) Halomethanes (Total trihalomethanes) (total of bromoform, chlorodibromo-met hane, dichlorobromom-et hane, and chloroform). Individual halomethanes shall not exceed (b)1. to (b)5. below.	Micrograms/L	≤ 80 100					
(35)(36)(b)1. Halomethanes (individual): Bromoform	Micrograms/L	≤ 4.3 annual avg.	≤ 360 annual avg.	≤ 360 annual avg.	≤ 360 annual avg.		
(35)(36)(b)2. Halomethanes (individual): Chlorodibromo-met hane	Micrograms/L	≤ 0.41 annual avg.	≤ 34 annual avg.	≤ 34 annual avg.	≤ 34 annual avg.		
(35)(36)(b)3. Halomethanes (individual): Chloroform	Micrograms/L	≤ 5.67 annual avg.	≤ 470.8 annual avg.	≤ 470.8 annual avg.	≤ 470.8 annual avg.		
(35)(36)(b)4. Halomethanes (individual): Chloromethane (methyl chloride)	Micrograms/L	≤ 5.67 annual avg.	≤ 470.8 annual avg.	≤ 470.8 annual avg.	≤ 470.8 annual avg.		
(35)(36)(b)5. Halomethanes (individual): Dichlorobromo-met hane	Micrograms/L	≤ 0.27 annual avg.	≤ 22 annual avg.	≤ 22 annual avg.	≤ 22 annual avg.		
(36)(37) Hexachlorobuta-die ne	Micrograms/L	≤ 0.45 annual avg.	≤ 49.7 annual avg.	≤ 49.7 annual avg.	≤ 49.7 annual avg.		
(37)(38) Imbalance (see Nutrients)							
(38)(39) Iron	Milligrams/L	≤ 1.0 ≤ 0.3	≤ 0.3	≤ 1.0	≤ 0.3	≤ 1.0	

Notes: (1) "ln H" means the natural logarithm of total hardness expressed as milligrams/L of CaCO₃. For metals criteria involving equations with hardness, the hardness shall be set at 25 mg/L if actual hardness is < 25 mg/L and set at 400 mg/L if actual hardness is > 400 mg/L; (2) This criterion is protective of human health not of aquatic life. (3) For application of dissolved metals criteria see 62-302.500(2)(d), F.A.C.

(39)(40) Lead	Micrograms/L See Notes (1) and (3).	$Pb \leq e^{(1.273[\ln H] - 4.705)}$;	≤ 8.5	$Pb \leq e^{(1.273 [\ln H] - 4.705)}$;	≤ 8.5	≤ 50	≤ 50
(40)(41) Manganese	Milligrams/L		≤ 0.1				
(41)(42) Mercury	Micrograms/L	≤ 0.012	≤ 0.025	≤ 0.012	≤ 0.025	≤ 0.2	≤ 0.2
(42)(43) Minimum Criteria (see Section 62-302.500, F.A.C.)							
(43)(44) Mixing Zones (See Section 62-4.244 62-4.246, F.A.C.)							
(44)(45) Nickel	Micrograms/L See Notes (1) and (3).	$Ni \leq e^{(0.846[\ln H] + 0.0584)}$	≤ 8.3	$Ni \leq e^{(0.846[\ln H] + 0.0584)}$	≤ 8.3	≤ 100	
(45)(46) Nitrate	Milligrams/L as N	≤ 10 or that concentration that exceeds the nutrient criteria					
(46)(47) Nuisance Species		Substances in concentrations which result in the dominance of nuisance species: none shall be present.					
(47)(48)(a) Nutrients		The discharge of nutrients shall continue to be limited as needed to prevent violations of other standards contained in this chapter. Man-induced nutrient enrichment (total nitrogen or total phosphorus) shall be considered degradation in relation to the provisions of Sections 62-302.300, 62-302.700, and 62-4.242, F.A.C.					
(47)(48)(b) Nutrients		In no case shall nutrient concentrations of a body of water be altered so as to cause an imbalance in natural populations of aquatic flora or fauna.					
(48)(49) Odor (also see Color, Minimum Criteria, Phenolic Compounds, etc.)	Threshold odor number		Shall not exceed 24 at 60 degrees C as a daily average.				Odor producing substances: only in such amounts as will not unreasonably interfere with use of the water for the designated purpose of this classification.
(49)(50)(a) Oils and Greases	Milligrams/L	Dissolved or emulsified oils and greases shall not exceed 5.0	Dissolved or emulsified oils and greases shall not exceed 5.0	Dissolved or emulsified oils and greases shall not exceed 5.0	Dissolved or emulsified oils and greases shall not exceed 5.0	Dissolved or emulsified oils and greases shall not exceed 5.0	Dissolved or emulsified oils and greases shall not exceed 10.0
(49)(50)(b) Oils and Greases		No undissolved oil, or visible oil defined as iridescence, shall be present so as to cause taste or odor, or otherwise interfere with the beneficial use of waters.					
(50)(51) Pesticides and Herbicides							
(50)(51)(a) 2,4,5-TP	Micrograms/L	≤ 10					
(50)(51)(b) 2-4-D	Micrograms/L	≤ 100					
(50)(51)(c) Aldrin	Micrograms/L	$\leq .00013$ annual avg.; 3.0 max	$\leq .00014$ annual avg.; 1.3 max	$\leq .00014$ annual avg.; 3.0 max	$\leq .00014$ annual avg.; 1.3 max		
(50)(51)(d) Betahexachloro-cyclohexane (b-BHC)	Micrograms/L	≤ 0.014 annual avg.	≤ 0.046 annual avg.	≤ 0.046 annual avg.	≤ 0.046 annual avg.		
Notes: (1) "ln H" means the natural logarithm of total hardness expressed as milligrams/L of CaCO ₃ . For metals criteria involving equations with hardness, the hardness shall be set at 25 mg/L if actual hardness is < 25 mg/L and set at 400 mg/L if actual hardness is > 400 mg/L; (2) This criterion is protective of human health not of aquatic life. (3) For application of dissolved metals criteria see 62-302.500(2)(d), F.A.C.							

(50)(51)(e) Chlordane	Micrograms/L	≤ 0.00058 annual avg.; 0.0043 max	≤ 0.00059 annual avg.; 0.004 max	≤ 0.00059 annual avg.; 0.0043 max	≤ 0.00059 annual avg.; 0.004 max		
(50)(51)(f) DDT	Micrograms/L	≤ 0.00059 annual avg.; 0.001 max	≤ 0.00059 annual avg.; 0.001 max	≤ 0.00059 annual avg.; 0.001 max	≤ 0.00059 annual avg.; 0.001 max		
(50)(51)(g) Demeton	Micrograms/L	≤ 0.1	≤ 0.1	≤ 0.1	≤ 0.1		
(50)(51)(h) Dieldrin	Micrograms/L	≤ 0.00014 annual avg.; 0.0019 max	≤ 0.00014 annual avg.; 0.0019 max	≤ 0.00014 annual avg.; 0.0019 max	≤ 0.00014 annual avg.; 0.0019 max		
(50)(51)(i) Endosulfan	Micrograms/L	≤ 0.056	≤ 0.0087	≤ 0.056	≤ 0.0087		
(50)(51)(j) Endrin	Micrograms/L	≤ 0.0023	≤ 0.0023	≤ 0.0023	≤ 0.0023		
(50)(51)(k) Guthion	Micrograms/L	≤ 0.01	≤ 0.01	≤ 0.01	≤ 0.01		
(50)(51)(l) Heptachlor	Micrograms/L	≤ 0.00021 annual avg.; 0.0038 max	≤ 0.00021 annual avg.; 0.0036 max	≤ 0.00021 annual avg.; 0.0038 max	≤ 0.00021 annual avg.; 0.0036 max		
(50)(51)(m) Lindane (γ-benzene hexachloride)	Micrograms/L	≤ 0.019 annual avg.; 0.08 max	≤ 0.063 annual avg.; 0.16 max	≤ 0.063 annual avg.; 0.08 max	≤ 0.063 annual avg.; 0.16 max		
(50)(51)(n) Malathion	Micrograms/L	≤ 0.1	≤ 0.1	≤ 0.1	≤ 0.1		
(50)(51)(o) Methoxychlor	Micrograms/L	≤ 0.03	≤ 0.03	≤ 0.03	≤ 0.03		
(50)(51)(p) Mirex	Micrograms/L	≤ 0.001	≤ 0.001	≤ 0.001	≤ 0.001		
(50)(51)(q) Parathion	Micrograms/L	≤ 0.04	≤ 0.04	≤ 0.04	≤ 0.04		
(50)(51)(r) Toxaphene	Micrograms/L	≤ 0.0002	≤ 0.0002	≤ 0.0002	≤ 0.0002		
(51)(52)(a) pH (Class I and Class IV Waters)	Standard Units	Shall not vary more than one unit above or below natural background provided that the pH is not lowered to less than 6 units or raised above 8.5 units. If natural background is less than 6 units, the pH shall not vary below natural background or vary more than one unit above natural background. If natural background is higher than 8.5 units, the pH shall not vary above natural background or vary more than one unit below background.					
(51)(52)(b) pH (Class II Waters)	Standard Units	Shall not vary more than one unit above or below natural background of coastal waters as defined in Section 62-302.520(3)(b), F.A.C., or more than two-tenths unit above or below natural background of open waters as defined in Section 62-302.520(3)(f), F.A.C., provided that the pH is not lowered to less than 6.5 units or raised above 8.5 units. If natural background is less than 6.5 units, the pH shall not vary below natural background or vary more than one unit above natural background for coastal waters or more than two-tenths unit above natural background for open waters. If natural background is higher than 8.5 units, the pH shall not vary above natural background or vary more than one unit below natural background of coastal waters or more than two-tenths unit below natural background of open waters.					
(51)(52)(c) pH (Class III Waters)	Standard Units	Shall not vary more than one unit above or below natural background of predominantly fresh waters and coastal waters as defined in Section 62-302.520(3)(b), F.A.C. or more than two-tenths unit above or below natural background of open waters as defined in Section 62-302.520(3)(f), F.A.C., provided that the pH is not lowered to less than 6 units in predominantly fresh waters, or less than 6.5 units in predominantly marine waters, or raised above 8.5 units. If natural background is less than 6 units, in predominantly fresh waters or 6.5 units in predominantly marine waters, the pH shall not vary below natural background or vary more than one unit above natural background of predominantly fresh waters and coastal waters, or more than two-tenths unit above natural background of open waters. If natural background is higher than 8.5 units, the pH shall not vary above natural background or vary more than one unit below natural background of predominantly fresh waters and coastal waters, or more than two-tenths unit below natural background of open waters.					
(51)(52)(d) pH (Class V Waters)	Standard Units	Not lower than 5.0 nor greater than 9.5 except certain swamp waters which may be as low as 4.5.					
(52)(53)(a) Phenolic Compounds: Total		Phenolic compounds other than those produced by the natural decay of plant material, listed or unlisted, shall not taint the flesh of edible fish or shellfish or produce objectionable taste or odor in a drinking water supply.					
Notes: (1) "ln H" means the natural logarithm of total hardness expressed as milligrams/L of CaCO ₃ . For metals criteria involving equations with hardness, the hardness shall be set at 25 mg/L if actual hardness is < 25 mg/L and set at 400 mg/L if actual hardness is > 400 mg/L; (2) This criterion is protective of human health not of aquatic life. (3) For application of dissolved metals criteria see 62-302.500(2)(d), F.A.C.							

(52)(53)(b) Total Chlorinated Phenols and Chlorinated Cresols Phenolic Compounds: Total	Micrograms/L	1. The total of all chlorinated phenols, and chlorinated cresols, except as set forth in (c)1. to (c)4. below, shall not exceed 1.0 unless higher values are shown not to be chronically toxic. Such higher values shall be approved in writing by the Secretary. 2. The compounds listed in (c)1. to (c)6. below shall not exceed the limits specified for each compound.					1. The total of the following Phenolic compounds shall not exceed 50: a) Chlorinated phenols; b) Chlorinated cresols; and c) 2,4-dinitrophenol.
(52)(53)(c)1. Phenolic Compound: 2-chlorophenol	Micrograms/L	≤ 120	< 400 See Note (2).	< 400 See Note (2).	< 400 See Note (2).	< 400 See Note (2).	
(52)(53)(c)2. Phenolic Compound: 2,4-dichlorophenol	Micrograms/L	< 93 See Note (2).	< 790 See Note (2).	< 790 See Note (2).	< 790 See Note (2).	< 790 See Note (2).	
(52)(53)(c)3. Phenolic Compound: Pentachlorophenol	Micrograms/L	≤ 30 max; ≤ 0.28 annual avg; ≤ e(1.005[pH]-5.29)	≤ 7.9	≤ 30 max; ≤ 8.2 annual avg; ≤ e(1.005[pH]-5.29)	≤ 7.9	≤ 30	
(52)(53)(c)4. Phenolic Compound: 2,4,6-trichlorophenol	Micrograms/L	≤ 2.1 annual avg.	≤ 6.5 annual avg.	≤ 6.5 annual avg.	≤ 6.5 annual avg.	≤ 6.5 annual avg.	
(52)(53)(c)5. Phenolic Compound: 2,4-dinitrophenol	Milligrams/L	≤ 0.0697 See Note (2).	≤ 14.26 See Note (2).	≤ 14.26 See Note (2).	≤ 14.26 See Note (2).	≤ 14.26 See Note (2).	
(52)(53)(c)6. Phenolic Compound: Phenol	Milligrams/L	≤ 0.3	≤ 0.3	≤ 0.3	≤ 0.3	≤ 0.3	≤ 0.3
(53)(54) Phosphorus (Elemental)	Micrograms/L		≤ 0.1		≤ 0.1		
(54)(55) Phthalate Esters	Micrograms/L	≤ 3.0		≤ 3.0			
(55)(56) Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs)	Micrograms/L	≤ 0.000044 annual avg.; 0.014 max	≤ 0.000045 annual avg.; 0.03 max	≤ 0.000045 annual avg.; 0.014 max	≤ 0.000045 annual avg.; 0.03 max		
Notes: (1) "ln H" means the natural logarithm of total hardness expressed as milligrams/L of CaCO ₃ . For metals criteria involving equations with hardness, the hardness shall be set at 25 mg/L if actual hardness is < 25 mg/L and set at 400 mg/L if actual hardness is > 400 mg/L; (2) This criterion is protective of human health not of aquatic life. (3) For application of dissolved metals criteria see 62-302.500(2)(d), F.A.C.							

(56)(57)(a) Polycyclic Aromatic Hydrocarbons (PAHs). Total of: Acenaphthylene; Benzo(a) anthracene; Benzo(a) pyrene; Benzo(b) fluoranthene; Benzo-(ghi) perylene; Benzo(k)fluoranthene; Chrysene; Dibenz-(a,h)anthracene; Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene; and Phenanthrene	Micrograms/L	≤ 0.0028 annual avg.	≤ 0.031 annual avg.	≤ 0.031 annual avg.	≤ 0.031 annual avg.		
(56)(57)(b)1. (Individual PAHs): Acenaphthene	Milligrams/L	< 1.2 See Note (2).	< 2.7 See Note (2).	< 2.7 See Note (2).	< 2.7 See Note (2).		
(56)(57)(b)2. (Individual PAHs): Anthracene	Milligrams/L	< 9.6 See Note (2).	< 110 See Note (2).	< 110 See Note (2).	< 110 See Note (2).		
(56)(57)(b)3. (Individual PAHs): Fluoranthene	Milligrams/L	< 0.3 See Note (2).	< 0.370 See Note (2).	< 0.370 See Note (2).	< 0.370 See Note (2).		
(56)(57)(b)4. (Individual PAHs): Fluorene	Milligrams/L	< 1.3 See Note (2).	< 14 See Note (2).	< 14 See Note (2).	< 14 See Note (2).		
(56)(57)(b)5. (Individual PAHs): Pyrene	Milligrams/L	< 0.96 See Note (2).	< 11 See Note (2).	< 11 See Note (2).	< 11 See Note (2).		
(57)(58)(a) Radioactive substances (Combined radium 226 and 228)	Picocuries/L	≤ 5	≤ 5	≤ 5	≤ 5	≤ 5	≤ 5
(57)(58)(b) Radioactive substances (Gross alpha particle activity including radium 226, but excluding radon and uranium)	Picocuries/L	≤ 15	≤ 15	≤ 15	≤ 15	≤ 15	≤ 15
(58)(59) Selenium	Micrograms/L	≤ 5.0	≤ 71	≤ 5.0	≤ 71		
(59)(60) Silver	Micrograms/L See Note (3).	≤ 0.07	See Minimum criteria in Section 62-302.500(1)(c)(3)	≤ 0.07	See Minimum criteria in Section 62-302.500(1)(c)(3)		
(60)(61) Specific Conductance (see Conductance, Specific, above)							
Notes: (1) "ln H" means the natural logarithm of total hardness expressed as milligrams/L of CaCO ₃ . For metals criteria involving equations with hardness, the hardness shall be set at 25 mg/L if actual hardness is < 25 mg/L and set at 400 mg/L if actual hardness is > 400 mg/L; (2) This criterion is protective of human health not of aquatic life. (3) For application of dissolved metals criteria see 62-302.500(2)(d), F.A.C.							

(61)(62) Substances in concentrations which injure, are chronically toxic to, or produce adverse physiological or behavioral response in humans, plants, or animals		None shall be present.					
(62)(63) 1,1,2,2-Tetrachloro ethane	Micrograms/L	≤ 0.17 annual avg.	≤ 10.8 annual avg.	≤ 10.8 annual avg.	≤ 10.8 annual avg.		
(63)(64) Tetrachloroethylene (1,1,2,2-tetrachloro ethene)	Micrograms/L	≤ 0.8 annual avg., ≤ 3.0 max	≤ 8.85 annual avg.	≤ 8.85 annual avg.	≤ 8.85 annual avg.		
(64)(65) Thallium	Micrograms/L	≤ 1.7	≤ 6.3	≤ 6.3	≤ 6.3		
(65)(66) Thermal Criteria (See Section 62-302.520)							
(66)(67) Total Dissolved Gases	Percent of the saturation value for gases at the existing atmospheric and hydrostatic pressures	≤ 110% of saturation value	≤ 110% of saturation value	≤ 110% of saturation value	≤ 110% of saturation value		
(67)(68) Transparency	Depth of the compensation point for photosynthetic activity	Shall not be reduced by more than 10% as compared to the natural background value.	Shall not be reduced by more than 10% as compared to the natural background value.	Shall not be reduced by more than 10% as compared to the natural background value.	Shall not be reduced by more than 10% as compared to the natural background value.		
(68)(69) Trichloroethylene (trichloroethene)	Micrograms/L	≤ 2.7 annual avg., ≤ 3.0 max	≤ 80.7 annual avg.	≤ 80.7 annual avg.	≤ 80.7 annual avg.		
(69)(70) Turbidity	Nephelometric Turbidity Units (NTU)	≤ 29 above natural background conditions	≤ 29 above natural background conditions	≤ 29 above natural background conditions	≤ 29 above natural background conditions	≤ 29 above natural background conditions	≤ 29 above natural background conditions
(70)(71) Zinc	Micrograms/L See Notes (1) and (3).	Zn ≤ $e^{(0.8473[\ln H]+0.884)}$	≤ 86	Zn ≤ $e^{(0.8473[\ln H]+0.884)}$	≤ 86	≤ 1,000	≤ 1,000

Notes: (1) "ln H" means the natural logarithm of total hardness expressed as milligrams/L of CaCO₃. For metals criteria involving equations with hardness, the hardness shall be set at 25 mg/L if actual hardness is < 25 mg/L and set at 400 mg/L if actual hardness is > 400 mg/L; (2) This criterion is protective of human health not of aquatic life. (3) For application of dissolved metals criteria see 62-302.500(2)(d), F.A.C.

Specific Authority 403.061, 403.062, 403.087, 403.504, 403.704, 403.804 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.061, 403.087, 403.088, 403.141, 403.161, 403.182, 403.502, 403.702, 403.708 FS. History—New 1-28-90, Formerly 17-3.065, Amended 2-13-92, 6-17-92, Formerly 17-302.540, 17-302.550, 17-302.560, 17-302.570, 17-302.580, Amended 4-25-93, Formerly 17-302.530, Amended 1-23-95, 1-15-96, 5-15-02, 7-19-04, _____.

62-302.700 Special Protection, Outstanding Florida Waters, Outstanding National Resource Waters.

(1) through (3) No change.

(4) The following procedure shall be used in designating Outstanding National Resource Waters as well as any Special Water:

(a) Rulemaking procedures pursuant to Chapter 120, F.S., and Chapter 62-102, F.A.C., shall be followed;

(b) through (e) No change.

(5) through (8) No change.

(9) Outstanding Florida Waters:

(a) through (h) No change.

(i) Special Waters.

1. through 16. No change.

17. Lake Disston – Specifically including Lake Disston plus contiguous wetlands within the following areas: Township 14 South, Range 29 East, Sections 21, 20, 19, 18, 17, 16, 9, 8 and 7 in Flagler County; and Township 14 South, Range 28 East, Sections 13 and 24 in Volusia County except:

a. Artificial water bodies defined as any water body created by dredging, or excavation, or by the filling in of its boundaries, including canals as defined in subsection 62-312.020(3), F.A.C.; and

b. Any natural water bodies connected by artificial water bodies to the above-described system (4-4-01).

18. through 39. No change.

40. Wiggins Pass Estuarine Area and the Cocohatchee River System – the estuarine and marine waters from the Lee/Collier County line southward through and including Water Turkey Bay to 50 feet north of S.R. 846 (Bluebill Ave.) 1995 right-of-way; the Cocohatchee River downstream from 50 feet west of U.S. 41 1995 right-of-way; and Wiggins Pass; but excluding maintenance dredging as authorized by Section 403.813(2)(f), F.S., in the following areas:

a. Wiggins Pass from the Gulf of Mexico eastward for 200 linear feet (as measured from the southwestern point of Little Hickory Island);

b. The channel (South Channel, Vanderbilt Channel), that connects Wiggins Pass with Vanderbilt Lagoon through Water Turkey Bay; and

c. East Channel (for purposes of this designation described as the East Channel from its confluence with South Channel to Vanderbilt Drive, including all waters surrounding the spoil islands known as Conklin Point and Island Marine) (7-16-96).

41. No change.

(j) through (n) No change.

(10) No change.

Specific Authority 403.061, 403.087, 403.088, 403.804, 403.805 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.061, 403.062, 403.087, 403.088, 403.101, 403.141, 403.182, 403.502, 403.702, 403.708, ~~403.918~~ FS History–New 3-1-79, Amended 8-10-80, 8-24-82, 9-30-82, 11-30-82, 2-1-83, 6-1-83, 3-1-84, 8-16-84, 12-11-84, 1-17-85, 5-8-85, 4-29-86, 5-14-86, 5-22-86, 5-28-86, 10-29-86, 2-18-87, 4-9-87, 11-24-87, 12-15-87, 1-26-88, 4-19-88, 12-28-88, 4-10-89, 9-13-89, 10-4-89, 12-20-89, 1-28-90, Formerly 17-3.041, Amended 10-4-90, 11-8-90, 7-11-91, 8-18-91, 12-11-91, 6-18-92, 1-5-93, 8-8-94, Formerly 17-302.700, Amended 1-23-95, 4-3-95, 4-12-95, 7-16-96, 4-4-01, 12-11-03, 1-9-06,_____.

62-302.800 Site Specific Alternative Criteria.

(1) through (3) No change.

(4) Additional relief from criteria established by this Chapter may be provided through exemption pursuant to Rule 62-4.243, F.A.C., or variances as provided for by Rule 62-110.104 ~~62-103.100~~, F.A.C.

(5) No change.

Specific Authority 403.061, 403.062, 403.087, 403.504, 403.704, 403.804, 403.805 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.061, 403.087, 403.088, 403.141, 403.161, 403.201, 403.502 FS. History–Formerly 17-3.05(4), Amended 3-1-79, 10-2-80, 2-1-83, Formerly 17-3.031, Amended 6-17-92, Formerly 17-302.800, Amended 5-15-02, 1-9-06, 6-28-06,_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Mimi Drew, Director, Division of Water Resource Management

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Mike Sole, Deputy Secretary

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: July 17, 2006

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: August 12, 2005

DEPARTMENT OF JUVENILE JUSTICE

Residential Services

RULE CHAPTER NO.: 63E-6
 RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Sheriff’s Training And Respect Programs

RULE NOS.:
 63E-6.001 Purpose and Scope
 63E-6.002 Definitions
 63E-6.003 Admission Criteria
 63E-6.004 Admission Procedures
 63E-6.005 Program Orientation
 63E-6.006 Program Components
 63E-6.007 Behavior Management
 63E-6.008 Operational Inspections
 63E-6.009 Program Administration
 63E-6.010 Staff Training Requirements
 63E-6.011 Youth Release or Transfer

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The proposed rule implements Section 985.3091, Florida Statutes, governing the operation and administration of sheriff’s training and respect residential commitment programs.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule establishes the standards and requirements governing the operation, staffing, training, treatment components, scope of services, and administration of sheriff’s training and respect programs.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost has been prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative, must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 20.316, 985.405, 985.3091 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 985.3091 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD):

DATE AND TIME: August 21, 2006, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: DJJ Headquarters, Knight Building, Conference Room 108, 2737 Centerview Drive, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULES IS: Clyde Benedix, Policy Development Officer, Department of Juvenile Justice, Office of Administration, 2737 Centerview Drive, Ste. 104, Tallahassee, FL 32399-3100, phone number (850)921-4116

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULES IS:

63E-6.001 Purpose and Scope.

The rule establishes pre-admission, operational, training, evaluation and release requirements governing Sheriff's Training and Respect (STAR) programs.

Specific Authority 985.3091, 985.405 FS. Law Implemented 985.3091 FS. History-New _____.

63E-6.002 Definitions.

(1) Alternative Training – authorized physical activities or extra duty assignments, which are imposed by STAR program staff following a youth's misconduct. Alternative training is intended to correct a youth's behavior by imposing minor sanctions.

(2) Critical Life Safety – a condition or conditions in facility buildings and grounds or in the operation of the program that may adversely affect the health or safety of youth and staff.

(3) Direct Care – means direct contact with youth for the purpose of providing care, supervision, custody, or control of youth in the STAR program.

(4) Extenuating Circumstances – a situation or circumstance beyond the control of the program, including but not limited to hurricanes/Acts of God, facility damage or structural problems, and situations involving a youth prior to his or her admission into the program.

(5) Intensive Mental Health Treatment – treatment for:

(a) Youth with a DSM-IV-TR diagnosis of: Schizophrenia or other Psychotic Disorder; Major Depression, Bipolar Disorder or other Mood Disorder; Generalized Anxiety Disorder or other Anxiety Disorder; Personality Disorder; or

(b) Youth classified as Severely Emotionally Disabled (SED) or Emotionally Handicapped (EH) by the school system; or

(c) Youth who have a psychiatric disorder that requires treatment with psychotropic medication; or

(d) Youth who have a psychiatric disorder (other than Conduct Disorder) and serious impairment in functioning as evidenced by a Global Assessment of Functioning (GAF) Scale rating of 50 or below.

(6) Minimum Thresholds – defined as at least a 60 percent performance overall rating in the department's Quality Assurance evaluation system.

(7) Obstacle Course – a strenuous exercise program, which requires youth to overcome a series of barriers and is designed to promote the development of self-confidence and physical endurance.

(8) Physical Training – a series of organized group calisthenics and exercises designed to develop the physical fitness of a youth to an optimum level.

(10) Post-residential Services Counselor – the person supervising the youth's post-commitment probation or conditional release after residential placement.

(11) Program Director – a STAR program staff member who is responsible for all aspects of the STAR program, including, but not limited to, program content, staff supervision, youth treatment and facility security.

(12) Protective Action Response Policy – the departmental policy governing staff's use of verbal and physical intervention techniques, mechanical restraints, prohibition of aerosol and chemical agents, and Tasers.

(13) Suicidal Risk History – means youth with any history of: suicide attempt; suicide gesture; intentional self-injurious behavior; suicide ideation or suicide threats.

Specific Authority 985.3091, 985.405 FS. Law Implemented 985.3091 FS. History-New _____.

63E-6.003 Admission Criteria.

(1) A youth is eligible for the STAR program if:

(a) He or she is at least 14 years of age but less than 18 years of age at the time of adjudication; and

(b) Has been committed to the department for any offense that, if committed by an adult, would be a felony other than a capital felony, a life felony, or a violent felony of the first degree.

(2) All youth referred to the STAR program shall be screened by the department to determine if they have the physical, psychological and substance abuse profile conducive to successfully completing the rigorous physical aspects and intensive behavioral management inherent in a STAR program. The screening shall include:

(a) A comprehensive physical assessment prior to admission conducted by a physician (M.D., D.O.) licensed under Chapter 458 or 459, F.S., or an Advanced Registered Nurse Practitioner (ARNP) licensed and certified under Chapter 464, F.S. The assessment shall include a resting electrocardiogram (EKG) to screen for baseline arrhythmias. These assessments shall assist in determining the youth's fitness for the physical demands of the program and to

preliminarily screen out those youth whose health problems would prohibit them from engaging in intensive physical exercise as determined by the program's physical exercise curricula. Any youth with abnormal EKGs shall be automatically excluded;

(b) The comprehensive physical assessment and all required tests must be performed no earlier than 45 days prior to admission into the STAR program;

(c) A preadmission comprehensive evaluation with the psychological component conducted by a licensed mental health professional or a Master's level mental health clinical staff person working under the direct supervision of a licensed mental health professional. Licensed mental health professional means a board certified psychiatrist licensed pursuant to Chapter 458, F.S., a psychologist licensed pursuant to Chapter 490, F.S., a mental health counselor, clinical social worker or marriage and family therapist licensed pursuant to Chapter 491, F.S., or a psychiatric nurse as defined in Section 394.455(23), F.S. This evaluation must be completed prior to admission to screen out those youth whose mental status requires psychotropic medication interventions, who have a developmental disability as defined by an IQ less than 80 or classification as "Educable Mentally Handicapped" or "Trainable Mentally Handicapped," a need for intensive mental health treatment, or reveals suicidal risk histories, serious substance abuse histories or indicates high-risk suicidal tendencies or history of self-injurious behavior.

(3) Within 24 hours of admission, a preadmission substance abuse screening test must be conducted or ordered by the department, with results of testing reviewed prior to admission to the STAR program.

Specific Authority 985.3091, 985.405 FS. Law Implemented 985.3091(2), (7)(a) FS. History-New _____.

63E-6.004 Admission Procedures.

(1) Youth will be placed in a STAR program within the judicial circuit where they were adjudicated, or if there is no STAR program in that circuit, they may be placed in the closest judicial circuit that has a STAR program.

(2) Program directors of STAR programs shall coordinate with the department's regional commitment management staff the admissions and release of youth to and from the STAR program.

(3) Prior to a youth being transported to the receiving STAR program, the sending region shall ensure the commitment package is in order and contains all required documents, to include but not be limited to:

(a) Department generated facesheet, including youth demographics;

(b) Current commitment order;

(c) Pre-disposition report;

(d) Summary of commitment conference; and

(e) The youth's individual healthcare record, if it exists from a prior commitment program or detention placement. The following documents shall be included in the individual healthcare record, or in the commitment packet if the individual healthcare record has not been created:

1. Current document indicating parental consent for evaluation and treatment (a signed copy of the department's Authority for Evaluation and Treatment);

2. Comprehensive physical assessment and EKG report;

3. Hard copy immunization records; and

4. Tuberculosis skin test results, unless contraindicated.

(4) The STAR program shall conduct a physical examination and substance abuse screening during admission.

(5) STAR program directors shall ensure that program staff make diligent efforts to notify the parents or guardians within 24 hours of a youth's admission into the program. Attempts to contact the family shall be documented. If contact is not made within 48 hours, the program staff shall request the youth's Juvenile Probation Officer to make the contact. In addition, a letter signed by the program director shall be sent to the parents or guardians within 48 hours of the youth's arrival at the program. The letter shall include a description of the individual program and its special characteristics, including program rules, visiting procedures and telephone procedures.

(6) Committing judges shall be sent a letter within five days of a youth's arrival indicating the youth's admission.

(7) The probation officer and Post-residential Services Counselor shall be notified in writing within five days of a youth's arrival.

Specific Authority 985.3091, 985.405 FS. Law Implemented 985.3091(2), (7) FS. History-New _____.

63E-6.005 Program Orientation.

(1) The STAR program shall conduct orientation for youth admitted to the program.

(2) The program orientation shall include, but not be limited to the following:

(a) A program daily schedule;

(b) A written, easily understandable statement, and a verbal description of youth rights and grievance procedures, including how to report abuse;

(c) An introduction to the STAR program concept;

(d) Explanation of program rules, disciplinary procedures and consequences, which result from the violation of program rules;

(e) A review of dress code, hygiene and grooming requirements; and

(f) Explanation of sick call procedures and access to health care services, including health care in emergency situations.

(3) Program orientation and receipt of rules shall be documented with signatures of both the youth and staff.

(4) The signed copy of the orientation and rules receipt shall be placed in the youth's file and a copy given to the youth to be kept in his or her possession.

Specific Authority 985.3091, 985.405 FS. Law Implemented 985.3091(3) FS. History--New _____.

63E-6.006 Program Components.

(1) The STAR program shall contain the following program components or services:

(a) Participation in physical training exercises, which are designed to develop optimum physical conditioning of the youth. The physical conditioning may include the use of an obstacle course;

(b) Educational and vocational services, designed to meet youth abilities, specialized needs and interests;

(c) Community service or work assignments of a productive nature;

(d) Personal development counseling, which shall include training in good decision-making, development of social adjustment skills, and life and job skills education. Counseling services shall also be provided to replace criminal thinking, beliefs and values with pro-social thinking, beliefs and values;

(e) Mental health and substance abuse counseling and services shall be provided, including alcohol and other drug abuse awareness, education, treatment or referral to treatment for youth in need of such services; and

(f) Health care services, sick call and acute and chronic medical treatment provided by a physician (M.D., D.O.) licensed under Chapter 458 or 459, F.S., an Advanced Registered Nurse Practitioner (ARNP) licensed and certified under Chapter 464, F.S., or a licensed Registered Nurse within the scope of their training and practice.

(2) While the youth is in the program, assessment shall be made for conditional release, providing for the youth's transition back to his or her home community.

Specific Authority 985.3091, 985.405 FS. Law Implemented 985.3091(3), (4) FS. History--New _____.

63E-6.007 Behavior Management.

(1) The program's behavior management system shall be clear, emphasizing youth rights, encouraging pro-social behaviors and consequences for violations. The behavior management system shall provide a system of privileges and consequences to encourage youth to fulfill programmatic expectations.

(2) The behavior management system shall clearly state the consequences for violation of program rules. The youth shall have an opportunity to explain the questionable behavior for which behavioral consequences are being considered. Consequences shall have a direct correlation to the inappropriate behavior exhibited. It shall be clear to the youth

that the corrective action taken is a logical consequence of his or her behavior. Behavior management consequences are limited to the following:

(a) Privilege suspension:

1. Privilege suspension includes denial of the use of the telephone, home visits, recreation or other special activities outside the program and in accordance with the program's written procedures. Withholding of telephone and visitation privileges shall not include depriving a youth access to his or her attorney, law enforcement, a representative of the clergy, the department's Central Communications Center, Department of Children and Families' Abuse Hotline or the Inspector General's Office.

2. Prior to any youth having a privilege suspended, the youth shall have the reason(s) for the suspension explained to him or her.

3. Privilege suspension shall not include the withholding of regular meals, clothing, sleep, health care services, mental health services, toileting facilities, hygiene necessities, school, exercise, correspondence privileges, or legal assistance.

4. All instances of privilege suspension shall be documented in the youth's individual record and in the program logbook, dated and signed by the staff implementing the discipline procedure, with the program logbook to be reviewed and signed by supervisory staff at least on a daily basis.

(b) Alternative training:

1. Alternative training measures shall be applied on a consistent basis as a behavior management tool, and shall be proportionate to the importance of the rule violation. Prior to alternative training the youth shall have the reasons for the imposition explained to him or her, and be given an opportunity to explain his or her behavior. The youth's rights shall be protected at all times during alternative training. Alternative training measures shall be documented in the program logbook, dated and signed by implementing staff and subsequently reviewed by supervisory staff on at least a daily basis, and all instances must be documented in the youth's individual record.

2. Any staff member of the STAR program has the authority to implement the following alternative training measures to youth:

a. Extra duty assignments;

b. Extra physical exercise limited to no more than 30 minutes. Staff shall intervene anytime a youth indicates that he or she is in pain and unable to perform as instructed. Anytime a staff member determines that the health or physical safety of a youth has been compromised or is potentially compromised, the staff member shall remove the youth immediately from all physical activities without prior approval from supervisory or health care staff. If the health care staff cannot determine the cause of the pain or discomfort, the youth shall be immediately transported to the emergency room; and

c. Verbal counseling directed at changing the youth's inappropriate behavior.

(c) Program restriction:

1. Program restriction is the loss of the earned privilege of leaving the program grounds for the purpose of participating in community activities except as it would restrict exercise of client rights such as school, religious observance, health and exercise needs.

2. Prior to any youth being placed on program restriction, the youth shall have the reason(s) for the restriction explained to him. The youth shall also be given an opportunity to explain his or her behavior.

3. Program restriction shall not exceed 30 days.

4. All instances of program restriction shall be documented in the program logbook, dated and signed by the staff implementing the restriction, with the program logbook to be reviewed and signed by supervisory staff at least on a daily basis.

(d) Room restriction:

1. Room restriction is the restriction of a youth to his or her room or other area designated by the program director to protect the safety of the youth. Room restriction shall be used only when a youth is dangerous to self or others or there is substantial evidence to indicate the youth is about to escape. The use of room restriction shall serve only a "cooling off" purpose and shall not exceed two hours without authorization from licensed medical or mental health professionals. Room restriction shall not exceed a total of four hours at any given time.

2. Prior to a youth being placed on room restriction, the youth shall have the reason(s) for the restriction explained to him or her. The youth shall also be given an opportunity to explain his or her behavior.

3. Meals, clothing, sleep, health care, prescribed medications, mental health services, toileting facilities, hygiene necessities, religious needs, or staff assistance shall not be denied to a youth on room restriction.

4. The staff member placing the youth on room restriction shall document the justification for room restriction.

5. When a youth is placed on room restriction, the staff member shall talk with the youth at least every 30 minutes in order to evaluate the need for continued restriction.

6. Youth on room restriction shall be visually observed (in person) by a staff member at least every 10 minutes.

7. Youth who have been assessed to be at risk of suicide shall be provided with continual sight and sound supervision and shall be referred for a mental health evaluation immediately.

8. Staff observations and contacts with the youth shall be documented in the program logbook, dated, and signed by the staff imposing the restriction, and subsequently reviewed and signed by supervisory staff on at least a daily basis. All instances must be documented in the youth's individual record.

(3) The use of harmful psychological intimidation techniques is prohibited in the STAR program.

(a) For the purpose of this section, the term "harmful psychological intimidation techniques" includes the following actions when intentionally used as a therapeutic or training technique or as a means to encourage compliance with program requirements:

1. The threat of physical force or violence;

2. An intentional effort to humiliate or embarrass a youth;

3. An intentional effort to diminish a youth's self-confidence or otherwise psychologically break a youth's will; or

4. Any action that would be considered child abuse or neglect under Chapter 39 or 827, F.S.

(b) The term "harmful psychological intimidation techniques" does not include the following actions:

1. Direct and forceful communication to a youth of program requirements or legitimate performance expectations prior to or during participation in program activities, including positive, active encouragement of youth engaged in physical training exercises.

2. Communication necessary to inform a youth of noncompliance with program requirements or appropriate actions to remediate such noncompliance.

3. Communication necessary to inform a youth of poor performance or appropriate actions to remediate such poor performance.

4. Communications or other actions necessary to maintain order or safety in the program.

5. Any lawful and reasonable communications that are permissible for parents, other juvenile justice programs, school officials, or other adults who have custody of or supervisory responsibilities for youth.

Specific Authority 985.3091, 985.405 FS. Law Implemented 985.3091(3), (7) FS. History—New _____.

63E-6.008 Operational Inspections.

(1) All STAR programs, whether operated by the department, county or municipal government, shall be inspected quarterly during the first year of operations by the department to determine operational compliance. Thereafter, if the program has met the minimum thresholds during the most recent evaluation, the program shall be evaluated at least once annually.

(2) If a STAR program fails to meet the minimum thresholds, the department shall cancel the contract for the program:

(a) Immediately, if the program has a deficiency in a critical life safety aspect of its operations or has failed to train its staff as required.

(b) Within three months, if the program fails to achieve compliance with the minimum thresholds, unless there are documented extenuating circumstances.

(3) Upon cancellation of a STAR program contract under the provisions of this section, the program's operations shall immediately cease and the department shall immediately discontinue any state payments to the program.

Specific Authority 985.3091, 985.405 FS. Law Implemented 985.3091(8) FS. History--New _____.

63E-6.009 Program Administration.

(1) The program's administration shall include, but is not limited to:

(a) Rule and contract compliance:

1. The inspection shall include operational compliance with admission criteria and screening, behavior management sanctions and privileges.

2. A contractual STAR program will comply with the terms and conditions as identified in the contract.

(b) Safety and security:

1. The STAR program shall ensure the safety and security of staff and youth, conduct security inspections and checks, and provide preventive maintenance and control of safety and security equipment.

2. The program shall develop escape prevention and escape response plans.

3. Youth at the program shall be interviewed regarding their safety and security at the program. The interviews shall address availability of services, abuse allegations, grievances, access to treatment services, and overall treatment.

4. Departmental staff shall meet with STAR program directors to review Protective Action Response reports for trends and conditions that would indicate staff are engaging in excessive or inappropriate use of force.

(c) Treatment:

1. The STAR program shall provide youth treatment and activities, youth work assignments, physical training, delivery of specialized treatment services, and youth case management.

2. The program shall provide for visitation and family involvement, correspondence and telephone communications for the youth in the program.

3. The program shall include academic and vocational activities, life and job skills, and appropriate decision making training for the youth.

(d) Behavior management:

1. The program shall implement a behavior management system, which includes consequences, sanctions and privileges for youth.

2. The behavior management system shall not deny a youth meals, clothing, sleep, education, exercise or physical and mental health services.

(e) Medical:

1. The program shall implement access to and the delivery of medical, substance abuse and mental health services and assessments.

2. The program shall have a written suicide prevention and suicide response plan.

3. The program shall have a designated health authority, defined as the physician (M.D. or D.O. licensed pursuant to Chapter 458 or 459, F.S.) who comes on site weekly.

4. The program shall provide for medication storage, medical documentation, medication monitoring and distribution; sick call and medical appointments; "medical and mental health alerts"; management of health and mental health records and information; and control of infectious and communicable diseases.

5. Anytime the health care staff determines that the health or physical safety of a youth has been compromised or is potentially compromised, they shall remove the youth from all physical activities without prior approval from program staff. Staff shall intervene anytime a youth indicates that he or she is in pain and unable to perform as instructed. Anytime a staff member determines that the health or physical safety of a youth has been compromised or is potentially compromised, the staff member shall remove the youth immediately from all physical activities without prior approval from supervisory or health care staff. If the health care staff cannot determine the cause of the pain or discomfort the youth should be immediately transported to the emergency room.

6. Health care services must be provided daily from 7:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. by a Registered Nurse licensed under Chapter 464, F.S. Around-the-clock, on-call access to a medical professional (Physician or ARNP) must be available at all other times.

7. All STAR program staff shall be CPR and First Aid certified.

8. All STAR programs shall have Automated External Defibrillators (AEDs) on site within 12 months of opening and at least one staff person on every shift shall be AED certified.

(f) Administration:

1. The program shall have a written mission statement.

2. The program shall require the prominent display of the telephone number of the statewide abuse hotline and the department's Central Communication Center and for immediate access by youth in the program, upon request, to a telephone for the purpose of contacting the statewide abuse registry, the public defender's office, his or her attorney, or a law enforcement agency.

(2) All usage of PAR must be documented in accordance with Rule 63H-1.007, F.A.C.

(3) All alleged violations of PAR shall be reviewed by the department's Inspector General.

Specific Authority 985.3091, 985.405 FS. Law Implemented 985.3091(3)-(5), (7), (9) FS. History--New _____.

63E-6.010 Staff Training Requirements.

(1) All STAR program staff must complete, at a minimum, the following training requirements within 90 calendar days of that staff person's hiring date:

(a) Administrative staff must successfully complete 120 contact hours of department-approved training.

(b) Direct care staff who are Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission (CJSTC) certified correctional, correctional probation or law enforcement officers under Chapter 943 will adhere to the requirements of Rule 63H-1.016, F.A.C.

(c) Direct care staff who are not certified correctional, correctional probation or law enforcement officers under Chapter 943, F.S., are to be certified in Protective Action Response and to successfully complete 200 contact hours of department approved training, which must include, but not be limited to:

1. State and federal laws relating to child abuse;
2. Adolescent behavior;
3. Behavior management;
4. Mental health issues;
5. Suicide prevention;
6. Health care;
7. Communication skills-interpersonal and verbal de-escalation skills;
8. Human diversity;
9. Cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR)/First Aid certification;
10. Safety;
11. Security; and
12. Emergency procedures.

(2) All department approved training courses must be taught by one or more persons who are certified as, or who have completed the necessary education and training to be, an instructor for the course being taught. A training course in counseling techniques must be taught by a person who has at least a bachelor's degree in social work, counseling, psychology or a related field.

(3) Prior to successful completion of these training requirements, a STAR program direct care staff must be directly supervised by a person who has successfully completed the training requirements in this section.

Specific Authority 985.3091, 985.405 FS. Law Implemented 985.3091(6), (9) FS. History--New _____.

63E-6.011 Youth Release or Transfer.

(1) The program shall notify the department regarding the removal of a youth from the program if the youth becomes unmanageable or ineligible for the program due to changes in his or her physical, psychological or substance abuse profile.

Preliminary notification to the department shall occur immediately if a youth has a change in physical or mental health status that warrants a:

- (a) Referral to a medical specialist;
- (b) Referral offsite for any imaging other than an x-ray;
- (c) Surgical procedures; or
- (d) Involuntary commitment (Baker Act).

(2) Prior to the release or transfer of a youth from the STAR program, the youth:

(a) Must have a physical examination performed by a licensed physician or a licensed and certified Advanced Registered Nurse Practitioner. Any evidence of abuse as defined in Section 39.01(2), F.S., must be documented and immediately reported by the examiner to the statewide abuse registry and the department.

(b) Must sign an exit statement upon transfer from the residential component to the aftercare component indicating whether his or her rights were observed and whether he or she was subjected to any abuse or harmful psychological intimidation techniques. Any allegation by the youth that:

1. He or she was subjected to abuse while in the STAR program must be investigated by the department and the Department of Children and Family Services under Section 39.302, F.S.

2. His or her rights were not observed or that he or she was subjected to harmful psychological intimidation techniques or to violations of the department's Protective Action Response rule must be investigated by the department's Inspector General.

(c) The STAR program shall deliver a copy of each youth's exit statement at the time it is executed to:

1. The department either by facsimile or electronic mail.
2. The statewide abuse registry if it contains any allegation of abuse as defined in Section 39.01(2), F.S.

Specific Authority 985.3091, 985.405 FS. Law Implemented 985.3091(7), (10) FS. History--New _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Judy Haynes, SMA II, Residential Services Policy Development and Planning Unit, Department of Juvenile Justice

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Charles Chervanik, Assistant Secretary for Residential Services, Department of Juvenile Justice

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: July 17, 2006

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: July 28, 2006

DEPARTMENT OF JUVENILE JUSTICE

Staff Development and Training

RULE CHAPTER NO.:	RULE CHAPTER TITLE:
63H-1	Protective Action Response
RULE NOS.:	RULE TITLES:
63H-1.001	Purpose and Scope
63H-1.002	Definitions
63H-1.003	Authorized Levels of Response
63H-1.004	Authorized Techniques
63H-1.005	Authorized Mechanical Restraints
63H-1.006	Supervision of Youth in Mechanical Restraints
63H-1.007	Documentation and Retention of Records
63H-1.008	Medical Requirements for Training
63H-1.009	Certification
63H-1.010	Cross-Over Training
63H-1.011	Rehired Employee Training
63H-1.012	Annual Training Requirement
63H-1.013	Testing Requirements
63H-1.014	Training Instructor Qualifications
63H-1.015	Training Instructor Certification Renewal
63H-1.016	Law Enforcement Operations and Partnerships

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The proposed rule implements Section 985.4055, F.S., establishing protective action response as the authorized verbal and physical intervention program used in department operated and contracted facilities and programs.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule establishes the authorized levels of response, intervention techniques, standards governing the use of mechanical restraints, documentation and reporting requirements, and comprehensive training requirements for direct care employees in department operated and contracted facilities and programs.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative, must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 20.316, 985.405, 985.4055 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 985.4055 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD):

DATE AND TIME: August 21, 2006, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: DJJ Headquarters, Knight Building, Conference Room 108, 2737 Centerview Drive, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULES IS: Clyde Benedix, Policy Development Officer, Department of Juvenile Justice, Office of Administration, 2737 Centerview Drive, Ste. 104, Tallahassee, FL 32399-3100, phone number (850)921-4116

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULES IS:

63H-1.001 Purpose and Scope.

This rule establishes a statewide framework to implement procedures governing the use of verbal and physical intervention techniques and mechanical restraints. Protective Action Response (PAR), as authorized by the department, shall be the verbal and physical intervention program trained and utilized by direct care staff in state-operated and contracted facilities and programs.

Specific Authority 985.4055, 985.405 FS. Law Implemented 985.4055 FS. History–New _____.

63H-1.002 Definitions.

(1) Active Resistance – Youth makes physically evasive movements to defeat an employee’s attempts to control; for example, bracing, or attempting to push or pull away from an employee.

(2) Actively Engaged – An employee is participating in the practical performance or application of any one of the approved physical intervention techniques or mechanical restraints.

(3) Administrator – One whose primary responsibility is overseeing the daily operations of a facility, program or probation circuit.

(4) Aggravated Resistance – Youth makes overt, hostile, attacking movements with or without a weapon with the apparent intent and apparent ability to cause death or great bodily harm to the employee, self, or others; for example, striking with a stick, banging head against the wall, or swinging a razor blade.

(5) CJSTC – Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission.

(6) Combative Resistance – Youth makes overt, hostile, attacking movements that may cause injury; for example, slapping, pushing, or charging.

(7) Control Techniques – Techniques used to control and/or move a youth from point A to point B with minimum effort by the employee in order to gain and retain control over the youth.

(8) Countermoves – Techniques that impede a youth’s movement toward an employee or others; for example, blocking, distracting, evading, redirecting, or avoiding.

(9) Designated Health Authority – This individual is responsible for the provision of necessary and appropriate health care to youth in the physical custody of a secure detention center or residential/correctional facility. An

individual designated health authority shall be a physician (MD) or osteopathic physician (DO) who holds an active license pursuant to Chapter 458 or 459, F.S., respectively, and who meets all requirements to practice independently in the State of Florida.

(10) Dialogue – A two-way, controlled, non-emotional communication between the employee and the youth aimed at problem identification and/or resolution.

(11) Direct Care – Having direct contact with youth for the provision of care, supervision, custody, or control in a detention facility, delinquency program, or commitment program operated by the department or by a provider under contract with the department.

(12) Facility – A contracted or state-operated staff-secure or physically secure environment that provides custody, care, or confinement of youth alleged or found to have committed a violation of law. This includes, but is not limited to, secure detention, law enforcement operated facilities, and residential commitment programs.

(13) Facility Employee – Any employee who exercises direct care in a facility.

(14) Hard Mechanical Restraints – Restraint devices constructed from inflexible material; for example, metal handcuffs, leg cuffs, and waist chains.

(15) Individual Health Care Record – The compilation of all records related to a youth's medical, dental and mental health.

(16) Master PAR Instructor – An advanced, qualified instructor who assists and monitors PAR instructors in maintaining quality delivery of PAR training and evaluation for PAR certification.

(17) Mechanical Restraints – This includes hard and soft mechanical restraints as defined in this rule.

(18) Mechanical Restraints Supervision Log – The form used to document an employee's use of mechanical restraints as a result of a Level 3 response. The Mechanical Restraints Supervision Log (revised 6/01/06) is incorporated by reference, and is available at the department's website (www.djj.state.fl.us).

(19) PAR Medical Release – The form signed and dated by a licensed physician that authorizes an employee to perform the physical intervention techniques that were checked on the Medical Status form. The PAR Medical Release (revised 8/15/03) is incorporated by reference, and is available at the department's website (www.djj.state.fl.us).

(20) PAR Medical Status – The form signed and dated by a licensed physician that identifies the physical intervention techniques listed on the applicable PAR Training Plan an employee cannot perform and why. The PAR Medical Status (revised 6/01/06) is incorporated by reference, and is available at the department's website (www.djj.state.fl.us).

(21) PAR Medical Review – The review deemed necessary as a result of the Post PAR Interview.

(22) Passive Resistance – The youth physically refuses to comply or respond. The youth does not attempt to physically defeat the actions of the employee but refuses to obey all verbal directives.

(23) Post PAR Interview – The interview conducted by the designated health authority or designee following a Level 2 or Level 3 response.

(24) Program – A contracted or state-operated non-residential environment providing supervision of youth who have been identified to receive services within the community. This includes, but is not limited to, probation, non-secure detention, home detention, juvenile assessment centers, Intensive Delinquency Diversion Services (IDDS) programs, conditional release programs, screening and intake units, and day treatment programs. This does not include prevention programs.

(25) Program Employee – Any employee who exercises direct care for a program.

(26) PAR – The department-approved verbal and physical intervention techniques and the application of mechanical restraints used in accordance with this rule, the Protective Action Response Escalation Matrix, and PAR training curricula.

(27) PAR Certification – This applies to an employee who has successfully completed PAR training as described in this rule. Only employees who are PAR trained are authorized to use PAR.

(28) PAR Escalation Matrix – The document that provides guidance as to the authorized level of response based upon the youth's level of resistance. The PAR Escalation Matrix (revised 6/01/06) is incorporated by reference, and is available at the department's website (www.djj.state.fl.us).

(29) PAR Incident Report – The form used to document the occurrence of an event where an employee has used one of the enumerated physical intervention techniques. The PAR Incident Report (revised 6/01/06) is incorporated by reference, and is available at the department's website (www.djj.state.fl.us).

(30) PAR Performance Evaluation Forms – These forms are used to measure an employee's or PAR Instructor's ability to perform verbal and physical intervention techniques and apply mechanical restraints. The following forms are incorporated by reference and are available at the department's website (www.djj.state.fl.us):

(a) PAR Performance Evaluation – State operated facility/Contracted detention/ and Law Enforcement operated facility staff (revised 6/01/2006).

(b) PAR Performance Evaluation – Contracted facility staff (revised 6/01/2006).

(c) PAR Performance Evaluation – Program staff (revised 8/15/2003).

(d) PAR Performance Evaluation – PAR Instructors (revised 6/01/2006).

(31) PAR Training Plan forms – These forms identify the specific techniques that program and facility employees shall be trained to use. The identified techniques are the only techniques employees are authorized to use (except where provided in Rule 63H-1.003 and .004, F.A.C.). The following forms are incorporated by reference and are available at the department’s website (www.djj.state.fl.us):

(a) PAR Training Plan – State operated facility/Contracted detention/ and Law Enforcement operated facility staff (revised 6/01/2006)

(b) PAR Training Plan – Contracted facility staff (revised 6/01/2006)

(c) PAR Training Plan – Program staff (revised 8/15/2003).

(32) Soft Mechanical Restraints – Restraint devices that are made with flexible materials; for example, Velcro, nylon flex cuffs (also known as zip cuffs), and leather.

(33) Takedowns – Techniques that redirect a youth to the ground in a controlled manner in order to limit the youth’s physical resistance and to facilitate the application of a restraint device, if needed.

(34) Touch – Employee uses a familiar touch when directing, or a custodial touch prior to escalating to a higher response level.

(35) Verbal Directions – Employee tells or commands a youth to engage in, or refrain from, a specific action or non-action.

(36) Verbal Resistance – Youth verbally refuses to comply with an employee’s verbal attempts to control the situation.

Specific Authority 985.4055, 985.405 FS. Law Implemented 985.4055 FS. History–New _____.

63H-1.003 Authorized Levels of Response.

(1) LEVEL 1 RESPONSE – This level of employee response consists of verbal intervention techniques and shall be utilized in response to all levels of resistance by the youth. Verbal intervention techniques shall be the initial response by an employee to resistance by a youth except where physical intervention techniques are necessary to prevent: physical harm to the youth, employee or another person; property damage; or the youth escaping or absconding from lawful supervision.

(2) LEVEL 2 RESPONSE – In this level of response, verbal attempts to diffuse a youth or situation have been exhausted, and the youth has initiated passive, active, combative, or aggravated resistance. Physical intervention techniques may encompass the use of touch, countermoves, control techniques, or takedowns as described in Rule 63H-1.004, F.A.C.

(3) LEVEL 3 RESPONSE – This level of response involves the use of mechanical restraints. The use of mechanical restraints is authorized in situations where a youth has initiated active, combative, or aggravated resistance, and in

situations where a youth poses a physical threat to self, employees, or others. Rules 63H-1.005-.007, F.A.C., explain the duties and responsibilities of employees when using mechanical restraints. Rule 63H-1.004, F.A.C., describes the authorized mechanical restraint techniques for facility employees.

(4) All responses shall be commensurate with the youth’s level of resistance according to the PAR Escalation Matrix and this rule.

(a) Additionally, responses shall only be used when reasonably necessary to control youth and only after all reasonable alternatives have been exhausted, including verbal persuasion, warnings, and verbal intervention techniques; or when the alternatives are considered inappropriate due to the rapid escalation of dangerous behavior.

(b) Prior authorization for the use of physical intervention techniques and mechanical restraints shall be obtained from the supervisor or acting supervisor unless doing so could result in physical harm to the youth, employee or another person, property damage, or the youth escaping or absconding from lawful supervision.

(c) PAR certified employees shall immediately report the following intervention actions to their immediate supervisor or acting supervisor, and these incidents shall be documented per Rule 63H-1.007, F.A.C.:

1. Level 2 responses including counter moves, control techniques, and takedowns.

2. Level 3 applications of soft or hard mechanical restraints.

(d) In the event a youth is armed with a weapon and there is imminent danger of bodily harm or death, facility and program employees shall immediately request emergency assistance from local law enforcement, and if possible, isolate or contain the youth. Employees certified in CJSTC tactics shall use approved CJSTC tactics to control the youth, and then, if necessary, call for assistance from local law enforcement.

(e) If a youth is in the process of inflicting grave bodily harm, or possible death, upon others or self, facility and program employees shall immediately contact law enforcement. Employees are authorized to use reasonable and necessary means to stabilize the situation even if they fall beyond the scope of PAR. Employees certified in CJSTC tactics shall use approved CJSTC tactics to control the youth, and then if necessary, call for assistance from local law enforcement.

(5) This rule prohibits the use of:

(a) A Taser on a youth;

(b) Aerosol or chemical agents, including but not limited to oleoresin capsicum spray; and

(c) Ammonia capsules, unless required for medical treatment of the youth by a licensed medical professional.

Specific Authority 985.4055, 985.405 FS. Law Implemented 985.4055(2)(a) FS. History—New _____.

63H-1.004 Authorized Techniques.

(1) Protective Action Response, as authorized by the department, shall be the verbal and physical intervention program trained and utilized by direct care staff in state-operated and contracted facilities and programs.

(2) On or before August 31, 2006, existing contracted facilities shall submit a new PAR Training Plan to the Assistant Secretary of Staff Development and Training or designee through the department's Regional Director or designee, and thereafter notice of any change to this plan shall be submitted as described above within 30 calendar days of the changes' effective date. Newly contracted facilities, except contracted detention facilities, shall submit their PAR Training Plan as described above no less than 30 calendar days prior to becoming operational. The PAR Training Plan for contracted facility employees shall specify the following:

(a.) All Stance and Body Movement techniques.

(b) All Countermoves.

(c) At a minimum, one (1) Touch technique.

(d) At a minimum, three (3) Control techniques.

(e) At a minimum, three (3) Takedown techniques.

(f) The following uses of Mechanical Restraints: standing front handcuffing and uncuffing, one (1) rear handcuffing technique (standing or prone), and one (1) leg cuffing and uncuffing technique (kneeling position or hands on wall). Other uses of mechanical restraints, if authorized under Rule 63H-1.005, F.A.C., may also be specified.

(g) Searches.

(h) The Wrap Around Control technique, and the Wrap Around to a Takedown technique will not be used on pregnant youth.

(3) Contracted Detention facilities shall comply with the PAR Training Plan for State-Operated/Contracted Detention Facility Employees.

(4) The PAR Training Plan for State-Operated facility employees, Law Enforcement Operated employees, and Contracted Detention employees shall specify the following:

(a) All Stance and Body Movement techniques.

(b) All Countermoves.

(c) Searches.

(d) The Straight Arm Escort – Extended and Close Positions.

(e) All Control techniques, Supportive Hold Control.

(f) All Takedowns, except Wrap-Around to a Single Person Takedown, Wrap-Around to a Team Takedown, and Stages 4 and 5 of Supportive Hold to a Takedown.

(g) Handcuffs and Leg Cuffs.

(h) The Wrap Around Control technique will not be used on pregnant youth.

(5) Direct Care employees in law enforcement operated facilities having been dually certified in the PAR Escalation Matrix, and the CJSTC use of force continuum shall be authorized to use the CJSTC tactics when reasonably necessary to control a youth after the youth exhibits combative physical resistance as defined in this rule or aggressive physical resistance as defined in CJSTC standards, and after PAR Escalation Matrix techniques have been exhausted; or when the alternatives are considered inappropriate due to the rapid escalation of dangerous behavior.

(6) The PAR Training Plan for Program employees shall specify:

(a) All Stance and Body Movement techniques; and

(b) All Countermoves.

(7) PAR certified facility and program employees shall only use the techniques and mechanical restraints that are specified on the applicable PAR Training Plan.

Specific Authority 985.4055, 985.405 FS. Law Implemented 985.4055(2)(a) FS. History—New _____.

63H-1.005 Authorized Mechanical Restraints.

(1) The department authorizes the use of only those mechanical restraints addressed in this rule. All mechanical restraints shall be designed and manufactured for the specific purpose of secure transport or restraint.

(a) Authorized mechanical restraints to be used within a facility are as follows: handcuffs, leg restraints, restraint belt, soft restraints, and waist chains.

1. Handcuffs. The availability and versatility of handcuffs make their use practical in most restraint situations. Handcuffs are light, flexible, and easy to apply. Standard handcuffs, used by most law enforcement agencies, are approved for use.

2. Restraint Belt. A restraint belt may be used with handcuffs when added security is needed. The restraint belt is a leather or nylon belt that is secured behind the back of the youth with an independent lock, buckle, or Velcro fastener. The belt is fashioned so that handcuffs secured to the front of the belt provide an alternative to restraining a youth's hands in the behind-the-back position.

3. Leg restraints. Leg restraints are similar to handcuffs, but usually have a 15-inch chain separating the restraints. Leg restraints are typically used in conjunction with handcuffs to restrict the movement of the feet and legs.

4. Soft restraints. Soft restraints, such as nylon flex cuffs (also known as zip cuffs), or Velcro or leather devices, are authorized for use as an alternative to hard restraints.

5. Waist chains. Waist chains are designed to limit arm movement and keep hands visible at all times by securing them at the youth's waist. Waist chains are typically used only for transportation. There are two basic types: a nickel plated chain, usually 60 inches long with a sturdy cuff clip to permit quick attachment of handcuffs; or a similar chain with handcuffs permanently attached.

(b) The use of mechanical restraints, and the circumstances surrounding their use, shall be carefully reviewed and regularly monitored by the regional office to ensure compliance with this rule.

(c) Mechanical restraints are authorized for use while transporting youth.

(d) There are two authorized methods to use when handcuffing a youth: hands in front of the youth, and hands behind the youth's back.

(e) All facilities, except low and moderate risk facilities, shall use mechanical restraints to transport youth. Leg restraints and front handcuffing shall be used to transport. The use of handcuffs and leg restraints is not required when transporting youth residing in low and moderate-risk facilities except when a youth has demonstrated that he or she cannot be transported by less restrictive methods, and has been assessed as a security risk.

(f) Prohibited use of mechanical restraints includes the use of neck restraints, the restraint chair, and the securing of youth to a fixed object.

(g) No more than two youth may be chained or handcuffed together.

(h) A youth's legs and hands may be secured together in the front with the use of waist chains or a restraint belt, in which case the length of the chain securing the youth's legs and hands together shall not prohibit the youth from standing in a full upright position. Securing a youth's legs and hands together behind the youth's back is prohibited.

(i) If handcuffs are used on pregnant youth, they shall be cuffed in front. Leg restraints, waist chains, and the restraint belt shall not be used on pregnant youth.

(k) Except as provided herein, during transports all violent and escape risk youth shall be handcuffed with their hands in front with the use of a restraint belt or waist chains; or the hands shall be cuffed behind the back.

Specific Authority 985.4055, 985.405 FS. Law Implemented 985.4055(2)(a) FS. History--New _____.

63H-1.006 Supervision of Youth in Mechanical Restraints.

(1) Youth secured in mechanical restraints pursuant to Rule 63H-1.003, F.A.C., shall be supervised in accordance with this section.

(2) At no time will a youth be left without constant, full, and direct visual supervision by an employee. The youth shall not be placed in an upper bunk or in any position that does not permit constant, full, and direct visual supervision. Youth shall not be stripped of their clothing.

(3) Employees responsible for providing constant, full, and direct visual supervision shall have physical possession of the key to unlock the mechanical restraints.

(4) While a youth is placed in mechanical restraints, employees shall:

(a) Employ verbal intervention techniques designed to de-escalate the need for mechanical restraints.

(b) Continually monitor the youth's level of resistance, aggressiveness, and willingness to comply with instructions to determine whether removal of restraints is safe and advisable.

(c) Conduct breathing and circulation checks at ten-minute intervals. These ten-minute checks shall be documented on the Mechanical Restraints Supervision Log.

(5) If a restrained youth continues to exhibit negative, hostile, and/or aggressive behavior so that removal of mechanical restraints is unsafe, the supervisor or acting supervisor shall interview the youth and decide if it is safe to remove the mechanical restraints. This interview shall occur no more than 30 minutes after the youth is placed in restraints. If it is decided that it is unsafe to remove the restraints, the supervisor or acting supervisor shall document the decision on the Mechanical Restraints Supervision Log. If authorization is obtained from the Superintendent, Residential Program Director, or designee to continue the use of restraints, another interview shall occur no more than one (1) hour after the previous interview. Each time the decision is made that it is unsafe to remove the restraints, the decision shall be documented as described above.

(6) Authorization Requirements:

(a) A youth may remain in mechanical restraints up to 60 minutes with the supervisor's or acting supervisor's authorization.

(b) In order to keep the youth in mechanical restraints for 60 to 120 minutes, the supervisor or acting supervisor shall obtain authorization from the Superintendent, Residential Program Director, or designee who shall first consult with a licensed medical and/or mental health professional before authorizing additional time. This authorization shall be obtained within the initial 60-minute timeframe. This consultation and authorization shall be documented on the Mechanical Restraints Supervision Log by specifying the name of the professional who was consulted, the time contacted, and the amount of time authorized.

(c) In order to keep the youth in mechanical restraints beyond 120 minutes, the same procedures apply as described in paragraph (b) above for each subsequent 60-minute timeframe.

(7) If at any point during the restraint it is determined that transportation to an appropriate treatment center is necessary, the supervisor or acting supervisor shall request verbal authorization from the Superintendent, Residential Program Director, or designee to initiate procedures to transport the youth. This verbal authorization and the time the authorization was received shall be documented on the Mechanical Restraints Supervision Log. The licensed medical or mental health professional may come to the facility or the youth may be transported to an appropriate treatment center.

(8) If a youth is being transported to a mental health facility, the facility shall be telephoned in advance that the youth is being transported.

Specific Authority 985.4055, 985.405 FS. Law Implemented 985.4055(2)(a) FS. History—New

63H-1.007 Documentation and Retention of Records.

(1) Documentation:

(a) A PAR Report shall be completed after an incident involving the use of countermoves, control techniques, takedowns, or application of mechanical restraints.

(b) The employees who were engaged with the youth shall complete the PAR Report and shall complete it no later than the end of the employee's workday.

(c) When mechanical restraints are used, the Mechanical Restraints Supervision Log shall be completed.

(d) All reports of incidents in which employees are trained in the use of CJSTC techniques that utilize PAR or CJSTC techniques shall be completed according to the facility's reporting documentation procedures.

(2) Review and Retention of Records:

(a) The PAR Report shall be reviewed by the administrator or designee within 72-hours of the incident, excluding weekends and holidays.

(b) Post PAR Interview: The designated health authority or administrator's designee shall interview the youth. The purpose of the interview is to determine whether obvious injuries occurred, if the youth complains of pain, or if the youth exhibits signs or symptoms that to a lay person indicate a PAR Medical Review is necessary. This interview must be conducted as soon as possible after the incident. The findings of the interview shall be placed in the youth's individual health care record, and labeled "Post PAR Interview" and shall be dated, timed, and signed by the individual conducting the interview. This individual shall also sign and date the PAR Report.

(c) PAR Medical Review:

1. If the Post PAR Interview indicates the need for a PAR Medical Review the youth shall be referred to a certified medical health professional

2. The purpose of the Medical Review is to determine, from a medical perspective, if injuries or complications occurred as a result of the physical intervention or application of mechanical restraints, and if the youth requires medical treatment.

3. Descriptions of injuries or complications and medical treatment provided shall be filed in the youth's individual health care record.

4. If an onsite review is conducted, the documentation shall be labeled, "PAR Medical Review," and it shall conform to professional standards. If an offsite review is conducted, the youth's individual health care record and medication administration record shall accompany the youth to the review.

Prior to placing the documentation in the individual health care record, the top of each page returned by the reviewer shall be dated and labeled, with "PAR Medical Review."

(d) The Post PAR Interview and the PAR Medical Review shall occur after the supervisor or acting supervisor has reviewed the PAR Report and prior to the report being submitted to the Administrator or designee.

(e) The Administrator shall establish and maintain a centralized file, which shall include:

1. PAR Incident Reports, and attachments to the PAR Incident Report.

2. Any other incident reports or investigative reports related to the application of physical intervention techniques and/or mechanical restraints.

3. A copy of the PAR Report shall be placed in the facility's or program's centralized file within 48 hours of being signed by the Administrator.

(f) Facilities/Programs shall retain a copy of the PAR Incident Report for three (3) years following the youth's release.

Specific Authority 985.4055, 985.405 FS. Law Implemented 985.4055(2)(a) FS. History—New

63H-1.008 Medical Requirements for Training.

(1) The following provisions apply to the Medical Status form:

(a) If an employee believes a medical condition exists that will prohibit performance of one or more physical intervention techniques, the employee shall submit the Medical Status form attached to this rule to his or her licensed physician for completion. The physician shall specify the date by which he or she anticipates that the employee will be able to perform the techniques, or shall specify that the employee is permanently unable to perform the techniques. If the employee is permanently unable to perform the techniques, he or she will no longer be eligible to work in a direct care position.

(b) The employee's physician shall be provided with a description or a video of the techniques by the employee's facility, program or circuit office.

(c) Upon completion by the physician, the employee shall submit the Medical Status form to the Administrator. The Administrator shall review the form on a case-by-case basis. The Administrator shall have the authority to take necessary and appropriate personnel action based upon his or her review of the form or if the Medical Status form is not submitted within 45 calendar days.

(d) It shall be within the Administrator's discretion as to whether the employee is eligible to attend a PAR training course or sit for the PAR written examination. However, the employee shall not practice or be evaluated on the physical intervention techniques until a Medical Release form is

obtained. If the employee is registered for a PAR training course, the sending facility/program shall notify the PAR Instructor that the employee is on Medical Status.

(2) Upon expiration of the date specified on the Medical Status form or when an employee is able to perform the specified physical intervention techniques, whichever is earlier, the employee shall submit the Medical Release form attached to this rule to his or her licensed physician for completion. Upon completion by the physician, the employee shall submit the Medical Release form within 10 working days. If a sending facility/program has an employee who previously attended a PAR training course and who was on Medical Status, the facility/program shall notify the PAR Instructor that the employee has been issued a Medical Release and is eligible to practice and be evaluated on the physical intervention techniques.

(3) Medical Status and Medical Release forms, or copies thereof, are confidential records and shall be maintained in accordance with state Personnel rules, or if a contracted facility or program, in accordance with the organization's applicable policy. The Medical Status and Medical Release forms shall not be submitted to the PAR Instructor.

Specific Authority 985.4055, 985.405 FS. Law Implemented 985.4055(2)(b) FS. History—New _____.

63H-1.009 Certification.

(1) Any employee not PAR Certified prior to 7/01/2006 shall be required to become PAR certified by 9/30/2006.

(2) Any employee hired on or after 7/01/2006, must become PAR certified within 90 calendar days following his or her date of hire.

(3) Any employee who exercises direct care prior to receiving PAR certification must be directly supervised by an employee who is PAR certified.

(4) Employees shall be PAR certified by successfully completing the PAR training designed for facility or program employees, whichever is applicable. Successful completion requires:

(a) Attendance and participation in the training hours specified in the employee's PAR curriculum. Employees shall participate in the performance of all physical intervention techniques and mechanical restraints being taught during the training session.

(b) A minimum score of seventy-five percent (75%) on the PAR written examination.

(c) One-hundred percent (100%) satisfactory performance of the techniques specified on the applicable PAR Performance Evaluation form.

(5) To ensure that all employees are properly observed, are able to receive constructive feedback, and are properly evaluated, the instructor to employee ratio, for employees who are actively engaged, shall be no more than 1:8 during the

performance-based segment of a PAR training session. There is no required ratio during the non performance-based segment of a PAR training session.

Specific Authority 985.4055, 985.405 FS. Law Implemented 985.4055(2)(b), (e) FS. History—New _____.

63H-1.010 Cross-Over Training.

(1) A PAR certified employee who crosses over from a program position to a facility position, or vice versa, shall successfully complete all objectives of the PAR certification curriculum applicable to his or her new position which are not duplicative of the PAR certification objectives previously completed by the employee. Such completion must occur within 90 calendar days following the employee's cross-over date. The department shall determine the training and testing required for each cross-over situation.

(2) When a state-operated or contracted facility hires a PAR certified facility employee who was trained under a different PAR Training Plan, a PAR Instructor shall train the employee, and evaluate the employee's performance on any techniques that the employee has not been trained to perform. The employee is not required to re-take the written PAR examination. The PAR Instructor shall use the PAR Performance Evaluation for facility employees. If the employee is unable to perform the new techniques, even after reasonable remediation, the employee shall not be considered PAR certified for purpose of his or her employment in the new facility or program.

(3) When a PAR Performance Evaluation is completed for PAR certification or PAR Instructor certification, a copy shall be provided to the exam administrator at the written examination site. For PAR Train-the-Trainer courses, a copy of the PAR Instructor Skills Evaluation form shall also be provided to the exam administrator.

(a) If the PAR Performance Evaluation or PAR Instructor Skills Evaluation forms cannot be completed prior to the written examination, it shall be submitted to the Assistant Secretary of Staff Development and Training as soon as possible after completion.

(b) The PAR Performance Evaluation shall be submitted for everyone regardless of whether they passed or failed the evaluation or have a Medical Status form.

(4) CJSTC certified employees are governed by Rule 63H-1.016, F.A.C.

Specific Authority 985.4055, 985.405 FS. Law Implemented 985.4055(2)(b) FS. History—New _____.

63H-1.011 Rehired Employee Training.

(1) Employees who resign from their employment with the department or contracted facility or program and are subsequently re-hired shall have their PAR certification reinstated by successfully completing PAR training for facility or program employees, whichever is applicable. This

paragraph is applicable only if the employee has failed to timely and successfully complete the annual in-service training requirement addressed in this section prior to terminating employment.

(a) If an employee is rehired within 12 calendar months of termination and has successfully completed the annual in-service requirements, the employee's PAR Certification is current.

(b) If an employee is rehired after 12 calendar months of termination, the employee must satisfy the following requirements:

1. Attend a minimum of 8 hours of remedial training, and
2. Obtain 100% satisfactory performance of the techniques specified on the employee's PAR Training Plan using the PAR Performance Evaluation.

Specific Authority 985.4055, 985.405 FS. Law Implemented 985.4055(2)(b) FS. History--New _____.

63H-1.012 Annual Training Requirement.

(1) Program employees shall complete a minimum of four (4) hours of annual in-service training. Facility employees shall complete a minimum of eight (8) hours.

(2) The annual in-service training shall include, at a minimum, the following:

(a) A review of this rule, including revisions, and other facility or program PAR administrative procedures.

(b) Instructions on how and when to properly complete the PAR Report.

(c) Practice of all physical intervention techniques checked on the applicable PAR Training Plan and, at a minimum, practice in the use of all mechanical restraints authorized by the facility's PAR Training Plan.

(3) Successful completion of the annual in-service training requires 100 percent attendance and participation in the training program. The training hours do not have to be consecutive. If a facility or program employee fails to successfully complete this annual in-service training within twelve (12) months of their last PAR Training, they will no longer be authorized to use Level 2 or Level 3 Responses, and must attend a minimum of 8 hours of remedial training, to include 100 percent satisfactory performance of the techniques specified on the employee's PAR Training Plan using the PAR Performance Evaluation.

Specific Authority 985.4055, 985.405 FS. Law Implemented 985.4055(2)(b) FS. History--New _____.

63H-1.013 Testing Requirements.

(1) If a candidate fails the PAR written examination, they are only required to attend the remedial classroom training.

(2) PAR Instructors shall conduct a practical examination utilizing the applicable PAR Performance Evaluation to evaluate a facility or program employee's ability to perform

verbal intervention techniques and the physical intervention techniques and mechanical restraints that are specified on the PAR Training Plan.

(a) If a PAR Instructor candidate or facility or program employee fails the PAR Performance Evaluation, the PAR Instructor candidate or employee is considered to only have failed the performance evaluation. Therefore, when remedial training is provided, the PAR Instructor candidate or employee is only required to attend the performance-based segment of the training.

(b) Test candidates shall have no more than three (3) attempts to pass the written exam. Accommodations based upon the Americans with Disabilities Act will be made as necessary.

(c) Test candidates shall adhere to the following schedule for second and third attempts to pass the written exam:

1. The second attempt shall occur no less than 3 calendar days after and no more than 45 calendar days after the first attempt.

2. The third attempt shall occur no less than 21 calendar days after and no more than 45 calendar days after the second attempt.

(3) For annual in-service training, use of the PAR Performance Evaluation is not required.

(4) One PAR Performance Evaluation form shall be used for each attempt that a facility or program employee makes to pass the performance evaluation. The term, "attempt," is described below.

(a) ATTEMPT 1: If an employee fails one (1) to three (3) techniques, the PAR Instructor shall remediate and re-evaluate the employee on the failed techniques. Upon conclusion of the employee's performance of the remediated techniques, this shall be the employee's first attempt at passing the evaluation. If the employee fails to satisfactorily demonstrate the failed techniques after remediation, the employee shall attend remediation on a different date for Attempt 2 and at that time shall be evaluated on the failed techniques. An employee who fails four (4) or more techniques on Attempt 1 shall attend remediation on a different date for Attempt 2 and at that time shall be evaluated on the failed techniques.

(b) ATTEMPT 2: If an employee fails one (1) to three (3) techniques, the PAR Instructor shall remediate and re-evaluate the employees on the failed techniques. Upon conclusion of the employee's performance of the remediated techniques, this shall be the employee's second attempt at passing the evaluation. If the employee fails to satisfactorily demonstrate the failed techniques after remediation, the employee shall attend remediation on a different date for Attempt 3 and at that time shall be evaluated on the failed techniques. An employee who fails four (4) or more techniques on Attempt 2 shall attend remediation on a different date for Attempt 3 and at that time shall be evaluated on the failed techniques.

(c) ATTEMPT 3: If an employee fails one (1) to three (3) techniques, the PAR Instructor shall remediate and re-evaluate the employee on the failed techniques. Upon conclusion of the employee's performance of the remediated techniques, this shall be the employee's third attempt at passing the evaluation. If the employee fails to satisfactorily demonstrate the failed techniques after remediation, the employee is considered to have failed his or her third attempt. An employee who fails four (4) or more techniques on Attempt 3 shall not have an opportunity to receive remediation and is considered to have failed his or her third attempt.

(5) Program employees shall be evaluated, using the PAR Performance Evaluation for Program employees, on all physical intervention techniques that are specified in the PAR Training Plan for Program employees.

(6) State-Operated facility employees, Law Enforcement operated employees and contracted detention facility employees shall be evaluated, using the PAR Performance Evaluation for State-Operated facility employees/Law enforcement operated employees/Contracted Detention Facility employees, on various physical intervention techniques specified on the PAR Training Plan for State-Operated facility employees/Contracted Detention Facility employees, using the following guidelines:

(a) All Stance and Body Movement techniques;

(b) All Countermoves;

(c) The Straight Arm Escort – Extended and Close Positions;

(d) Three (3) Control techniques, as selected by the employee;

(e) Three (3) Takedown techniques, as selected by the employee;

(f) Three Mechanical Restraint techniques, as selected by the employee. The techniques selected shall include front handcuffing and uncuffing, one (1) rear handcuffing and uncuffing technique (standing or prone), and one (1) leg cuffing and uncuffing technique (kneeling position or hands on wall); and

(g) Searches.

(7) Contracted facility employees, shall be evaluated using the PAR Performance Evaluation for Contracted Facility employees, on various physical intervention techniques specified on the employee's PAR Training Plan for Contracted Facility employees, using the following guidelines:

(a) All Stance and Body Movement techniques;

(b) All Countermoves;

(c) One (1) Touch technique, as selected by the employee;

(d) Three (3) Control techniques, as selected by the employee;

(e) Three (3) Takedown techniques, as selected by the employee;

(f) Three Mechanical Restraint techniques, as selected by the employee. The techniques selected shall include one (1) front handcuffing and uncuffing technique, one (1) rear handcuffing and uncuffing technique (standing or prone), and one (1) leg cuffing and uncuffing technique (kneeling position or hands on wall); and

(g) Searches.

Specific Authority 985.4055, 985.405 FS. Law Implemented 985.4055(2)(b) FS. History–New _____.

63H-1.014 Training Instructor Qualifications.

(1) PAR Instructor Candidate requirements:

(a) One year of experience, working full time, in the juvenile justice or related field;

(b) PAR certification;

(c) Criminal Justice Standards & Training Commission Instructor Techniques Workshop (ITW) certified; and

(d) Successful completion of the PAR Train-the-Trainer course. An instructor candidate shall be allowed to attend a PAR Train-the-Trainer course only if he or she has achieved the requirements in paragraphs (a), (b), and (c).

(e) PAR Instructor candidates shall demonstrate proficiency for all physical intervention techniques and mechanical restraints listed on the PAR Instructor Performance Evaluation form. In addition, the Instructor candidate must demonstrate the ability to verbally communicate how the techniques are to be performed. The demonstration shall be evaluated by one Master PAR Instructor and one PAR Instructor.

(f) Satisfactory demonstration of presentation skills using the PAR Instructor Skills Evaluation form. The PAR Instructor Skills Evaluation form (revised 6/01/06) is incorporated by reference, and is available at the department's website (<http://www.djj.state.fl.us>).

(3) A score of 85 percent or higher on the PAR written examination. The instructor candidate shall have two attempts to pass the examination.

(4) One PAR Performance Evaluation for PAR Instructors form shall be used for each attempt that the instructor candidate makes to pass the performance evaluation. The instructor candidate shall have two attempts to pass the evaluation.

(a) If remediation is required, the Master PAR Instructor shall have the discretion to determine whether remediation will be conducted on-site or at a future date. If remediation occurs at a future date, the instructor candidate shall be evaluated, at the second attempt, on all techniques initially evaluated.

(b) If the instructor candidate fails the second attempt, he or she shall not be certified as a PAR Instructor. However, this candidate is eligible to attend the PAR Train-the-Trainer course again, provided all other criteria for becoming a PAR Instructor remain current.

(5) Demonstrations of the physical intervention techniques and presentation skills shall be videotaped. The videotapes shall be submitted to the Assistant Secretary for Staff Development and Training within thirty (30) working days after completion of the evaluations.

Specific Authority 985.4055, 985.405 FS. Law Implemented 985.4055(2)(c) FS. History--New _____.

63H-1.015 Training Instructor Certification Renewal.

(1) PAR instructors must conduct 20 hours of PAR training annually to maintain certification. Failure to meet this requirement will necessitate remedial training conducted by a Master PAR instructor.

(2) Instructors must attend and participate in a 16-hour in-service training program once every four years as conducted by a Master PAR Instructor to include a review of this rule and demonstration of the physical intervention techniques.

Specific Authority 985.4055, 985.405 FS. Law Implemented 985.4055(2)(c) FS. History--New _____.

63H-1.016 Law Enforcement Operations and Partnerships.

(1) All Law Enforcement/Correction/Detention employees must complete, at a minimum, the following training requirements within 90 calendar days of either the employee's hire date or the effective date of this rule, whichever is later:

(a) Direct care employees who are certified correctional, correctional probation or law enforcement officers under Chapter 943, F.S., are to successfully complete PAR crossover training for law enforcement personnel. Successful completion requires:

1. Attendance and participation in a minimum of twenty (20) hours of PAR Training.

2. A minimum score of seventy-five percent (75%) on the written examination.

3. One-hundred percent (100%) satisfactory performance on the techniques specified on the applicable PAR Performance Evaluation form.

(b) Direct care employees who are not certified correctional, correctional probation or law enforcement officers under Chapter 943, F.S., are to be certified in PAR.

(2) CJSTC certified employees and non-CJSTC certified employees shall adhere to the annual training requirements set forth in Rule 63H-1.012, F.A.C., for facility employees.

(4) All Law Enforcement operated facilities or programs shall submit a PAR Training Plan in accordance with Rule 63H-1.004, F.A.C.

(5) Facilities or programs that are required to have PAR certified employees must certify employees within the timeframes set forth herein.

Specific Authority 985.4055, 985.405 FS. Law Implemented 985.4055(2)(d) FS. History--New _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Michael McCaffrey, Advanced and Specialized Training, Bureau of Staff Development and Training, Department of Juvenile Justice

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Eber Brown, Assistant Secretary for Staff Development and Training, Department of Juvenile Justice

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: July 17, 2006

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: July 28, 2006

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Acupuncture

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

64B1-9.005 Definitions

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: Repeal Rule 64B1-9.005, F.A.C.

SUMMARY: Repealing a redundant and outdated rule.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 456.072, 457.104, 457.109, 457.116(1)(b) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 456.072, 457.109, 457.116(1)(b) FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAW.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Pamela E. King, Executive Director, Board of Acupuncture, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C06, Tallahassee, Florida 32399

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

64B1-9.005 Definitions.

Specific Authority 456.072, 457.104, 457.109, 457.116(1)(b) FS. Law Implemented 456.072, 457.109, 457.116(1)(b) FS. History--New 10-15-91, Formerly 21VV-3.002, Repealed _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Board of Acupuncture

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Board of Acupuncture

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: July 19, 2006

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Osteopathic Medicine

RULE NO.: 64B15-14.011
 RULE TITLE: Requirements to be a Qualified Practitioner for completing Risk Assessments and Treatment of Sexual Offenders

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes the development of rules to address the coursework, training, qualifications and experience of physicians to evaluate and treat sex offenders.

SUMMARY: Rules to address the coursework, training, qualifications and experience of physicians to evaluate and treat sex offenders are established.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 947.005(9), 948.001(6), 459.005 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 947.005, 948.30 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAW.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Pamela King, Executive Director, Board of Osteopathic Medicine/MQA, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C06, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3256

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

64B15-14.011 Requirements to be a Qualified Practitioner for completing Risk Assessments and Treatment of Sexual Offenders.

(1) In order to be a qualified practitioner for completing risk assessments for sexual offenders, one must hold an active license under Chapter 459, Florida Statutes, and be specialty board certified or board eligible in psychiatry.

(2) A qualified practitioner under this rule shall possess 55 hours of education from an accredited medical training program or AMA, AOA or ACGME programs, completed 5 years prior to approval as a qualified treatment provider in the following core areas:

- (a) Etiology of sexual deviance;
- (b) Evaluation/risk assessment and treatment of adult and adolescent sexual offenders that have established scientific bases;
- (c) Evaluation/risk assessment and treatment of specialized populations of sexual offenders (i.e. female & developmentally delayed)

- (d) Sexual offenders and relevant DSM-IV diagnosis;
- (e) Safety planning/Family Safety planning;
- (f) Report writing;
- (g) Legal and ethical issues in the evaluation and treatment of sexual offenders;
- (i) Collateral sources;
- (i) Co-morbidity and substance abuse issues
- (j) Relapse prevention;
- (3) Possess 500 hours in the evaluation and treatment of sexual offenders
- (4) A qualified practitioner under this rule must complete 20 hours of biennial continuing education in the assessment, evaluation and treatment of sexual offenders; relapse prevention, experience and training in working with victims; and related legal and ethical issues.

Specific Authority 947.005(9), 948.001(6), 459.005 FS. Law Implemented 947.005, 948.30 FS. History—New _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Board of Osteopathic Medicine
 NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Board of Osteopathic Medicine
 DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: May 18, 2006
 DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: March 10, 2006

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Physical Therapy Practice

RULE NO.: 64B17-3.001
 RULE TITLE: Licensure as a Physical Therapist by Examination

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes the rule amendment to change the scores required for passing the reading comprehension and listening comprehension components of the Test of English as a Foreign Language (TOEFL).

SUMMARY: The scores required for passing the reading comprehension and listening comprehension components of the Test of English as a Foreign Language will be changed.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 486.025(1), 486.031(3) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 456.017, 486.031, 486.051 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAW.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Susan Love, Executive Director, Board of Physical Therapy Practice/MQA, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # C05, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3255

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

64B17-3.001 Licensure as a Physical Therapist by Examination.

Every physical therapist who applies for licensure by examination shall satisfy and demonstrate to the Board that the applicant:

- (1) through (4) No change.
- (5) Has attained and submitted to the Board the following:
 - (a) through (c) No change.

(d) Effective January 1, 2007, evidence of successful completion of a Board approved English proficiency examination if English was not the language of instruction as evidence by a minimum total score of 89 of the TOEFL as well as accompanying minimum scores in the test's four components of: 24 in writing; 26 in speaking; 21 ~~18~~ in reading comprehension; and 18 ~~21~~ in listening comprehension.

- (e) through (f) No change.

Specific Authority 486.025(1), 486.031(3) FS. Law Implemented 456.017, 486.031, 486.051 FS. History--New 8-6-84, Amended 6-2-85, Formerly 21M-7.20, Amended 5-18-86, Formerly 21M-7.020, 21MM-3.001, Amended 3-1-94, Formerly 61F11-3.001, Amended 12-22-94, 4-10-96, Formerly 59Y-3.001, Amended 12-30-98, 1-23-03, 4-9-06,_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Board of Physical Therapy Practice

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Board of Physical Therapy Practice

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: May 11, 2006

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: June 2, 2006

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Physical Therapy Practice

RULE NO.: 64B17-4.001
 RULE TITLE: Licensure as a Physical Therapist Assistant by Examination

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes the rule amendment to change the scores required for passing the reading comprehension and listening comprehension components of the Test of English as a Foreign Language (TOEFL).

SUMMARY: The scores required for passing the reading comprehension and listening comprehension components of the Test of English as a Foreign Language will be changed.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 486.025, 486.102 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 456.017, 486.102(3), 486.104 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAW.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Susan Love, Executive Director, Board of Physical Therapy Practice/MQA, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C05, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3255

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

64B17-4.001 Licensure as a Physical Therapist Assistant by Examination.

Every physical therapist who applies for licensure by examination shall satisfy and demonstrate to the Board that the applicant:

- (1) through (4) No change.
- (5) Has attained and submitted to the Board the following:
 - (a) No change.

(b) Effective January 1, 2007, evidence of successful completion of a Board approved English proficiency examination if English was not the language of instruction as evidence by a minimum total score of 89 of the TOEFL as well as accompanying minimum scores in the test's four components of: 24 in writing; 26 in speaking; 21 ~~18~~ in reading comprehension; and 18 ~~21~~ in listening comprehension.

- (c) through (d) No change.

Specific Authority 486.025, 486.102 FS. Law Implemented 456.017, 486.102(3), 486.104 FS. History--New 8-6-84, Amended 6-2-85, Formerly 21M-10.20, Amended 5-18-86, Formerly 21M-10.020, 21MM-4.001, Amended 3-1-94, Formerly 61F11-4.001, Amended 12-22-94, 4-10-96, Formerly 59Y-4.001, Amended 1-23-03, 4-9-06,_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Board of Physical Therapy Practice

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Board of Physical Therapy Practice

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: May 11, 2006

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: June 2, 2006

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Podiatric Medicine

RULE NO.: 64B18-12.011
 RULE TITLE: Assessment Fees

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes the new rule to establish and clarify the one time assessment fee on all podiatric physicians.

SUMMARY: The new rule is to establish and clarify the one time assessment fee on all Podiatric physicians.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 456.025(5), 461.005 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 456.025, 461.005 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAW.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Joe Baker, Jr., Executive Director, Board of Podiatric Medicine/MQA, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # C07, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3257

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

64B18-12.011 Assessment Fees.

In order to maintain fiscal integrity, the Board is assessing a one time assessment fee on all podiatric physicians of \$375.00, payable by March 31, 2007.

Specific Authority 456.025(5), 461.005 FS. Law Implemented 456.025, 461.005 FS. History--New _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
 Board of Podiatric Medicine

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Podiatric Medicine

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: March 3, 2006

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: May 26, 2006

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Podiatric Medicine

RULE NO.: 64B18-14.002
 RULE TITLE: Penalties

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes to add language clarifying penalties for termination from impaired practitioner treatment program and for failure to comply with a lawful order of Board suspension.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule amendment is to add language clarifying penalties for termination from impaired practitioner treatment programs and for failure to comply with a lawful order of Board suspension.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 456.072, 456.072(1),(qq), 456.073(3), 456.079, 461.003, 461.005, 461.012, 461.013 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 456.033, 456.053, 456.062, 456.063, 456.067, 456.072, 456.073(3), 456.079, 461.012, 461.013 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAW.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Joe Baker, Jr., Executive Director, Board of Podiatric Medicine/MQA, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # C07, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3257

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

64B18-14.002 Penalties

(1) through (2)(qq) No change.

(ss) Termination from impaired practitioner treatment program. The Board shall impose a penalty of suspension until individual proves ability to practice with reasonable skill and safety.

(tt) Failure to comply with a lawful order of the Board. The Board shall impose a penalty of suspension until compliance and payment of fine from \$500.00 to \$1,000.00.

Specific Authority 456.072, 456.072(1)(qq), 456.073(3), 456.079, 461.003, 461.005, 461.013 FS. Law Implemented 456.033, 456.053, 456.062, 456.063, 456.067, 456.072, 456.073(3), 456.079, 461.012, 461.013 FS. History--New 11-21-79, Amended 8-31-81, Formerly 21T-14.02, Amended 10-14-86, 12-8-88, 1-19-92, 4-26-93, Formerly 21T-14.002, 61F12-14.002, Amended 2-25-96, 5-29-97, Formerly 59Z-14.002, Amended 11-17-97, 8-24-00, 8-13-02, 4-26-04,_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
 Board of Podiatric Medicine

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Board of Podiatric Medicine

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: March 3, 2006

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: May 26, 2006

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Podiatric Medicine

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

64B18-14.010 Citations

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes the rule amendment to add language clarifying citations for failure to pay the one time assessment fee.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule amendment is to add language clarifying citations for failure to pay the one time assessment fee.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 456.077, 461.005 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 456.057, 456.077, 461.012, 461.013 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAW.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Joe Baker, Jr., Executive Director, Board of Podiatric Medicine/MQA, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # C07, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3257

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

64B18-14.010 Citations.

(1) through(3)(j) No change.

Violations	Penalties
------------	-----------

<u>(h) Failure to pay the one time assessment fee of \$375.00</u>	<u>Citation fine of \$500.00 plus payment of cost and the \$375.00 assessment fee.</u>
---	--

(4) through (5) No change.

Specific Authority 456.077, 461.005 FS. Law Implemented 456.057, 456.077, 461.012, 461.013 FS. History–New 1-19-92, Formerly 21T-14.010, 61F12-14.010, Amended 3-26-95, 2-25-96, 6-17-97, Formerly 59Z-14.010, Amended 11-23-00, 8-13-02, 7-26-04, _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Board of Podiatric Medicine

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Board of Podiatric Medicine

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: March 3, 2006

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: May 26, 2006

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Podiatric Medicine

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

64B18-17.005 Continuing Education Requirements After Initial Licensure

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes the new rule to clarify the requirements for continuing education in the area of Risk Management after initial licensure.

SUMMARY: The proposed new rule is to clarify the requirements for continuing education in the area of Risk Management after initial licensure.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 465.013, 456.033, 461.005, 461.007(3) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 465.013, 461.005, 461.007(3) FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAW.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Joe Baker, Jr., Executive Director, Board of Podiatric Medicine/MQA, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # C07, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3257

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

64B18-17.005 Continuing Education Requirements After Initial Licensure.

During the first biennium after initial licensure, practitioners are required to obtain five hours of continuing education in the subject area of risk management by attending one full day of a meeting of the Board of Podiatric Medicine at which disciplinary hearings are conducted.

Specific Authority 465.013, 456.033, 461.005, 461.007(3) FS. Law Implemented 465.013, 461.005, 461.007(3) FS. History–New _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Board of Podiatric Medicine

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Board of Podiatric Medicine

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: March 3, 2006

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: May 26, 2006

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Speech-Language Pathology and Audiology

RULE NO.: 64B20-9.006 **RULE TITLE:** Recordkeeping and Retention
PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes the development of a rule to address the appropriate standards for Recordkeeping and Retention.
SUMMARY: The Board proposed a rule to define and specify the appropriate standards for Recordkeeping and Retention.
SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 468.1135(4), 468.1225(1), (2), (3), (4), (5), (6), (7), 468.1245 (1), (2), (3), 468.1246 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 468.1135, 468.1225, 468.1245, 468.1246 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAW.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Pamela King, Executive Director, Board of Speech-Language Pathology and Audiology, MQA, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C06, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3258

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

64B20-9.006 Recordkeeping and Retention.

(1) Speech-Language Pathologists. Each licensee who provides speech-language pathology services, as set forth in Section 468.1125(7), F.S., to individuals or groups, shall create and maintain, for a period of 4 years, records and documentation of:

- (a) Each individual to whom services were provided;
- (b) If a group, the names of the individuals in the group to whom services were provided;
- (c) A list of the specific services provided; and
- (d) The date that the specific services were provided.

(2) Audiologists.

(a) Each licensee who provides audiology services, as set forth in Section 468.1125(6), F.S., other than the fitting or selling of a hearing aid, to individuals or groups, shall create and maintain, for a period of 4 years, records and documentation of:

- 1. Each individual to whom services were provided;
- 2. If a group, the names of the individuals in the group to whom services were provided;
- 3. A list of the specific services provided; and
- 4. The date that the specific services were provided.

(b) Each licensee who fits and sells a hearing aid shall create and maintain, for a period of 4 years, records and documentation of:

- 1. Any pure tone audiometric testing conducted by air or bone;
- 2. Any testing to determine speech reception thresholds, speech discrimination, and listening and loudness levels;
- 3. The medical clearance or waiver of medical clearance required by Section 468.1225(4), F.S.;
- 4. When applicable, the waiver required by Section 468.1225(6), F.S., for audiometric testing not conducted in a certified testing room;
- 5. The receipt for the sale of hearing aids required by Section 468.1245(2), F.S.; and
- 6. Notification to the buyer of written notice of the 30-day trial period and money-back guarantee required by Section 468.1246, F.S.

Specific Authority 468.1135(4), 468.1225(1), (2), (3), (4), (5), (6), (7), 468.1245(1), (2), (3), 468.1246 FS. Law Implemented 468.1135, 468.1225, 468.1245, 468.1246 FS. History—New _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Board of Speech- Language Pathology and Audiology
NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Board of Speech-Language Pathology and Audiology
DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: May 26, 2006
DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: June16, 2006

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Council of Licensed Midwifery

RULE NO.: 64B24-5.004 **RULE TITLE:** Retired Status License
PURPOSE AND EFFECT: To update the rule.
SUMMARY: This rule amendment corrects the spelling of license and eliminates the requirement that to reactivate a license after 5 years the person must pass an examination.
SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 456.036(15), 467.005 FS.
LAW IMPLEMENTED: 456.036(2), (4), (8), (12) FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAW.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Pamela King, Executive Director, Council of Licensed Midwifery, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C06, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3256

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

64B24-5.004 Retired Status License.

(1) No change.

(2) A licensee may reactivate a retired status license by:

(a) Paying the renewal fee for an active status license ~~license~~ for each biennial licensure period in which the licensee was in retired status and the reactivation fee as established in Rule Chapter 64B24-3, F.A.C.;

(b) No change.

(3) For a license in retired status over five years, the licensee also must:

~~(a) Retake and pass the examination designated in Rule 64B24-2.003, F.A.C.;~~

(b) through (c) renumbered (a) through (b) No change.

Specific Authority 456.036(15), 467.005 FS. Law Implemented 456.036(2), (4), (8), (12) FS. History—New 5-4-06, Amended.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Pamela King

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Lucy Gee

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: June 9, 2006

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: June 30, 2006

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Respiratory Care

RULE NO.: 64B32-4.002
RULE TITLE: Reactivation of Retired Status License

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes the new rule to provide language for reactivation of retired status licenses.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule will provide language for reactivation of retired status licenses.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No statement of Estimate Regulatory Cost was prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this Notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 456.025(1), 456.036(7), (9), 456.065, 468.353(1), 468.364 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 456.025(1), 456.036, 456.065, 468.364 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAW.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Susie Love, Executive Director, Board of Respiratory Care, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C05, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3255

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

64B32-4.002 Reactivation of Retired Status License.

(1) A retired status licensee for less than five years may change to active status provided:

(a) A licensee pay any renewal fees imposed on an active status license for all biennial licensure periods during which the licensee was on retired status.

(b) A licensee must provide evidence of licensure as either a Certified Respiratory Therapist (CRT) or a Registered Respiratory Therapist (RRT), pursuant to Section 468.358, Florida Statutes.

(c) A licensee must meet the continuing educational requirements for Rule 64B32-6.001, F.A.C., for each biennium the licensee was in retired status.

(d) A licensee must attend HIV and medical errors courses pursuant to Rule 64B32-6.007, F.A.C.

(2) A retired status licensee for five years or more may change to active status provided:

(a) A licensee pay any renewal fees imposed on an active status license for all biennial licensure periods during which the licensee was on retired status.

(b) A licensee must provide evidence of licensure as either a Certified Respiratory Therapist (CRT) or a Registered Respiratory Therapist (RRT), pursuant to Section 468.358, Florida Statutes.

(c) A licensee must meet the continuing educational requirements for Rule 64B32-6.001, F.A.C., for each biennium the licensee was in retired status.

(d) A licensee is required to provide evidence of attendance of a Board-approved comprehensive review course, within six months prior to reactivation of license, in order to ensure that he or she has the sufficient skills to re-enter the profession.

(e) A licensee must attend HIV and medical errors courses pursuant to Rule 64B32-6.007, F.A.C.

(3) Board-approved comprehensive review course means any curriculum topic required by the Commission on Accreditation for Respiratory Care (COARC).

Specific Authority 456.036(7), (9), 468.353(1) FS. Law Implemented 456.036(7), (9) FS. History—New _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Board of Respiratory Care
NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED
THE PROPOSED RULE: Board of Respiratory Care
DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY
HEAD: April 7, 2006
DATE NOTICED OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT
PUBLISHED IN FAW: February 17, 2006

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES

Economic Self-Sufficiency Program

RULE NO.: 65A-4.201
RULE TITLE: Hardship Extensions and Exemptions to Cash Assistance Time Limit

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: This rule amendment will provide clarification of the hearing rights for individuals who have been denied a hardship extension or exemption to the 48-month lifetime limit on the receipt of Temporary Cash Assistance (TCA). The time frame to provide for the continuation or reinstatement of benefits during the appeal process will be aligned with federal regulations in 45 CFR 205.10.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule amendment clarifies the timeframe for requesting the continuation or reinstatement of TCA benefits during the appeal process for an individual who has been denied a hardship extension or exemption to the 48-month lifetime limit on receipt of TCA. The rule amendment provides for the continuation or reinstatement of TCA benefits, in accordance with 45 CFR 205.10, if the request for a hearing is filed within 10 days of the mailing date on the notice of adverse action.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 414.45 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 414.105 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD):

DATE AND TIME: August 31, 2006, 1:30 p.m.

PLACE: 1317 Winewood Blvd., Bldg. 3, Room 455, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0700

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Eileen Schilling, Program Administrator, Economic Self-Sufficiency, 1317 Winewood Boulevard, Bldg. 3, Room 414, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0700, telephone (850)414-5643

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

65A-4.201 Hardship Extensions and Exemptions to Cash Assistance Time Limit.

(1) through (10) No change.

(11) Hearing rights. Participants whose cash assistance is terminated because they have reached their lifetime limit and have been denied a hardship extension or exemption may request a fair hearing in accordance with Chapter 65-2, F.A.C., Part IV, Hearings and 45 CFR 205.10. Cash assistance may be continued or reinstated, in accordance with 45 CFR 205.10, when the request for a hearing is received within 10 calendar days from the mailing date of the notice of adverse case action. The assistance group must repay cash assistance if the hearing decision is in favor of the department.

(12) No change.

Specific Authority 414.45 FS. Law Implemented 414.105, FS. History–New 9-28-98, Amended 5-27-01, 2-22-06,_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Lonna Cichon, Government Operations Consultant II
NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED
THE PROPOSED RULE: Jennifer Lange
DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY
HEAD: July 7, 2006
DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT
PUBLISHED IN FAW: February 10, 2006

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES

Family Safety and Preservation Program

RULE NOS.:
65C-10.001 Definitions
65C-10.002 Reports of Child Abuse and Neglect
65C-10.003 Child Protective Investigations
65C-10.004 Medical Screening and Medical Examination of Children Alleged to be Abuse or Neglected
65C-10.005 Institutional Child Protective Investigations
65C-10.006 Criminal and Abuse History Checks

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: This rule will be replaced with proposed Rule Chapter 65C-29, Protective Investigations.

SUMMARY: This rule will be replaced with proposed Rule Chapter 65C-29, Protective Investigations.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 415.514, 39.012, 39.0121 FS.
LAW IMPLEMENTED: 415.502, 415.503, 415.504, 415.505, 415.5055, 415.507, 415.509, 39.01, 39.012, 39.401, 39.402, 39.407 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THIS NOTICE, A PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: Friday, August 18, 2006, 2:30 p.m. – 3:00 p.m.

PLACE: Building 4, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Tallahassee, FL
THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULES IS: Maria Leon, Building 6, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Tallahassee, FL 32399, (850)488-8762

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULES IS:

65C-10.001 Definitions.

Specific Authority 415.514 FS. Law Implemented 415.503, 39.01, 39.012 FS. History–New 7-14-91, Amended 7-6-92, 10-26-93, Formerly 10M-29.002, Repealed.

65C-10.002 Reports of Child Abuse and Neglect.

Specific Authority 415.514 FS. Law Implemented 415.502, 415.504, 415.505 FS. History–New 7-14-91, Amended 7-6-92, 10-26-93, Formerly 10M-20.003, Repealed.

65C-10.003 Child Protective Investigations.

Specific Authority 39.012, 415.514 FS. Law Implemented 415.505, 415.504(4)(c), 39.401, 39.402(1), (2), (3) FS. History–New 7-14-91, Amended 7-6-92, 10-26-93, Formerly 10M-29.004, Repealed.

65C-10.004 Medical Screening and Medical Examination of Children Alleged to be Abused or Neglected.

Specific Authority 415.514 FS. Law Implemented 415.5055, 415.507, 39.407 FS. History–New 7-14-91, Amended 7-6-92, 10-26-93, Formerly 10M-29.005, Repealed.

65C-10.005 Institutional Child Protective Investigations.

Specific Authority 415.514 FS. Law Implemented 415.505(1), (2)(a)-(d) FS. History–New 7-14-91, Amended 7-6-92, 10-26-93, Formerly 10M-29.007, Repealed.

65C-10.006 Criminal and Abuse History Checks.

Specific Authority 415.514 FS. Law Implemented 415.509(1)(a)3, FS. History–New 7-14-91, Amended 7-6-92, 10-26-93, Formerly 10M-29.016, Repealed.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Pat Badland

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Beth Englander

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: July 18, 2005

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES

Family Safety and Preservation Program

RULE NOS.:	RULE TITLES:
65C-11.001	Definitions
65C-11.002	Ongoing Assessment and Documentation Requirements
65C-11.003	Relative Placements
65C-11.004	Non-relative Placements
65C-11.005	Termination of Supervision

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: This rule will be replaced with proposed Rule Chapter 65C-30, General Child Welfare Provisions and proposed Rule Chapter 65C-28, Out-of-Home Care.

SUMMARY: This rule will be replaced with proposed Rule Chapter 65C-30, General Child Welfare Provisions and proposed Rule Chapter 65C-28, Out-of-Home Care.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 39.012, 39.0121, 409.026(8), 415.514 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 39.01, 39.401(3)(a), 39.403(2), 39.409(2), 39.41(1)(a)1., 2., 3., 7., (8), 39.441(2), 39.442(a)1., 409.145(1),(2), 409.175(9), (10), 415.503, 415.504, 415.505(1)(f), 827.04 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THIS NOTICE, A PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: Friday, August 18, 2006, 10:30 a.m. – 11:00 a.m.

PLACE: Building 4, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Tallahassee, FL
THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING TO THE PROPOSED RULES IS: Linda Johns, Building 6, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Tallahassee, FL 32399, (850)414-9982

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULES IS:

65C-11.001 Definitions.

Specific Authority 39.012, 409.026(8), 415.514 FS. Law Implemented 39.01, 39.403(2), 39.209(2), 39.41(1)(a), 39.441(2), 39.442(2)(a)1., 409.145(1), (2), 415.503, 415.504, 415.505(1)(f), 827.05 FS. History–New 5-26-92, Amended 1-18-94, Formerly 10M-5.008, Repealed.

65C-11.002 Ongoing Assessment and Documentation Requirements.

Specific Authority 39.012, 409.026(8), 415.514 FS. Law Implemented 39.403(2), 39.409(2), 39.41(1)(a), 39.441(2), 39.442(2)(a)1., 409.145(1), (2), 415.505(1)(f) FS. History–New 5-26-92, Amended 1-18-94, Formerly 10M-5.023, Repealed.

65C-11.003 Relative Placements.

Specific Authority 39.012, 409.026(8), 415.514 FS. Law Implemented 39.41(1)(a)1.7., 39.41(1)(a)1., 2., 3., 7., 409.145(1), (2), 415.505(1)(f) FS. History–New 5-26-92, Amended 1-18-94, Formerly 10M-5.032, Repealed.

65C-11.004 Non-relative Placements.

Specific Authority 39.012, 409.026(8), 415.514 FS. Law Implemented 39.401(3)(a), 7., 409.145(1), (2), 409.175(9), (10), 415.505(1)(f) FS. History–New 5-26-92, Amended 1-18-94, Formerly 10M-5.033, Repealed.

65C-11.005 Termination of Supervision.

Specific Authority 39.012, 409.026(8), 415.514 FS. Law Implemented 39.403(2), 39.409(2), 39.41(1)(a), 39.41(8), 39.441(2), 39.442(2)(a)1., 39.442(7), 409.145(1), (2), 415.505(1)(f) FS. History–New 5-26-92, Amended 1-18-94, Formerly 10M-5.040, Repealed.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Pat Badland

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Beth Englander

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: July 18, 2005

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES

Family Safety and Preservation Program

RULE NOS.:	RULE TITLES:
65C-12.001	Definitions
65C-12.002	Health Screenings and Assessments
65C-12.003	Medical Treatment
65C-12.004	Ongoing Health Care
65C-12.005	Medicaid Eligibility Procedures
65C-12.006	Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services for Children
65C-12.007	Placement Procedures
65C-12.008	Case Supervision Responsibilities
65C-12.009	Voluntary Placements
65C-12.010	Central Placement Authority
65C-12.011	Shelter Audits
65C-12.012	Monitoring of Emergency Shelters

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: This rule will be replaced with proposed Rule Chapter 65C-29, Protective Investigations and proposed Rule Chapter 65C-30, General Child Welfare Provisions.

SUMMARY: This rule will be replaced with proposed Rule Chapter 65C-29, Protective Investigations and proposed Rule Chapter 65C-30, General Child Welfare Provisions.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 39.012, 39.0121, 409.026(8), 415.514 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 39.01, 39.40(3), (4), 39.402, 39.403(2)(b), 39.404(3), 39.407, 39.408, 409.145(1)(d), (2)(a), 409.165(1), 409.175(2), 409.903(4), 415.503, 415.505(1)(f)(3), 415.504(4)(c)1.i., 415.505(1)(b)10., 415.508 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: August 18, 2006, 11:00 a.m. – 11:30 a.m.

PLACE: Building 4, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Tallahassee, FL

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULES IS: Linda Johns, Building 6, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Tallahassee, FL 32399, (850)414-9982

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULES IS:

65C-12.001 Definitions.

Specific Authority 39.012, 409.026(8), 415.514 FS. Law Implemented 39.01, 39.40(3), (4), 39.402, 39.403(2)(b), 39.404(3), 39.407, 39.408, 409.145(1)(d), (2)(a), 409.165(1), 409.175(2), 415.503, 415.505(1)(f)(3) FS. History–New 5-26-92, Formerly 10M-41.004, Repealed.

65C-12.002 Health Screenings and Assessments.

Specific Authority 39.012 FS. Law Implemented 39.407 FS. History–New 5-26-92, Formerly 10M-41.007, Repealed.

65C-12.003 Medical Treatment.

Specific Authority 39.012 FS. Law Implemented 39.407 FS. History–New 5-26-92, Amended 12-25-96, Formerly 10M-41.008, Repealed.

65C-12.004 Ongoing Health Care.

Specific Authority 39.012 FS. Law Implemented 39.407 FS. History–New 5-26-92, Amended 12-25-96, Formerly 10M-41.009, Repealed.

65C-12.005 Medicaid Eligibility Procedures.

Specific Authority 409.026(8) FS. Law Implemented 409.903(4) FS. History–New 5-26-92, Formerly 10M-41.010, Repealed.

65C-12.006 Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services for Children.

Specific Authority 39.012 FS. Law Implemented 39.407 FS. History–New 5-26-92, Formerly 10M-41.011, Repealed.

65C-12.007 Placement Procedures.

Specific Authority 39.012, 415.514 FS. Law Implemented 39.402, 415.504(4)(c)1.i., 415.505(1)(b)10., 415.508 FS. History–New 5-26-92, Formerly 10M-41.013, Repealed.

65C-12.008 Case Supervision Responsibilities.

Specific Authority 39.012, 409.026(8) FS. Law Implemented 39.402, 409.145(1)(d), (2)(a), 409.165(1) FS. History–New 5-26-92, Amended 12-25-92, Formerly 10M-41.015, Repealed.

65C-12.009 Voluntary Placements.

Specific Authority 39.012, 415.514 FS. Law Implemented 39.403(2)(b), 415.505(1)(f)3. FS. History–New 5-26-92, Formerly 10M-41.019, Repealed.

65C-12.010 Central Placement Authority.

Specific Authority 409.026(8) FS. Law Implemented 409.145(1)(d), (2)(a), 409.165(1) FS. History–New 5-26-92, Formerly 10M-41.029, Repealed.

65C-12.011 Shelter Audits.

Specific Authority 409.026(8) FS. Law Implemented 409.145(1)(d), (2)(a), 409.165(1) FS. History–New 5-26-92, Formerly 10M-41.022, Repealed.

65C-12.012 Monitoring of Emergency Shelters.

Specific Authority 409.026(8) FS. Law Implemented 409.145(1)(d), (2)(a), 409.165(1) FS. History–New 5-26-92, Amended 12-25-96, Formerly 10M-41.024, Repealed.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Pat Badland

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Beth Englander

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: July 18, 2005

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES

Family Safety and Preservation Program

RULE NO.: 65C-16.008
 RULE TITLE: Dispute Resolutions and Appeals

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: Pursuant to Department of Children and Family Services v. I.B. and D.B., 891 So.2d 1168 (1st DCA 2005), this Rule is invalid. Therefore, the rule must be amended to delete subsection (2).

SUMMARY: Pursuant to Department of Children and Family Services v. I.B. and D.B., 891 So.2d 1168 (1st DCA 2005), this Rule is invalid. Therefore, the rule must be amended to delete subsection (2).

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 120.57, 120.68, 409.145 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 120.68, 409.145 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THIS NOTICE, A PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: Friday, August 18, 2006, 1:00 p.m. – 2:00 p.m.

PLACE: 1317 Winewood Blvd., Bldg. 4, Tallahassee, FL

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Kim Grosdidier, Building 6, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Tallahassee, FL 32399, (850)922-5055

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

65C-16.008 Dispute Resolutions and Appeals.

~~(1) No change.~~

~~(2) Adoptive applicants do not have the right to appeal the department's decision on the selection of an adoptive home for a particular child.~~

Specific Authority 120.57, 120.68, 409.026(8), 409.145 FS. Law Implemented 120.68, 409.145 FS. History–New 5-20-91, Formerly 10M-8.00514, Amended 4-19-94, 7-18-95, Formerly 10M-8.0054, Amended 8-19-03, _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Pat Badland

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Beth Englander

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: July 18, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: February 3, 2006

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES

Family Safety and Preservation Program

RULE NOS.:	RULE TITLES:
65C-20.008	Application
65C-20.009	Staffing Requirements
65C-20.010	Health Related Requirements
65C-20.011	Health Records
65C-20.012	Enforcement
65C-20.013	Large Family Child Care Homes (LFCC)

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The proposed amendments by the Child Care Program Office (CCPO) of the Florida Department of Children and Families (DCF) to F.A.C. Chapter 65C-20, F.A.C., are necessary for the uniform and proper administration and enforcement of State of Florida child care training and licensure policies and procedures.

The granting of rule writing authority to the CCPO of all Child Development Associate Equivalency (CDAE) programs by the legislature in 2004 as well as the statewide Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten (VPK) initiative in 2005, warrant the amendments to the rule in the area of child care personnel training in order to provide clarification and unwavering guidance to the public on the "staff credential" policy required by the State in large family child care homes.

The rule amendments in the area of child care licensing are necessary for the clarification of policies and procedures relating to child safety and health issues and to preserve the public welfare generally.

SUMMARY: Child Care Standards.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 402.302, 402.305 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 402.302, 402.305 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACES SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THESE HEARINGS WILL NOT BE HELD):

DATE AND TIME: August 28, 2006, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Room 361A, Bldg. 6, 3rd Floor, Department of Children and Families, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0700

DATE AND TIME: August 28, 2006, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Room 123, Department of Children and Families, 2295 Victoria Ave., Fort Myers, FL 33901

DATE AND TIME: August 28, 2006, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Room 148, 1st Floor, Department of Children and Families, 210 N. Palmetto Ave., Daytona Beach, FL 32114

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULES IS: Carrie Pafford, Government Operations Consultant II, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Building 6, Room 388, Tallahassee, FL 32399, (850)488-4900

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULES IS:

65C-20.008 Application.

(1) Application for a license or for renewal of a license to operate a family day care home ~~must shall~~ be made on CF-FSP Form 5133, ~~April Feb.~~ 2006~~4~~, Application for a License to Operate a Family Day Care Home, which is incorporated ~~herein~~ by reference, ~~CF-FSP Form 5133 may can~~ be obtained from the licensing authority or ~~on by going to~~ the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare/information.

~~(2) For the purpose of issuing a license, any out-of-state criminal offense, which if committed in Florida, would constitute a disqualifying felony offense, shall be treated as a disqualifying felony offense for screening purposes under this rule.~~

~~(2)(3) A completed CF-FSP Form 5133 application for renewal of an annual license must be submitted to the licensing authority at least 45 days prior to the expiration date of the current license to ensure that a lapse of licensure does not occur. The renewal application and required forms may be obtained from the licensing authority.~~

~~(3)(4) An submitted CF-FSP Form 5133 application will not be considered complete until the licensing authority receives proof of background screening clearance on the operator/applicant of the family day care home and the operator/applicant provides proof to the licensing authority, that the screening materials have been submitted on all other household members who are subject to background screening. A screening conducted under this rule is valid for five (5) years, at which time a statewide re-screening must be conducted. The 5 year re-screening must include, at a minimum, statewide criminal records checks through the Florida Department of Law Enforcement and a local criminal records check. In addition, the operator/applicant must be re-screened following a break in operation of the family day care home which exceeds 90 days. A person in this category must undergo the same level of screening which was required at the time of initial operation of the family day care home. If operator/applicant takes a leave of absence, such as maternity leave, extended sick leave, etc., re-screening is not required unless the 5 year re-screening has come due during the leave of absence. An employment history check for the previous two years at a minimum, which must include at least the last three jobs, is also required as part of background screening. An employment history check conducted under this rule, shall include not only confirmation of employment dates from~~

~~previous job(s), but may also include position held and job performance. Additionally, an Affidavit of Good Moral Character, CF-FSP 1649, Aug. 04, which is incorporated by reference, must be completed annually for all operators/applicants. CF-FSP 1649 may be obtained from the licensing authority or by accessing the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare/information.~~

(a) An employment history check is required as part of background screening, must include the previous two (2) years and must be maintained in the department's licensing file.

1. An employment history check conducted under this rule shall include the applicant's position description, confirmation of employment dates from previous job(s), and level of job performance.

2. CF-FSP Form 1649, September 2005, An Affidavit of Good Moral Character, which is incorporated by reference, must be completed for all operators/applicants and all adult household members annually or in accordance with local licensing agency compliance and must be maintained in the department's licensing file. CF-FSP 1649 may be obtained from the licensing authority or on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare.

3. For the purpose of issuing a license, any out-of-state criminal offense, which if committed in Florida would constitute a disqualifying felony offense, shall be treated as a disqualifying felony offense for screening purposes under this rule.

a. A screening conducted under this rule is valid for five (5) years, at which time a five (5) year re-screen must be conducted.

1. The five (5) year re-screen is required for the operator/applicant and all other household members, including juveniles and substitutes, and must be maintained in the department's licensing file.

2. The five (5) year re-screen must include, at a minimum, statewide criminal records checks through the Florida Department of Law Enforcement and a local criminal records check.

3. An operator/applicant must be re-screened following a break in operation of the family day care home that exceeds 90 days. A person in this category must undergo the same level of screening that was required at the time of initial operation of the family day care home. If operator/applicant takes a leave of absence, such as maternity leave, extended sick leave, etc., re-screening is not required unless the five (5) year re-screen has come due during the leave of absence.

Specific Authority 402.313 FS. Law Implemented 402.313 FS. History--New 7-2-98, Amended 7-13-03, 9-12-04, _____.

65C-20.009 Staffing Requirements.

(1) Definitions.

(a) "Active" refers to the status of a candidate's awarded credential or certification in which requirements have been successfully met.

(b) "Early Childhood Education" refers to coursework, certification, a credential or degree that specializes in children ages birth through eight (8).

(c) "Florida Child Care Professional Credential (FCCPC)," pursuant to Section 402.305(3)(b), F.S., is a department approved training program that consists of a minimum of 120 hours of early childhood instruction, 480 contact hours with children ages birth through eight (8) and at least two (2) methods of formal assessment that offers two (2) areas of certification: "Birth Through Five (formerly the department approved CDA Equivalency training programs)" and "School-Age (formerly the Florida School-Age Certification)." A list of approved and recognized FCCPC programs may be obtained on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare.

(d) "National Early Childhood Credential (NECC)" pursuant to Section 402.305(3)(c), F.S., is an early childhood credential approved by the department and recognized by licensing authorities in at least five (5) states that incorporates 120 hours of early childhood instruction, 480 contact hours with children ages birth through eight (8) and includes at least two (2) methods of formal assessment. This includes the Child Development Associate (CDA) credential issued by the Council for Professional Recognition in Washington, DC. A list of approved and recognized NECC programs may be obtained on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare.

(e) "Training Transcript" is the electronic documentation of statutorily mandated training and staff credential qualifications for child care personnel. Training transcripts may be obtained on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare.

(f) "Weighted score" means a scaled score, rather than a percentage score, based on the difficulty of the exam and determined by competency exam professionals in consultation with subject matter experts.

~~(2)(4) Personnel.~~

(a) Operator. The family day care home license shall be issued in the name of the operator who must be at least 18 years of age and a resident of the family home. ~~In the event of rental or leased property, the operator shall be the individual who occupies the residence.~~ The operator of a family day care home may not work outside of the home during the hours ~~when~~ the family day care home is operating. ~~In the event of rental or leased property the operator shall be the individual who occupies the residence.~~

(b) Substitutes. There shall be a written plan to provide at least one (1) other competent adult, who must be at least 18 years of age, to be available as a ~~to~~ substitute for the operator on a temporary or emergency basis. This plan shall include the

name, address and telephone number of the designated substitute. Substitutes may not work over 40 hours per month on average during a 12 ~~twelve~~ month period in any single home for which they have been identified as the designated substitute.

(c) No person shall be an operator, substitute or employee in a family day care home while using, or ~~who is~~ under the influence of narcotics, alcohol, or other drugs ~~that, which~~ impair ~~an individual's~~ ~~their~~ ability to provide supervision and safe child care, ~~shall be an operator or substitute.~~

(3)(2) Staff Training.

(a) Prior to licensure and prior to caring for children, all family day care home operators and substitutes who work 40 hours or more per month on average during a 12 month period must: ~~successfully complete the Department of Children and Family Services' 30 clock-hour Family Child Care Home training, as evidenced by passage of a competency based examination with a score of seventy (70) or better. Competency examinations will be offered by the Department of Children and Family Services or its designated representative. Prior to attending the training, Family Day Care Home operators have one opportunity, if they choose, to exempt from the Department of Children and Family Services' 30 clock-hour Family Child Care Home training module by successfully completing competency examinations with a score of seventy (70) or better. All family day care home operators who have successfully completed the mandatory 30 clock-hour Family Child Care Home training prior to the availability of the competency examinations will not be required to complete the competency based testing.~~

1. Successfully complete the Department of Children and Family Services' 30 clock-hour Family Child Care Home training, as evidenced by successful completion of a competency based examination(s) offered by the Department of Children and Family Services or its designated representative with a weighted score of 70 or better. Family day care home operators who successfully completed the mandatory 30 clock-hour Family Child Care Home training prior to January 1, 2004 are not required to fulfill the competency examination requirement. Beginning July 1, 2006, the 30 clock-hour Family Child Care Home training will be replaced by five (5) individual training courses which total 30 clock-hours of training: Family Child Care Home Rules and Regulations; Health, Safety and Nutrition; Identifying and Reporting Child Abuse and Neglect; Child Growth and Development; and Behavioral Observation and Screening.

a. Child care personnel have one (1) opportunity, if they choose, to exempt from one (1) or more of the department's Introductory Child Care Training courses prior to attending training by successful completion of corresponding competency examinations with a weighted score of 70 or better.

b. Beginning July 1, 2006 the Department of Children and Family Services or its designated representative shall exempt individuals from the Health, Safety, and Nutrition; Child Growth and Development; and Behavioral Observation and Screening courses who meet one (1) of the following educational qualifications:

(I) Associate's degree or higher with six (6) college credit hours in early childhood education/child growth and development or degree in elementary education with certification to teach any age birth through 6th grade; or

(II) An active National Early Childhood Credential (NECC) or an active Birth Through Five Florida Child Care Professional Credential (FCCPC).

c. The Family Child Care Home training completed successfully after July 1, 2004 will be documented on the child care training transcript only. Training completed successfully prior to July 1, 2004 will be documented either on CF-FSP Form 5267, April 2006, Child Care Training Course Completion Certificate, which is incorporated by reference, or on the Department of Children and Family Services' child care training transcript.

2. Complete a single course of training in early literacy and language development of children ages birth through five (5) that is a minimum of five (5) clock-hours or .5 CEUs. Proof of completion will be documented on the certificate of course completion, classroom transcript, or diploma. In order to meet this requirement, individuals must complete one (1) of the following:

a. One (1) of the department's online literacy courses available on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare; or

b. One (1) of the department's approved literacy training courses. A list of these courses may be obtained from the licensing authority or on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare (no additional courses will be approved by the department); or

c. One (1) college level early literacy course (for credit or non-credit) if taken within the last five (5) years.

3. Certificate(s) of course completion for infant and child cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) procedures and first aid training, which must be current and valid at all times. Certificates of course completion are valid based on the time frames established by each first aid and CPR training program, not to exceed three (3) years. Online CPR courses are not acceptable to meet this standard. CPR training must be completed by classroom instruction.

(b) In addition to the training above, all family day care homes licensed on or before December 31, 2004, shall complete 5 clock hours or .5 continuing education unit (CEU) of training in early literacy and language development of children from birth to 5 years of age, as documented on the certificate of course completion, classroom transcript, or diploma; by June 30, 2005. Family Day Care Homes licensed

on or after January 1, 2005, prior to licensure, must complete 5 clock hours or .5 continuing education unit (CEU) of training in early literacy and language development of children from birth to 5 years of age. In order to meet this requirement, family day care home operators must select a training course from the Department of Children and Family Services' list of approved literacy training programs, which may be accessed by going to www.myflorida.com/childcare/training, or by contacting the licensing authority. Literacy training that was taken between July 1, 1999 and July 1, 2004 will be accepted by the licensing authority until January 1, 2005, if it meets all the required components stated above.

(e) Documentation. Training transcripts are updated upon the successful completion of training, as evidenced by the passage of a competency examination. The 30 clock-hour Family Child Care Home training successfully completed after July 1, 2004 will be documented on the child care training transcript only. Training successfully completed prior to July 1, 2004 may be documented either on CF-FSP Form 5267, May 2003, or the Department of Children and Family Services' child care training transcript.

(d) Family day care home substitutes who work 40 hours or more a month on average during a 12 month period must successfully complete the 30 clock-hour Family Child Care Home training, prior to caring for children, as evidenced by passage of a competency based examination with a score of seventy (70) or better, documented on the Department of Children and Family Services' CF-FSP Form 5267, May 2003, or the Department of Children and Family Services' child care training transcript. All family day care home substitutes who have completed the 30 clock-hour Family Child Care Home training prior to the availability of the competency examination will not be required to complete the competency based testing. Prior to attending the training, Family Day Care Home substitutes have one opportunity, if they choose, to exempt from the Department of Children and Family Services' 30-clock-hour Family Child Care Home training by successfully completing competency examinations with a score of seventy (70) or better. Competency examinations will be offered by the Department of Children and Family Services or its designated representative. In addition to the 30-clock-hour Family Child Care Home training, all substitutes hired on or before December 31, 2004, who work 40 hours or more a month on average during a 12 month period, shall complete 5 clock hours or .5 continuing education unit (CEU) of training in early literacy and language development of children from birth to 5 years of age, as documented on the certificate of course completion, classroom transcript, or diploma; by June 30, 2005. Substitutes hired on or after January 1, 2005, prior to caring for children, must complete 5 clock hours or .5 continuing education unit (CEU) of training in early literacy and language development of children from birth to 5 years of age. In order to meet this requirement, substitutes must select a course from the Department of

Children and Family Services' list of approved literacy training programs, which may be accessed by going to www.myflorida.com/childcare/training or by contacting the licensing authority. Literacy training that was taken between July 1, 1999 and July 1, 2004 will be accepted by the licensing authority until January 1, 2005, if it meets all the required components stated above.

(b)(e) Family day care home substitutes who work less than 40 hours a month on average during a 12 month period shall complete the Department of Children and Family Services' three (3)-clock-hour Fundamentals of Child Care training prior to caring for children, as documented on the Department of Children and Family Services' CF-FSP Form 5267, May 2003, and the Department of Children and Family Services' child care training transcript. Family day care substitutes who have successfully completed the 30 clock-hour Family Child Care Home training will not be required to complete the 3 clock-hour Fundamentals of Child Care training.

(f) The operator of the family day care home must sign a statement attesting to the number of hours that the substitute works in the operator's home. The statement must be placed in the substitute's file.

2. Family day care substitutes who have successfully completed the 30 clock-hour Family Child Care Home training are not required to complete the three (3) clock-hour Fundamentals of Child Care training.

(g) Prior to licensure, family day care home operators must have a valid certificate of course completion for infant and child cardiopulmonary resuscitation procedures and first aid training. The substitute, prior to caring for children in the family day care home, must have a valid and current certificate of course completion for infant and child cardiopulmonary resuscitation procedures and first aid training. Certificates of course completion are valid based on the time frames established by each first aid and CPR training program, not to exceed three years. On-line CPR courses are not acceptable to meet this standard. CPR training must be done by classroom instruction.

(4)(3) Annual In-Service Training.

(a) All family day care home operators; must complete a minimum of 10 clock-hours or (1) CEU of in-service training or 1 CEU, annually during the operator's 12 month licensing period state's fiscal year beginning July 1 and ending June 30.

(b) The annual 10 clock-hours or one (1) CEU of in-service training concentrating on children ages birth through 12 years or 1 CEU, must be completed in one (1) or more of the following areas (college level courses will be accepted):

1. through 2. No change.
3. First Aid (this training may only be taken to meet the in-service requirement once every three (3) years);
4. through 22. No change.

(c) Documentation of the in-service training requirement must be recorded on CF-FSP Form 5268A, April Feb. 200604, Child Care In-Service Training Record, which is incorporated ~~herein~~ by reference, and maintained at the family day care home. CF-FSP Form 5268A may be obtained from the licensing authority or on by going to the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare/training. A new in-service training record is required each licensing fiscal year. ~~In addition to maintaining the training record for the current fiscal year, the~~ in-service training records for the previous two (2) licensing fiscal years must also be maintained at the family day care home for review by the licensing authority ~~College-level courses that cover the topics above may also be counted to meet the annual in-service training requirement.~~

~~(5)(4)~~ Supervision.

(a) At all times, which includes when the children are napping or sleeping, the operator shall remain responsible for the supervision of the children in care and capable of responding to ~~the~~ emergencies and the needs of the children. While children are napping or sleeping in bedrooms, the bedroom doors must remain open. During the daytime hours of operation, children shall have adult supervision, which means watching and directing children's activities, both indoors and outdoors, and responding to each child's needs.

(b) A child who has been placed in an isolation area due to illness as stated in paragraph 65C-20.010(4)(b), F.A.C., must be within sight and hearing of the operator.

(c) Children must be attended at all times when being diapered or when changing clothes.

Specific Authority 402.313 FS. Law Implemented 402.313 FS. History--New 7-2-98, Amended 5-21-00, 7-13-03, 9-12-04, _____.

65C-20.010 Health Related Requirements.

(1) General Requirements.

(a) Animals, pets or fowl must have current immunizations, if immunizations are available for the type of animal, pet or fowl; and be free from of disease. Custodial pParents or legal guardian must be informed in writing of all animals on the premises of the home. Such information may be provided by way of a parent flier, a notification statement, or a statement included in the child's enrollment form.

(b) All areas and surfaces accessible to children shall be free from of toxic substances and hazardous materials. All potentially harmful items including cleaning supplies, flammable products, poisonous, ~~and~~ toxic, and hazardous materials must be labeled. These items, as well as knives, ~~and~~ sharp tools and other potentially dangerous hazards, shall be stored separately and locked or out of a child's reach ~~in~~ locations inaccessible to the children in care.

(c) All family day care home operators shall inform custodial parents or legal guardian in writing if someone living in the home smokes. Pursuant to Chapter 386, Florida,

Statutes, while children are in care, smoking is prohibited within the family day care home, on all outdoor play areas and in vehicles when transporting children.

(d) At all times when children are in care, all firearms and weapons, as defined in Section Chapter 790.001, F.S., shall be stored in a location inaccessible to children and in accordance with Section 790.174, F.S.

(e) Play areas shall be clean; and free from of litter, nails, glass and other hazards.

(f) Family day care homes caring only for infants under 12 months of age; shall not be required to have an outdoor play area; however, infants in care shall be provided opportunities for outdoor time each day that weather permits. For all other family day care homes, including those providing evening care, the outdoor space shall be fenced; a minimum of four (4) feet in height; if the family day care home property borders any of the following:

1. No change.
2. Road or street open to travel by the public, divided by a median;
3. Road or street open to travel by the public where the posted or unposted speed limit is equal to or greater than 25 miles per hour; by municipal or county ordinance, pursuant to Section s- 316.189, F.S.
4. No change.

(g) All in-ground swimming pools and above-ground swimming pools; more than one (1) foot deep; shall have either a fence or barrier on all four (4) sides, at a minimum of four (4) feet in height, separating the home from the swimming pool; or a pool alarm that is operable at all times when children are in care. The fence or barrier shall may not have any gaps or openings that would could allow a young child to crawl under, squeeze through, or climb over the barrier. All spas and hot tubs must meet the same barrier requirements for in-ground and above-ground swimming pools, or ~~instead,~~ spas and hot tubs may be covered with a safety cover, as defined in Section 515.25(1), F.S., that complies with ASTM F1346-91 (Standard Performance Specification for Safety Covers and Labeling Requirements for All Covers for Swimming Pools, Hot Tubs, and Spas) at all times when children are in care. The exterior wall of the home, ~~if it has~~ with an ingress and egress, does not constitute a fence or barrier. All doors or gates in the fence or barrier shall be locked at all times when children are in care and when the pool is not being used by the children in care. In addition to the fence, barrier or pool alarm, the family day care home operator shall ensure that all exterior doors leading to the pool, spa, or hot tub area remain locked at all times while children are in care. Barriers may be temporary in nature, but must be sturdy and meet all the above requirements and be in place during all times when children are in care. The wall of an above-ground swimming pool may be used as its barrier; however, such structure must be at least four (4) feet in height. In addition, any ladder or steps that are the means of access to

an above-ground pool must be removed at all times while children are in care and when the pool is not being used by the children in care.

~~(h)(g)~~ If a family day care home uses a swimming pool, it shall be maintained by using chlorine or other suitable chemicals. If the family day care home uses a swimming pool ~~that, which~~ exceeds three (3) feet in depth at the family day care home site, one (1) person who has completed a basic water safety course such as ~~one~~ offered by the American Red Cross, YMCA or other organization, must be present when children have access to the swimming area. If the family day care home uses swimming pools not at the ~~site of the~~ family day care home ~~site~~, or takes the children to water areas such as a beach or lake for swimming activities, the family day care home operator must provide one (1) person with a certified lifeguard certificate or equivalent, who must be present when children are in the swimming area, unless a certified lifeguard is on duty.

~~(i)(h)~~ A family day care home must include a designated area where each child can sit quietly or lie down to rest or nap.

~~(j)(g)~~ Each child in care must be provided safe and sanitary bedding to be used when napping. Bedding means a cot, bed, crib, mattress, playpen or floor mat. Air mattresses and foam mattresses may not be used for napping. Mats must be at least one (1) inch thick and covered with an impermeable surface.

~~(k)(f)~~ Children one (1) year of age or older may nap or sleep on beds used by the family provided individual linens are provided for each child. Each child shall have a separate bed, cot, crib, playpen, mattress or floor mat, except that two (2) sibling preschool children may share a double bed. Sleeping refers to the normal night time sleep cycle and ~~When children remain overnight,~~ playpens, air mattresses, foam mattresses, and mats may not be used for care when children are sleeping are not acceptable and. The operator must prepare a written plan outlining the sleeping arrangements of the children in care to be provided to the licensing counselor upon request. If the children are sleeping overnight, the operator must ensure accepted bedtime routines, such as brushing teeth and face and hand washing. Toothbrushes, towels and wash cloths may not be shared.

~~(l)(e)~~ Children up to one (1) year of age must be in their own crib, portacrib or playpen with sides. When napping or sleeping, young infants that are not capable of rolling over on their own shall be positioned on their back and on a firm surface to reduce the risk of Sudden Infant Death Syndrome (SIDS), unless an alternative position is authorized in writing by a physician. The documentation shall be maintained in the child's record.

~~(m)(d)~~ A minimum distance of ~~eighteen (18)~~ inches must be maintained between individual napping spaces. Napping spaces shall not be designated in kitchens, bathrooms, utility

rooms, or garages. If separate rooms are used for napping, the doors to each room shall remain open to allow the operator to respond to emergencies and needs of the children.

~~(n)(m)~~ Potable drinking water shall be available to children of all ages at all times. ~~If disposable cups are used, they must be discarded after each use.~~

~~(o)~~ Single service paper or plastic plates, utensils, and cups shall not be reused. Plates, utensils, cups, bottles and sippy cups provided by the family day care home that are not disposable shall be washed, rinsed and sanitized between uses. All bottles and sippy cups brought from home shall be individually labeled with the child's first and last name and returned to the custodial parent or legal guardian daily.

~~(p)(n)~~ Rodents and vermin shall be exterminated. Pest control shall not take place while rooms are occupied by children.

~~(q)(e)~~ All parts of the home, both indoors and outdoors, including the furnishings, equipment, and plumbing shall be kept clean and sanitary, free ~~from~~ hazards, in an orderly condition and in good repair at all times. The family day care home shall have an operable smoke detector and fire extinguisher with a current certificate, at least one (1) operable corded telephone, and lighting that allows for safe movement and egress for children in care. At all times and appropriate for the activity, lighting in family day care homes must be sufficient enough to allow the operator to visually observe and supervise children in care. The home must have proper ventilation, and the temperature must be maintained between 65 and 82 degrees Fahrenheit.

~~(r)(p)~~ If the operator chooses to supply food, the operator shall provide nutritious meals and snacks of a quantity and quality to meet the daily nutritional needs of the children. The USDA ~~My Food Guide Pyramid for Young Children, April March 2005 1999,~~ which is incorporated by reference, shall be used to determine what food groups to serve at each meal or snack and the serving size of the selected foods for children ~~one year of ages two (2) and older. The fats and sweets categories, "oils" and "discretionary calories" may within the USDA Food Guide Pyramid for Young Children cannot be considered counted as a food groups. Copies of the USDA My Food Guide Pyramid for Young Children may be obtained from the licensing authority, the local county health department or from the USDA website at www.mypyramid.gov, district child care licensing office or local licensing agency.~~ Using the USDA ~~My Food Guide Pyramid for Young Children,~~ breakfast shall consist of at least three (3) different food groups; lunch and dinner shall consist of at least four (4) different food groups and snacks shall consist of at least two (2) different food groups. If a special diet is required for a child by a physician, a copy of the physician's order, a copy of the diet and a sample meal plan for the special diet ~~appropriate documentation shall be maintained in the child's file for as long as the child is in care to include the physician's order, a~~

~~copy of a diet and sample meal plan for the special diet.~~ If the custodial parent or legal guardian notifies the family day care home of any known food allergies, written documentation must be maintained in the child's file.

(2) Hygiene and Sanitation.

(a) Operators, substitutes, and children shall wash their hands with soap and running water, ~~drying~~ drying thoroughly, and following personal hygiene procedures for themselves; or while ~~when~~ assisting others, and immediately after outdoor play.

(b) Soiled items shall immediately be placed in plastic lined, securely covered containers ~~that which~~ are not accessible to children. The container shall be emptied, cleaned and disinfected daily. Children's wet or soiled clothing and crib sheets shall be changed promptly.

(c) No change.

(d) Each child shall have his own individually labeled towel and wash cloth. If disposable towels are used, they shall be discarded after each use.

(e) When children in diapers are in care, there shall be a diaper changing area with an impermeable surface ~~that which~~ is cleaned with a sanitizing solution after each use. The diaper changing area shall ~~not~~ be located separate from the food preparation, service and feeding area. In addition, items unrelated to diaper changing shall not be stored in the diaper changing area not shall they be placed on the diaper changing table in or near the food service area. Children must be attended at all times when being diapered or when changing clothes.

(3) First Aid Kit and Emergency Procedures.

(a) At least one (1) first aid kit ~~containing materials to administer first aid~~ must be maintained on the premises of the family day care home at all times and on activities away from the home. The first aid kit shall be accessible to the operator and kept out of the reach of children. The kit must be clearly labeled "First Aid" and must, at a minimum, include:

1. through 11. No change.

(b) Emergency Procedures and Notification.

1. Emergency telephone numbers, including ambulance, fire, police, poison control center, Florida Abuse Hotline, the county public health unit; and the address of and directions to the home, including major intersections and local landmarks. must be posted on or near all telephones and shall be used to protect the health, safety and well-being of any child in care. To meet the immediate needs of the child, family day care home operators shall call 911 or other emergency numbers in the event of an emergency.

2. Custodial parents or legal guardian~~s~~ shall be notified immediately in the event of any serious illness, accident, injury or emergency to their child and their specific instructions regarding action to be taken under such circumstances shall be obtained and followed. If the custodial parent or legal guardian cannot be reached, the family day care home operator will

contact those persons designated by the custodial parent or legal guardian to be contacted under these circumstances, and shall follow the written instructions provided by the custodial parent or legal guardian.

3. All accidents, incidents, and observed health related signs and symptoms which occur at a family day care home must be documented on the day they occur and shared with the custodial parent or legal guardian on the day they occur. Documentation shall include the name of the affected party, date and time of occurrence, description of occurrence, actions taken, and signature of operator and custodial parent or legal guardian. This documentation must be shared with the custodial parent or legal guardian on the date of occurrence. Records of accidents, incidents, and observed health related signs and symptoms must be maintained for one (1) year.

4. Fire drills shall be conducted monthly and shall be conducted at various times when children are in care. A written record shall be maintained showing the date, time, number of children in attendance and time taken to evacuate the home. This record shall be maintained for six (6) months.

5. After a fire or natural disaster, the operator must notify the licensing agency; within 24 hours; as to their status of operation in order for the department or local licensing agency to ensure health standards are met for continued operation as a family day care home.

(4) Communicable Disease Control.

(a) Children in care shall be observed on a daily basis for signs of communicable disease. Signs and symptoms of a suspected communicable disease include the following:

1. Severe coughing, causing the child to become red or blue in the face or to make a whooping sound;

2. Difficult or rapid breathing;

3. Stiff neck;

4. Diarrhea (more than one abnormally loose stool within a 24 hour period);

5. Temperature of 101 degrees Fahrenheit or higher when in conjunction with any other signs of illness;

6. Conjunctivitis (pink eye);

7. Exposed, open skin lesions;

8. Unusually dark urine and/or gray or white stool;

9. Yellowish skin or eyes; or

10. Any other unusual sign or symptom of illness.

(b) The family day care home shall have ~~an~~ designated isolation area for a child who becomes ill. The child's condition shall be closely observed. Any child who is suspected of having a communicable disease or who has a fever; of 101 degrees Fahrenheit or higher, in conjunction with any ~~of the other signs of or develops other signs and symptoms listed in paragraph 65C-20.010(4)(a), F.A.C., which include any of the following: diarrhea, rash, pink eye, vomiting, or skin infection,~~ shall be placed in the isolation area. Linens and disposables shall be changed after each use. The condition

shall be reported to the custodial parent or legal guardian and the child shall be removed from the family day care home. Such children shall not return to the home without medical authorization, or until the signs and symptoms of the disease are no longer present.

(c) A child identified as having ~~who has~~ head lice shall ~~will~~ not be permitted to return until treatment has occurred. Verification of treatment may include a product box, box top, empty bottle, or signed statement by a custodial parent or legal guardian; that treatment has occurred.

(d) An operator or household member who develops signs and symptoms of a communicable disease or who has a ~~which include any of the following~~; fever (of 101 degrees Fahrenheit or higher); in conjunction with any of the ~~other following~~ signs and symptoms listed in paragraph 65C-20.010(4)(a), F.A.C.; ~~diarrhea, rash, pink eye, or skin infection~~ shall leave the areas of the home occupied by the children and shall not return without medical authorization, or until the signs and symptoms are no longer present. If it is the operator who is ill, the substitute must assume the operator's responsibilities.

(5) Medication. Family day care homes are not required to give medication; however, if they choose to do so, the following shall apply:

(a) The family day care home must have written authorization from the custodial parent or legal guardian to dispense prescription and non-prescription medications. This authorization must be dated and signed by the custodial parent or legal guardian and contain the child's name; the name of the medication to be dispensed; and date, time and amount of dosage to be given. This record shall be initialed or signed by the family day care home personnel who gave the medication.

(b) Any known allergies to medication or special restrictions must also be documented, maintained in the child's file, and posted with stored medication.

(c)(a) Prescription and non-prescription medication brought to the family day care home by the custodial parent or legal guardian must be in the original container. Prescription medication must have a the label stating the name of the physician, child's name, name of the medication, and medication directions. All prescription and non-prescription medication shall be dispensed according to written directions on the prescription label or printed manufacturer's label. For the purposes of dispensing non-prescription medication that is not brought in by the parent, in the event of an emergency, non-prescription medication can only be dispensed if the home has written authorization from the parent or legal guardian to do so. Any medication dispensed under these conditions must be documented in the child's file and the parent or legal guardian must be notified on the day of occurrence. If the parent or legal guardian notifies the family day care home of any known allergies to medication, written documentation must be maintained in the child's file.

(d) In the event of an emergency, non-prescription medication that is not brought in by the custodial parent or legal guardian can only be dispensed if the family day care home has written authorization from the custodial parent or legal guardian to do so.

(e) Any medication dispensed under these conditions must be documented in the child's file and the custodial parent or legal guardian must be notified on the day of occurrence.

(f) The family day care home must maintain a record for each child receiving medications that documents the full name of the child, the name of medication, the date and time the medication was dispensed, the amount and dosage, and the name of the person who dispensed the medication. The record shall be maintained for a minimum of four (4) months after the last day the child received the dosage. All medicine must have child resistant caps and shall be stored separately and locked or out of a child's reach.

(g) Medication which has expired or is no longer being administered shall be returned to the custodial parent or legal guardian or discarded if the child is no longer enrolled in care at the family day care home.

(b) All medicines shall be kept out of the reach of children and must have child resistant caps.

(e) Medication which has expired or is no longer being administered shall be returned to the custodial parent or legal guardian.

(d) A written record documenting the child's name, the name of the medication, date, time and amount of dosage to be given, and the signature of the custodial parent or legal guardian shall be maintained by the family child care provider. This record shall be initialed or signed by the adult who gave the medication.

(e) This record shall be maintained for six months.

Specific Authority 402.313 FS. Law Implemented 402.313 FS. History—New 7-2-98, Amended 1-4-01, 7-13-03, 9-12-04, _____.

65C-20.011 Health Records.

(1) Children's Health Requirements Immunizations. The family day care home provider is responsible for obtaining, from the parent or legal guardian, a current and a completed DH Form 680, Florida Certification of Immunization, Part A 1, B, and or C, (July), or, DH Form 681, Religious Exemption from Immunization (May 1999), for each child in care, within 30 days of enrollment, and maintaining a current copy at the family day care home, which are incorporated by reference in subsection 64D-3.011(9), F.A.C. DH Forms 680 and 681 can be obtained from the local county health department. The DH Form 680, Florida Certification of Immunization Parts A 1, Certification of Immunization for K-12 Excluding 7th Grade Requirements or Part B, Temporary Medical Exemption, shall be signed by a physician or authorized personnel licensed under the provisions of Chapter

~~458, 459, or 460, Florida Statutes and shall document vaccination for the prevention of diphtheria, pertussis, tetanus, poliomyelitis, rubella, mumps, Haemophilus influenza type B (HIB), and effective July 1, 2001, completion of varicella vaccination. The DH Form 680, Florida Certification of Immunization Part C, Permanent Medical Exemptions, shall be dated and signed by a physician licensed under the provisions of Chapter 458 or 459, Florida Statutes.~~

(a) The family day care home provider is responsible for obtaining, for each child in care, a current, complete and properly executed Florida Certification of Immunization form, Parts A-1, B, and or C, or the Religious Exemption from Immunization form, as referenced in Rule 64D-3.011, F.A.C., from the custodial parent or legal guardian. Immunizations received out-of-state are acceptable; however, immunizations must be documented on the Florida Certification of Immunization form and must be signed by a physician practicing in the State of Florida. Specific immunization requirements are included and detailed in the most current edition of the "Immunization Guidelines – Florida Schools, Child Care Facilities and Family Day Care Homes" as referenced in Rule 64D-3.011, F.A.C.

(b) The family day care home provider is responsible for obtaining, for each child in care, a current, complete and properly executed Student Health Examination form, as referenced in Rule 6A-6.024, F.A.C., or a signed statement by an authorized professional that indicates the results of the components of the form are included in the health examination from the custodial parent or legal guardian, within 30 days of enrollment. The Student Health Examination shall be completed by a person given statutory authority to perform health examinations.

(c) The Student Health Examination form or signed statement is valid for two (2) years from the date the physical was performed and must be on file as long as the child is in care.

(d) School-aged children attending public or nonpublic schools are not required to have student health examination and immunization records on file at the family day care home as such records are on file at the school where the child is enrolled.

(e) If the custodial parents or legal guardians need assistance concerning these requirements, the family day care home shall refer them to the Department of Health or to the child's physician.

(f) Medical records in this section are the property of the custodial parent or legal guardian and must be returned when the child is no longer in care. The medical records are transferable if the child is placed in a different family day care home.

(2) Children's Student Health Examination.

~~(a) The family day care home provider is responsible for obtaining from the parent or legal guardian, a current and completed DH Form 3040, (June 02), Student Health Examination, for each child in care, within 30 days of enrollment, and maintaining a current copy at the family day care home. DH Form 3040, which is incorporated by reference, can be obtained from the local county health department. The student health examination shall be completed by a person given statutory authority to perform health examinations. Certification that a health examination has been completed may be documented on the State of Florida, Department of Health, DH Form 3040, June 02, OR a signed statement by an authorized professional that indicates the results of the components included in the health examination.~~

~~(b) This Student Health Examination is valid for two (2) years from the date the physical was performed.~~

~~(3) Immunization and Health Records.~~

~~(a) Copies of required records are acceptable for documentation. Original documents are the property of the party providing the information.~~

~~(b) School age children in kindergarten through grade 5, attending public or nonpublic schools are not required to have student health examination (DH Form 3040) and immunization records (DH 680 or 681) on file at the family day care home as such records are on file at the school where the child is enrolled.~~

~~(2)(4) Enrollment and Medical Authorization.~~

~~(a) The operator shall obtain enrollment information from the child's custodial parent or legal guardian; prior to accepting the child into care. This information shall be documented on CF-FSP Form 5219, June 2005 Dec. 02, Child Care Application for Enrollment, which is incorporated by reference, or an equivalent that contains all the information required by the department's form. CF-FSP Form 5219 may be obtained from the local Department of Children and Family Services district service center or the local licensing agency, and is incorporated by reference, or an equivalent that contains all the information required by the department's form.~~

~~(b) Enrollment information shall be kept current and on file for each child in care.~~

~~(c) There shall be signed statements from the custodial parents or legal guardian that the family day care home has provided them with the following information:~~

~~1. The Department of Children and Family Services family day care home brochure, CF/PI 175-28, July 2005, Selecting A Family Day Care Home Provider, which is incorporated by reference. This brochure may be obtained from the licensing authority or on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare.~~

~~2. Local licensing agencies may use an equivalent brochure approved by the Department of Children and Family Services, containing all the information required by the department.~~

Specific Authority 402.313 FS. Law Implemented 402.313 FS. History--New 7-2-98, Amended 5-21-00, 7-13-03, 9-12-04, _____.

65C-20.012 Enforcement.

(1) No change.

(2) The operation of a family day care home is prohibited unless registered, or licensed, as required by county ordinance or resolution. The department or local licensing agency shall have the authority to seek an injunction in the circuit court where the home is located to stop the continued operation of a family day care home ~~that which~~ is not licensed or registered. For licensed family day care homes, the department or local licensing agency shall also have the authority to seek an injunction in the circuit court where the home is located to stop the continued operation if the family day care home is in violation of the minimum standards. Pursuant to Section 120.60(6), F.S., an emergency suspension order may also be used to stop the continued operation if the family day care home poses immediate serious danger to the public health, safety, or welfare of the children who are enrolled.

(3) The family day care operator must allow access to the entire premises of the family day care home to inspect for compliance with family day care home minimum standards. Access to the family day care home also includes access by the parent, legal guardian, and/or custodian, to their child(ren) while in care.

(4) Child Safety. Pursuant to Section 402.301, F.S., acts or omissions that meet the definition of child abuse or neglect constitute a violation of the standards in Section 402.301-.309, F.S.

Specific Authority 402.313 FS. Law Implemented 402.313, 402.319(5) FS. History--New 7-2-98, Amended 7-13-03, 9-12-04, _____.

65C-20.013 Large Family Child Care Homes (LFCCH).

(1) Large Family Child Care Homes. A Large Family Child Care Home is defined by Section 402.3131, F.S., and for the purpose of this rule, as a home which must have been licensed in the State of Florida as and met all the requirements of a family day care home for two (2) consecutive years. Large family child care homes must meet and comply with all standards of this rule at all times unless there are insufficient numbers of children in care to meet the definition of a large family child care home, in which case an additional employee is not required. Large family child care homes shall meet all of the requirements in Rules 65C-20.008-65C-20.012, F.A.C., in addition to the requirements listed below.

(2) Definitions:

(a) "Full Time Employee" means one (1) additional staff person at least 18 years of age, who is on the premises of a home operating as a large family child care home.

(b) "Hours of Operation" means the hours of the day or night that a large family child care home has enough children in care to meet the definition of a large family child care home.

~~(e) "Large Family Child Care Home," is defined by s. 402.3131, F.S., and for the purpose of this rule means a home which must have been licensed in the State of Florida as a family day care home for two consecutive years, with an operator who has had a child development associate credential or its equivalent for 1 year, and meet all the requirements of this rule. Large family child care homes must meet and comply with all standards of this rule at all times unless there are insufficient numbers of children in care to meet the definition of a large family child care home, in which case an additional employee is not required.~~

~~(c)(d)~~ "Operator" means the occupant and licensee of the large family child care home who is at least 21 years of age and responsible for the overall operation of the home.

~~(d)(e)~~ "Substitute" means a competent adult, at least 18 years of age, who is available to substitute for the operator or employee on a temporary or emergency basis.

(3) Application and License.

(a) Application for a license or for renewal of a license to operate a large family child care home ~~must shall~~ be made on CF-FSP Form 5238, ~~April 2006 Feb. 2004~~, Application for a License to Operate a Large Family Child Care Home, which is incorporated ~~herein~~ by reference. CF-FSP Form 5238 may and can be obtained from the licensing authority or on at the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare local district service center or the local licensing agency. A license to operate a Large Family Child Care Home may be used to operate a Family Day Care Home, when the number of children in care meets the definition of a Family Day Care Home. A license to operate a Family Day Care Home cannot be used to operate a Large Family Child Care Home.

(b) The large family child care home license shall be issued in the name of the operator, who must be at least 21 years of age and the resident of the large family child care home. In the event of rental or leased property, the operator shall be the individual who occupies the residence.

~~(c)(b)~~ A copy of the annual license shall be posted in a conspicuous location within the large family child care home.

(4) LFCCH Personnel:

~~(a) The large family child care home license shall be issued in the name of the operator who must be at least 21 years of age and the occupant of the large family child care home. In the event of rental or leased property the operator shall be the individual who occupies the residence.~~

~~(a)(b)~~ The operator of the large family child care home may not work outside of the home during hours ~~when~~ the large family child care home is in operation.

~~(b)(e)~~ No person shall be an operator, substitute, or employee while using, or who is under the influence of, narcotics, alcohol, or other drugs that, ~~which~~ impair an individual's ~~their~~ ability to provide supervision and safe child care, ~~shall be an operator, substitute, or employee.~~

(c) Large family child care homes must have one (1) person on the premises during all hours of operation who has a valid and current certificate(s) of course completion for infant and child cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) procedures and first aid training.

(5) LFCCH Staff Training.±

(a) Definitions.

1. "Active" refers to the status of a candidate's awarded credential or certification in which requirements have been successfully met.

2. "Begin training for child care personnel" refers to a candidate's commencement of at least one (1) of the child care training courses listed in Section 402.305(2)(d), F.S. This may be accomplished by classroom attendance, acquiring an educational exemption from training, beginning a department approved online child care training course, or by completion of a department approved competency examination within the first 90 days of employment in the child care industry. The large family child care home is responsible for obtaining documentation from child care personnel.

3. "Early Childhood Education" refers to coursework, certification, a credential or degree that specializes in children ages birth through eight (8).

4. "Expired" refers to the status of a candidate's awarded credential or certification that is not eligible for renewal.

5. "Florida Child Care Professional Credential (FCCPC)," pursuant to Section 402.305(3)(b), F.S., is a department approved training program that consists of a minimum of 120 hours of early childhood instruction, 480 contact hours with children ages birth through eight (8) and at least two (2) methods of formal assessment that offers two (2) areas of certification: "Birth Through Five (formerly the department approved CDA Equivalency training programs)" and "School-Age (formerly the Florida School-Age Certification)." A list of approved and recognized FCCPC programs may be obtained on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare.

6. "Florida Department of Education Child Care Apprenticeship Certificate (CCAC)" is a department approved child care credential that consists of a minimum of 120 hours of early childhood instruction and 480 contact hours with children ages birth through eight (8) and meets or exceeds the requirements outlined in Section 402.305(3)(c), F.S. A list of approved and recognized DOE programs may be obtained on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare.

7. "Florida Department of Education Early Childhood Professional Certificate (ECPC)" is a department approved child care credential that consists of a minimum of 120 hours of early childhood instruction and 480 contact hours with children ages birth through eight (8) and meets or exceeds the requirements outlined in Section 402.305(3)(c), F.S. A list of approved and recognized DOE programs may be obtained on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare.

8. "Florida Department of Education School-Age Professional Certificate (SAPC)" is a department approved child care credential that consists of a minimum of 120 hours of early childhood instruction and 480 contact hours with school-age children and meets or exceeds the requirements outlined in Section 402.305(3)(c), F.S. A list of approved and recognized DOE programs may be obtained on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare.

9. "Inactive" refers to the status of a candidate's awarded credential or certification that remains eligible for renewal.

10. "National Early Childhood Credential (NECC)" pursuant to Section 402.305(3)(c), F.S., is an early childhood credential approved by the department and recognized by licensing authorities in at least five (5) states that incorporates 120 hours of early childhood instruction, 480 contact hours with children ages birth through eight (8) and includes at least two (2) methods of formal assessment. This includes the Child Development Associate (CDA) credential issued by the Council for Professional Recognition in Washington, DC. A list of approved and recognized NECC programs may be obtained on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare.

11. "Training Transcript" is the electronic documentation of statutorily mandated training and staff credential qualifications for child care personnel. Training transcripts may be obtained on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare.

12. "Weighted score" means a scaled score, rather than a percentage score, based on the difficulty of the exam and determined by competency exam professionals in consultation with subject matter experts.

(b) Large Family Child Care Home Operators. In addition to the training requirements identified in paragraph 65C-20.009(2)(b), F.A.C., large family child care home operators must:

1. Possess one (1) of the following credentials for a minimum of one (1) year:

a. An active National Early Childhood Credential (NECC); an active Birth Through Five or School-Age Florida Child Care Professional Credential (FCCPC) (formerly known as the Child Development Associate Equivalency); an active Florida Department of Education Child Care Apprenticeship Certificate (CCAC), Early Childhood Professional Certificate

(ECPC) or School-Age Professional Certificate (SAPC); or meet the formal educational qualification requirement outlined on CF-FSP Form 5211, April 2006, Staff Credential Application, which is incorporated by reference. An Employment History Recognition Exemption will not be accepted to meet the minimum staff credential requirements for Large Family Child Care Home.

b. An Employment History Recognition Exemption and a School-Age FCCPC will not be accepted to meet the minimum staff credential requirements for Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten (VPK).

c. Credential Renewal Requirements.

(I) A National Early Childhood Credential must be renewed through the agency that awarded the credential. Prior to December 31, 2008, a National Early Childhood Credential may comply with the Birth Through Five Florida Child Care Professional Credential renewal process referenced in sub-subparagraph 65C-20.013(5)(b)1.b., F.A.C., if the credential was issued prior to December 31, 2003.

(II) To maintain an active Birth Through Five FCCPC, every five (5) years a candidate must renew their Birth Through Five FCCPC by completing CF-FSP Form 5273, April 2006, Birth Through Five Florida Child Care Professional Credential Renewal Application, which is incorporated by reference. CF-FSP Form 5273 may be obtained on the Department of Children and Family Service's website at www.myflorida.com/childcare.

(A) A Birth Through Five FCCPC Renewal will be documented on CF-FSP Form 5270. Renewal applications will be submitted by the candidate no earlier than one (1) year prior to the end of the active date of the Birth Through Five FCCPC.

(B) Individuals with a Birth Through Five FCCPC issued before December 31, 2003 will renew the credential by submitting a completed CF-FSP 5273 with the required documentation by December 31, 2008. A Birth Through Five FCCPC issued after December 31, 2003 will have a renewal date of five (5) years from the date of issuance.

(C) An individual with an inactive Birth Through Five FCCPC will submit a renewal application for a period of up to three (3) years after the end of the Birth Through Five FCCPC active period. The application will be reviewed and, if approved, a certificate will be issued with a renewal date of five (5) years from the date the completed CF-FSP Form 5273 is processed.

(D) For purposes of participation in the Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten (VPK) Program, an individual must ensure an active credential by July 1, 2006.

(III) To maintain an active School-Age FCCPC, every five (5) years a candidate must renew their School-Age FCCPC by completing CF-FSP Form 5307, April 2006, the School-Age Florida Child Care Professional Credential Renewal Application, which is incorporated by reference. CF-FSP Form

5307 may be obtained on the Department of Children and Family Service's website at www.myflorida.com/childcare. A School-Age FCCPC will not be accepted to meet the minimum staff credential requirements for Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten (VPK).

(A) A School-Age FCCPC renewal will be documented on CF-FSP Form 5270. Renewal applications shall be submitted no earlier than one (1) year prior to the end of the active date of the School-Age FCCPC.

(B) An individual with an inactive School-Age FCCPC shall submit a renewal application for the period of up to three (3) years from the end of the School-Age FCCPC active period. The application will be reviewed and, if approved, a certificate will be issued with a renewal date of five (5) years from the date the completed CF-FSP Form 5270 is processed.

(IV) To maintain an active Florida Department of Education Child Care Apprenticeship Certificate (CCAC) or Early Childhood Professional Certificate (ECPC), every five (5) years a candidate must renew their CCAC or ECPC by completing CF-FSP Form 5309, April 2006, Florida Department of Education Child Care Apprenticeship Certificate (CCAC) and Early Childhood Professional Certificate (ECPC) Renewal Application, which is incorporated by reference. To maintain an active Florida Department of Education School-Age Professional Certificate (SAPC), every five (5) years a candidate must renew their SAPC by completing CF-FSP Form 5308, April 2006, Florida Department of Education School-Age Professional Certificate (SAPC) Renewal Application, which is incorporated by reference. CF-FSP Forms 5308 and 5309 may be obtained on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare.

(A) A Florida Department of Education CCAC, ECPC or SAPC renewal will be documented on CF-FSP Form 5310, April 2006, Certificate for Florida Department of Education Child Care Apprenticeship Certificate (CCAC)/Early Childhood Professional Certificate (ECPC)/School-Age Professional Certificate (SAPC) Program Renewal, which is incorporated by reference. CF-FSP Forms 5308 and 5309, as applicable, for renewal will be submitted by the candidate no earlier than one (1) year prior to the end of the active period of the Florida Department of Education CCAC, ECPC, or SAPC.

(B) An individual with an inactive Florida Department of Education CCAC, ECPC, or SAPC may submit CF-FSP Form 5308 or 5309 for a period of up to three (3) years from the end of the Florida Department of Education CCAC, ECPC, or SAPC active period. CF-FSP Form 5308 or 5309, as applicable, will be reviewed and, if approved, a CF-FSP Form 5310 will be issued with a renewal date of five (5) years from the date the completed CF-FSP Form 5308 or 5309 is processed.

(V) A staff credential awarded for formal educational qualifications does not need to be renewed to remain active.

2. Within six (6) months of licensure, successfully complete 10 clock-hours of specialized training from the Department of Children and Family Services' Part II specialized training courses as evidenced by successful completion of a competency examination with a weighted score of 70 or better. These courses include:

- a. Infant and Toddler Appropriate Practices (10 hours),
- b. Preschool Appropriate Practices (10 hours),
- c. School-Age Appropriate Practices (10 hours),
- d. Special Needs Appropriate Practices (10 hours),
- e. Basic Guidance and Discipline (5 hours online),
- f. Computer Technology for Child Care Professionals (5 hours online),
- g. Early Literacy for Children Ages Birth Through Three (5 hours online),
- h. Early Childhood Computer Learning Centers (5 hours online), or
- i. Emergent Literacy for Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten (VPK) Instructors (5 hours online).

j. Child care personnel have one (1) opportunity, if they choose, to exempt from one (1) or more of the department's Introductory Child Care Training courses prior to attending training by successful completion of corresponding competency examinations with a weighted score of 70 or better. Exemption examinations are not available for the department's online Part II specialized training courses.

k. The Department of Children and Family Services or its designated representative shall exempt individuals with a:

(I) B.A., B.S., or advanced degree in Early Childhood Education or Preschool Education from the Infant and Toddler Appropriate Practices course and Preschool Appropriate Practices course.

(II) B.A., B.S., or advanced degree in Elementary Education from the School-Age Appropriate Practices course.

(III) B.A., B.S., or advanced degree in Exceptional Student Education from the Special Needs Appropriate Practices course.

(c) Substitutes. Prior to taking care of children, substitutes for the operator of large family child care home and substitutes for the large family child care home employee who work 40 hours or more per month on average during a 12 month period shall be at least 18 years of age and must:

1. Successfully complete the Department of Children and Family Services' 30 clock-hour Family Child Care Home training, as evidenced by successful completion of a competency based examination(s) offered by the Department of Children and Family Services or its designated representative with a weighted score of 70 or better. Individuals who have successfully completed the mandatory 30 clock-hour Family Child Care Home training prior to January 1, 2004 are not required to fulfill the competency examination requirement. Beginning July 1, 2006, the 30

clock-hour Family Child Care Home training will be replaced by five (5) individual training courses which total 30 clock-hours of training: Family Child Care Home Rules and Regulations; Health, Safety and Nutrition; Identifying and Reporting Child Abuse and Neglect; Child Growth and Development; and Behavioral Observation and Screening. Completion of the 30 clock-hour Family Child Care Home training shall be documented on the Department of Children and Family Services CF-FSP Form 5267 or the Department of Children and Family Services child care training transcript.

a. Child care personnel have one (1) opportunity, if they choose, to exempt from one (1) or more of the department's Introductory Child Care Training courses prior to attending training by successful completion of corresponding competency examinations with a weighted score of 70 or better.

b. Beginning July 1, 2006 the Department of Children and Family Services or its designated representative shall exempt individuals from the Health, Safety, and Nutrition; Child Growth and Development; and Behavioral Observation and Screening courses who meet one (1) of the following educational qualifications:

(I) Associate's degree or higher with six (6) college credit hours in early childhood education/child growth and development or degree in elementary education with certification to teach any age birth through 6th grade; or

(II) An active National Early Childhood or an active Birth Through Five Florida Child Care Professional Credential.

2. Complete a single course of training in early literacy and language development of children ages birth through five (5) that is a minimum of five (5) clock-hours or .5 CEUs. Proof of completion will be documented on the certificate of course completion, classroom transcript, or diploma. In order to meet this requirement, substitutes for the operator of a large family child care home and substitutes for the large family child care home employee who work 40 hours or more per month on average during a 12 month period must complete one (1) of the following:

a. One (1) of the department's online literacy courses available on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare; or

b. One (1) of the department's approved literacy training courses. A list of these courses may be obtained from the licensing authority on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare (no additional courses will be approved by the department); or

c. One (1) college level early literacy course (for credit or non-credit) if taken within the last five (5) years.

(d) Employees in a large family child care home. Employees in a large family child care home shall be at least 18 years of age and must:

1. Within 90 days of employment in the child care industry, begin the Department of Children and Family Services' 30 clock-hour Family Child Care Home training. The training shall be successfully completed within 12 months from the date on which the training began, as evidenced by the successful completion of a competency examination offered by the Department of Children and Family Services or its designated representative with a weighted score of 70 or better, and may not exceed 15 months from the date of employment in the child care industry. All individuals who have successfully completed the mandatory 30 clock-hour Family Child Care Home training prior to January 1, 2004 are not required to fulfill the competency examination requirement. Beginning July 1, 2006, the 30 clock-hour Family Child Care Home training will be replaced by five (5) individual training courses which total 30 clock-hours of training: Family Child Care Home Rules and Regulations; Health, Safety and Nutrition; Identifying and Reporting Child Abuse and Neglect; Child Growth and Development; and Behavioral Observation and Screening.

a. Child care personnel have one (1) opportunity, if they choose, to exempt from one (1) or more of the department's Introductory Child Care Training courses prior to attending training by successful completion of corresponding competency examinations with a weighted score of 70 or better. The Family Child Care Home training must be documented on the Department of Children and Family Services CF-FSP Form 5267 or the Department of Children and Family Services child care training transcript.

b. Beginning July 1, 2006 the Department of Children and Family Services or its designated representative shall exempt individuals from the Health, Safety, and Nutrition; Child Growth and Development; and Behavioral Observation and Screening courses who meet one (1) of the following educational qualifications:

(I) Associate's degree or higher with six (6) college credit hours in early childhood education/child growth and development or degree in elementary education with certification to teach any age birth through 6th grade; or

(II) An active National Early Childhood Credential or an active Birth Through Five Florida Child Care Professional Credential.

2. Within 12 months of date of employment in the child care industry, complete a single course of training in early literacy and language development of children ages birth through five (5) that is a minimum of five (5) clock-hours or .5 CEUs. Proof of completion will be documented on the certificate of course completion, classroom transcript, or diploma. In order to meet this requirement, employees must complete one (1) of the following:

a. One (1) of the department's online literacy courses available on the Department of Children and Family Services website at www.myflorida.com/childcare; or

b. One (1) of the department's approved literacy training courses. A list of these courses may be obtained from the licensing authority on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare (no additional courses will be approved by the department); or

c. One (1) college level early literacy course (for credit or non-credit) if taken within the last five (5) years.

(e) Substitutes for an employee at a large family child care home. Prior to caring for children, substitutes for an employee at a large family child care home who work less than 40 hours a month on average during a 12 month period shall complete the department's three (3) clock-hour Fundamentals of Child Care Training. Large family child care substitutes who have successfully completed the 30 clock-hour Family Child Care Home training are not required to complete the three (3) clock-hour Fundamentals of Child Care training.

(f) Documentation of Training. Training completed successfully will be documented on the training transcript or on CF-FSP Form 5267.

~~(a) In addition to the successful completion of the 30 clock hour Family Child Care Home training completed prior to caring for children, large family child care home operators must successfully complete training as evidenced by passage of a competency examination with a score of seventy (70) or better in 10 clock-hours of specialized training from the Department of Children and Family Services specialized training from the Department of Children and Family Services specialized training modules within six (6) months of licensure:~~

- ~~1. Infant and Toddler Appropriate Practices (10 hours);~~
- ~~2. Preschool Appropriate Practices (10 hours);~~
- ~~3. School Age Appropriate Practices for school age children (10 hours);~~
- ~~4. Special Needs Appropriate Practices (10 hours);~~
- ~~5. Basic Guidance and Discipline (5 hours web based);~~
- ~~6. Computer Technology for Child Care Professionals (5 hours web based); and~~
- ~~7. Early Literacy in the Child Care Environment (5 hours web based).~~

~~(b) Large family child care home operators shall complete 5 clock-hours or .5 continuing education unit (CEU) of training in early literacy and language development of children from birth to 5 years of age by June 30, 2005, as documented on the certificate of course completion, classroom transcript, or diploma. Literacy training must be a single class or course that is no less than 5 hours in duration. In order to meet this requirement, large family child care home operators must select a training course from the Department of Children and Family Services' list of approved training programs, which can be accessed by going to the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare/training, or by contacting the licensing authority. Literacy training that was taken between July 1, 1999 and July~~

~~1, 2004 will be accepted by the licensing authority until January 1, 2005, if it meets all the required components stated above.~~

~~(e) Training transcripts are updated upon the successful completion of training, as evidenced by the passage of a competency examination with a score of seventy (70) or better. Competency examinations will be offered by the Department of Children and Family Services or its designated representative. Prior to attending the training, Large Family Child Care Home operators have one opportunity, if they choose, to exempt from the 10 clock hour specialized training modules by successfully completing competency examinations with a score of seventy (70) or better. The 10 hour specialized training must be documented on CF-FSP Form 5267, May 2003, or the Department of Children and Family Services' child care training transcript. Examination exemptions are not available for the Department of Children and Family Services' web based Part II specialized training modules.~~

~~(d) Large family child care homes must have one person on the premises during all hours of operation who has a valid certificate of course completion for infant and child cardiopulmonary resuscitation procedures and first aid training.~~

~~(c) Employees in a large family child care home shall be at least 18 years of age and within 90 days of employment within the child care field, shall begin the 30 clock hour Family Child Care Home training. Prior to attending the training, employees in a large family child care home have one opportunity, if they choose, to exempt from the 30 clock hour Family Child Care Home training by successfully completing competency examinations with a score of seventy (70) or better. The training shall be successfully completed within one year of the date on which the training began, as evidenced by the passage of a competency examination with a score of seventy (70) or better. The Family Child Care Home training must be documented on the Department of Children and Family Services' CF-FSP Form 5267, May 2003, or the Department of Children and Family Services' child care training transcript. In addition to the 30 clock hour Family Child Care Home training, all employees in a large family child care home, hired on or before December 31, 2004, shall complete 5 clock hours or .5 continuing education unit (CEU) of training in early literacy and language development of children from birth to 5 years of age, as documented on the certificate of course completion, classroom transcript, or diploma; by June 30, 2005. Employees hired on or after January 1, 2005, prior to caring for children, must complete 5 clock hours or .5 continuing education unit (CEU) of training in early literacy and language development of children from birth to 5 years of age. Literacy training must be a single class or course that is no less than five (5) hours in duration. In order to meet this requirement, employees must select a training course from the Department of Children and Family Services' list of approved~~

~~literacy training programs, which can be accessed by going to from the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare/training, or by contacting the licensing authority. Literacy training that was taken between July 1, 1999 and July 1, 2004 will be accepted by the licensing authority until January 1, 2005, if it meets all the required components stated above.~~

~~(f) Prior to taking care of children, substitutes for the operator of large family child care homes shall be at least 18 years of age and shall have successfully completed the 30 clock hour Family Child Care Home training, as evidenced by the passage of a competency examination with a score of seventy (70) or better. Prior to attending the training, substitutes for the operator have one opportunity, if they choose, to exempt from the 30 clock hour Family Child Care Home training by successfully completing competency examinations with a score of seventy (70) or better. Competency examinations will be offered by the Department of Children and Family Services or its designated representative. Completion of the 30 hour Family Child Care Home training shall be documented on the Department of Children and Family Services' CF-FSP Form 5267, May 2003, or the Department of Children and Family Services' child care training transcript. In addition to the 30 clock hour Family Child Care Home training, prior to caring for children, all substitutes for the operator of the large family child care home, hired on or before December 31, 2004, shall complete 5 clock hours or .5 continuing unit (CEU) of training in early literacy and language development of children from birth to 5 years of age, as documented on the certificate of course completion, classroom transcript, or diploma; by June 30, 2005. Substitutes for the operator hired on or after January 1, 2005, prior to caring for children, must complete 5 clock hours or .5 continuing education unit (CEU) of training in early literacy and language development of children from birth to 5 years of age. Literacy training must be a single class or course that is no less than 5 hours in duration. In order to meet this requirement, substitutes must select a training course from the Department of Children and Family Services' list of approved literacy training programs, which may be accessed by going to the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare/training, or by contacting the licensing authority. Literacy training that was taken between July 1, 1999 and July 1, 2004 will be accepted by the licensing authority until January 1, 2005, if it meets all the required components stated above.~~

~~(g) Prior to caring for children, substitutes for an employee at a large family child care home who work less than 40 hours a month on average during a 12 month period, shall complete the department's 3 clock hour Fundamentals of Child Care Training.~~

~~(h) Prior to taking care of children, substitutes for an employee at a large family child care home who work more than 40 hours a month on average during a 12 month period, shall successfully complete the 30 clock-hour Family Child Care Home training, as demonstrated through passage of a competency examination with a score of seventy (70) or better, documented on the form or transcript referenced above. Prior to attending the training, substitutes for an employee at a large family child care home who work more than 40 hours a month on average during a 12 month period have one opportunity, if they choose, to exempt from the 30 clock-hour Family Child Care Home training by successfully completing competency examinations with a score of seventy (70) or better. All large family child care home substitutes who have completed the 30 clock-hour Family Child Care Home training prior to the availability of the competency examination will not be required to complete the competency based testing. In addition to the 30 clock-hour Family Child Care Home training, prior to caring for children, all substitutes for an employee of a large family child care home, hired on or before December 31, 2004, shall complete 5 clock hours or .5 continuing education unit (CEU) of training in early literacy and language development of children from birth to 5 years of age, as documented on the certificate of course completion, classroom transcript, or diploma; by June 30, 2005. Substitutes for the employee; hired on or after January 1, 2005, prior to caring for children, must complete 5 clock hours or .5 continuing education unit (CEU) of training in early literacy and language development of children from birth to 5 years of age. In order to meet this requirement, substitutes for the employee must select a training course from the Department of Children and Family Services' list of approved literacy training programs, which can be accessed by going to the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare/training, or by contacting the licensing authority. Literacy training that was taken between July 1, 1999 and July 1, 2004 will be accepted by the licensing authority until January 1, 2005, if it meets all the required components stated above.~~

(6) Annual In-Service Training.

(a) All large family child care home operators ~~and employees~~, must complete a minimum of 10 clock-hours or one (1) CEU of in-service training ~~or 1 CEU~~, annually during the operator state's 12 month licensing period fiscal year beginning July 1 and ending June 30.

(b) The annual 10-clock-hours or one (1) CEU of in-service training concentrating on children ages birth through 12 ~~or 1 CEU~~, must be completed in one (1) or more of the following areas (college level courses will be accepted):

1. through 2. No change.
3. First Aid (this training may only be taken to meet the in-service requirement once every three (3) years);
4. through 22. No change.

(c) Documentation of the in-service training requirement must be recorded on CF-FSP Form 5268A, ~~Feb. 04, Child Care In-Service Training Record, which is incorporated by reference, and maintained at the large family child care home.~~ CF-FSP Form 5268A may be obtained from the licensing authority or on ~~by going to~~ the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare/training. A new in-service training record is required each licensing fiscal year. ~~In addition to maintaining the training record for the current fiscal year,~~ The in-service training records for the previous two (2) licensing fiscal years must also be maintained at the large family child day care home for review by the licensing authority. ~~College level courses that cover the topics above may also be counted to meet the annual in-service training requirement.~~

(7) LFCCCH Supervision.

(a) In a large family child care home, direct supervision must be maintained at all times during the hours of operation. Direct supervision means watching and directing children's activities within the area designated as usable indoor floor space or outdoor play space and responding to each child's need. While children are napping or sleeping in bedrooms, the bedroom doors must remain open.

(b) Additional Supervision Requirements.

1. In addition to the number of staff required to meet staff-to-child ratios, if there are more than six (6) preschoolers participating on field trips away from the large family child care home, there must be one (1) additional adult present; per each six (6) preschoolers, or any fraction thereof, to provide direct supervision to the children. Where some children remain in the home, the adult supervision as required in Section 402.302(8), F.S., shall be maintained. At no time shall the total number of children exceed the capacity as defined in Section s. 402.3131, F.S.

2. If a large family child care home uses a swimming pool that which exceeds three (3) feet in depth or uses beach or lake areas for water activities, the large family child care home must provide one (1) person with a certified lifeguard certificate or equivalent, unless a certified lifeguard is on duty and present when children are in the swimming area.

(8) Transportation.

(a) When any vehicle is regularly used by a large family child care home to provide transportation, the driver shall have a current Florida driver's license in accordance with Section ss. 322.01-322.70, Florida Statutes.

(b) through (f) No change.

1. Driver's Log. A log shall be maintained for all children being transported in the vehicle. The log shall be retained for a minimum of six (6) months. The log shall include each child's name, date, time of departure and time of arrival, signature of driver and signature of second staff member to verify driver's log and the fact that all children have left the vehicle.

2. No change.

a. ~~M~~mark each child off the log as the child departs the vehicle,

b. ~~C~~onduct a physical inspection and visual sweep of the vehicle to ensure that no child is left in the vehicle, and

c. ~~S~~ign, date and record the driver's log immediately, verifying that all children were ~~all~~ accounted for and that the visual sweep was conducted.

3. Upon arrival at the destination, a second staff member shall:

a. ~~C~~onduct a physical inspection and visual sweep of the vehicle to ensure that no child is left in the vehicle, and

b. ~~S~~ign, date and record the driver's log immediately, verifying that all children were accounted for and that the driver's log is complete.

(g) No change.

(9) Planned and Unplanned Activities.

(a) Each age group or class must have a written and followed plan of scheduled activities posted in a conspicuous location ~~place~~ accessible to the custodial parents or legal guardian. The written plan must meet the needs of the children being served and include scheduled activities that which:

1. Promote emotional, social, intellectual and physical growth:-

2. Include quiet and active play, both indoors and outdoors:- and

3. No change.

(b) A permission and transportation release form signed by the custodial parent or legal guardian of the children in care must be on file for planned and unplanned activities.

1. A telephone or other means of instant communication shall be available to the operator, employee or other adult responsible for children during all field trips. Cellular phones, two-way radio devices, citizen band radios, and other means of instant communication are acceptable.

2. Emergency medical forms signed by the custodial parent or legal guardian and emergency contact numbers must accompany the children on all field trips.

(10) Child Discipline.

(a) Large family child care homes shall adopt a discipline policy consistent with Section 402.305(12), F.S.

(b) All child care personnel ~~must of the large family child care home shall~~ comply with the large family child care home's written disciplinary policy. Such policies shall include standards that prohibit children from being subjected to discipline which is severe, humiliating, frightening, or associated with food, rest, or toileting. Spanking or any other form of physical punishment is prohibited by all child care personnel.

(c) No change.

(11) LFCCH General Requirements.

(a) Fire Safety. Large family child care homes shall conform to state standards adopted by the State Fire Marshal, Chapter 69A-36, ~~F~~lorida ~~A~~dmistrative ~~C~~ode, Uniform Fire Safety Standards for Child Care Facilities and shall be inspected annually.

(b) No change.

1. A large family child care home must have 35 square feet of usable indoor floor space per child that which does not include bedrooms unless it can be demonstrated that these bedrooms are used as multipurpose activity rooms.

2. Usable indoor floor space refers to that space available for indoor play and activities. Usable indoor floor space is calculated by measuring at floor level from interior walls and by deleting space for stairways, toilets and bath facilities, permanent fixtures and non-movable furniture. Kitchens, offices, laundry rooms, storage areas, hallways, and other areas not used in normal day-to-day operations are not included when calculating usable indoor floor space.

3. Shelves or storage for toys and other materials shall be considered as usable indoor floor space if accessible to children.

4. No change.

5. Large family child care homes shall make available toys, equipment and furnishings suitable to each child's age and development and of a quantity suitable for each child to be involved in activities.

6. No change.

(c) No change.

1. At all large family child care homes, the outdoor play space shall maintain safe and adequate ~~be fenced, or walls,~~ a minimum of four (4) feet in height. Fencing, including gates, must be continuous and shall not have gaps that would allow children to exit the outdoor play area. The base of the fence must remain at ground level, free from erosion or buildup, to prevent inside or outside access by children or animals.

2. All large family child care homes must have a minimum of 270 square feet of usable outdoor play space located on their property and which is exclusively used for the children attending or residing at the large family child care home. Large family child care homes caring only for infants under 12 months of age, shall not be required to have an outdoor play space; however, infants in care shall be provided opportunities for outdoor time each day that weather permits.

3. No change.

4. All playground equipment shall be securely anchored, unless portable or stationary by design, in good repair, maintained in safe condition, and placed to ensure safe usage by the children. Maintenance shall include checks, at least every other month, of all supports, above and below the ground, all connectors, and moving parts.

5. Permanent or stationary playground equipment must have a ground cover or other protective surface under the equipment ~~that which~~ provides resilience and is maintained to reduce the incidence of injuries to children in the event of falls.

6. All equipment, fences, and objects on the large family child care home's premises shall be free from ~~of~~ sharp, broken and jagged edges and properly placed to prevent overcrowding or safety hazards in any one (1) area.

7. No change.

(d) No change.

1. The operator shall prepare an emergency evacuation plan including a diagram of safe routes by which the operator, employee and children may exit each area of the home in the event of fire or other emergency requiring evacuation. This plan shall be posted or shared with the employees, custodial and parents, and/or legal guardians.

2. ~~In addition to conducting fire drills as specified in 65C-20.010(3)(b)4., F.A.C.,~~ the large family child care home shall maintain and retain a written the fire drill record of monthly fire drills as specified in subparagraph 65C-20.010(3)(b)4., F.A.C. on the premises for twelve months.

~~(12) LFCCH Enforcement. Pursuant to Section 402.3131, F.S., the department or local licensing agency shall deny, suspend, revoke a license, or impose an administrative fine for the violation of any provision of ss. 402.301-.319, F.S., or rules adopted thereunder.~~

(a) No change.

(b) Child Safety. Pursuant to Section 402.301, F.S., acts or omissions that meet the definition of child abuse or neglect constitute a violation of the standards in Section 402.301-.309, F.S.

Specific Authority 402.3131 FS. Law Implemented 402.302, 402.305, 402.3131 FS. History--New 5-21-00, Amended 1-4-01, 7-13-03, 9-12-04, _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Carrie Pafford, Government Operations Consultant II
 NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Don Winstead, Deputy Secretary
 DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: June 26, 2006
 DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: January 13, 2006

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES

Family Safety and Preservation Program

RULE NOS:	RULE TITLES:
65C-22.001	General Information
65C-22.002	Physical Environment
65C-22.003	Training
65C-22.004	Health Related Requirements
65C-22.005	Food and Nutrition

65C-22.006	Record Keeping
65C-22.007	Evening Child Care
65C-22.008	School-Age Child Care

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The proposed amendments by the Child Care Program Office (CCPO) of the Florida Department of Children and Families (DCF) to F.A.C. Chapter 65C-22, F.A.C., are necessary for the uniform and proper administration and enforcement of State of Florida child care training and licensure policies and procedures.

The granting of rule writing authority to the CCPO of all Child Development Associate Equivalency (CDAE) programs by the legislature in 2004 as well as the statewide Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten (VPK) initiative in 2005, warrant the amendments to the rule in the area of child care personnel training in order to provide clarification and unwavering guidance to the public on the "staff credential" policy required by the State in child care facilities.

The rule amendments in the area of child care licensing are necessary for the clarification of policies and procedures relating to child safety and health and sanitation issues and to preserve the public welfare generally.

SUMMARY: Child Care Standards.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 402.302, 402.305 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 402.302, 402.305 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, THE FOLLOWING HEARINGS WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACES SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THESE HEARINGS WILL NOT BE HELD):

DATE AND TIME: August 28, 2006, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Room 361A, Bldg. 6, 3rd Floor, Department of Children and Families, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0700

DATE AND TIME: August 28, 2006, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Room 123, Department of Children and Families, 2295 Victoria Ave., Fort Myers, FL 33901

DATE AND TIME: August 28, 2006, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Room 148, 1st Floor, Department of Children and Families, 210 N. Palmetto Ave., Daytona Beach, FL 32114

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULES IS: Carrie Pafford, Government Operations Consultant II, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Building 6, Room 388, Tallahassee, FL 32399, (850)488-4900

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULES IS:

65C-22.001 General Information.

(1) Application.

(a) ~~Application for a license or for renewal of a license to operate a child care facility~~ must be made on CF-FSP Form 5017, ~~April Feb.~~ 2006~~4~~, Application for a License to Operate a Child Care Facility, which is incorporated by reference. ~~CF-FSP Form 5017 An application~~ may be obtained from the licensing authority or ~~on by going to~~ the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare/information.

(b) Each completed ~~CF-FSP Form 5017 application~~ must be submitted with the licensure fee.

(c) The completed ~~CF-FSP Form 5017 application~~ must be signed by the individual owner, or prospective owner, or the designated representative of a partnership, association, or corporation.

(d) For the purpose of issuing a license, any out-of-state criminal offense, which if committed in Florida, would constitute a disqualifying felony offense, shall be treated as a disqualifying felony offense for screening purposes under this rule.

(e) A completed ~~CF-FSP Form 5017 application~~ for renewal of an annual license must be submitted to the licensing authority at least 45 days prior to the expiration date of the current license to ensure that a lapse of licensure does not occur. ~~The renewal application and required forms may be obtained from the licensing authority.~~

(f) In order to ~~be classified operate~~ as an urban child care facility, the ~~applicant child care facility~~ must ~~obtain written provide~~ documentation ~~from the local governing body that confirms the geographical area has been declared urban. Urban child care facilities at the time of application that the outdoor play space requirement cannot be met, and~~ must receive approval from the licensing authority ~~and provide documentation at the time of application that the outdoor play space requirement cannot be met.~~ An urban child care facility will not be approved if outdoor space is found by the licensing authority to be available.

(2) License.

(a) No change.

(b) ~~At least one (1) week prior to changing ownership of a child care facility, in compliance with Section 402.305(18), F.S., at least one week prior to changing ownership of a child care facility, one (1) of the following methods of notification to custodial parents or legal guardians must be observed:~~

1. Posting a notice in a conspicuous location at the facility;-

2. Incorporating information into any existing newsletter; ~~or~~

3. Individual letters; or fliers.

(3) Minimum Age Requirements.

No change.

(4) Ratios.

(a) The staff-to-children ratio, as established in Section 402.305(4), F.S., is based on primary responsibility for the direct supervision of children and applies at all times while children are in care.

(b) No change.

1. In groups of mixed age ranges, where children under ~~one (1) year of age~~ are included, one ~~(1) staff member~~ shall be responsible for no more than ~~four (4) children~~ of any age group, ~~at all times.~~

2. In groups of mixed age ranges, where children ~~one (1) year of age but under two (2) years of age~~ are included, one ~~(1) staff member~~ shall be responsible for no more than ~~six (6) children~~ of any age group, ~~at all times.~~

~~(c) For every 20 children, a child care facility must have one (1) credentialed staff member pursuant to Section 402.305(3), F.S.~~

(5) Supervision.

(a) Direct supervision means watching and directing children's activities within the same room or designated outdoor play area and responding to ~~the needs of each child's need.~~ Child care personnel at a facility must be assigned to provide direct supervision to a specific group of children and be present with that group of children at all times. When caring for school-age children, child care personnel shall remain responsible for the supervision of the children in care, ~~and~~ capable of responding to emergencies; and are accountable for children at all times, ~~which includes~~ when children are separated from their groups.

(b) During nap time, supervision means sufficient staff ~~are~~ in close proximity, within sight and hearing, of all the children. All other staff ~~required~~ to meet the ~~required~~ staff-to-children ratio shall be within the same building on the same floor and be readily accessible and available to be summoned to ensure the safety of the children. Nap time supervision, as described in this section, does not include supervision of children up to 24 months of age, who must be directly supervised at all times.

(c) No person ~~shall be an operator, owner, or employee of a child care facility~~ while using; or ~~who is~~ under the influence of; narcotics, alcohol, or other ~~impairing~~ drugs ~~that impair an individual's, which affects their~~ ability to provide supervision and safe child care, ~~shall be an operator, owner, or employee in a child care facility.~~

(d) No change.

1. In addition to the number of staff required to meet the staff-to-child ratio, ~~for the purpose of safety,~~ one ~~(1) additional adult~~ must be present on all field trips away from the child care facility, ~~for the purpose of safety,~~ to assist in providing direct supervision.

2. If a child care facility uses a swimming pool ~~that which~~ exceeds ~~three (3) feet~~ in depth or uses beach or lake areas for water activities, the child care facility must provide one ~~(1) person~~ with a certified lifeguard certificate or equivalent;

unless a certified lifeguard is on duty and present when any children are in the swimming area. In situations where the child care facility provides a person with a certified lifeguard certificate or equivalent, that person can also serve as the additional adult to meet the requirement in subparagraph (d)1., above.

3. A telephone or other means of instant communication shall be available to staff responsible for children during all field trips. Cellular phones, two-way radio devices, citizen band radios, and other means of instant communication are acceptable.

(6) Transportation. For the purpose of this section, vehicles refer to those that are owned/operated or regularly used by the child care facility; and vehicles that provide transportation through a contract or agreement with an outside entity.

(a) When any vehicle is regularly used by a child care facility to provide transportation, the driver shall have a current Florida driver's license, ~~and~~ an annual physical examination which grants medical approval to drive, and valid certificate(s) of course completion for first aid training and infant and child cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) procedures.

(b) All child care facilities must comply with the inspection responsibilities and insurance requirements found in Section 316.615(4), F.S.

(c) All vehicles regularly used to transport children shall be inspected annually; by a mechanic; to ensure proper working order. Documentation by the mechanic shall be maintained in the vehicle.

(d) through (e) No change.

(f) When transporting children, ~~staff-to-child ratios~~ must be maintained at all times. The driver may be included in the ~~staff-to-child ratio~~. Prior to transporting children and upon the vehicle(s) arrival at its destination, the following shall be conducted by the driver(s) of the vehicle(s) used to transport the children:

1. Driver's Log. A log shall be maintained for all children being transported in the vehicle. The log shall be retained for a minimum of four (4) months. The log shall include each child's name, date, time of departure, ~~and~~ time of arrival, signature of driver and signature of second staff member to verify driver's log and the fact that all children have left the vehicle. ~~The log shall be retained for a minimum of four months.~~

2. Upon arrival at the destination, the driver of the vehicle shall:

a. Mark each child off the log as the children departs the vehicle,

b. No change.

c. Sign, date and record the driver's log immediately, verifying that all children were ~~all~~ accounted for and that the visual sweep was conducted.

3. Upon arrival at the destination, a second staff member shall:

a. No change.

b. Sign, date and record the driver's log immediately, verifying that all children were accounted for and that the drivers log is complete.

(7) Planned Activities.

(a) Each age group or class must have a written and followed plan of scheduled activities posted in a conspicuous location ~~place~~ accessible to ~~the~~ parents. The written plan must meet the needs of the children being served and include scheduled activities that which:

1. Promote emotional, social, intellectual and physical growth;-

2. Include quiet and active play, both indoors and outdoors; and-

3. No change.

(b) Parents must be advised in advance of each field trip activity. The date, time and location of the field trip must be posted in a conspicuous location at least two (2) working days prior to each field trip. Written parental permission must be obtained, ~~either~~ in the form of a general permission slip, ~~or prior to each field trip activity.~~ If special circumstances arise where notification of an event cannot be posted for two (2) working days, ~~then~~ individual permission slips must be obtained from the custodial each parent or legal guardian. Documentation of parental permission for field trips shall be maintained for a minimum of four (4) months from the date of each field trip.

(8) Child Discipline.

(a) Verification that the child care facility has provided, in writing, the disciplinary policy practices used by the facility shall be documented on the enrollment form; with the signature of the custodial parent or legal guardian.

(b) All child care personnel ~~of the child care facility~~ must comply with the facility's written disciplinary policy practices. Such policies shall include standards that prohibit children from being subjected to discipline which is severe, humiliating, frightening, or associated with food, rest, or toileting. Spanking or any other form of physical punishment is prohibited by all child care personnel.

(c) A copy of the facility's current written disciplinary policy practices must be available to the licensing authority to review for compliance with Section 402.305(12), F.S.

(9) Access. No change.

(10) Attendance. Daily attendance of children shall be taken and recorded by the child care facility personnel, documenting when each child enters and departs a child care facility or program. Such records shall be maintained for a minimum of four (4) months.

(11) Child Safety. Pursuant to Section 402.301, F.S., acts or omissions that meet the definition of child abuse or neglect provided in Chapter 39, F.S., constitute a violation of the standards in Section 402.301-.309, F.S.

Specific Authority 402.281, 402.305 FS. Law Implemented 402.281, 402.305, 402.3055, 402.308 FS. History--New 6-1-97, Amended 3-17-99, 7-26-00, 1-4-01, 7-13-03, 9-12-04, _____.

65C-22.002 Physical Environment.

(1) General Requirements.

(a) All child care facilities must be clean, in good repair, and free from health and safety hazards, ~~clean~~, and ~~free~~ from vermin infestation. During the hours that the facility is in operation, no portion of the building shall be used for any activity which endangers the health and safety of ~~the~~ children.

(b) All areas and surfaces accessible to children shall be free from ~~of~~ toxic substances and hazardous materials.

(c) Animals must be properly immunized, free from ~~of~~ disease, and clean. Parents must be informed in writing of all animals on the premises. Such information may be provided by way of a conspicuously posted notice or bulletin, policy handbook, parent flier, or a statement included on the enrollment form.

(d) All potentially harmful items including cleaning supplies, flammable products, poisonous, toxic, and hazardous materials must be labeled. These items, as well as knives, ~~and~~ sharp tools and other potentially dangerous hazards, shall be stored in a locked container or a locked area that is inaccessible to children in locations inaccessible to the children in care.

(e) through (g) No change.

(h) Design and construction of a new child care facility or modifications to an existing facility; must meet the minimum requirements of the applicable local governing body.

(2) Rooms Occupied by Children.

(a) All rooms must have and maintain lighting the equivalent of 20 foot candles at three (3) feet from the floor to allow for supervision and for safe methods of entering and exiting each room. In reading, painting, and other close work areas, lighting must be equivalent to 50 foot candles on the work surface. At all times lighting must be sufficient to visually observe and supervise children, including during naptime.

(b) An inside temperature of 65° to 82° degrees Fahrenheit; must be maintained at all times.

(c) through (d) No change.

(3) Indoor Floor Space.

(a) No change.

(b) Usable indoor floor space refers to that space available for indoor play, classroom, work area, or nap space. Usable indoor floor space, for the facility as a whole, is calculated by measuring at floor level from interior walls and by deleting space for stairways, toilets and bath facilities, permanent fixtures and non-movable furniture. Kitchens, offices, laundry rooms, storage areas, hallways, and other areas not used in normal day-to-day operations are not included when calculating usable indoor floor space.

(c) In addition to the total facility minimum square footage per child, each room that is routinely occupied by children must also have a minimum of 20 square feet or 35 square feet (whichever is applicable) per child at all times.

(d)(e) Shelves or storage for toys and other materials shall be considered as usable indoor floor space if accessible to children.

(e)(d) Where infants are in care, they shall have open indoor floor space outside of cribs and playpens. The space used for play may be interchangeable with space used for cribs and play pens.

(4) Outdoor Play Area.

(a) There shall be a minimum of ~~forty-five (45)~~ square feet of usable, safe and sanitary outdoor play area per child, one (1) year of age and older. A minimum outside play area shall be provided for one-half (1/2) of this identified population.

(b) The outdoor play area shall be calculated at the rate of ~~forty-five (45)~~ square feet per child in any group using the play area at one (1) time.

(c) The outdoor play area shall be clean, free from ~~of~~ litter, nails, glass and other hazards.

1. through 2. No change.

(d) No change.

(e) The outdoor play area shall have and maintain safe and adequate fencing or walls a minimum of four (4) feet in height. Fencing, including gates, must be continuous and shall not have gaps that would allow children to exit the outdoor play area. The base of the fence must remain at ground level; and be free from erosion or build-up; to prevent inside or outside access by children or animals.

(f) through (g) No change.

(h) For the purposes of child care facilities who are providing care to school-age children, a fence is not required if all the following conditions are met:

1. The children using the outdoor play area are in five-year-old kindergarten and grades one (1) or above;

2. In addition to the established staff-to-children ratios, for the purpose of safety, an additional staff member is present, during all times of outdoor activities, to assist in providing direct supervision;

3. The outdoor play area is bordered by a road or street open to travel by the public with a posted or unposted speed limit of no more than 25 miles per hour, or where the posted or unposted speed limit is no greater than 35 miles per hour and the playground is a minimum of 30 feet from the edge of the road; and

4. The licensing authority has provided written authorization to the program to operate without a fence.

(5) Napping and Sleeping Space. For the purposes of these standards, sleeping refers to the normal ~~overnight~~ time sleep cycle while napping refers to a brief period of rest during daylight or early evening hours.

(a) Each facility must include a designated area where each child can sit quietly ~~or and~~ lie down to rest or nap. When not in use, napping space and usable indoor floor space may be used interchangeably.

(b) Each child in care must be provided safe and sanitary bedding to be used when napping or sleeping. Bedding means a cot, bed, crib, playpen, mattress (excluding an air mattress or a foam mattress) or floor mat. Floor mats must be at least one (1) inch thick and covered with an impermeable surface. Floor mats, foam mattresses, air mattresses, and playpens may not be used for care when children are sleeping. Bedding must be appropriate for the child's size. Bedding is not required for school-age children; however, the program or facility shall provide an area as described in paragraph 65C-22.002(5)(a), F.A.C., for those children choosing to rest.

(c) Linens, if used, must be laundered at least once each week and more often if soiled or dirty. Linens, if used for more than one (1) child shall be laundered between usage. Linens must be provided when children are sleeping and pillows and blankets must be available.

(d) No change.

(e) A minimum distance of ~~eighteen (18)~~ inches must be maintained around individual napping and sleeping spaces. Exit areas must remain clear in accordance with fire safety regulations.

(f) Children up to one (1) year of age must be in their own crib, portacrib or playpen with sides. Crib sides must be raised and secured while an infant is in the crib and bar spacings may not exceed two and three-eighths (2 3/8) inches. Cribs must meet the construction regulations as outlined in Title 16, Parts 1508 & 1509, Code of Federal Regulations. No double or multi-deck cribs, cots or beds may be used. When napping or sleeping, young infants that are not capable of rolling over on their own should be positioned on their back and on a firm surface to reduce the risk of Sudden Infant Death Syndrome (SIDS), unless an alternate position is authorized in writing by a physician. The documentation shall be maintained in the child's record. Crib sides must be raised and secured while an infant is in the crib. Cribs must meet the construction regulations as outlined in Title 16, Parts 1508 & 1509, Code of Federal Regulations.

(g) When napping or sleeping, young infants that are not capable of rolling over on their own should be positioned on their back and on a firm surface to reduce the risk of Sudden Infant Death Syndrome (SIDS) unless an alternate position is authorized in writing by a physician. The documentation shall be maintained in the child's record. No double or multi-deck cribs, cots or beds may be used.

(6) Toilet and Bath Facilities.

(a) Each child care facility shall provide and maintain toilet and bath facilities ~~that, which~~ are easily accessible and at a height usable by the children. Platforms are acceptable when safely constructed and easily cleaned and sanitized.

(b) For facilities having from one (1) to ~~15 fifteen~~ children, there shall be one (1) toilet and one (1) wash basin. There shall be one (1) additional toilet and basin for every ~~30 thirty~~ children thereafter. For design and construction of a new child care facility or modification to an existing facility, paragraph 65C-22.002(1)(~~h~~)(~~+~~), F.A.C., shall apply.

1. If only diapered infants are cared for in the facility, ~~then there need be only one (1) toilet plus two (2) basins per 30 for each thirty infants is required.~~

2. No change.

(c) through (d) No change.

(e) At least one (1) portable or permanent bath facility shall be provided and be available for bathing children.

(f) Running water, soap, trash receptacles, toilet paper, and disposable towels or hand drying machines that are properly installed and maintained, soap and trash receptacles shall be available and within reach of children using the toileting facility.

(g) No change.

(7) Fire Safety.

(a) No change.

(b) There shall be at least one (1) corded telephone in the child care facility ~~that which~~ is neither locked nor located at a pay station and is available to all staff during the hours of operation.

(c) Fire drills shall be conducted monthly at various times and shall be conducted when children are in care. A current attendance record must accompany staff out of the building during a drill or actual evacuation and be used to account for all children.

(d) The operator shall maintain a written record of monthly fire drills showing the date, number of children in attendance, and time taken to evacuate the premises. Each monthly record shall be maintained for a minimum of four (4) months from the date of the fire drill.

(8) Health and Sanitation.

(a) General Requirements.

1. No change.

2. Following personal hygiene procedures for themselves or when assisting others, and immediately after outdoor play, Employees, volunteers, and children shall wash their hands with soap and running water, drying thoroughly and follow personal hygiene procedures for themselves, or while assisting others, and immediately after outdoor play.

3. No change.

4. If ~~the~~ children are sleeping overnight in the facility, child care staff must ensure accepted bedtime routines are practiced, such as brushing teeth and face and hand washing. Toothbrushes, towels and wash cloths may not be shared.

(b) Diapering Requirements.

1. Hand washing facilities ~~that which~~ include a basin with running water, soap, trash receptacle, and disposable towels or hand drying machines that are properly installed and maintained; ~~soap, and trash receptacle shall be provided maintained~~ in the infant room or in an adjoining room which opens into the room where infants or children with special needs in diapers are in care. Hands shall be washed and dried thoroughly after each diapering or toileting procedure. Handwashing sinks shall not be used for food service preparation or food clean up.

2. When children in diapers are in care, there shall be a diaper changing area with an impermeable surface ~~that which~~ is cleaned with a sanitizing solution after each use. Children must be attended at all times when being diapered or when changing clothes.

3. ~~The d~~Diaper changing area shall be located in a separate area from the feeding or food preparation, service and feeding area. In addition, items unrelated to diaper changing shall not be stored in the diaper changing area nor shall they be placed on the diaper changing table.

4. There shall be a supply of clean diapers, clothing and linens at all times. When diapers, clothing or linens that are in use become soiled or wet, they shall be changed immediately or removed and properly disposed of, which shall be changed or removed promptly when soiled or wet.

5. Soiled disposable diapers shall be disposed of in a plastic lined, securely covered container ~~that, which~~ is not accessible to children. The container shall be emptied and sanitized, at least, daily.

6. Soiled cloth diapers shall be emptied of feces in the toilet and placed in a securely covered container ~~that which~~ is not accessible to children. The container shall be emptied and sanitized, at least, daily.

(9) Equipment and Furnishings.

(a) Indoor Equipment.

1. through 2. No change.

(b) Outdoor Equipment.

1. A child care facility shall provide and maintain equipment and play activities suitable to each child's age and development.

2. All playground equipment shall be securely anchored, unless portable or stationary by design, in good repair, maintained in safe condition, and placed to ensure safe usage by the children. Maintenance shall include checks, at least every other month, of all supports; above and below the ground; and all connectors; and moving parts.

3. Permanent or stationary playground equipment must have a ground cover or other protective surface under the equipment ~~that which~~ provides resilience and is maintained to reduce the incidence of injuries to children in the event of falls.

4. All equipment, fences, and objects on the facility's premises shall be free from ~~of~~ sharp, broken and jagged edges and properly placed to prevent overcrowding or safety hazards in any one (1) area.

5. No change.

Specific Authority ~~402.301, 402.305 FS. Law Implemented 402.301, 402.305 FS. History--New 6-1-97, Amended 7-2-98, 3-17-99, 7-13-03, 9-12-04, 6-30-05,~~_____.

65C-22.003 Training.

(1) Definitions.

(a) "Active" refers to the status of a candidate's awarded credential or certification in which requirements have been successfully met. "CDA" Child Development Associate is a national credential, recognized throughout the United States and the world, issued by the Council for Early Childhood Professional Recognition in Washington, DC.

(b) "Before-school and after-school site" refers to a program, regardless of location, that provides child care for children who are at least five (5) years old and are enrolled in and attend a kindergarten program or grades one (1) and above during a school district's calendar year. This is limited to programs that provide care only before and after the recognized hours of a district's school day and on teacher planning days, holidays, and intercessions that occur during the school district's official calendar year. "State Approved CDA Equivalency" is a training program that has been approved by the Department of Children and Family Services as meeting or exceeding the criteria established for an equivalency program.

(c) "Begin training for child care personnel" refers to a candidate's commencement of at least one (1) of the child care training courses listed in Section 402.305(2)(d), F.S. This may be accomplished by classroom attendance, acquiring an educational exemption from training, beginning a department-approved online child care training course, or by completion of a department-approved competency examination within the first 90 days of employment in the child care industry. The child care facility is responsible for obtaining documentation from child care personnel.

~~(d)(e)~~ "Director," pursuant to for the purpose of this section and consistent with the statutory definition of "operator," in Section 402.302(11), F.S., is refers to the onsite administrator or individual of a child care facility who has the primary responsibility for the day-to-day operation, supervision and administration of a the child care facility.

~~(e)(f)~~ "Director Credential" is means a department-approved comprehensive credentialing program that consistsing of two levels of education and experiential requirements as referenced outlined in paragraph subsection 65C-22.003(8)(a), F.A.C.

~~(e)~~ "Before school and after school sites" for the purposes of this section means, programs, no matter their location, providing child care for children who are five years old and

above, when they are enrolled in and attending a kindergarten program or grades one and above, during the school district's calendar year. This is limited to programs providing care before and after the school day, only, teacher planning days, holidays, and intercessions that occur during the school district's official calendar year.

(f) "Begin training for child care personnel" means to commence coursework by attendance, by educational exemption, or by completing a competency examination for one of the statutorily mandated child care training modules. The begin date for training is the initial date an individual commences training in the child care field.

(f) "Early childhood education" refers to coursework, certification, a credential or degree that specializes in children ages birth through eight (8).

(g) "Expired" refers to the status of a candidate's awarded credential or certification that is not eligible for renewal.

(h) "Florida Child Care Professional Credential (FCCPC)," pursuant to Section 402.305(3)(b), F.S., is a department-approved training program that consists of a minimum of 120 hours of early childhood instruction, 480 contact hours with children ages birth through eight (8) and at least two (2) methods of formal assessment that offers two (2) areas of certification: "Birth Through Five (formerly the department approved CDA Equivalency training programs)" and "School-Age (formerly the Florida School-Age Certification)." A list of approved and recognized FCCPC programs may be obtained on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare.

(i) "Florida Department of Education Child Care Apprenticeship Certificate (CCAC)" is a department approved child care credential that consists of a minimum of 120 hours of early childhood instruction and 480 contact hours with children ages birth through eight (8) and meets or exceeds the requirements outlined in Section 402.305(3)(c), F.S. A list of approved and recognized DOE programs may be obtained on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare.

(j) "Florida Department of Education Early Childhood Professional Certificate (ECPC)" is a department approved child care credential that consists of a minimum of 120 hours of early childhood instruction and 480 contact hours with children ages birth through eight (8) and meets or exceeds the requirements outlined in Section 402.305(3)(c), F.S. A list of approved and recognized DOE programs may be obtained on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare.

(k) "Florida Department of Education School-Age Professional Certificate (SAPC)" is a department approved child care credential that consists of a minimum of 120 hours of early childhood instruction and 480 contact hours with school-age children and meets or exceeds the requirements outlined in Section 402.305(3)(c), F.S. A list of approved and

recognized DOE programs may be obtained on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare.

(l) "Inactive" refers to the status of a candidate's awarded credential or certification that remains eligible for renewal.

(m) "National Early Childhood Credential (NECC)" pursuant to Section 402.305(3)(c), F.S., is an early childhood credential approved by the department and recognized by licensing authorities in at least five (5) states that incorporates 120 hours of early childhood instruction, 480 contact hours with children ages birth through eight (8) and includes at least two (2) methods of formal assessment. This includes the Child Development Associate (CDA) credential issued by the Council for Professional Recognition in Washington, DC. A list of approved and recognized NECC programs may be obtained on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare.

(n) ~~(g)~~ "Training Transcript" is the official electronic documentation of ~~for~~ statutorily mandated training and staff credentialing qualifications requirements for ~~of all~~ child care personnel. Training transcripts may ~~can~~ be obtained on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare, downloaded and printed by the individual if desired or will be issued to the individual if requested.

(o) "Weighted score" means a scaled score, rather than a percentage score, based on the difficulty of the exam and determined by competency exam professionals in consultation with subject matter experts.

(2) Training Requirements.

(a) Child care personnel hired on or after October 1, 1992 must successfully complete the Department of Children and Family Services' 40 hour Introductory Child Care Training, as evidenced by successful completion of competency based examinations offered by the Department of Children and Family Services or its designated representative with a weighted score of 70 or better. Child care personnel who successfully completed the mandatory 40 hour Introductory Child Care Training prior to January 1, 2004 are not required to fulfill the competency examination requirement.

1. All child care personnel must complete training within 12 months from the date training begins and may not exceed 15 months from the date of employment in the child care industry.

2. ~~(a)~~ The 40 hour Introductory Child Care Training requirement is divided into two (2) parts. Part I is comprised of 30 hours of training that consists of the Department of Children and Family Services' training courses modules, developed by the department, identified below:

a. ~~1.~~ Child Care Facility State & Local Rules and Regulations;

b. ~~2.~~ Health, Safety, and Nutrition;

c. ~~3.~~ Identifying and Reporting Child Abuse and Neglect;

- ~~d.4.~~ Child Growth ~~and~~ & Development; and
- ~~e.5.~~ Behavioral Observation and Screening.

~~3.(b)~~ Part II is comprised of 10 hours of training ~~that~~, consisting of a selection from the Department of Children and Family Services' specialized training ~~courses~~ ~~modules~~, developed by the department, identified below:

- ~~a.1.~~ Infant and Toddler Appropriate Practices (10 hours);
- ~~b.2.~~ Preschool Appropriate Practices (10 hours);
- ~~c.3.~~ School-Age Appropriate Practices (10 hours);
- ~~d.4.~~ Special Needs Appropriate Practices (10 hours);
- ~~e.5.~~ Basic Guidance and Discipline (5 hours ~~online web based~~);
- ~~f.6.~~ Computer Technology for Child Care Professionals (5 hours ~~online web based~~); and
- ~~g.7.~~ Early Literacy for Children Age Birth to Three (5 hours ~~online web based~~);
- ~~h.~~ Early Childhood Computer Learning Centers (5 hours ~~online~~), or
- ~~i.~~ Emergent Literacy for Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten (VPK) Instructors (5 hours ~~online~~).

~~(e)~~ Child care personnel hired on or after October 1, 1992, must successfully complete Part I and Part II of the Department of Children and Family Services' 40-hour Introductory Child Care Training requirement. Successful completion of the 40-hour training requirement is evidenced by passage of competency examinations with a score of seventy (70) or better. Child care personnel who have completed the mandatory 40-hour Introductory Child Care Training prior to the availability of the competency examinations will not be required to complete the competency based testing.

~~(b)(d)~~ Pursuant to Section 402.305(2)(d)5., F.S., all child care personnel must complete a single course ~~5 clock hours~~ or ~~5 continuing education units (CEU's)~~ of training in early literacy and language development of children ~~ages~~ birth through to five (5) years of age. Literacy training must be a single class or course that is a minimum of no less than five (5) clock-hours or .5 CEUs in duration and focuses on early literacy and language development of children from birth to 5 years of age.

~~1.~~ All child care personnel employed on or before December 31, 2004, shall complete ~~5 clock hours~~ or ~~5 documented continuing education units (CEU) of training~~ in early literacy and language development of children from birth to 5 years of age, as documented on the certificate of course completion, classroom transcript, or diploma; by June 30, 2005.

~~1.2.~~ All child care personnel ~~must~~ hired on or after January 1, 2005, shall complete early literacy training within 12 months of date of employment ~~in the child care industry~~. Proof of completion will be documented on the certificate of course completion, classroom transcript, or diploma.

~~2.3.~~ In order to meet the literacy training ~~this~~ requirement, child care personnel must complete one (1) of the following:

- a. ~~One (1) of t~~The department's online literacy courses available on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare/training; or
- b. ~~One (1) of the department's approved literacy training courses.~~ A training course from the Department of Children and Family Services' list of ~~these courses may approved literacy training programs, which can be obtained from~~ accessed by contacting the licensing authority or on by going to the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare/training. ~~The Department of Children and Family Services will continue to approve literacy courses through May 31, 2005. After this date, no additional courses will be approved by the department) added to the list;~~ or
- c. One (1) college level early literacy course (for credit or non-credit) if taken (for credit or non-credit) within the last five (5) years.

~~4.~~ Literacy training that was taken between July 1, 1999 and July 1, 2004, will be accepted by the licensing authority if it meets all the required components stated above.

~~(e)~~ Training transcripts are updated upon the successful completion of training, as evidenced by the passage of a competency examination. Competency examinations will be offered by the Department of Children and Family Services or its designated representative.

~~1.~~ The successful completion of Part I and Part II modules will be documented on either CF-FSP Form 5267, May 2003, or the Department of Children and Family Services' child care training transcript.

~~2.~~ A copy of the certificate or training transcript must be included in the child care personnel record and maintained at each facility.

~~3.~~ A copy of the certificate or training transcript for the director and owner must be included in the department's official licensing file.

~~(3)~~ Exemptions from the Introductory Child Care Training.

~~(a)~~ Competency Examination Exemptions. ~~Prior to attending the training,~~ Child care personnel have one (1) opportunity, if they choose, to exempt from one (1) or more any of the ~~department's 40-hour~~ Introductory Child Care Training ~~courses~~ ~~modules~~ prior to attending training by successfully completing of corresponding competency examinations with a ~~weighted~~ score of seventy (70) or better. Examination ~~E~~xemptions ~~examinations~~ are not available for the ~~d~~Department's ~~online~~ of Children and Family Services' ~~web based~~ Part II specialized training ~~courses~~ ~~modules~~.

~~(b)~~ Educational Exemptions.

~~1.~~ The Department of Children and Family Services or its designated representative shall exempt child care personnel with one of the following educational qualifications, from the

Health, Safety and Nutrition; Child Growth and Development; and Behavioral Observation and Screening courses who meet one (1) of the following educational qualifications Modules:

a. Associate's Two-year degree or higher with six (6) college credit hours in early childhood/child growth and development or degree in elementary education with certification to teach any age birth through 6th grade.

b. An active National Early Childhood Credential (NECC) or an active Birth Through Five Florida Child Care Professional Credential (FCCPC), Child Development Associate credential, state-approved Florida CDA Equivalency course.

2. The Department of Children and Family Services or its designated representative shall exempt child care personnel with a B.A., B.S. or advanced degree in Early Childhood Education or Preschool Education from the Infant and Toddler Appropriate Practices course module and Preschool Appropriate Practices course module.

3. The Department of Children and Family Services or its designated representative shall exempt child care personnel with a B.A., B.S. or advanced degree in Elementary Education from the School-Age Appropriate Practices course module.

4. The Department of Children and Family Services or its designated representative shall exempt child care personnel with a B.A., B.S. or advanced degree in Exceptional Student Education from the Special Needs Appropriate Practices course module.

5. There are no educational exemptions from the Child Care Facility Rules and Regulations and the Identifying and Reporting Child Abuse and Neglect courses or from the department's online training courses.

(4) Documentation of Training. Training successfully completed successfully after July 1, 2004 will be documented on the child care training transcript only. Training completed prior to July 1, 2004 may be documented either on the child care training transcript or on CF-FSP 5267, April 2006, Child Care Training Course Completion Certificate, which is incorporated by reference.

(a) A copy of the CF-FSP Form 5267 or training transcript must be included in each staff member's child care personnel record and maintained at each child care facility.

(b) A copy of the CF-FSP Form 5267 or training transcript for the director of a child care facility must be included in the department's official licensing file.

(5) Child Care Trainer Qualifications. Qualified Child care professionals approved to teach the Department of Children and Family Services' Child Care Training courses modules must meet, at a minimum, must meet the following qualifications:

(a) Be At least 21 years of age old.

(b) Have cCompleted the department's six (6)clock-hour Train-the-Trainer course developed by the Department of Children and Family Services.

(c) Meet one (1) of the following educational and experiential credentials verified by the Department of Children and Family Services or its designated representative:

1. Four (4) year college degree or higher with six (6) college credit hours in early childhood education/child growth and development and, plus, 480 hours experience in a child care setting serving children ages birth through eight (8), years of age or a professional educator teaching certificate.

2. Associate's-S. or A.A. degree in Early Childhood Education or Child Ddevelopment and, plus 480 hours experience in a child care setting serving children ages birth through eight (8) years of age.

3. Associate's degree with six (6) college credit hours in early childhood/child growth and development and, plus 960 hours experience in a child care setting serving children ages birth through eight (8) years of age.

4. Four (4) year college degree with a professional educator certificate and employed by a school district in the state of Florida to teach Early Childhood Education in the Family and Consumer Sciences Program.

5. ~~(d)~~ Family child care trainers may meet the qualifications referenced listed above in paragraph 65C-22.003(5)(c), F.A.C., or the following qualifications: a high school diploma or GED, a National Early Childhood Credential CDA or a department state approved Birth Through Five FCCPC Florida CDA equivalent, and three (3) years of full-time experience in licensed family child care within the past five (5) years, and completion of the 6-clock-hour Train-the-Trainer course developed by the department.

(d)(e) The Department of Children and Family Services or its designated representative may require a trainer to attend a specific child care training course module prior to being approved.

(6) Annual In-Service Training.

(a) All child care facility personnel; must complete a minimum of 10 clock-hours or one (1) CEU of in-service training or 1 CEU, annually during the state's fiscal year beginning July 1 and ending June 30.

(b) The annual 10 clock-hours or one (1) CEU of in-service training concentrating on children ages birth through 12 or 1 CEU, must be completed in one (1) or more of the following areas (college level courses will be accepted):

1. Health and safety; including universal precautions;

2. No change.

3. First Aid (this training may only be taken to meet the in-service requirement once every three (3) years);

4. through 13. No change.

14. SPlayground safety in outdoor play;

15. through 19. No change.

20. Homework assistance for school-age care;

21. through 22. No change.

(c) Documentation of the in-service training requirement must be recorded on CF-FSP Form 5268, ~~April 2006 Feb. 04,~~ Child Care In-Service Training Record, which is incorporated by reference, and included in the child care facilities' personnel records. CF-FSP 5268 may be obtained from the licensing authority or ~~on by going to~~ the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare/training. A new in-service training record is required each fiscal year. ~~In addition to maintaining the training record for the current fiscal year,~~ The in-service training records for the previous two (2) fiscal years must also be maintained at the child care facility for review by the licensing authority. ~~College-level courses that cover the topics above may also be counted to meet the annual in-service training requirement.~~

(7) Staff Credentials.

(a) Staff Credential Requirement. Pursuant to Section 402.305(3), F.S., ~~a~~ Every licensed child care facility must have one (1) credentialed staff member of its child care personnel for every 20 children, ~~with one of the following qualifications:~~

1. A credentialed staff member is defined as a child care professional who has been issued a CF-FSP Form 5206, April 2006, Staff Credential Verification, which is incorporated by reference, by the department.

2. To apply for a CF-FSP Form 5206, a candidate must complete CF-FSP Form 5211, April 2006, Staff Credential Application, which is incorporated by reference, copies of which may be obtained on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare, and meet one (1) of the following six (6) qualifications as cited on CF-FSP Form 5211:

a.1. An active National Early Childhood Development Associate (CDA) Credential (NECC).

b.2. Formal Educational Qualifications. Procedures for individuals with an associate level (2 year) degree or higher seeking the credentialing requirement are outlined on CF-FSP Form 5211, April 05, Child Care Personnel Education/Employment History Verification Form, which is incorporated by reference. CF-FSP Form 5211 may be obtained on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare/training.

c.3. An active Birth Through Five state-approved Florida Child Care Professional CDA Equivalency (CDAE) Credential awarded by successful completion of a Birth Through Five FCCPC Training Program as documented on CF-FSP Form 5270, April 2006, Florida Child Care Professional Credential Certificate, which is incorporated by reference. A list of approved programs is maintained on the Department of Children and Family Service's website at www.myflorida.com/childcare.

d. An active Florida Department of Education Child Care Apprenticeship Certificate (CCAC), Early Childhood Professional Certificate (ECPC) (formerly CDA Equivalent), or School-Age Professional Certificate (SAPC) (formerly School-Age Certification Training).

~~a. Early Childhood Education Training Programs seeking equivalency to the CDA should submit a completed CF-FSP Form 5191, April 05, Application for Child Development Associate (CDA) Equivalency for Training Programs, which is incorporated by reference, to the Department of Children and Family Services for approval. CF-FSP Form 5191 may be obtained on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare/training.~~

~~b. The criterion for programs wishing to be recognized as a state approved CDA Equivalency is determined by the Department of Children and Family Services and is outlined on the Application for Child Development Associate (CDA) Equivalency Training Programs, CF-FSP 5191.~~

~~c. The Department of Children and Family Services will only approve CDA Equivalency programs that are accredited by one of the national or regional accreditation organizations recognized by the United States Department of Education or licensed by the Florida Commission for Independent Education.~~

4. Employment History Recognition Exemption:

~~a. In addition to the requirements and time frames established in statute (a person employed in a child care facility on July 1, 1995, who has a high school diploma or its equivalent and has at least 10 years of documented experience, as determined by the department, in child care between July 1, 1980 and July 1, 1995, or 10 years of teaching experience in early childhood education through grade 3 in a public or private school since July 1, 1980, meets the minimum staff credential requirement), employment history experience must include a minimum of 15 hours per week per year or 540 hours per year working with children in a licensed, registered or exempt child care program as defined in Section 402.301, F.S., or teaching experience in a public or private school.~~

~~b. Documentation of employment history recognition must include notarized letters indicating previous employment or other forms of documentation such as W-2 forms, licensing records, or income tax return forms for each place of employment.~~

e.5. An active Florida School-Age Florida Child Care Professional Credential Certification awarded by successful completion of a School-Age FCCPC Training Program as documented on CF-FSP Form 5270. A list of approved programs is maintained on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www/myflorida.com/childcare. Graduates who successfully complete a school-age training program offered by a branch of the U.S. Military will be recognized as having met the School-Age FCCPC requirement.

A School-Age FCCPC will not be accepted to meet the minimum staff credential requirements for Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten (VPK).

f. Employment History Recognition Exemption. An Employment History Recognition Exemption will not be accepted to meet the minimum staff credential requirements for Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten (VPK) or towards a Director Credential. Applications for Employment History Recognition Exemption will not be accepted after July 1, 2006.

a. Training providers seeking to offer the Florida School Age Certification Training Program must utilize the Florida School Age Certification Training Program as approved by the Department of Children and Family Services and must apply for approval on CF-FSP Form 5257, April 05, Application to Provide the Florida School Age Certification Training Program, which is incorporated by reference. The application may be obtained on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare/training. Effective July 1, 2005, The Department of Children and Family Services will only approve Florida School Age Certification Training Programs that are accredited by one of the national or regional accreditation organizations recognized by the United States Department of Education or licensed by the Florida Commission for Independent Education.

b. In order to receive the Florida School Age Certification, a candidate must have completed the Department of Children and Family Services, Florida School Age Certification Training Program, which consists of the following:

(I) A total of 120 hours of training consisting of successful completion of Part I of the training for School Age Child Care Personnel identified in paragraphs 65C-22.008(4)(a) and (b), F.A.C.; and a minimum of 80 clock hours of training using the Department of Children and Family Services approved curriculum, which focuses on the following six competency areas:

(A) Establishment and maintenance of a safe and healthy learning environment.

(B) The advancement of physical and intellectual competence.

(C) The support of social and emotional development and provision of positive guidance.

(D) The establishment of positive and productive relationships with families.

(E) Ensuring a well-run, purposeful program responsive to participant's needs.

(F) The maintenance of a commitment to professionalism.

(H) A portfolio containing an autobiographical statement, written examples demonstrating mastery of each of the school-age competency subject areas, and a collection of resource materials as identified in the Department of Children

and Family Services, Florida School Age Certification Training Portfolio and Resource Materials Checklist, CF-FSP Form 5258, Oct. 01, which is incorporated by reference.

(H) Formal observation working with children in a school-age setting during the course of the program by a qualified observer.

(IV) 480 hours of direct contact with children in a school-age setting within the past five years.

e. Individuals who are enrolled in an existing school-age certification training program in Florida, prior to January 1, 2002, and who graduate from this training program by January 1, 2003, will be recognized as having met the Florida School Age Certification requirement.

d. Individuals who successfully complete a school-age training program offered by one of the branches of the U.S. Military will be recognized as having met the Florida School Age Certification requirement.

e. Early Childhood Education Training providers that offer the Florida School Age Certification Training Program must complete CF-FSP Form 5259, Oct. 01, Confirmation of Completion of the Florida School Age Certification Training Program, which is incorporated by reference, for each graduate. Training providers must submit the completed CF-FSP Form 5259 for each graduate, to the Department of Children and Family Services or its designated representative for processing upon completion of all components of the Florida School Age Certification Training Program.

f. The Department of Children and Family Services or its designated representative will update the child care training transcript to document the successful completion of the Florida School Age Certification Training Program.

g. To maintain a valid Florida School Age Certification, candidates must complete and document the satisfactory completion of 4.5 Continuing Education Units (CEUs) or one three-hour college credit course in any school-age child care curriculum area, every five years. Coursework completed to renew a State of Florida Teaching Certificate satisfies the coursework requirement for renewal of the Florida School Age Certification. This documentation must be submitted to the Department of Children and Family Services or its designated representative to verify completion of the required coursework. The Department of Children and Family Services or its designated representative will issue a new Florida School Age Certification Training Program Certificate upon verification of the documentation.

(b) Periods of Transition. Child care personnel meeting the staff credentialing requirement in subparagraph (a)1.-5. of this section, must work at the facility a minimum of 20 hours per week. Nap time and lunch times are excluded from this calculation. A credentialed staff person must be on site on a full-time basis for those facilities that operate 20 hours or less per week.

(b)(e) Calculation of Number of Personnel Necessary. The required number of credentialed staff for a facility shall be calculated as follows:

1. Child care facilities with 19 or fewer less children or that which operate less than eight (8) hours per week are not subject to the staff credentialing requirement.

2. For every 20 children, a child care facility must have one (1) child care staff member personnel who meets the staff credentialing requirement. Based on this formula, child care facilities with 20-39 children must have one (1) credentialed staff member, facilities with 40-59 children must have two (2) credentialed staff members, and so on. The licensing authority will calculate the number of credentialed personnel required based on daily attendance.

3. Child care personnel meeting the staff credential requirement in paragraph 65C-22.003(7)(a), F.A.C., must work at the facility a minimum of 20 hours per week. A credentialed staff person must be on-site during all operational hours for those facilities that operate 20 hours or less per week.

4. Nap time and lunch times are excluded from this calculation.

~~5.3.~~ Volunteers who meet the credentialing requirement will be included in calculating the credentialing ratio.

6. Children who are five (5) years old and who are enrolled in and attend a kindergarten program or grades one (1) and above are excluded from the credentials ratio.

7. An individual with an expired or inactive credential is ineligible to be counted as a credentialed staff member pursuant to subparagraph 65C-22.003(7)(a)1., F.A.C., until the credential is renewed or the individual meets one (1) of the qualifications listed in paragraph 65C-22.003(7)(a), F.A.C.

4. The licensing authority will calculate the number of credentialed personnel required based on daily attendance.

~~(c)5.~~ On-Site Documentation. A copy of the CF-FSP Form 5206 for each credentialed staff member must be maintained on-site at the child care facility, in the employee personnel file, for review by child care licensing staff. In addition to CF-FSP Form 5206, April 05, Child Care Personnel Professional Development Confirmation Form, child care facilities must maintain have available written documentation of credentialed personnel's work schedules. Examples of written documentation are employee time sheets, personnel work schedules, and employment records.

6. Children who are five years old and above, when they are enrolled in and attending a kindergarten program or grades one and above, are excluded from the calculation for purposes of determining the number of personnel necessary to meet the credentialing ratio.

(d) Staff Credential Renewal.

1. A National Early Childhood Credential must be renewed through the agency that awarded the credential. Prior to December 31, 2008, a National Early Childhood Credential may comply with the Birth Through Five Florida Child Care

Professional Credential renewal process referenced in paragraph 65C-22.003(7)(d)(3), F.A.C., if the credential was issued prior to December 31, 2003.

2. A staff credential awarded for formal education qualifications does not need to be renewed to remain active.

~~(d) CDA or CDAE Renewal. A CDA or CDAE must be renewed as specified in subparagraphs 1. - 6. below for the purpose of meeting the staff credentialing requirement for every 20 children in care, as mandated in Section 402.305(3), F.S.~~

~~3.1. Florida CDAE Renewals. To maintain an active Birth Through Five FCCPC Florida CDAE, every five (5) years a candidate must renew their Birth Through Five FCCPC Florida CDAE by completing the Florida CDAE Renewal Application, CF-FSP 5273, April 200605, Birth Through Five Florida Child Care Professional Credential Renewal Application, which is incorporated by reference, CF-FSP Form 5273 and may be obtained on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare/training. The Florida CDAE Renewal will be documented on CF-FSP 5270, April 05, Florida CDA Equivalency Certificate of Renewal, which is incorporated by reference. Renewal applications may be submitted no earlier than one year prior to the expiration date of the active CDAE certificate. The completed renewal application must be submitted to the Department of Children and Family Services and include documentation of the following criteria:~~

~~a. A Birth Through Five FCCPC renewal will be documented on CF-FSP Form 5270. Renewal applications may be submitted by the candidate no earlier than one (1) year prior to the end of the active period of the Birth Through Five FCCPC.~~

~~b. Individuals with a Birth Through Five FCCPC issued before December 31, 2003 may renew the credential by submitting a CF-FSP 5273 with the required documentation by December 31, 2008. A Birth Through Five FCCPC issued after December 31, 2003 will have a renewal date of five (5) years from the date of issuance.~~

~~c. An individual with an inactive Birth Through Five FCCPC may submit a renewal application for a period of up to three (3) years from the end of the Birth Through Five FCCPC active period. The application will be reviewed, and if approved, a certificate will be issued with a renewal date of five (5) years from the date the completed CF-FSP Form 5273 is processed.~~

~~d. For purposes of participation in the Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten (VPK) Program, child care personnel must ensure an active credential by July 1, 2006.~~

4. To maintain an active Florida Department of Education Child Care Apprenticeship Certificate (CCAC), Early Childhood Professional Certificate (ECPC), every five (5) years a candidate must renew their Florida Department of Education CCAC, ECPC by completing CF-FSP Form 5309, April 2006, Florida Department of Education Child Care

Apprenticeship Certificate (CCAC) and Early Childhood Professional Certificate (ECPC) Renewal Application, which is incorporated by reference. To maintain an active Florida Department of Education School-Age Professional Certificate (SAPC), every five (5) years a candidate must renew their SAPC by completing CF-FSP Form 5308, April 2006, Florida Department of Education School-Age Professional Certificate (SAPC) Renewal Application, which is incorporated by reference. CF-FSP Forms 5308 and 5309 may be obtained on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare.

a. A Florida Department of Education CCAC, ECPC or SAPC renewal will be documented on CF-FSP Form 5310, April 2006, Certificate for Florida Department of Education Child Care Apprenticeship Certificate (CCAC)/Early Childhood Professional Certificate (ECPC)/School-Age Professional Certificate (SAPC) Program Renewal, which is incorporated by reference. CF-FSP Forms 5308 and 5309, as applicable, may be submitted by the candidate no earlier than one (1) year prior to the end of the active period of the Florida Department of Education CCAC, ECPC or SAPC.

b. An individual with an inactive Florida Department of Education CCAC, ECPC or SAPC may submit a renewal application for a period of up to three (3) years from the end of the Florida Department of Education CCAC, ECPC or SAPC active period. CF-FSP Form 5308 or 5309, as applicable, will be reviewed and, if approved, a CF-FSP Form 5310 will be issued with a renewal date of five (5) years from the date the completed CF-FSP Form 5308 or 5309 is processed.

5. To maintain an active School-Age FCCPC, every five (5) years a candidate must renew their School-Age FCCPC by completing CF-FSP Form 5307, April 2006, the School-Age Florida Child Care Professional Credential Renewal Application, which is incorporated by reference. CF-FSP Form 5307 may be obtained on the Department of Children and Family Service's website at www.myflorida.com/childcare.

a. A School-Age FCCPC renewal will be documented on CF-FSP Form 5270. Renewal applications may be submitted no earlier than one (1) year prior to the end of the active date of the School-Age FCCPC.

b. An individual with an inactive School-Age FCCPC may submit a renewal application for a period of up to three (3) years from the end of the School-Age FCCPC active period. The application will be reviewed and, if approved, a certificate will be issued with a renewal date of five (5) years from the date the completed CF-FSP Form 5270 is processed.

6. A staff credential awarded for Employment History Recognition Exemption does not require renewal to remain active.

(e) Florida Child Care Professional Credential Training Program Providers.

1. Birth Through Five FCCPC Training Providers.

a. Training providers seeking to offer the Birth Through Five FCCPC training must utilize the criteria approved by the department referenced on CF-FSP Form 5191, April 2006, Birth Through Five Florida Child Care Professional Credential (FCCPC) Training Program Application, which is incorporated by reference. CF-FSP Form 5191 may be obtained on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare. Training providers must submit a completed CF-FSP Form 5191 to the department for approval.

b. Training providers that offer the Birth Through Five FCCPC shall submit FCCPC training student completion documentation in the format referenced on CF-FSP Form 5191 to the department for issuance of the Birth Through Five FCCPC and to update the graduate's child care training transcript.

c. Training providers approved to offer the Birth Through Five FCCPC must annually complete, sign, date and submit the attestation page of CF-FSP 5191 to the Department of Children and Family Services for review and approval based on the provider's anniversary date listed on CF-FSP 5191.

2. School-Age FCCPC Training Providers.

a. Training providers seeking to offer the School-Age FCCPC training must utilize the criteria approved by the department referenced on CF-FSP Form 5257, April 2006, School-Age Florida Child Care Professional Credential (FCCPC) Training Program Application, which is incorporated by reference. CF-FSP Form 5257 may be obtained on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare. Training providers must submit a completed CF-FSP Form 5257 to the department for approval.

b. Training providers that offer the School-Age FCCPC training shall submit FCCPC training student completion documentation in the format referenced on CF-FSP Form 5191 to the department for issuance of the School-Age FCCPC and to update the graduate's child care training transcript.

a. Proof of a current First Aid Certificate;

b. Proof of 45 hours of professional education obtained within the past five years by meeting one of the following:

(I) At least 4.5 Continuing Education Units (CEUs);

(II) Three college credits in early childhood education/child development;

(III) Forty-five (45) clock hours of early childhood education/child development training completed at a Florida Career Education Center (public vocational or technical school), Florida Community Colleges, or an institution licensed by the Florida Commission for Independent Education;

(IV) Any combination of the professional education outlined in subparagraphs 65C 22.003(7)(d)1.b.(I) (III), F.A.C., listed above.

e. Proof of recent (within current year) work experience with young children or families of young children (a minimum of 80 hours);

d. Proof of recent (within current year) membership in a national, state or local early childhood professional organization;

e. A letter of recommendation regarding competency in working with young children, provided by an Early Childhood Education Professional such as the Child Care Facility Director, Assistant Director, Observer, or Lead Teacher; and

f. Copy of a CDA or CDAE credential.

g. The fee for processing the Florida CDAE renewal application shall be \$25.00. Payment must be via a business check or a money order. No personal checks will be accepted.

2. Individuals with a Florida CDAE credential obtained before December 31, 2003 will have the opportunity to renew this credential by submitting a completed Florida CDAE Renewal Application, CF-FSP 5273, with the required documentation, by December 31, 2008. A Florida CDAE issued after December 31, 2003 will have a renewal date of 5 years from the date of issuance.

3. If a CDAE credential is not renewed prior to the expiration date, an individual with an expired CDAE credential may submit a renewal application for a period up to three (3) years after the CDAE credential expiration date. The application will be reviewed, and if approved, a certificate issued with a five-year expiration date based on the date the completed renewal application is processed.

4. National CDA Renewals. To renew a National CDA, individuals may contact the Council for Early Childhood Professional Recognition, located in Washington, DC, at 1(800)424 4310, or follow the Florida CDAE renewal process outlined in subparagraphs 65C-22.003(7)(b) 1.-4., F.A.C.

5. An individual with an expired CDA or CDAE is ineligible to be counted as a credentialed staff person pursuant to paragraph 65C 22.003(7)(a), F.A.C., until the CDA or CDAE credential is renewed or the individual meets one of the other qualifications listed in subparagraph 65C 22.003(7)(a) 1.-4, F.A.C.

(e) Verification of Education and Employment History.

1. Child care personnel seeking satisfaction of the staff credentialing requirement, in subparagraphs 65C-20.003 (7)(a)1. 5. of this section, are responsible for completing and submitting to the Department of Children and Family Services or its designated representative CF FSP Form 5211, April 05, Child Care Personnel Education and Employment History Verification Form, including education and employment history documentation.

2. Upon receipt and approval of the completed forms, the individual's training transcripts will be updated to reflect the staff credential verification. From the individual's child care training transcript, they may print CF-FSP Form 5206, Feb. 04, Child Care Personnel Professional Development Confirmation

Form, which is incorporated by reference, for the individual's records. The individual may also request a copy of CF-FSP Form 5206, from the Department of Children and Family Services or its designated representative, for a nominal fee determined by the Department of Children and Family Services.

3. A copy of the Child Care Personnel Professional Development Confirmation Form must be maintained on site at the facility, in the employee personnel file, for review by child care licensing staff. The original is the property of the child care personnel.

(8) Director Credential.

(a) Director Credential Requirement. Pursuant to Section 402.305(2)(f), F.S., every child care facility director must have a credentialed director. An individual with an inactive Director Credential is ineligible to be the director of a child care facility. An applicant for the Director Credential or Advanced Director Credential must meet the requirements referenced in CF-FSP Form 5290, April 2006, Florida Child Care Director Credential Verification and Application, which is incorporated by reference. CF-FSP Form 5290 may be obtained on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare. All applications and documentation will be verified and the credential issued by the Department of Children and Family Services on CF-FSP Form 5252, April 2006, Florida Director Credential Certificate, incorporated by reference, credential by January 1, 2004, which consists of the foundational level or the advanced level. As of January 1, 2004, every applicant for a license to operate a child care facility or a license for a change of ownership of a child care facility must document that the facility director has a director credential prior to issuance of the license to operate the facility.

1. Child care facility owners must notify the licensing authority within five (5) working days of when the facility loses a credentialed director or when there is a change of director. The licensing authority will then issue a provisional license for a period not to exceed six (6) months. The provisional license will have an effective date of the first day the facility was without a credentialed director.

1.2. An individual may not be the director of child care facilities that has an overlap in the hours of operation.

2.3. Each child care facility must have a credentialed director that is on-site a majority of hours per day that the facility is in operation.

3. Every applicant for a license to operate a child care facility or a license for a change of ownership of a child care facility must document that the facility director has an active Director Credential prior to issuance of the license.

4. Child care facility owners must notify the licensing authority within five (5) working days of when the facility loses a credentialed director or when there is a change of director. The licensing authority will then issue a provisional

license for a period not to exceed six (6) months. The provisional license will have an effective date of the first day the facility was without a credentialed director.

5.4. CF-FSP Form 5252 The director credential must be posted in a conspicuous location at the facility.

(b) As it relates to the director credential, the following exceptions to the Director Credential apply:

1. No change.

2. Pursuant to Section 402.305(1)(c), F.S., a credentialed director holding a foundational or advanced level Florida director credential may supervise multiple before-school and after-school sites as outlined in paragraph 65C-22.003(8)(c), F.A.C within the same organization. As of January 1, 2004, every applicant for a license to operate a child care facility must document that the facility director has a director credential prior to issuance of the license to operate the facility.

(c) Director Credential Requirement for before-school and after-school sites.

1. A credentialed director may supervise multiple before-school and after-school sites for a single organization as follows:

a. Three (3) sites regardless of the number of children enrolled, or

b. More than three (3) sites if the combined total number of children enrolled at the sites does not exceed 350. In calculating the total number of children enrolled, the number of children in the before- and after-school program shall be calculated and viewed as separate programs.

c. In counties where the public school district has included four (4) year-old children in public before-school and after-school programs, the school district may participate in the multi-site supervision option. Public school districts which serve four (4) year old children in the before-school and after-school programs are required to have a credentialed staff person pursuant to the credentialing requirements in paragraphs 65C-22.003(7)(a), F.A.C., in order to accommodate the four (4) year-old children.

2. When a credentialed director is supervising multiple sites, the individual left in charge of the site during the director's absence must meet the following requirements:

a. At least 21 years of age;

b. Have completed the approved 40 clock-hour Introductory Child Care Training approved by the Department of Children and Family Services; and

c. Have completed the Department of Children and Family Services' Part II specialized training course, Special Needs Appropriate Practices, or completed a minimum of eight (8) hours of in-service training in serving children with disabilities; or

d. Have completed the Department of Children and Family Services' School-Age Appropriate Practices specialized training module.

~~(e) The foundational level applicants must meet the following educational and experiential requirements:~~

~~1. High school diploma or GED; and~~

~~2. The Department of Children and Family Services' 30 clock hour Introductory Child Care Training (Part I); and~~

~~3. The Department of Children and Family Services' Special Needs Appropriate Practices module or a minimum of 8 hours of in-service training in serving children with disabilities; and~~

~~4. One of the following staff credentials: a Child Development Associate (CDA) Credential; a state approved Florida CDA Equivalency; the Florida School Age Certification; a formal education exemption qualification; or a documented employment history recognition exemption; and~~

~~5. One course in the curriculum content area "Overview of Child Care Center Management," which must be met by one approved three hour college level course, offered for credit or 4.5 Continuing Education Units (CEUs) through continuing education or one approved Post Secondary Adult Vocational course offered through a vocational technical institution in Florida; and~~

~~6. One year experience on-site as a child care director. For those candidates who have met the educational requirements of this level but have not completed the one year experiential requirement a temporary credential will be granted.~~

~~(d) The advanced level applicants must meet the following educational and experiential requirements:~~

~~1. High school diploma or GED; and~~

~~2. The Department of Children and Family Services 30-clock hour Introductory Child Care Training (Part I); and~~

~~3. The department's Special Needs Appropriate Practices module or a minimum of 8 hours in-service training or course in serving children with disabilities; and~~

~~4. One of the following staff credentials: a Child Development Associate (CDA) Credential; a state approved Florida CDA Equivalency; the approved Florida School Age Certification; a formal education exemption qualification; or a documented employment history recognition exemption; and~~

~~5. Three approved courses in child care education program administration. The coursework requirement must be taken for college credit and must be from the following curriculum areas: Overview of Child Care Center Management, Child Care and Education Organizational Leadership and Management, Child Care and Education Financial and Legal Issues, Child Care and Education Programming; and~~

~~6. Two years of experience on-site as a child care director. For those candidates who have met all the educational requirements of this level but have not completed the two year experiential requirement a temporary credential will be granted.~~

~~(e) All applications and documentation will be verified and credentials issued by the Department of Children and Family Services.~~

(f) ~~Exceptions: For the foundational level, Directors who have attained another state's approved Director Credential shall receive credit towards the, "Overview of Child Care Management", educational component of the credential. For the advanced level credential only, an educational exception will be granted to individuals who meet subparagraphs 65C-22.003(8)(c)1, 4, and 6., F.A.C., and any of the following:~~

- ~~1. An A.S. degree in child care center management, or~~
- ~~2. An A.S., B.A., B.S. or advanced degree in early childhood education/child development, family and consumer sciences (formerly home economics/child development), school age child care or elementary education with at least three credit hours in child care management/administration, business administration or educational administration, or~~
- ~~3. A B.A., B.S. or advanced degree other than those degree areas in number 2. above, with three credit hours in early childhood/child development or school age child care and three credit hours in child care management/administration, business administration or educational administration, or~~
- ~~4. Five or more years of experience as an administrator or director in a licensed child care facility, or a facility that is legally exempt pursuant to Sections 402.3025 and 402.316, F.S., and with three college credit hours in early childhood/child development or school age child care and three college credit hours in child care management/administration, business administration or educational administration. All coursework for this exception must have been completed within the last ten years.~~

~~(g) Testing. For the advanced level credential only, individuals who meet the requirements for the educational exception but do not have coursework in early childhood education or administration may opt to take a competency-based test to meet the three credit hour course requirement in early childhood education/child development or the three credit hour course requirement in administration, or both. This process will require the candidate to complete a written test, developed and approved by the Department of Children and Family Services with a minimum score of 70 percent.~~

~~(d)(h) Director Credential Renewal.~~

~~1. To maintain an active temporary Director Credential or Director Credential at either level, every 5 years, candidates must meet the requirements referenced on CF-FSP Form 5306, April 2006, Florida Director Credential Renewal Application, which is incorporated by reference. CF-FSP Form 5306 may be obtained on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare. have an active staff credential documented on CF-FSP 5206, Child Care Personnel Professional Development Confirmation Form, and 4.5 Continuing Education Units (CEUs), or three college credit hours in any one of the curriculum areas listed in subparagraph 65C-22.003(8)(c)5., F.A.C. Coursework must be in addition to the original coursework required for the~~

~~credential. Coursework completed to renew a State of Florida Teaching Certificate also satisfies this coursework requirement for renewal of a Director Credential. Candidates must also demonstrate professional contributions in the field through any one of the following:~~

- ~~a. Serve as an officer or committee member in a professional organization related to the field of early childhood or school age programs;~~
- ~~b. Make presentation or provide training in the field of early childhood or school age programs;~~
- ~~e. Serve as a validator or advisor for a Florida-recognized accreditation program, as a CDA advisor, or as a school age certification representative for the Florida School Age Certification Training Program;~~
- ~~d. Advocate for an issue in the field of early childhood or school age programs;~~
- ~~e. Publish an item related to the field of early childhood or school age program;~~
- ~~f. Document program improvements by completing a Florida-recognized accreditation program;~~
- ~~g. Serve as a consultant or mentor to another early childhood or school age program;~~
- ~~h. Participate in an educational research or innovation project related to early childhood or school age programs; or~~
- ~~i. Participate in a creative activity, outside of the candidate's child care program, relating to the field of early childhood or school age programs.~~

~~2. A Director Credential issued prior to January 1, 2004, will have an initial renewal, as documented on CF-FSP Form 5252, is active for five (date of January 1, 2009, and every 5) years from the date of issuance thereafter. A Director Credential issued after January 1, 2004, will have an initial renewal date after 5 years and every 5 years thereafter. The completed renewal application, including all required documentation, must be submitted to the Department of Children and Family Services for review and issuance of a Director Credential Renewal Certificate no earlier than one (1) year prior to the end expiration date of the active period of the Director Credential. The Director Credential renewal date is will be determined by the end date of the active period Director Credential expiration date.~~

~~3. If a renewal application is received after the end of the active period for the Director Credential expiration date, the Director Credential Renewal Application will be reviewed, and, if approved, a certificate will be issued with a renewal date of five (5) years from the expiration date based on the date the completed renewal application was is processed.~~

~~4. An individual with an inactive Director Credential is ineligible to be the director of a child care facility.~~

~~(e)(i) Director Credential Training Providers Coursework Recognition and Approval.~~

1. The Department of Children and Family Services is responsible for reviewing ~~existing and approving~~ developing “Overview of Child Care Management” courses ~~work~~; offered through vocational-technical schools, community colleges and universities; to determine if the requirements for it meets the requirements for the Director Credential coursework are met. ~~Vocational technical schools, community colleges and universities shall submit CF/FSP Form 5247 for course review and approval, hereby incorporated by reference. Applications for new coursework will no longer be accepted by the department be reviewed and approved according to the guidelines found in “Florida Child Care and Education Program Director Credential, Curriculum Areas,” hereby incorporated by reference, and copies of which can be obtained from the Department of Children and Family Services.~~ 2. A list of approved “Overview of Child Care Management” courses may must be obtained on and will be available through the Department of Children and Family Services’ website at www.myflorida.com/childcare.

2. All college level coursework pertaining to the following content areas will be accepted as approved coursework towards the Advanced Level Director Credential requirements:

a. Child Care and Education Organizational Leadership and Management

b. Child Care and Education Financial and Legal Issues

c. Child Care and Education Programming.

(j) Before school and after school sites.

1. ~~A director holding a foundational or advanced Director Credential may supervise multiple before-school and after-school sites for a single organization as follows:~~

a. ~~Three sites regardless of the number of children enrolled, or~~

b. ~~More than three sites if the combined total number of children enrolled at the sites does not exceed 350. In calculating the total number of children enrolled, the number of children in the before and after school program shall be calculated and viewed as separate programs.~~

e. ~~In counties where the public school district has included 4-year old children in public before school and after school programs, the school district may participate in the multi-site supervision option. Public school districts which serve 4-year old children in the before school and after school programs are required to have a credentialed staff person pursuant to the credentialing requirements in paragraphs 65C 22.003(7)(a)1-5., F.A.C., in order to accommodate the 4-year-old children.~~

2. ~~When a credentialed director is supervising multiple sites, the person left in charge of the site during the director’s absence must meet the following requirements:~~

a. ~~Be at least 21 years of age;~~

b. ~~Have completed the approved 40 clock-hour Introductory Child Care Training (Parts I and II), approved by the Department of Children and Family Services; and~~

e. ~~Have completed the Department of Children and Family Services basic training in serving children with special needs; by completing the Part II, specialized training module, Special Needs Appropriate Practices, or through completion of a minimum of 8 hours of in service training in serving children with disabilities; or~~

d. ~~Have completed the Department of Children and Family Services School Age Appropriate Practices specialized training module.~~

Specific Authority 402.305 FS. Law Implemented 402.302, 402.305 FS. History—New 6-1-97, Amended 7-2-98, 3-17-99, 7-26-00, 10-10-01, 4-2-02, 7-13-03, 9-12-04, 6-30-05, _____.

65C-22.004 Health Related Requirements.

(1) Communicable Disease Control.

(a) Children in care shall be observed on a daily basis for signs of communicable disease. Any child, child care personnel or other person in the child care facility suspected of having a communicable disease shall be removed from the facility or placed in an isolation area until removed. Such person may not return without medical authorization; or until the signs and symptoms of the disease are no longer present. With a child, the condition shall be reported to the custodial parent or legal guardian. Signs and symptoms of a suspected communicable disease include the following:

1. Severe coughing, causing the child to become red or blue in the face or to make a whooping sound;;
2. Difficult or rapid breathing;;
3. Stiff neck;;
4. Diarrhea (more than one abnormally loose stool within a 24 hour period);;
5. Temperature of 101 degrees Fahrenheit or higher when in conjunction with any other signs of illness;;
6. Conjunctivitis (pink eye);;
7. Exposed, open skin lesions;;
8. Unusually dark urine and/or gray or white stool;;
9. Yellowish skin or eyes;;
10. No change.

(b) A child identified who has having head lice shall not be permitted to return until treatment has occurred. Verification of treatment may include a product box, box top, empty bottle, or signed statement by a parent that treatment has occurred.

(c) Isolation Area. Each facility shall have a designated isolation area for a child who becomes ill at the facility. Such space shall be adequately ventilated, heated, and equipped with a bed, mat, or cot and materials that can be sanitized easily. Linens and disposables shall be changed after each use and ~~Until cleaned or disposed, the~~ used linens and disposables shall be kept in a closed container in the isolation area until cleaned or disposed of. The isolated child must be within sight and hearing of a staff person at all times. The child must be carefully observed for worsening conditions.

(d) Outbreaks. Operators are required to notify the local county health department immediately upon any suspected outbreak of communicable disease in accordance with Chapter 64D-3, F.A.C., Communicable Disease Control. A suspected outbreak occurs when two (2) or more children or employees have the onset of similar signs or symptoms, as outlined in subparagraphs (1)(2)(a)1.-10., F.A.C., above, within a 72-hour period or when a case of a serious or reportable communicable disease is diagnosed or suspected on a child or employee.

(2) First Aid, Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation and Emergency Procedures.

(a) Each child care facility must have at least one (1) staff member with current and valid certificate(s) of course completion for first aid training and infant and child cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) procedures. One (1) staff member satisfying these training requirements shall be present at all times that children are in the care of the facility, both on-site and on field trips. A field trip includes all activities away from the facility excluding regular transportation to and from the facility, i.e., pick-up and drop-off.

(b) Certificate(s) of course completion are valid based on the time frames established by each first aid and CPR training program, not to exceed three (3) years. On-line CPR courses are not acceptable to meet this standard. CPR training must be done by classroom instruction. Documentation that identifies staff members have met the first aid and infant and child cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) training requirement shall be kept on file at the child care facility.

(c) At least one (1) first aid kit ~~containing materials to administer first aid~~ must be maintained on the premises of ~~the~~ all child care facilities at all times. A first aid kit must also accompany child care staff when children are participating on field trips. Each kit shall be in a closed container and labeled "First Aid.": The kits shall be accessible to the child care staff at all times and kept out of the reach of children. Each kit must, at a minimum, include:

1. through 2. No change.
3. Disposable non-porous latex gloves,
4. through 11. No change.

(d) Emergency Procedures and Notification.

1. Emergency telephone numbers, including ambulance, fire, police, poison control center, Florida Abuse Hotline, the county public health unit, and the address of and directions to the facility, including major intersections and local landmarks, must be posted on or near all facility telephones and shall be used ~~as necessary~~ to protect the health, safety and well-being of any child in day care.

2. No change.

3. All accidents and incidents which occur at a facility or while a child is in the care of facility staff must be documented ~~and shared with the custodial parent or legal guardian~~ on the day they occur. This documentation must be shared with the custodial parent or legal guardian on the date of occurrence.

Documentation shall include the name of the affected party, date and time of occurrence, description of occurrence, actions taken and by whom, and appropriate signatures of facility staff and custodial parent or legal guardian and maintained for one (1) year.

4. After a fire or natural disaster, the operator must notify the licensing agency within 24 hours as to their status of operation in order for the licensing authority to ensure health standards are being met for continued operation.

5. The operator shall prepare an emergency evacuation plan including a diagram of safe routes by which the personnel and children may exit the facility in the event of fire or other emergency requiring evacuation of the facility and post a copy of the plan in each room of the facility.

(3) Medication. Child care facilities are not required to give medication; however, if a facility ~~they~~ chooses to do so, the following shall apply:

(a) The facility must have written authorization from the custodial parent or legal guardian to dispense prescription and non-prescription medications. This authorization must be dated and signed by the custodial parent or legal guardian and contain the child's name; the name of the medication to be dispensed; and date, time and amount of dosage to be given. This record shall be initialed or signed by the facility personnel who gave the medication.

b. Any known allergies to medication or special restrictions must also be documented, maintained in the child's file, shared with staff and posted with stored medication.

~~(c)(a)~~ Prescription and non-prescription medication brought to the child care facility by the custodial parent or legal guardian must be in the original container. Prescription medication must have a label stating the name of the physician, child's name, name of the medication, and medication directions. All prescription and non-prescription medication shall be dispensed according to written directions on the prescription label or printed manufacturer's label. ~~For purposes of dispensing non-prescription medication that is not brought in by the parent, in the event of an emergency, non-prescription medication can only be dispensed if the facility has written authorization from the parent or legal guardian to do so. Any medication dispensed under these conditions must be documented in the child's file and the parent or legal guardian must be notified on the day of occurrence. If the parent or legal guardian notifies the child care facility of any known allergies to medication, written documentation must be maintained in the child's file. Special restrictions to medication must be shared with staff and must be posted with stored medication.~~

(d) In the event of an emergency, non-prescription medication that is not brought in by the custodial parent or legal guardian can be dispensed only if the facility has written authorization from the custodial parent or legal guardian to do so.

(e) Any medication dispensed under these conditions must be documented in the child's file and the custodial parent or legal guardian must be notified on the day of occurrence.

(f) The facility must maintain a record for each child receiving medications that documents the full name of the child, the name of medication, the date and time the medication was dispensed, the amount and dosage, and the name of the person who dispensed the medication. The record shall be maintained for a minimum of four (4) months after the last day the child received the dosage.

(g)(b) All medicines must have child resistant caps and shall be stored separately and locked or placed out of a child's reach.

(h)(e) Medication which has expired or is no longer being administered shall be returned to the custodial parent or legal guardian or discarded if the child is no longer enrolled in care at the facility.

Specific Authority 402.302, 402.305 FS. Law Implemented 402.302, 402.305 FS. History—New 6-1-97, Amended 3-17-99, 7-26-00, 4-2-02, 7-13-03, 9-12-04, _____.

65C-22.005 Food and Nutrition.

(1) Nutrition.

(a) If a facility chooses to supply food, it they shall provide nutritious meals and snacks of a quantity and quality to meet the daily nutritional needs of the children. The USDA My Food Guide Pyramid for Young Children, April 2005 March 1999, which is incorporated by reference, shall be used to determine what food groups to serve at each meal or snack and the serving size of the selected foods for children one year of ages two (2) and older. The fats and sweets categories "oils" and "discretionary calories" within the USDA Food Guide Pyramid for Young Children may cannot be considered counted as a food groups. Copies of the USDA My Food Guide Pyramid for Young Children may be obtained from the licensing authority, or the local county health department or from the USDA website at www.mypyramid.gov. Using the USDA My Food Guide Pyramid for Young Children, breakfast shall consist of at least three (3) different food groups, lunch and dinner shall consist of at least four (4) different food groups and snacks shall consist of at least two (2) different food groups.

(b) No change.

(c) If a special diet is required for a child by a physician, a copy of the physician's order, a copy of the diet, and a sample meal plan for the special diet shall be maintained in the child's facility file. If the custodial parent or legal guardian notifies the child care facility of any known food allergies, written documentation must be maintained in the child's file for as long as the child is in care. Special food restrictions must be shared with staff and must be posted in a conspicuous location.

(d) Meal and snack menus shall be planned, written, and posted at the beginning of each week. Menus shall be dated and posted in the food service area and in a conspicuous place accessible to parents. Any menu substitution shall be noted on the menu. Daily meal and snack menus shall be maintained for a minimum of one (1) month.

(2) Food Preparation Area. All licensed child care facilities approved by the Environmental Health Section, to prepare food shall have documentation on file from the Department of Health verifying the facility meets the applicable requirements as specified in Chapter 64E-11, F.A.C., Food Hygiene.

(3) Food Service.

(a) No change.

(b) Single service paper or plastic plates, utensils, and cups shall not be reused. Plates, utensils, cups, bottles, and sippy cups provided by the facility that are not disposable shall be washed, rinsed, and sanitized between uses.

(c)(b) There shall be no propped bottles. If a child cannot hold the bottle, then a staff person or volunteer must hold the bottle during feeding. There shall be no automatic feeding devices unless medically prescribed. Formula shall be refrigerated and handled in a sanitary manner at all times before and after use. All bottles and sippy cups brought from home shall be individually labeled with the child's first and last name and returned to the custodial parent or legal guardian daily.

(d)(e) Heated foods and bottles must be tested before feeding to ensure heat is evenly distributed and to prevent injury to children.

(e)(d) Facilities shall provide sufficient age appropriate seating so that children are seated at tables for meals.

(e) Single service paper or plastic plates, utensils, and cups shall not be reused.

Specific Authority 402.305 FS. Law Implemented 402.305 FS. History—New 6-1-97, Amended 3-17-99, 7-26-00, 1-4-01, 7-13-03, 9-12-04, _____.

65C-22.006 Record Keeping.

(1) General Requirements.

(a) All Records required to document compliance with Section 402.305, F.S., and rules adopted thereunder, shall be maintained at the facility and available during the hours of operation for review by the licensing authority.

(b) A copy of all background screening documents for the director and owner must be included in the department's official licensing file.

(c)(b) Copies of required records are acceptable for documentation. Original documents are the property of the party providing the information.

(2) Children's Health Requirements.

(a) The child care facility is responsible for obtaining for each child in care a current, ~~and completed and properly executed DH Form 3040, June 2002;~~ Student Health Examination form as referenced in Section 6A-6.024, F.A.C., from the parent or legal guardian for each child in care, within 30 days of enrollment and maintaining a current copy on file while the child is enrolled at the facility. ~~DH Form 3040, which is incorporated by reference, can be obtained from the local county health department. Certification that a health examination has been completed may be documented on the State of Florida, Department of Health, DH Form 3040, OR or a signed statement by authorized professionals that indicates the results of the components of the Student Health Examination form are included in the health examination. The Student Health Examination shall be completed by a person given statutory authority to perform health examinations.~~

(b) The Student Health Examination or the signed statement is valid for two (2) years from the date the physical was performed. An up-to-date version must be on file for as long as the child is enrolled at the facility.

(c) The child care facility, if responsible for obtaining for each child in care a current, ~~and completed and properly executed DH Form 680, Florida Certification of Immunization form Part A-1, B, or C (July 2001); or the DH Form 681, Religious Exemption from Immunization form (May 1999), as promulgated by the Florida Department of Health, from the custodial parent or legal guardian, for each child in care, within 30 days of enrollment, and maintaining a current copy on file while the child is enrolled at the facility. DH forms 680 and 681, which are incorporated by reference in subsection 65D-3.011(9), F.A.C., can be obtained from the local county health department. The DH Form 680, Florida Certification of Immunization Parts A-1, Certificate of Immunization for K-12 Excluding 7th Grade Requirements or Part B Temporary Medical Exemption, shall be signed by a physician or authorized personnel licensed under the provisions of Chapter 458, 459, or 460, F.S., and shall document vaccination for the prevention of diphtheria, pertussis, tetanus, poliomyelitis, rubeola, rubella, mumps, and Haemophilus influenzae type B (HIB), and effective July 1, 2001, completion of the varicella vaccination. The DH Form 680, Florida Certification of Immunization Part C, Permanent Medical Exemption, shall be dated and signed by a physician licensed under the provisions of Chapter 458 or 459, F.S. Immunizations received out-of-state are acceptable, however, immunizations must be documented on the Florida Certification of Immunization form and must be DH Form 680 and signed by a practicing physician in the State of Florida. Specific immunization requirements are included and detailed in the most current edition of the "Immunization Guidelines-Florida Schools, Child Care Facilities and Family Day Care Homes" as promulgated by the Florida Department of Health.~~

(d) If the custodial parents or legal guardians fail to provide the documentation required in sub-paragraphs (a) or (c) above within 30 days of enrollment, the facility shall not allow the child to remain in the program.

~~(e)(4)~~ School-aged children attending public or non-public schools are not required to have student health examination and immunization records on file at the child care facility as such records are on file at the school where the child is enrolled.

(f) If the custodial parents or legal guardians need assistance concerning these requirements, the facility shall refer them to the Department of Health or to the child's physician.

~~(g)(e)~~ Medical records in this section are the property of the custodial parent or legal guardian and must be returned to them when the child withdraws from the facility. The medical records ~~and~~ are transferable if the child attends another facility.

(3) Medication Records-

~~(a) A written record documenting the child's name, the name of the medication, date, time and amount of dosage to be given, and signature of the custodial parent or legal guardian shall be maintained by the facility. This record shall be initialed or signed by the facility personnel who gave the medication.~~

~~(b) This record shall be maintained for a minimum of four months after the last day the child received the medication.~~

~~(3)(4)~~ Enrollment Information. The facility operator shall obtain enrollment information from the child's custodial parent or legal guardian; prior to accepting a child in care. This information shall be documented on CF-FSP Form 5219, July 2005 Dec. 02, Child Care Application for Enrollment, which is incorporated by reference, or an equivalent form that contains all the information required by the Department of Children and Family Services on CF-FSP Form 5219. CF-FSP Form 5219 may be obtained from the licensing authority or on by going to the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare/information.

(a) No change.

(b) The child shall not be released to any person other than the person(s) authorized; or in the manner authorized in writing; by the custodial parent or legal guardians.

(c) There shall be signed statements from the custodial parents or legal guardian that the child care facility has provided them with the following information ~~to parents~~:

1. The Department of Children and Family Services child care facility brochure, CF/PI 175-24, July 2005 March 2002, Know Your Child Care Facility Center, which is incorporated by reference. This brochure may be obtained from the licensing authority or on by going to the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare/information. Local licensing agencies may use an equivalent brochure approved by the Department of Children and Family Services, ~~containing all the information required by the Department of Children and Family Services.~~

2. The child care facility's written disciplinary policy practices.

~~(4)(5)~~ Personnel Records. Records shall be maintained and kept current on all child care personnel, as defined by Section 402.302(3), F.S., and household members if the facility is located in a private residence. These shall include:

(a) through (c) No change.

(d) Level 2 screening information documented on CF-FSP Form 5131, Feb. 2004, Background Screening and Personnel File Requirements, which is incorporated by reference. A screening conducted under this rule is valid for five (5) years, at which time a statewide re-screening must be conducted. ~~The 5 year re-screening must include, at a minimum, statewide criminal records checks through the Florida Department of Law Enforcement and a local criminal records check. In addition, Child care personnel must be re-screened following a break in employment in the child care industry which exceeds 90 days. A person in this category must undergo the same level of screening which was required upon initial employment. If child care personnel takes a leave of absence, such as maternity leave, extended sick leave, migrant child care programs, etc., re-screening is not required unless the five (5) year re-screening has come due during the leave of absence. An employment history check for the previous two years at a minimum, which must include at least the last three jobs, is required as part of background screening. An employment history check conducted under this rule, shall include not only confirmation of employment dates from previous job(s), but may also include position held and job performance. Additionally, an Affidavit of Good Moral Character, CF FSP 1649, Aug. 04, must be completed annually for all child care personnel. CF FSP 1649 may be obtained from the licensing authority or by going to the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare/information.~~

1. A person in this five (5) year re-screen category must undergo the same level of screening that was required upon initial employment and that must include, at a minimum:

a. Statewide criminal records checks through the Florida Department of Law Enforcement and a local criminal records check.

b. An employment history check that includes the previous two (2) years. An employment history check conducted under this rule shall include the applicant's position description, confirmation of employment dates from previous job(s), and level of job performance.

c. CF-FSP 1649, September 2005, An Affidavit of Good Moral Character, which is incorporated by reference, must be completed annually for all child care personnel. CF-FSP 1649 may be obtained from the licensing authority or on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare.

2. A copy of all background screening documents for the director and owner must be included in the department's official licensing file or in accordance with the appropriate local licensing agency requirements.

(e) Copies of training information and credentials as described in subsections 65C-22.003(4), (6) and (7), F.A.C., as applicable.

(f) Driver's license and driver physical examination documentation. A copy of the driver's license and the physician certification, or another form containing the same elements of the physician certification, granting medical approval to operate the vehicle and valid certificate(s) of course completion for first aid training and infant and child cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) procedures must also be maintained in the driver's personnel file.

~~(5)(6)~~ Summary of Other Records. In addition to the documentation outlined in subsections 65C-22.006(1)-(4), F.A.C., the following is a list of records that shall be maintained at the facility and that shall be available during the hours of operation for review by the licensing authority:

a. Driver's log. Must be retained for a minimum of four (4) months as referenced in subparagraph 65C-22.001(6)(f)1., F.A.C.

b. Documentation of parental permission for field trips. Must be retained for a minimum of four (4) months as referenced in paragraph 65C-22.001(7)(b), F.A.C.

c. Facility's written disciplinary policies as referenced in paragraph 65C-22.001(8)(c), F.A.C.

~~(d)(a)~~ Daily attendance of children records. Must shall be taken and recorded by the child care facility personnel, documenting when each child enters and departs a child care facility or program. Such records shall be maintained for a minimum of four (4) months as referenced in subsection 65C-22.001(10), F.A.C.

~~(b)~~ Record of accidents and incidents shall be documented daily and maintained for one year. Documentation shall include the name of the affected party, date and time of occurrence, description of occurrence, actions taken and by whom, and appropriate signatures of facility staff and custodial parent or legal guardian.

(e) The operator shall prepare an emergency evacuation plan including a diagram of safe routes by which the personnel and children may exit each area of the facility in the event of fire or other emergency requiring evacuation of the facility and post a copy of the plan in each room of the facility.

~~(c)(d)~~ The operator shall maintain a Written record of monthly fire drills. Must showing the date, number of children in attendance, and time taken to evacuate the premises. Each monthly record shall be maintained for a minimum of four (4) months as referenced in paragraph 65C-22.002(7)(d), F.A.C from the date of the fire drill.

~~(f)(e)~~ Documentation of ~~that identified~~ staff members ~~that~~ have met the first aid and infant and child cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) training requirement as referenced in paragraph 65C-22.004(2)(b), F.A.C. shall be kept on file at the child care facility.

~~(f)~~ Documentation of parental permission for field trips shall be maintained for a minimum of four months from the date of each field trip.

~~(g)~~ Posted emergency telephone numbers and the address of and directions to the facility as referenced in subparagraph 65C-22.004(2)(d)1., F.A.C.

~~(h)~~ Documentation of accidents/incidents. Must be maintained for one (1) year as referenced in subparagraph 65C-22.004(2)(d)3., F.A.C.

~~(i)~~ Emergency evacuation plan as referenced in subparagraph 65C-22.004(2)(d)5., F.A.C.

~~(j)~~ Record for each child receiving medication. Must be maintained for a minimum of four (4) months after the last day the child received the dosage as referenced in paragraph 65C-22.004(3)(f), F.A.C.

~~(k)~~ Sample meal plan for special diet (if applicable). A copy of the physician's order, a copy of the diet, and a sample meal plan for the special diet must be maintained for as long as the child is in care as referenced in paragraph 65C-22.005(1)(c), F.A.C.

~~(l)~~ Written documentation of known food allergies (if applicable). Must be maintained for as long as the child is in care as referenced in paragraph 65C-22.005(1)(c), F.A.C.

~~(m)(g)~~ Daily meal and snack menus, including meal substitutions. Must ~~shall~~ be maintained for one (1) year as referenced in paragraph 65C-22.005(1)(d), F.A.C. a minimum of one month.

~~(h)~~ Current specialized diet documentation shall be retained for each child requiring such specialized diet for as long as such child is in care.

Specific Authority 402.305 FS. Law Implemented 402.305 FS. History--New 6-1-97, Amended 7-2-98, 3-17-99, 7-26-00, 1-4-01, 7-13-03, 9-12-04,_____.

65C-22.007 Evening Child Care.

(1) Hours of Care. Evening Child Care, as defined in Section 402.302(6), F.S., means child care provided during the evening hours and may encompass the hours of 6:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m.

(2) Supervision. No change

(3) Exemptions. No change.

(a) No change.

(b) ~~Child Development Associate or C~~eredentialed staff, pursuant to 402.305(3), F.S., are ~~is~~ not required for Evening Child Care staff.

(c) No change.

Specific Authority 402.302, 402.305 FS. Law Implemented 402.302, 402.305 FS. History--New 7-2-98, Amended 9-12-04,_____.

65C-22.008 School-Age Child Care.

(1) Definitions.

(a) "School-Age Child" – means a child who is at least five (5) years of age by September 1st of the beginning of the school year and who is attending kindergarten through grade five (5).

(b) "School-Age Child Care Program" – means any licensed child care facility serving school-aged children as defined in paragraph 65C-22.008(1)(a), F.A.C., or any before and after school programs that are licensed as a child care facility defined in Section 402.302, F.S., and serve only school-aged children as defined in paragraph 65C-22.008(1)(a), F.A.C.

~~(e)~~ "An After School Program Serving School Age Children" is not required to be licensed if the program meets one of the following criteria:

1. ~~Programs located on public/nonpublic school sites, operated and staffed directly by that school or through a written or formal agreement between the school and a provider to serve school age children attending the school. These programs exclusively serve those children who attend the public/nonpublic school during the school day. The program may extend to providing services before school, on teacher planning days, holidays, and intercessions that occur during the school district's official calendar year. Pursuant to Section 402.305(5), F.S., programs operated in public school facilities, regardless of the operator, shall follow the standards set forth by the Florida Building Code State Requirements for Public Educational Facilities; or~~

2. ~~Programs that provide activities to all children, regardless of age, that are strictly instructional or tutorial/academic in nature. These programs cannot extend beyond the instructional, and tutorial/academic activities of that program and do not serve or prepare meals or snacks. However, the program may choose to provide drinks and snacks that do not require refrigeration or vending machine items that do not require refrigeration. Some examples of these programs include, but are not limited to computer class, ballet, karate, gymnastics, baseball, and other sports; or~~

3. ~~After school programs that meet all the following criteria:~~

a. ~~Operate for a period not to exceed a total of 4 hours in any one day; however, may extend to providing services before school, on teacher planning days, holidays, and intercessions that occur during the school district's official calendar year; and~~

b. ~~Allow children to enter and leave the program at any time, without adult supervision; and~~

e. ~~Do not provide any transportation, directly or through a contract or agreement with an outside entity, for the purpose of field trips, during the hours of operation; and~~

d. ~~Do not serve or prepare any meals or snacks, however the program may choose to provide drinks and snacks that do not require refrigeration or vending machine items that do not require refrigeration; or~~

4. ~~Programs providing after school care exclusively for children in grades 6 and above.~~

(2) ~~Licensure Requirements.~~

(a) ~~An after school program exempted under subparagraph 65C-22.008(2)(c)1. or 3., F.A.C., may become licensed if they choose to meet all of the applicable licensing standards in subsection 65C-22.008(3), F.A.C.~~

(a) ~~A program that meets the definition of "An After School Program Serving School Age Children" is not required to be licensed.~~

(b) ~~An after school program exempted under subparagraph 65C-22.008(1)(e)1. or 3., F.A.C., may become licensed if they choose to meet all of the applicable licensing standards in subsection 65C-22.008(3), F.A.C.~~

(b)(e) ~~After school programs that choose to expand their program beyond the parameters in subparagraphs 65C-22.008(2)(4)(c)1. through 4., F.A.C. above, must be assessed to determine if licensure is required. Any of the after school programs accepting children under the age of the school-age child as defined in paragraph 65C-22.008(1)(a), F.A.C., above, must be licensed.~~

(c) ~~An "After School Program" serving school-age children is not required to be licensed if the program meets one of the following criteria:~~

1. ~~Program is located on public/nonpublic school sites, operated and staffed directly by that school or through a written or formal agreement between the school and a provider to serve school-age children attending the school. These programs exclusively serve those children who attend the public/nonpublic school during the school day. The program may extend to providing services before school, on teacher planning days, holidays, and intercessions that occur during the school district's official calendar year. Pursuant to Section 402.305(5), F.S., programs operated in public school facilities, regardless of the operator, shall follow the standards set forth by the Florida Building Code State Requirements for Public Educational Facilities; or~~

2. ~~Program provides activities that are strictly instructional or tutorial/academic in nature. These programs cannot extend beyond the instructional and tutorial/academic activities of that program and do not serve or prepare meals or snacks. However, the program may choose to provide drinks and snacks that do not require refrigeration or vending machine items that do not require refrigeration. Some examples of these programs include, but are not limited to, computer class; ballet; karate; gymnastics; baseball, and other sports; or~~

3. ~~Program meets all of the following criteria:~~

a. ~~Operate for a period not to exceed a total of four (4) hours in any one (1) day; however, may extend to providing services before school, on teacher planning days, holidays, and intercessions that occur during the school district's official calendar year; and~~

b. ~~Allow children to enter and leave the program at any time, without adult supervision; and~~

c. ~~Do not provide any transportation, directly or through a contract or agreement with an outside entity, for the purpose of field trips, during the hours of operation; and~~

d. ~~Do not serve or prepare any meals or snacks, however the program may choose to provide drinks and snacks that do not require refrigeration or vending machine items that do not require refrigeration; or~~

4. ~~Program provides after school care exclusively for children in grades six (6) and above.~~

(d) ~~Application for licensure. Application for a license or for renewal of a license to operate a school-age child care program must be made on CF-FSP Form 5272, Feb. 2004. Application for a License to Operate a School-Age Child Care Program, which is incorporated by reference. CF-FSP Form 5272 may be obtained from the licensing authority or on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare.~~

1. ~~Each completed CF-FSP Form 5272 must be submitted with the licensure fee.~~

2. ~~The completed CF-FSP Form 5272 must be signed by the individual owner, or prospective owner, or the designated representative of a partnership, association, or corporation.~~

3. ~~For the purpose of issuing a license, any out-of-state criminal offense, which if committed in Florida would constitute a disqualifying felony offense, shall be treated as a disqualifying felony offense for screening purposes under this rule.~~

4. ~~A completed CF-FSP Form 5272 for renewal of an annual license must be submitted to the licensing authority at least 45 days prior to the expiration date of the current license to ensure that a lapse of licensure does not occur.~~

(e) ~~License. A school-age child care license is issued in the name of the owner, partnership, association, or corporation, and must be posted in a conspicuous location where the school-age child care program is operating.~~

(3) ~~School Age Child Care Standards. No change.~~

(a) ~~Minimum Age Requirements. In the absence of the operator, there must be a staff person at least 21 years of age in charge of the school-age child care program and on the premises at all times. Application. Application must be made on CF-FSP Form 5272, Feb. 2004, Application for a License to Operate a School Age Child Care Program, which is incorporated by reference.~~

~~(b) License. A school-age child care license is issued in the name of the owner, partnership, association, or corporation, and must be posted in a conspicuous location where the school-age child care program is operating.~~

~~(e) All provisions under subsections 65C-22.001(1)(b) through (e), (3), (5)(e) through (d), (6), (8), and (9), F.A.C.~~

~~(b)(4) Ratios. For children five (5) years of age and older, there must be one (1) child care personnel for every 25 children.~~

~~(c)(e) Supervision. When caring for school-age children, child care personnel shall remain responsible for the supervision of the children in care and capable of responding to emergencies, and are accountable for children at all times, which includes when children are separated from their groups. At all times lighting must be sufficient to visually observe and supervise children while in care.~~

~~1. No person shall be an operator, owner, or employee in a school-age child care program while using or under the influence of narcotics, alcohol, or other drugs that impair an individual's ability to provide supervision and safe child care.~~

~~2. In addition to the number of staff required to meet the staff-to-child ratio, for the purpose of safety, one (1) additional adult must be present on all field trips away from the school-age child care program to assist in providing direct supervision.~~

~~3. A telephone or other means of instant communication shall be available to staff responsible for children during all field trips. Cellular phones, two-way radio devices, citizen band radios, and other means of instant communication are acceptable.~~

~~4. If a school-age child care program uses a swimming pool that exceeds three (3) feet in depth or uses beach or lake areas for water activities, the school-age child care program must provide one (1) person with a certified lifeguard certificate or equivalent, unless a certified lifeguard is on duty and present when any children are in the swimming area. In situations where the school-age child care program provides a person with a certified lifeguard certificate or equivalent, that person can also serve as the additional adult to meet the requirement in subparagraph (c)2., above.~~

~~(d) Access. A school-age child care program must provide the custodial parent or legal guardian access, in person and by telephone, to the program during the program's normal hours of operation or during the time the child is in care.~~

~~(e) General Requirements.~~

~~1. All school-age child care program facilities must be clean, in good repair, and free from health and safety hazards and from vermin infestation. During the hours that the program is in operation, no portion of the building shall be used for any activity which endangers the health and safety of the children.~~

~~2. All areas and surfaces accessible to children shall be free from toxic substances and hazardous materials.~~

3. All potentially harmful items including cleaning supplies, flammable products, poisonous, toxic, and hazardous materials must be labeled. These items, as well as knives and sharp tools and other potentially dangerous hazards, shall be stored separately and locked and out of a child's reach.

4. No firearms or weapons, as defined in Section 790.001, F.S., shall be allowed within any building or conveyance, or upon any person located on the premises, excluding federal, state, or local Law Enforcement Officers.

5. No narcotics, alcohol, or other impairing drugs shall be present on the premises.

6. Animals must be properly immunized, free from disease, and clean. Parents must be informed in writing of all animals on the premises. Such information may be provided by way of a conspicuously posted notice or bulletin, policy handbook, parent flier, or a statement included on the enrollment form.

7. Pursuant to Chapter 386, F.S., smoking is prohibited within the school-age child care program, all outdoor play areas, and in vehicles when being used to transport children.

8. Design and construction of a new child care facility or modifications to an existing facility must meet the minimum requirements of the applicable local governing body.

(f) Rooms Occupied by Children.

1. An inside temperature of 65 to 82 degrees Fahrenheit must be maintained at all times.

2. All rooms shall be kept clean, adequately ventilated and in good repair. Cleaning shall not take place while rooms are occupied by children except for general clean-up activities which are a part of the daily routine.

3. Rodents and vermin shall be exterminated. Pest control shall not take place while rooms are occupied by children.

(g) Napping and Sleeping Space. For the purposes of this standard, sleeping refers to the normal night time sleep cycle while napping refers to a brief period of rest during daylight or early evening hours. Each school-age child care program must include a designated area where each child can sit quietly or lie down to rest or nap. When not in use, napping space and usable indoor floor space may be used interchangeably as described in paragraph 65C-22.008(3)(i), F.A.C.

(h) Toilet and Bath Facilities.

1. Each school-age child care program shall provide and maintain toilet and bath facilities that are easily accessible and at a height usable by the children. Platforms are acceptable when safely constructed and easily cleaned and sanitized.

2. For facilities having from one (1) to 15 children, there shall be at least one (1) toilet and one wash basin. There shall be one (1) additional toilet and basin for every 30 children thereafter. For design and construction of a new child care facility or modification to an existing facility, subparagraph 65C-22.008(3)(e)8., F.A.C., shall apply.

3. Toilet facilities shall not open directly into an area where food is prepared. A toilet facility may open directly into an area used by children where food is served.

4. Running water, soap, trash receptacles, toilet paper, and disposable towels or hand drying machines that are properly installed and maintained shall be available and within reach of children using the toileting facility.

5. Each basin and toilet must be maintained in good operating condition and sanitized as needed, at least once per day.

(f) All provisions under paragraphs 65C-22.002(1), (2)(b) through (d), (5)(a), (6)(a), (b), (c), (f), and (g), F.A.C., are required of school age child care programs, except a bath facility.

(i)(g) Indoor Floor Space and Outdoor Play Area. School age child care programs must meet all provisions under paragraphs 65C-22.002(3)(a) through (e) and 65C-22.002(4)(a) through (e), F.A.C. However, the program may choose to request in writing, permission from the licensing authority, to operate under an exception to either usable indoor floor space as specified in subsection 65C-22.002(3), F.A.C., or outdoor play area as specified in subsection 65C-22.002(4), F.A.C. The written request must include an explanation of why the exception is necessary as well as an alternate plan to accommodate instances of inclement weather for those programs requesting an exception to the usable indoor floor space and a plan for inclusion of fine and gross motor skills opportunities for those programs requesting an exception to the outdoor play area.

1. A school-age child care program that held a valid license on October 1, 1992, must have a minimum of 20 square feet of usable indoor floor space for each child. A school-age child care program that did not hold a valid license on October 1, 1992, and seeks regulatory approval to operate as a school-age child care program, must have a minimum of 35 square feet of usable indoor floor space for each child.

2. Usable indoor floor space refers to that space available for indoor play, classroom, work area, or nap space. Usable indoor floor space is calculated by measuring at floor level from interior walls and by deleting space for stairways, toilets and bath facilities, permanent fixtures and non-movable furniture. Kitchens, offices, laundry rooms, storage areas, hallways, and other areas not used in normal day-to-day operations are not included when calculating usable indoor floor space.

3. In addition to the total facility minimum square footage per child, each room that is routinely occupied by children must have a minimum of 20 square feet or 35 square feet (whichever is applicable) per child at all times.

4. Shelves or storage for toys and other materials shall be considered as usable indoor floor space if accessible to children.

5. A school-age child care program may request in writing permission from the licensing authority to operate under an exception to usable indoor floor space as specified in paragraph 65C-22.008(3)(i), F.A.C. The written request must include an explanation of why the exception is necessary as well as an alternate plan to accommodate instances of inclement weather.

(j) Outdoor Play Area.

1. There shall be a minimum of 45 square feet of usable, safe and sanitary outdoor play area per child, one (1) year of age and older. A minimum outside play area shall be provided for one-half (1/2) of this identified population.

2. The outdoor play area shall be calculated at the rate of 45 square feet per child in any group using the play area at one (1) time.

3. The outdoor play area shall be clean and free from litter, nails, glass and other hazards.

4. The outdoor play area shall provide shade.

5. During outdoor play, personnel must situate themselves in the outdoor play area so that all children can be observed and direct supervision can be provided.

6. The facility's outdoor play area shall be fenced in accordance with accepted safety practices and local ordinances to prevent access by children to all water hazards within or adjacent to outdoor play areas, such as pools, ditches, retention and fish ponds.

7. The outdoor play area shall have and maintain safe and adequate fencing or walls a minimum of four (4) feet in height. Fencing, including gates, must be continuous and shall not have gaps that would allow children to exit the outdoor play area. The base of the fence must remain at ground level and be free from erosion or build-up to prevent inside or outside access by children or animals.

8. A school-age child care program may request in writing permission from the licensing authority to operate under an exception to outdoor floor space as specified in paragraph 65C-22.008(3)(j), F.A.C. The written request must include an explanation of why the exception is necessary as well as an alternate plan for inclusion of fine and gross motor skills opportunities. If not requesting an exemption to the outdoor play area, the school-age child care program may operate without a fence if all the following provisions are met:

a. The children using the outdoor play area are in five (5) year old kindergarten and grades one (1) or above;

b. In addition to the established staff-to-child ratios, for the purpose of safety, an additional staff member is present at all times during outdoor activities, to assist in providing direct supervision;

c. The outdoor play area is bordered by a road or street open to travel by the public with a posted or unposted speed limit of no more than 25 miles per hour, or where the posted or

unposted speed limit is no greater than 35 miles per hour and the playground is a minimum of 30 feet from the edge of the road; and

d. The licensing authority has provided written authorization to the program to operate without a fence.

(k) Health and Sanitation.

1. All buildings, when the windows or doors are open, must have and maintain screens to prevent entrance of any insect or rodent. Screens are not required for open air classrooms and picnic areas.

2. Employees, volunteers, and children shall wash their hands with soap and running water, dry thoroughly and follow personal hygiene procedures for themselves, or while assisting others, and immediately after outdoor play.

3. Safe drinking water shall be available to all children. If disposable cups are used, they must be discarded after each use.

4. School-age child care programs may seek an exemption to environmental health standards. The written exemption request, which must include a plan to ensure the health safety of children in care, must be made to the local Environmental Health Unit and, if granted, the exemption must be documented and maintained on file at the program.

(l) Equipment and Furnishings.

1. Indoor Equipment.

a. A school-age child care program shall make available toys, equipment and furnishings suitable to each child's age and development and of a quantity suitable for each child to be involved in activities.

b. Toys, equipment and furnishings must be safe and maintained in a sanitary condition.

2. Outdoor Equipment.

a. A school-age child care program shall provide and maintain equipment and play activities suitable to each child's age and development.

b. All playground equipment shall be securely anchored, unless portable or stationary by design, in good repair, maintained in safe condition, and placed to ensure safe usage by the children. Maintenance shall include checks, at least every other month, of all supports above and below the ground and all connectors and moving parts.

c. Permanent or stationary playground equipment must have a ground cover or other protective surface under the equipment that provides resilience and is maintained to reduce the incidence of injuries to children in the event of falls.

d. All equipment, fences, and objects on the program's premises shall be free from sharp, broken and jagged edges and shall be properly placed to prevent overcrowding or safety hazards in any one (1) area.

e. All equipment used in the outdoor play area shall be constructed and maintained to allow for water drainage and shall be maintained in a safe and sanitary condition.

(m) Health Related Requirements.

1. Communicable Disease Control.

a. Children in care shall be observed on a daily basis for signs of communicable disease. Any child, child care personnel or other person in the school-age child care program suspected of having a communicable disease shall be removed from the program or placed in an isolation area until removed. Such person may not return without medical authorization, or until the signs and symptoms of the disease are no longer present. With a child, the condition shall be reported to the custodial parent or legal guardian. Signs and symptoms of a suspected communicable disease include the following:

(I) Severe coughing, causing the child to become red or blue in the face or to make a whooping sound;

(II) Difficult or rapid breathing;

(III) Stiff neck;

(IV) Diarrhea (more than one abnormally loose stool within a 24 hour period);

(V) Temperature of 101 degrees Fahrenheit or higher when in conjunction with any other signs of illness;

(VI) Conjunctivitis (pink eye);

(VII) Exposed, open skin lesions;

(VIII) Unusually dark urine and/or gray or white stool;

(IX) Yellowish skin or eyes; or

(X) Any other unusual sign or symptom of illness.

b. A child identified as having head lice shall not be permitted to return until treatment has occurred. Verification of treatment may include a product box, box top, empty bottle, or signed statement by a parent that treatment has occurred.

c. Isolation Area. Each school-age child care program shall have a designated isolation area for a child who becomes ill while in care of the program. Such space shall be adequately ventilated, heated, and equipped with a bed, mat, or cot and materials that can be sanitized easily. Linens and disposables shall be changed after each use and used linens and disposables shall be kept in a closed container in the isolation area until cleaned or disposed. The isolated child must be within sight and hearing of a staff person at all times. The child must be carefully observed for worsening conditions.

d. Outbreaks. Operators are required to notify the local county health department immediately upon any suspected outbreak of communicable disease in accordance with Chapter 64D-3, F.A.C., Communicable Disease Control. A suspected outbreak occurs when two (2) or more children or employees have the onset of similar signs or symptoms, as outlined in sub-subparagraphs 65C-22.008(3)(m)1.a., F.A.C., above, within a 72-hour period or when a case of a serious or reportable communicable disease is diagnosed or suspected on a child or employee.

2. First Aid, Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation and Emergency Procedures.

a. Each school-age child care program must have at least one (1) staff member with current and valid certificate(s) of course completion for first aid training and child cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) procedures. One (1) staff member satisfying these training requirements shall be present at all times that children are in the care of the program, both on-site and on field trips. A field trip includes all activities away from the program excluding regular transportation to and from the program, i.e., pick-up and drop-off.

b. Certificate(s) of course completion are valid based on the time frames established by each first aid and CPR training program, not to exceed three (3) years. Online CPR courses are not acceptable to meet this standard. CPR training must be done by classroom instruction. Documentation that identifies staff members have met the first aid and child cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) training requirement shall be kept on file at the school-age child care program facility.

c. At least one (1) first aid kit must be maintained on the premises of the school-age child care program at all times. A first aid kit must also accompany child care staff when children are participating on field trips. Each kit shall be in a closed container and labeled "First Aid". The kits shall be accessible to the child care staff at all times and kept out of the reach of children. Each kit must at a minimum include:

- (I) Soap,
- (II) Band-aids or equivalent,
- (III) Disposable non-porous gloves,
- (IV) Cotton balls or applicators,
- (V) Sterile gauze pads and rolls,
- (VI) Adhesive tape,
- (VII) Thermometer,
- (VIII) Tweezers,
- (IX) Pre-moistened wipes,
- (X) Scissors, and
- (XI) A current resource guide on first aid and CPR procedures.

3. Emergency Procedures and Notification.

a. Emergency telephone numbers, including ambulance, fire, police, poison control center, Florida Abuse Hotline, the county public health unit and the address of and directions to the facility, including major intersections and local landmarks, must be posted on or near all school-age child care program telephones and shall be used to protect the health, safety and well-being of any child in day care.

b. Custodial parents or legal guardians shall be notified immediately in the event of any serious illness, accident, injury or emergency to their child and their specific instructions regarding action to be taken under such circumstances shall be obtained and followed. If the custodial parent or legal guardian cannot be reached, the school-age child care program owner will contact those persons designated by the custodial parent or

legal guardian to be contacted under these circumstances, and shall follow any written instructions provided by the custodial parent or legal guardian on the enrollment form.

c. All accidents and incidents which occur at a school-age child care program or while a child is in the care of program staff must be documented on the day they occur. This documentation must be shared with the custodial parent or legal guardian on the date of occurrence. Documentation shall include the name of the affected party, date and time of occurrence, description of occurrence, actions taken and by whom, and appropriate signatures of program staff and custodial parent or legal guardian and maintained for one (1) year.

d. After a fire or natural disaster, the operator must notify the licensing agency within 24 hours as to their status of operation in order for the licensing authority to ensure health standards are being met for continued operation.

e. The operator shall prepare an emergency evacuation plan including a diagram of safe routes by which the personnel and children may exit the school-age child care program site in the event of fire or other emergency requiring evacuation of the program and post a copy of the plan in each room of the program site.

4. Medication. School-age child care programs are not required to give medication; however, if a program chooses to do so, the following shall apply:

a. The school-age child care program must have written authorization from the custodial parent or legal guardian to dispense prescription and non-prescription medications. This authorization must be dated and signed by the custodial parent or legal guardian and contain the child's name; the name of the medication to be dispensed; and date, time and amount of dosage to be given. This record shall be initialed or signed by the program personnel who gave the medication.

b. Any known allergies to medication or special restrictions must also be documented, maintained in the child's file, shared with staff and posted with stored medication.

c. Prescription and non-prescription medication brought to the school-age child care program by the custodial parent or legal guardian must be in the original container. Prescription medication must have a label stating the name of the physician, child's name, name of the medication, and medication directions. All prescription and non-prescription medication shall be dispensed according to written directions on the prescription label or printed manufacturer's label.

d. In the event of an emergency, non-prescription medication that is not brought in by the parent or legal guardian can be dispensed only if the program has written authorization from the parent or legal guardian to do so.

e. Any medication dispensed under these conditions must be documented in the child's file and the custodial parent or legal guardian must be notified on the day of occurrence.

f. The facility must maintain a record for each child receiving medications that documents the full name of the child, the name of medication, the date and time the medication was dispensed, the amount and dosage, and the name of the person who dispensed the medication. The record shall be maintained for a minimum of four (4) months after the last day the child received the dosage.

g. All medicine must have child resistant caps and shall be stored separately and locked or out of a child's reach.

h. Medication that has expired or that is no longer being dispensed shall be returned to the custodial parent or legal guardian or discarded if the child is no longer enrolled in the school-age child care program.

(n) Child Discipline.

1. Verification that the school-age child care program has provided, in writing, the disciplinary policy used by the program shall be documented on the enrollment form with the signature of the custodial parent or legal guardian.

2. All child care personnel must comply with the school-age child care program's written disciplinary policy. Such policies shall include standards that prohibit children from being subjected to discipline that is severe, humiliating, frightening, or associated with food, rest, or toileting. Spanking or any other form of physical punishment is prohibited by all child care personnel.

3. A copy of the school-age child care program's current written disciplinary policies must be available to the licensing authority to review for compliance with Section 402.305(12), F.S.

(o) Nutrition.

1. If a school-age child care program chooses to supply food, it shall provide nutritious meals and snacks of a quantity and quality to meet the daily nutritional needs of the children. The USDA My Pyramid shall be used to determine what food groups to serve at each meal or snack and the serving size of the selected foods for children ages two (2) and older. Using the USDA My Pyramid, breakfast shall consist of at least three (3) different food groups, lunch and dinner shall consist of at least four (4) different food groups, and snacks shall consist of at least two (2) different food groups. The categories "oils" and "discretionary calories" may not be considered food groups. Copies of the USDA My Pyramid may be obtained from the licensing authority, the local county health department or from the USDA website at www.mypyramid.gov.

2. If a school-age child care program chooses not to provide meals and snacks, arrangements must be made with the custodial parent or legal guardian to provide nutritional food for the child.

3. If a special diet is required for a child by a physician, a copy of the physician's order, a copy of the diet, and a sample meal plan for the special diet shall be maintained in the child's file. If the parent or legal guardian notifies the school-age child care program of any known food allergies, written

documentation must be maintained in the child's file for as long as the child is in care. Special food restrictions must be shared with staff and must be posted in a conspicuous location.

4. Meal and snack menus shall be planned, written, and posted at the beginning of each week. Any menu substitution shall be noted on the menu. Menus shall be dated and posted in the food service area and in a conspicuous place accessible to parents. Daily meal and snack menus shall be maintained for a minimum of one (1) month.

(p) Food Preparation Area.

1. All licensed school-age child care programs approved by the Environmental Health Section to prepare food shall have documentation on file from the Department of Health verifying the facility meets the applicable requirements as specified in Chapter 64E-11, F.A.C., Food Hygiene.

2. School-age child care programs may seek an exemption from the environmental health standards as it pertains to the food preparation area specified in subparagraph 65C-22.008(3)(p)1., F.A.C. The written exemption request, which must include a plan to ensure safe and sanitary food preparation for children in care, must be made to the local Environmental Health Unit and if granted, the exemption must be documented and maintained on file at the program.

(q) Food Service.

1. School-age child care programs shall provide sufficient age appropriate seating so that children are seated at tables for meals.

2. Children shall be supervised during all meals and snacks and offered foods appropriate for their ages.

3. Single service paper or plastic plates, utensils, and cups shall not be reused. Plates, utensils and cups provided by the facility that are not disposable shall be washed, rinsed, and sanitized between uses.

(h) If not requesting an exemption to the outdoor play area, the school age child care program may operate without a fence if all the following provisions are met:

1. The children using the outdoor play area are in five year old kindergarten and grades one or above;

2. In addition to the established staff to children ratios, for the purpose of safety, an additional staff member is present, at all times during outdoor activities, to assist in providing direct supervision;

3. The outdoor play area is bordered by a road or street open to travel by the public with a posted or unposted speed limit of no more than 25 miles per hour, or where the posted or unposted speed limit is no greater than 35 miles per hour and the playground is a minimum of 30 feet from the edge of the road; and

4. The licensing authority has provided written authorization to the program to operate without a fence.

(r)(4) Fire Safety. School age child care programs must meet all provisions under subsection 65C-22.002(7), F.A.C. However the program may seek an exemption to state

standards adopted by the State Fire Marshal, Chapter 69A-36, F.A.C., Uniform Standards for Life Safety and Fire Prevention in Child Care Facilities. The written exemption request, which must include a plan for ensuring the safety of children in care, must be made to the local fire inspection office and if granted, the exemption must be documented and maintained on file at the program.

1. Unless statutorily exempted, all school-age child care programs shall conform to state standards adopted by the State Fire Marshal, Chapter 69A-36, F.A.C., Uniform Standards for Life Safety and Fire Prevention in Child Care Facilities, and shall be inspected annually. A copy of the current and approved annual fire inspection report by a certified fire inspector must be on file with the licensing authority. However, a school-age child care program may seek an exemption to state standards adopted by the State Fire Marshal, Chapter 69A-36, F.A.C., Uniform Standards for Life Safety and Fire Prevention in Child Care Facilities. The written exemption request, which must include a plan for ensuring the safety of children in care, must be made to the local fire inspection office and, if granted, the exemption must be documented and maintained on file at the program.

2. There shall be at least one (1) corded telephone in the school-age child care program facility that is neither locked nor located at a pay station and is available to all staff during the hours of operation.

3. Fire drills shall be conducted monthly at various times when children are in care. A current attendance record must accompany staff out of the building during a drill or actual evacuation and be used to account for all children.

4. The operator shall maintain a written record of monthly fire drills showing the date, number of children in attendance, and time taken to evacuate the premises. Each monthly record shall be maintained for a minimum of four (4) months from the date of the fire drill.

(s) Transportation. For the purpose of this section, vehicles refer to those owned/operated or regularly used by the school-age child care program, and vehicles that provide transportation through a contract or agreement with an outside entity.

1. When any vehicle is regularly used by a school-age child care program to provide transportation, the driver shall have a current Florida driver's license, an annual physical examination which grants medical approval to drive, and valid certificate(s) of course completion for first aid training and infant and child cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) procedures.

2. All child care facilities must comply with the insurance requirements found in Section 316.615(4), F.S.

3. All vehicles regularly used to transport children shall be inspected annually by a mechanic to ensure that they are in proper working order. Documentation by the mechanic shall be maintained in the vehicle.

4. The maximum number of individuals transported in a vehicle may not exceed the manufacturer's designated seating capacity or the number of factory installed seat belts.

5. Each child, when transported, must be in an individual factory installed seat belt or federally approved child safety restraint unless the vehicle is excluded from this requirement by Florida Statute.

6. When transporting children, staff-to-child ratios must be maintained at all times. The driver may be included in the staff-to-child ratio.

7. Driver's Log. A log shall be maintained for all children being transported in the vehicle. The log shall be retained for a minimum of four (4) months. The log shall include each child's name, date, time of departure and time of arrival, signature of driver and signature of second staff member to verify driver's log and the fact that all children have left the vehicle.

8. Prior to transporting children, the driver's log must be recorded, signed, and dated immediately, verifying that all children were accounted for and that the log is complete.

9. Upon arrival at the destination, the driver of the vehicle shall:

a. Mark each child off the log as the children depart the vehicle.

b. Conduct a physical inspection and visual sweep of the vehicle to ensure that no child is left in the vehicle, and

c. Record, sign, and date the driver's log immediately, verifying that all children were accounted for and that the visual sweep was conducted.

10. Upon arrival at the destination, a second staff member shall:

a. Conduct a physical inspection and visual sweep of the vehicle to ensure that no child is left in the vehicle, and

b. Sign, date and record the driver's log immediately, verifying that all children were accounted for and that the log is complete.

(t) Record Keeping.

1. General Requirements

a. Each of the records described in this section shall be maintained at the school-age child care program and available during the hours of operation for review by the licensing authority.

b. A copy of all background screening documents for the director and owner must be included in the department's official licensing file.

c. Copies of required records are acceptable for documentation. Original documents are the property of the party providing the information.

2. Health Records. School-aged children attending public or nonpublic schools are not required to have student health examination and immunization records on file at the school-age child care program as such records are on file at the school where the child is enrolled.

3. Enrollment Information. The facility operator shall obtain enrollment information from the child's custodial parent or legal guardian prior to accepting a child in care. This information shall be documented on CF-FSP Form 5219, Child Care Application for Enrollment, or an equivalent form that contains all the information required by the Department of Children and Family Services on CF-FSP Form 5219. CF-FSP Form 5219 may be obtained from the licensing authority or by going to the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare.

a. Enrollment information shall be kept current and on file.

b. The child shall not be released to any person other than the person(s) authorized or in the manner authorized in writing by the custodial parent or legal guardians.

c. There shall be signed statements from the custodial parents or legal guardian that the school-age child care program has provided them with the following information:

(I) The Department of Children and Family Services child care facility brochure, CF/PI 175-24, Know Your Child Care Facility. This brochure may be obtained from the licensing authority or by going to the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare. Local licensing agencies may use an equivalent brochure approved by the Department of Children and Family Services.

(II) The school-age child care program's written disciplinary practices.

3. Personnel Records. Records shall be maintained and kept current on all child care personnel, as defined by Section 402.302(3), F.S., and household members if the facility is located in a private residence. These shall include:

a. An employment application with the required statement pursuant to Section 402.3055(1)(b), F.S.

b. Position and date of employment.

c. Signed statement that the employee understands the statutory requirements for professionals' reporting of child abuse and neglect.

d. Level 2 screening information documented on CF-FSP Form 5131, Background Screening and Personnel File Requirements. A screening conducted under this rule is valid for five (5) years, at which time a statewide re-screen must be conducted. Child care personnel must be re-screened following a break in employment in the child care industry which exceeds 90 days. If child care personnel takes a leave of absence, such as maternity leave, extended sick leave, migrant child care programs, etc., re-screening is not required unless the five (5) year re-screen has come due during the leave of absence. A person in this five (5) year re-screen category must undergo the same level of screening which was required upon initial employment and must include, at a minimum:

(I) Statewide criminal records checks through the Florida Department of Law Enforcement and a local criminal records check.

(II) An employment history check that includes the previous two (2) years. An employment history check conducted under this rule shall include the applicant's position description, confirmation of employment dates from previous job(s), and level of job performance.

(III) CF-FSP 1649, An Affidavit of Good Moral Character, must be completed annually for all child care personnel. CF-FSP 1649 may be obtained from the licensing authority or on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare.

e. A copy of all background screening documents for the director and owner must be included in the department's official licensing file or in accordance with the appropriate to local licensing agency requirements.

f. Copies of training information and credentials as described in subsection 65C-22.008(4), F.A.C.

g. Driver's license and driver physical examination documentation. A copy of the driver's license and the physician certification or another form containing the same elements of the physician certification, granting medical approval to operate the vehicle, and valid certificate(s) of course completion for first aid training and child cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) procedures must also be maintained in the driver's personnel file.

3. Summary of Records. In addition to the documentation outlined in subparagraphs 65C-22.008(3)(t)1., 2. and 3., F.A.C., the following is a list of records that shall be maintained at the school-age child care program and available during the hours of operation for review by the licensing authority:

a. Driver's log. Must be retained for the previous four (4) months as referenced in subparagraph 65C-22.008(3)(s)7., F.A.C.

b. Facility's written disciplinary policies as referenced in subparagraph 65C-22.008(3)(n)3., F.A.C.

c. Written record of monthly fire drills. Must be maintained for a minimum of four (4) months as referenced in subparagraph 65C-22.008(3)(r)4., F.A.C.

d. Documentation of staff members that have met the first aid and infant and child cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) training requirement as referenced in sub-subparagraph 65C-22.008(3)(m)2.b., F.A.C.

e. Posted emergency telephone numbers and the address of and directions to the facility as referenced in sub-subparagraph 65C-22.008(3)(m)3.a., F.A.C.

f. Documentation of accidents/incidents. Must be maintained for one (1) year as referenced in sub-subparagraph 65C-22.008(3)(m)3.c., F.A.C.

g. Emergency evacuation plan as referenced in subparagraph 65C-22.008(3)(m)3.e., F.A.C.

h. Record for each child receiving medication. Must be maintained for a minimum of four (4) months after the last day the child received the dosage as referenced in sub-subparagraph 65C-22.008(3)(m)3.f., F.A.C.

i. Sample meal plan for special diet (if applicable). A copy of the physician's order, a copy of the diet, and a sample meal plan for the special diet must be maintained for as long as the child is in care as referenced in subparagraph 65C-22.008(3)(o)3., F.A.C.

j. Written documentation of known food allergies (if applicable). Must be maintained for as long as the child is in care as referenced in subparagraph 65C-22.008(3)(o)3., F.A.C.

k. Daily meal and snack menus, including meal substitutions. Must be maintained for one (1) year as referenced in subparagraph 65C-22.008(3)(o)4., F.A.C.

~~(j) Health and Sanitation. All provisions under subparagraphs 65C-22.002(8)(a)1. through 3., F.A.C., must be met. In addition, school age child care programs may seek an exemption to environmental health standards. The written exemption request, which must include a plan to ensure the health safety of children in care, must be made to the local Environmental Health Unit and if granted, the exemption must be documented and maintained on file at the program.~~

~~(k) Equipment and Furnishings. All provisions as applicable, under subsection 65C-22.002(9), F.A.C., must be met.~~

~~(l) All provisions under subsections 65C-22.004(1), (2), and (3), F.A.C., must be met.~~

~~(m) All provisions under subsections 65C-22.005(1), (2), (3)(a) and (e), F.A.C., as it pertains to age appropriate food and heated food only, and paragraph 65C-22.005(3)(e), F.A.C. School age child care programs may seek an exemption from the environmental health standards as it pertains to the food preparation area specified in subsection 65C-22.005(2), F.A.C. The written exemption request, which must include a plan to ensure safe and sanitary food preparation for children in care, must be made to the local Environmental Health Unit and if granted, the exemption must be documented and maintained on file at the program.~~

~~(n) All provisions under subsections 65C-22.006(1), (3), (4), (5) and (6), F.A.C., must be met. School aged children attending public or nonpublic schools are not required to have student health examination and immunization records on file at the school age child care program as such records are on file at the school where the child is enrolled.~~

(4) School-Age Child Care Personnel Training Requirements.

(a) Definitions

1. "Active" refers to the status of a candidate's awarded credential or certification in which requirements have been successfully met.

2. "Before-school and after-school site" refers to a program, regardless of location, that provides child care for children who are at least five (5) years old and are enrolled in and attend a kindergarten program or grades one (1) and above during a school district's calendar year. This is limited to

programs that provide care only before and after the recognized hours of a district's school day and on teacher planning days, holidays, and intercessions that occur during the school district's official calendar year.

3. "Begin training for child care personnel" refers to a candidate's commencement of at least one (1) of the child care training courses listed in Section 402.305(2)(d), F.S. This may be accomplished by classroom attendance, acquiring an educational exemption from training, beginning a department-approved online child care training course, or by completion of a department-approved competency examination within the first 90 days of employment in the child care industry. The child care facility is responsible for obtaining documentation from child care personnel.

4. "Director" means "operator" as defined in Section 402.302 (11), F.S., is the onsite administrator or individual who has the primary responsibility for the day-to-day operation, supervision and administration of a child care facility.

5. "Director Credential" is a department-approved comprehensive credential that consists of educational and experiential requirements as referenced in paragraph 65C-22.008(4)(i), F.A.C.

6. "Training Transcript" is the electronic documentation of statutorily mandated training and staff credential qualifications for child care personnel. Training transcripts may be obtained on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare.

7. "Weighted score" means a scaled score, rather than a percentage score, based on the difficulty of the exam and determined by competency exam professionals in consultation with subject matter experts.

(b) All child care personnel must complete training within 12 months from the date training begins and may not exceed 15 months from the date of employment in the child care industry.

(c) Child care personnel hired on or after October 1, 1992 must successfully complete 40 hours of child care training by completing the following ~~(20) twenty hours of the~~ Department of Children and Family Services' training as evidenced by successful completion passage of a competency examination offered by the Department of Children and Family Services or its designated representative with a weighted score of ~~seventy (70) or better.~~ Child care personnel who successfully completed the following training prior to January 1, 2004 are not required to fulfill the competency examination requirement:

1. Child Care Facilities State and Local Rules and Regulation;
2. Health, Safety, and Nutrition;
3. Identifying and Reporting Child Abuse and Neglect; and
4. School Age-Appropriate Practices.

~~(d)(b)~~ The remaining 20 hours must be met by successfully completing a combination of other Department of Children and Family Services' training identified below as evidenced by successful completion of competency examinations offered by the Department of Children and Family Services or its designated representative with a weighted score of 70 or better: ~~in paragraphs 65C-22.003(2)(a) and (b), F.A.C., or by completing 20 hours of specialized school-age training, provided by a national organization or its affiliates that requires demonstration of competencies through passage of examination(s) or completion and assessment of a Professional Resource File (portfolio of materials that demonstrate competency):~~

1. Child Growth and Development (10 hours).
2. Behavioral Observation and Screening (10 hours).
3. Infant and Toddler Appropriate Practices (10 hours).
4. Preschool Appropriate Practices (10 hours).
5. Special Needs Appropriate Practices (10 hours).
6. Basic Guidance and Discipline (5 hours online).
7. Computer Technology for Child Care Professionals (5 hours online).
8. Early Literacy for Children Ages Birth Through Three (5 hours online).
9. Early Childhood Computer Learning Centers (5 hours online).
10. Emergent Literacy for Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten (VPK) Instructors (5 hours online), or
11. Completion of 20 hours of specialized school-age training, provided by a national organization or its affiliates, that requires demonstration of competencies through passage of examination(s) or completion and assessment of a Professional Resource File (portfolio of materials that demonstrate competency).

~~(e)(e)~~ School-age ~~c~~child care personnel are exempt from the training requirement of five (5) clock-hour early literacy and language development of children from birth to five (5) years of age, under paragraph 65C-22.003(2)(~~b~~ ~~d~~), F.A.C.

~~(d)~~ Child care personnel may choose to meet the training exemptions under subsection 65C-22.003(3), F.A.C.

~~(e)~~ All provisions under subsection 65C-22.003(6), F.A.C., must be met.

(f) School-age child care programs are exempt from the staff credentialing requirement as outlined in subsection 65C-22.003(7), F.A.C.

(g) Exemptions from the Introductory Child Care Training.

1. Competency Examination Exemptions. Child care personnel have one (1) opportunity, if they choose, to exempt from one (1) or more of the department's Introductory Child Care Training courses prior to attending training by successful completion of corresponding competency examinations with a

weighted score of 70 or better. Exemption examinations are not available for the department's online Part II specialized training courses.

2. Educational Exemptions.

a. The Department of Children and Family Services or its designated representative shall exempt child care personnel from the Health, Safety and Nutrition; Child Growth and Development; and Behavioral Observation and Screening courses who meet one (1) of the following educational qualifications:

(I) Associate's degree or higher with six (6) college credit hours in early childhood education/child growth and development or degree in elementary education with certification to teach any age birth through 6th grade.

(II) An active National Early Childhood Credential (NECC) or an active Birth Through Five Florida Child Care Professional Credential (FCCPC).

b. The Department of Children and Family Services or its designated representative shall exempt child care personnel with a B.A., B.S. or advanced degree in Early Childhood Education or Preschool Education from the Infant and Toddler Appropriate Practices course and Preschool Appropriate Practices course.

c. The Department of Children and Family Services or its designated representative shall exempt child care personnel with a B.A., B.S. or advanced degree in Elementary Education from the School Age Appropriate Practices course.

d. The Department of Children and Family Services or its designated representative shall exempt child care personnel with a B.A., B.S. or advanced degree in Exceptional Student Education from the Special Needs Appropriate Practices course.

e. There are no educational exemptions from the Child Care Facility Rules and Regulations and the Identifying and Reporting Child Abuse and Neglect courses or from the department's online training courses.

(h) Annual In-Service Training.

1. All child care facility personnel must complete a minimum of 10 clock-hours or one (1) CEU of in-service training annually during the state's fiscal year beginning July 1 and ending June 30.

2. The annual 10 clock-hours or one (1) CEU of in-service training concentrating on children ages birth through 12 must be completed in one (1) or more of the following areas (college level courses will be accepted):

a. Health and safety, including universal precautions;

b. CPR;

c. First Aid (may only be taken to meet the in-service requirement once every three (3) years);

d. Nutrition;

e. Child development – typical and atypical;

f. Child transportation and safety;

- g. Behavior management;
- h. Working with families;
- i. Design and use of child oriented space;
- j. Community, health and social service resources;
- k. Child abuse;
- l. Child care for multilingual children;
- m. Working with children with disabilities in child care;
- n. Safety in outdoor play;
- o. Literacy;
- p. Guidance and discipline;
- q. Computer technology;
- r. Leadership development/program management and staff supervision;
 - s. Age appropriate lesson planning;
 - t. Homework assistance for school-age care;
 - u. Developing special interest centers/spaces and environments; or
 - v. Other course areas relating to child care or child care management.

3. Documentation of the in-service training requirement must be recorded on CF-FSP Form 5268, Child Care In-Service Training Record, and included in the child care facilities' personnel records. CF-FSP 5268 may be obtained from the licensing authority or on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare. A new in-service training record is required each fiscal year. The in-service training records for the previous two (2) fiscal years must also be maintained at the child care facility for review by the licensing authority.

(i) Director Credential.

1. Director Credential Requirement. Pursuant to Section 402.305(2)(f), F.S., a child care facility must have a credentialed director. An individual with an inactive Director Credential is ineligible to be the director of a child care facility. An applicant for the Director Credential or Advanced Director Credential must meet the requirements referenced in CF-FSP Form 5290, Florida Child Care Director Credential Verification and Application. CF-FSP Form 5290 may be obtained on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare. All applications and documentation will be verified and credential issued by the Department of Children and Family Services on CF-FSP Form 5252, Florida Director Credential Certificate.

a. An individual may not be the director of child care facilities that overlap in the hours of operation.

b. Each child care facility must have a credentialed director that is on-site a majority of hours that the facility is in operation.

c. Every applicant for a license to operate a child care facility or a license for a change of ownership of a child care facility must document that the facility director has an active Director Credential prior to issuance of the license.

d. Child care facility owners must notify the licensing authority within five (5) working days of when the facility loses a credentialed director or when there is a change of director. The licensing authority will then issue a provisional license for a period not to exceed six (6) months. The provisional license will have an effective date of the first day the facility was without a credentialed director.

e. CF-FSP Form 5252 must be posted in a conspicuous location at the facility.

2. The following exceptions to the Director Credential apply only to before and after school programs that are licensed as child care facilities defined in Section 402.302, F.S., and serve only school-aged children:

a. A credentialed director is not required during evening hours as defined in Section 402.302(6), F.S.

b. A credentialed director may supervise multiple before-school and after-school sites for a single organization as follows:

(I) Three (3) sites regardless of the number of children enrolled, or

(II) More than three (3) sites if the combined total number of children enrolled at the sites does not exceed 350. In calculating the total number of children enrolled, the number of children in the before- and after-school program shall be calculated and viewed as separate programs.

(III) In counties where the public school district has included four (4) year-old children in public before-school and after-school programs, the school district may participate in the multi-site supervision option. Public school districts that serve four (4) year old children in the before-school and after-school programs are required to have a credentialed staff person pursuant to the credentialing requirements in paragraph 65C-22.003(7)(a), F.A.C., in order to accommodate the four (4)-year-old children.

(IV) When a credentialed director is supervising multiple sites, the individual left in charge of the site during the director's absence must meet the following requirements:

(A) At least 21 years of age;

(B) Have completed the approved 40 clock-hour Introductory Child Care Training approved by the Department of Children and Family Services; and

(C) Have completed the Department of Children and Family Services' Part II specialized training course, Special Needs Appropriate Practices, or completed a minimum of eight (8) hours of in-service training in serving children with disabilities; or

(D) Have completed the Department of Children and Family Services' School-Age Appropriate Practices specialized training module.

3. Director Credential Renewal.

a. To maintain an active Director Credential at either level, candidates must meet the requirements referenced on CF-FSP Form 5306, Florida Director Credential Renewal Application.

CF-FSP Form 5306 may be obtained on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare.

b. A Director Credential renewal, as documented on CF-FSP Form 5252, is active for five (5) years from the date of issuance. The completed renewal application, including all required documentation, must be submitted to the Department of Children and Family Services for review and issuance of a Director Credential Renewal Certificate no earlier than one (1) year prior to the end of the active period of the Director Credential. The Director Credential renewal date is determined by the end date of the active period.

c. If a renewal application is received after the end of the active period for the Director Credential, the Director Credential Renewal Application will be reviewed and, if approved, a certificate will be issued with a renewal date of five (5) years from the date the completed renewal application was processed.

4. Director Credential Training Providers.

a. The Department of Children and Family Services is responsible for reviewing and approving "Overview of Child Care Management" courses offered through vocational-technical schools, community colleges and universities to determine if the requirements for the Director Credential coursework are met. Coursework will be reviewed and approved according to the guidelines found in "Florida Child Care and Education Program Director Credential Curriculum Areas;" copies of which may be obtained from the Department of Children and Family Services.

(I) Vocational-technical schools, community colleges and universities seeking to offer the Director Credential training shall submit CF-FSP Form 5247, Florida Child Care and Education Program Director Credential Course Approval Application to the department for course review and approval. CF-FSP Form 5247 may be obtained on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare.

(II) A list of approved "Overview of Child Care Management" courses may be obtained on the Department of Children and Family Services' website at www.myflorida.com/childcare.

b. All college level coursework pertaining to the following content areas will be accepted as approved coursework towards the Advanced Level Director Credential requirements:

(I) Child Care and Education Organizational Leadership and Management

(II) Child Care and Education Financial and Legal Issues

(III) Child Care and Education Programming.

(g) All provisions as applicable under subsection 65C-22.003(8), F.A.C., must be met. A director holding a foundational or advanced Director Credential may supervise multiple sites as specified in paragraph 65C-22.003(8)(j), F.A.C.

Specific Authority 402.302, 402.305 FS. Law Implemented 402.302, 402.305 FS. History--New 9-12-04, Amended _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Carrie Pafford, Government Operations Consultant II
 NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Don Winstead, Deputy Secretary
 DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: June 26, 2006
 DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: January 13, 2006

**Section III
 Notices of Changes, Corrections and
 Withdrawals**

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE INTERNAL IMPROVEMENT TRUST FUND

Notices for the Board of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund between December 28, 2001 and June 30, 2006, go to <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/> under the link or button titled "Official Notices."

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

DOCKET NOS. 060172-EU and 060173-EU	
RULE NOS.:	RULE TITLES:
25-6.034	Standard of Construction
25-6.0341	Location of the Utility's Electric Distribution Facilities
25-6.0342	Third-Party Attachment Standards and Procedures
25-6.0343	Municipal Electric Utilities and Rural Electric Cooperatives
25-6.0345	Safety Standards for Construction of New Transmission and Distribution Facilities
25-6.064	Contribution-in-Aid-of-Construction for Installation of New or Upgraded Facilities
25-6.078	Schedule of Charges
25-6.115	Facility Charges for Conversion of Existing Overhead Investor-owned Distribution Facilities

NOTICE OF CHANGE OF HEARING DATE

The Public Service Commission notifies all interested persons that the date of the hearing in the above dockets has been changed from August 22, 2006 to August 31, 2006, in order to accommodate the Commission's schedule. The notice of rulemaking was published in the July 7, 2006, Florida Administrative Weekly, Vol. 32, No. 27.

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
33-602.210 Use of Force

NOTICE OF CHANGE

Notice is hereby given that the following changes have been made to the proposed rule in accordance with subparagraph 120.54(3)(d)1., F.S., published in Vol. 32, No. 18, (May 5, 2006), issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly:

33-602.210 Use of Force.

(1) through (3) No change.

(4) Physical force shall be employed only as a last resort when it reasonably appears that other alternatives are not feasible to control the situation and will not be used solely in response to verbal abuse that does not rise to a level of a disturbance. When the use of force is justified, only that amount and type of force that reasonably appears necessary to accomplish the authorized objective shall be used. All authorized use of force incidents will be videorecorded in their entirety, except that videotaping the administration of chemical agents is not required for use on an inmate creating a disturbance in his or her cell when the officer is attempting to resolve the situation without extracting the inmate from the cell. Videotaping will be initiated after the final exposure to chemical agents and will continue from this point until the decontaminating shower is provided, ~~and~~ the medical examination is completed, and the inmate is returned to a secure cell. Should the inmate refuse the shower for decontamination purposes or refuse the medical examination, both the staff providing the opportunity in each case and the inmate's responses will be recorded. All spontaneous use of force incidents will be videotaped from the point the video camera operator arrives at the scene. Videotaping shall continue uninterrupted until the incident is under control, the involved inmate is escorted to medical, and the inmate is subsequently returned to secure housing. Videotaping of post use of force medical exams shall be done in such a manner as to provide the privacy needed for the exam. If it is necessary to transport the inmate to an outside facility for treatment or to another department facility for secure housing purposes, videotaping shall continue until the inmate is loaded and secured in the transport vehicle.

(5) through (9) No change.

(10) The warden or acting warden shall immediately conduct a preliminary review of the video tape(s) and all associated reports for signs of excessive force or procedural deviation. If signs of excessive force or procedural deviation are noted by the warden or assigned inspector, she or he will notify the Office of the Inspector General directly, so that there is no undue delay in initiating an investigation. The warden shall then appoint a staff member of equal or higher rank than those involved in the use of force to collect all pertinent information and required documentation. This information will include the reports of all involved staff and the statements of

staff witnesses, inmate witnesses, the inmate subject, and the completed Use of Force File Checklist, Form DC1-813. All inmate statements (subject and witnesses) shall be made in writing using the Witness Statement, Form DC6-112C. Form DC6-112C is incorporated by reference in Rule 33-601.313, F.A.C. All employees who witness but do not participate in the use of force shall complete an Incident Report, Form DC6-210. Form DC6-210 is incorporated by reference in subsection (22) of this rule. This process will be completed within 5 working days (Monday through Friday). The warden shall review the information and note any inappropriate actions. The warden shall review the Use of Force File Checklist, Form DC1-813, and shall forward the videotape(s) and associated reports on the use of force and the warden's review to the institutional inspector within five working days. Form DC1-813 is incorporated by reference in subsection (22) of this rule. The institutional inspector will ensure that all documentation is complete and will forward all materials to the Use of Force Unit within the Office of the Inspector General (OIG) within 5 working days. The Use of Force Unit within the ~~OIG~~, following its review, will either approve the use of force action or disapprove it. If the Use of Force Unit finds that the use of force was appropriate, the OIG's written determination of the appropriateness of the force used and the reasons therefor, shall be forwarded to the circuit administrator or warden upon completion of the review. If the Use of Force Unit ~~OIG~~ finds that the use of force was inappropriate, the OIG shall conduct a complete investigation into the incident and forward the findings of fact to the appropriate regional director before final approval or disapproval. ~~If disapproved, The~~ the OIG shall also advise the warden in writing of the reason for the disapproval so that the warden can take any needed corrective action. If employee disciplinary action appears warranted, the warden shall forward the materials to the service center employee relations supervisor. Form DC6-296, Disapproved Use of Force/Disposition Report, shall be used for this purpose. Form DC6-296 is incorporated by reference in subsection (22) of this rule. The warden shall document all corrective action taken. Copies of the employee's report, the warden's summary and the inspector general's review and determination shall be kept in the inmate's file. A Use of Force Log, Form DC2-802, shall be placed in every employee's personnel file. This form will be maintained by the servicing personnel office and shall contain a record of every report of use of force and staff supplement completed by the employee. The warden or his or her designee shall be responsible for submitting accurate information to the personnel office in order to maintain the DC2-802. Any use of force reports completed prior to April 15, 1998 shall also remain in the file. Form DC2-802, Use of Force Log, is incorporated by reference in subsection (22) of this rule.

(11) through (15) No change.

(16) Use of Chemical Agents.

(a) through (l) No change.

(m) Procedure for the use of chemical agents on disruptive inmates under controlled conditions:

1. through 2. No change.

3. Prior to using chemical agents, the inmate again shall be counseled with by the shift supervisor concerning his behavior.

a. through e. No change.

f. Except in cases of extreme emergency as determined by the warden or duty warden, the confinement or close management lieutenant or the shift supervisor shall counsel with, issue the final order, and be present during the administering of chemical agents. If the confinement or close management lieutenant or the shift supervisor, confinement or close management lieutenant is unavailable, he shall provide a written explanation as to why he was not available to supervise the administration of chemical agents.

(n) through (p) No change.

(17) through (22) No change.

Specific Authority 944.09 FS. Law Implemented 20.315, 776.07, 944.09, 944.35 FS. History—New 4-8-81, Amended 10-10-83, 9-28-85, Formerly 33-3.066, Amended 3-26-86, 11-21-86, 4-21-93, 7-26-93, 11-2-94, 2-12-97, 11-8-98, Formerly 33-3.0066, Amended 10-6-99, 2-7-00, 7-25-02, 8-25-03, 2-25-04, 11-7-04, 4-17-05, 8-1-05, 3-2-06,_____.

AGENCY FOR HEALTH CARE ADMINISTRATION

Certificate of Need

RULE NO.: 59C-1.021
 RULE TITLE: Certificate of Need Penalties
 NOTICE OF CHANGE

Notice is hereby given that the following changes have been made to the proposed rule in accordance with subparagraph 120.54(3)(d)1., F.S., published in Vol. 32, No. 12, March 24, 2006, issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly and amended by the notice of change published in Vol. 32, No. 24, June 16, 2006, issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly.

TEXT OF PROPOSED RULE CHANGES:

59C-1.021 Certificate of Need Penalties

(3) Penalties for Failure to Comply with Certificate of Need or Certificate of Need Exemption Conditions. The agency shall review the annual compliance report submitted by the health care providers who are licensed and operate the facilities or services and other pertinent data to assess compliance with certificate of need or certificate of need exemption conditions. Providers who are not in compliance with certificate of need or certificate of need exemption conditions will be fined pursuant to paragraph 408.040(1)(d), Florida Statutes may subject to a fine shall be fined. Failure to report compliance with any condition upon which the issuance of the certificate of need or certificate of need exemption was predicated constitutes noncompliance. For community nursing homes or hospital-based skilled nursing units certified as such by Medicare, the first compliance report on the status of

conditions must be submitted 30 calendar days following the eighteenth month of operation or the first month where an 85 percent occupancy is achieved, whichever comes first. The schedule of fines is as follows:

(a) Facilities failing to comply with any conditions or failing to provide the certificate of need office with a report on its compliance with conditions set forth on the certificate of need or certificate of need exemption, will be assessed a fine, not to exceed \$1,000 per failure per day. In assessing the penalty the agency shall take into account the degree of noncompliance. Fines for noncompliance with an indigent care condition will ~~may~~ be assessed using the following formula except when ~~unless~~ there are found to be mitigating factors or when the condition noncompliance is found to be willful under (3)(b) of this rule:-

CAGP = the service condition agreed to by certificate of need or certificate of need exemption holder

ACTP = the actual percentage of service provided by the certificate of need or the certificate of need exemption holder during the reporting year

FAMT = dollar amount of the fine

FAMT = \$365,000 x (CAGP – ACTP) / CAGP

Indigent care includes charity care and Medicaid. Charity care is defined, for purposes of condition compliance, as the portion of the facility charges reported to the Agency for Health Care Administration for which there is no compensation, other than restricted or unrestricted revenues provided to a facility by local governments or tax districts regardless of the method of payment, for care provided to a patient whose family income for the twelve months preceding the determination is less than or equal to 200 percent of the federal poverty level unless the amount of charges due from the patient exceed 25 percent of the annual family income. However, in no case shall the facility charges for a patient whose family income exceeds four times the federal poverty level for a family of four be considered charity. Medicaid patient days is defined, for purposes of condition compliance, as the patient days reimbursed by Medicaid.

(b) The fine for willful noncompliance will be assessed in an amount equal to FAMT + \$365,000 x .5, but the total fine shall not exceed \$365,000. The existence of, ~~but not limited to,~~ one or more of the following circumstances will ~~may~~ evidence willful condition noncompliance, allowing the agency to impose fines in excess of the calculated FAMT, but the total fine shall not exceed \$365,000:

1. The CON or CON exemption holder fails to meet its indigent care condition when the condition is below the rate of indigent care provided by all other facilities in the planning area for the reporting period; or

2. The CON or CON exemption holder has been fined for condition noncompliance for any of the previous 3 years' CON condition compliance reporting periods.

(c) The fine assessed using FAMT will be reduced when there is a finding of mitigating factors and the condition noncompliance is not willful. Examples of mitigating factors to be considered before assessing a fine may include but are not limited to the following:

1. The CON or CON exemption holder’s history of condition compliance.
2. The CON or CON exemption holder’s overall indigent care service.
3. The CON or CON exemption holder’s level of indigent care relative to all other similar providers in the relevant planning area.
4. The conditioned facility showing an operating loss or negative total margin on its most recent audited financial statement.

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Notices for the Department of Environmental Protection between December 28, 2001 and June 30, 2006, go to <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/> under the link or button titled “Official Notices.”

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Division of Disease Control

RULE CHAPTER NO.:	RULE CHAPTER TITLE:
64D-4	Eligibility Requirements for HIV/AIDS Patient Care Programs
RULE NOS.:	RULE TITLES:
64D-4.001	Purpose
64D-4.002	Definitions
64D-4.003	Eligibility and Documentation Requirements
64D-4.004	Determined Eligible or Ineligible
64D-4.005	Re-Determination and Continued Eligibility
64D-4.006	Rights and Responsibilities

NOTICE OF CHANGE

Notice is hereby given that the following changes have been made to the proposed rule in accordance with subparagraph 120.54(3)(d)1., Florida Statutes, published in the Vol. 31., No.15, April 15, 2005 issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly. The changes are in response to written comments received from the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee (JAPC) and other affected parties to provide clarification. The changes are as follows:

64D-4.001 Purpose.

Proposed Effective Date is 10-15-06.

Specific Authority 381.0011(13) FS. Law Implemented 381.001(1), 381.003(1)(c), 381.0011(5) FS. History–New 10-15-06.

64D-4.002 Definitions.

(1) “Allowable services” mean the HIV/AIDS patient care services listed in the current federal Glossary of Services as referenced by the Health Resources and Services Administration in the Ryan White CARE Act Title II Manual (2002), the eligible activities as governed by 24 CFR Part 574.300 (b)(1) and (6) by the U. S. Department of Federal Housing and Urban Development (HUD), (effective April 11, 1994), and the HIV/AIDS patient care services administered by the Department of Health, Bureau of HIV/AIDS, all of which are incorporated by reference and available upon request from the Department of Health, Bureau of HIV/AIDS at the 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin A09, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1715. Allowable Services are based on availability, accessibility and funding of the service.

(2) “Application” means the application, instructions and information in the brochure titled the Application and Eligibility Requirements (#DH 2133, effective 10/15/06 Brochure, which is incorporated by reference. The Application and Eligibility Requirements brochure can be obtained at any Florida County Health Department.

(3) through (7) No change.

(8) “Economic Needs” mean essential items such as food, housing, clothing, transportation, personal needs and other like needs:

~~(8)~~⁽⁹⁾ “Eligible” Renumbered.

~~(9)~~⁽¹⁰⁾ “Eligibility Staff” Renumbered.

~~(10)~~⁽¹¹⁾ “Federal Poverty Level” (FPL) means the poverty income levels (effective February 2006) as published ~~and updated annually~~ by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS), Federal Office of Management and Budget (OMB), which is incorporated by reference. The federal poverty guidelines are located on the Department of Health, Bureau of HIV/AIDS Website or can be obtained at any Florida County Health Department.

~~(11)~~⁽¹²⁾ “Household Income” means income from all sources received by the applicant, the applicant’s spouse (if married) and other adult persons living in the home adults who contribute to the economic needs of the applicant. ~~For purposes of household income, other adults including adult siblings, parents, significant others, partners or other relatives, if they contribute to the economic needs of the applicant. if they are included in the household size as defined in subsection 64D-4.002(12), F.A.C.~~

(12) “Household size” means the number of persons in an applicant’s household whose income is counted for purposes of determining the Federal Poverty Level defined in subsection 64D-4.002(10), F.A.C. or this rule. Counted in household size are the applicant, the spouse (if married) and adults such as parents, adult siblings, adult children, significant others and partners who live with the applicant and meet one or more of the following:

(a) Claims the applicant as a dependent on a tax return.

(b) Claims the applicant on a health insurance policy. This does not apply to Life Insurance when the Applicant is claimed as the beneficiary.

(c) Has Legal Custody or other legal arrangement or guardianship of the applicant.

(d) Has commingled funds with the applicant such as banking accounts, savings accounts, business, mortgage agreement or other personal finances.

(13) No change.

~~(14) "Low Income" means a gross household income less than or equal to at or below 300% of the FPL as published and updated annually by the Federal Office of Management and Budget (OMB) in accordance with subsection 64D-4.002(10), F.A.C., of this rule, and cash assets not to exceed \$12,000. The FPL is incorporated by reference.~~

(15) "Program Qualifications" are program specific requirements to qualify for enrollment in the following single service specialty programs, after eligibility has been approved:

(a) through (c) No change.

(16) No change.

Proposed Effective Date is 10-15-06.

Specific Authority 381.0011(13) FS. Law Implemented 381.001(1), 381.003(1)(c), 381.0011(5) FS. History--New 10-15-06.

64D-4.003 Eligibility and Documentation Requirements.

(1) No change.

~~(2) Must be a resident in the state of Florida. Must be currently living in the state of Florida with the intent to remain in the state for employment, school, migrant work, family or other like situations.~~

(3) through (7) No change.

Proposed Effective Date is 10-15-06.

Specific Authority 381.0011(13) FS. Law Implemented 381.001(1), 381.003(1)(c), 381.0011(5) FS. History--New 10-15-06.

64D-4.004 Determined Eligible or Ineligible.

(1) through (3) No change.

~~(4) An exception to the eligibility requirements must be approved by the Department or designated staff. The request for an exception must be initiated by the Eligibility Staff on the Request for Exception form, which is incorporated by reference and approved by the supervisor. No change to remaining text.~~

Proposed Effective Date is 10-15-06.

Specific Authority 381.0011(13) FS. Law Implemented 381.001(1), 381.003(1)(c), 381.0011(5) FS. History--New 10-15-06.

64D-4.005 Re-Determination and Continued Eligibility.

(1) through (3) No change.

~~(3)(a) A client is no longer a resident in the state of Florida. A client is no longer living in the state of Florida with the intent to remain in the state.~~

(b) through (d) through (4) No change.

Proposed Effective Date is 10-15-06.

Specific Authority 381.0011(13) FS. Law Implemented 381.001(1), 381.003(1)(c), 381.0011(5) FS. History--New 10-15-06.

64D-4.006 Rights and Responsibilities.

(1) No change.

~~(2) Failure to comply with the Rights and Requirements established in the Application at any time during the initial eligibility and re-determination process or while receiving services from the HIV/AIDS Patient Care Programs can result in time-limited suspension or final termination from the HIV/AIDS Programs indefinitely. will result in a written notification to the applicant or client by the Eligibility Staff with the following information:~~

(a) A Notice of Fair Hearing information advising the individual of their rights to a fair hearing if they are not satisfied or disagree with an action taken;

(b) A written explanation of the specific violation cited;

(c) A written explanation of how to remedy the problem by a specified time;

(d) Notification that time-limited suspension or final termination from the HIV/AIDS Program will result if the applicant or client fails to remedy the specified rights and responsibilities within a designated time frame.

Proposed Effective Date is 10-15-06.

Specific Authority 381.0011(13) FS. Law Implemented 381.001(1), 381.003(1)(c), 381.0011(5) FS. History--New 10-15-06.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Pamela McWilliams, Patient Care Program, Bureau of HIV/AIDS, Department of Health

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Tom Liberti, Chief, Bureau of HIV/AIDS, Department of Health

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: July 19, 2006

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: June 18, 2004

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Division of Family Health Services

RULE NO.: 64F-12.015

RULE TITLE:

Licensing, Application, Permitting

NOTICE OF WITHDRAWAL

Notice is hereby given that the above-referenced rule, as noticed in Vol. 32, No. 16, of the April 21, 2006, issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly, has been withdrawn.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Rebecca Poston, Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy-Drugs Devices and Cosmetics, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Mail Bin #C-04, Tallahassee, Florida 32399, telephone: (850)245-4292.

FINANCIAL SERVICES COMMISSION

Office of Insurance Regulation

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
69N-121.066 Informal Conferences
 NOTICE OF WITHDRAWAL

Notice is hereby given that the above rule as noticed in Vol. 32, No. 7, February 17, 2006, of the Florida Administrative Weekly, has been withdrawn.

**Section IV
Emergency Rules**

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE INTERNAL IMPROVEMENT TRUST FUND

Notices for the Board of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund between December 28, 2001 and June 30, 2006, go to <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/> under the link or button titled "Official Notices."

DEPARTMENT OF THE LOTTERY

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
53ER06-39 Instant Game Number 662,
 DIAMOND DOLLARS

SUMMARY OF THE RULE: This emergency rule describes Instant Game Number 662, "DIAMOND DOLLARS," for which the Department of the Lottery will start selling tickets on a date to be determined by the Secretary of the Department. The rule sets forth the specifics of the game; determination of prizewinners; estimated odds of winning, value and number of prizes in the game.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE EMERGENCY RULE IS: Faith L. Schneider, Legal Analyst, Department of the Lottery, 250 Marriott Drive, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-4011

THE FULL TEXT OF THE EMERGENCY RULE IS:

53ER06-39 Instant Game Number 662, DIAMOND DOLLARS.

(1) Name of Game. Instant Game Number 662, "DIAMOND DOLLARS."

(2) Price. DIAMOND DOLLARS lottery tickets sell for \$2.00 per ticket.

(3) DIAMOND DOLLARS lottery tickets shall have a series of numbers in machine readable code (or bar code) on the back of the ticket, along with a validation number under the

latex area on the ticket. To be a valid winning DIAMOND DOLLARS lottery ticket, the ticket must meet the applicable requirements of Rule 53ER06-4, F.A.C.


(4) The play symbols and play symbol captions are as follows:




(5) The legend is as follows:

PLAY AREA

(6) Determination of Prizewinners.

(a) A ticket having one or more "  " symbols in the play area shall entitle the claimant to the corresponding prize shown in the "PRIZE LEGEND." The prizes are: TICKET, \$3, \$5, \$10, \$25, \$50, \$100, \$500, \$1,000 and \$10,000.

(b) A ticket having a "  " symbol in the "PLAY AREA" shall entitle the claimant to a prize of \$50. A claimant who is entitled to a prize of a "TICKET" shall be entitled to a prize of a \$2.00 instant ticket or combination of instant tickets with a total value of \$2.00, except as follows. A person who submits by mail a DIAMOND DOLLARS lottery ticket which entitles the claimant to a prize of a \$2.00 instant ticket and whose mailing address is outside the state of Florida will receive a check for \$2.00 in lieu of an actual ticket.

(7) The estimated odds of winning, value and number of prizes in Instant Game Number 662 are as follows:

GAME PLAY	WIN	ODDS OF	NUMBER OF WINNERS IN 42 POOLS OF 180,000 TICKETS PER POOL
TICKET	\$2 TICKET	8.33	907,200
\$3	\$3	15.00	504,000
\$5	\$5	15.00	504,000
\$10	\$10	50.00	151,200
\$25	\$25	150.00	50,400
\$50	\$50	360.00	21,000
(MONEYBAG)			
\$50	\$50	1,800.00	4,200
\$100	\$100	2,571.43	2,940
\$500	\$500	18,000.00	420
\$1,000	\$1,000	180,000.00	42
\$10,000	\$10,000	1,890,000.00	4

(8) The estimated overall odds of winning some prize in Instant Game Number 662 are 1 in 3.52. Prizes, including the top prizes, are subject to availability at the time of ticket purchase. Prizes may be unavailable due to prior sale or other causes occurring in the normal course of business including, but not limited to, ticket damage, defect, theft, or loss.

(9) For reorders of Instant Game Number 662, the estimated odds of winning, value, and number of prizes shall be proportionate to the number of tickets reordered.

(10) By purchasing a DIAMOND DOLLARS lottery ticket the player agrees to comply with and abide by all prize payment rules of the Florida Lottery.

(11) Payment of prizes for DIAMOND DOLLARS lottery tickets shall be made in accordance with rules of the Florida Lottery governing payment of prizes.

A copy of the current rule can be obtained from the Florida Lottery, Office of the General Counsel, 250 Marriott Drive, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-4011.

Specific Authority 24.105(9)(a), (b), (c), 24.109(1), 24.115(1) FS, Law Implemented 24.105(9)(a), (b), (c), 24.115(1) FS, History—New 7-14-06.

THIS EMERGENCY RULE TAKES EFFECT IMMEDIATELY UPON BEING FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE.

EFFECTIVE DATE: July 14, 2006

DEPARTMENT OF THE LOTTERY

RULE NO.: 53ER06-40
 RULE TITLE: Instant Game Number 665, LUCKY 7's

SUMMARY OF THE RULE: This emergency rule describes Instant Game Number 665, "LUCKY 7's," for which the Department of the Lottery will start selling tickets on a date to be determined by the Secretary of the Department. The rule sets forth the specifics of the game; determination of prizewinners; estimated odds of winning, value, and number of prizes in the game.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE EMERGENCY RULE IS: Faith L. Schneider, Legal Analyst, Department of the Lottery, 250 Marriott Drive, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-4011

THE FULL TEXT OF THE EMERGENCY RULE IS:

53ER06-40 Instant Game Number 665, LUCKY 7's.

(1) Name of Game. Instant Game Number 665, "LUCKY 7's."

(2) Price. LUCKY 7's lottery tickets sell for \$1.00 per ticket.

(3) LUCKY 7's lottery tickets shall have a series of numbers in Machine Readable Code (or bar code) on the back of the ticket, along with a Void If Removed Number under the

latex area on the ticket. To be a valid winning LUCKY 7's lottery ticket, the ticket must meet the applicable requirements of Rule 53ER06-4, F.A.C.

(4) The play symbols and play symbol captions are as follows:



(5) The prize symbols and prize symbol captions are as follows:



(6) The legend is as follows:

PRIZE BOX

(7) Determination of Prizewinners.

A ticket having three "7^{SVN}" symbols in the same row, column or diagonal shall entitle the claimant to the corresponding prize shown in the "PRIZE BOX." The prizes are: TICKET, \$1.00, \$2.00, \$4.00, \$5.00, \$10.00, \$25.00, \$50.00, \$100, \$500 and \$2,000. A claimant who is entitled to a prize of a "TICKET" shall be entitled to a \$1.00 instant ticket, except as follows. A person who submits by mail a LUCKY 7's lottery ticket that entitles the claimant to a prize of a \$1.00 instant ticket and whose mailing address is outside the state of Florida will receive a check for \$1.00 in lieu of an actual ticket.

(8) The estimated odds of winning, value and number of prizes in Instant Game Number 665 are as follows:

GAME PLAY	WIN	ODDS OF 1 IN	TICKETS PER POOL	NUMBER OF WINNERS IN 56 POOLS OF 180,000
TICKET	\$1 TICKET	10.00	1,008,000	
\$1	\$1	15.00	672,000	
\$2	\$2	25.00	403,200	
\$4	\$4	100.00	100,800	
\$5	\$5	30.00	336,000	
\$10	\$10	150.00	67,200	
\$25	\$25	300.00	33,600	
\$50	\$50	4,000.00	2,520	

\$100	\$100	36,000.00	280
\$500	\$500	403,200.00	25
\$2,000	\$2,000	840,000.00	12

(9) The estimated overall odds of winning some prize in Instant Game Number 665 are 1 in 3.84. Prizes, including the top prizes, are subject to availability at the time of ticket purchase. Prizes may be unavailable due to prior sale or other causes occurring in the normal course of business including, but not limited to, ticket damage, defect, theft, or loss.

(10) For reorders of Instant Game Number 665, the estimated odds of winning, value, and number of prizes shall be proportionate to the number of tickets reordered.

(11) By purchasing a LUCKY 7's lottery ticket the player agrees to comply with and abide by all prize payment rules of the Florida Lottery.

(12) Payment of prizes for LUCKY 7's lottery tickets shall be made in accordance with rules of the Florida Lottery governing payment of prizes.

A copy of the current rule can be obtained from the Florida Lottery, Office of the General Counsel, 250 Marriott Drive, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-4011.

Specific Authority 24.105(9)(a), (b),(c), 24.109(1), 24.115(1) FS, Law Implemented 24.105(9)(a), (b), (c), 24.115(1) FS. History--New 7-14-06.

THIS EMERGENCY RULE TAKES EFFECT IMMEDIATELY UPON BEING FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE.

EFFECTIVE DATE: July 14, 2006

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Notices for the Department of Environmental Protection between December 28, 2001 and June 30, 2006, go to <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/> under the link or button titled "Official Notices."

Section V

Petitions and Dispositions Regarding Rule Variance or Waiver

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE INTERNAL IMPROVEMENT TRUST FUND

Notices for the Board of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund between December 28, 2001 and June 30, 2006, go to <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/> under the link or button titled "Official Notices."

WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICTS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD) Governing Board issued an Order Granting Waiver under Section 120.542, Fla. Stat. (SFWMD 2006-098-DAO-ROW), on July 12, 2006, to Alberta Billie. The petition for waiver was received by the SFWMD on April 17, 2006. Notice of receipt of the petition requesting the waiver was published in the Florida Administrative Weekly, Vol. 32, No. 18, on May 5, 2006. No public comment was received. This Order provides a waiver for the proposed construction of a general store and other improvements located 40' from the top of the bank within the north right of way of L-29, located approximately 980' east of District Water Control Structure S-12A; S15/T54S/R35E, Miami-Dade County. Specifically, the Order grants a waiver from subsections 40E-6.011(4), and 40E-6.221(8), and (9), Fla. Admin. Code, and the Basis of Review for Use or Occupancy of the Works or Lands of the District Permit Applications within the South Florida Water Management District, incorporated by reference in subsection 40E-6.091(1), Fla. Admin. Code, which governs the placement of permanent and/or semi-permanent above-ground structures, generally prohibits commercial uses, advertising signs and requires the applicant to own the land adjacent to the District's right of way within Works or Lands of the District. Generally, the Order sets forth the basis of the Governing Board decision to grant the waiver, as follows: 1) the facilities will not significantly interfere with the SFWMD's ability to perform necessary construction, alteration, operation and maintenance activities; and 2) the Order granting a waiver from the subject rule would prevent Alberta Billie from suffering a violation of the principles of fairness.

A copy of the Order can be obtained from: Kathie Ruff, South Florida Water Management District, 3301 Gun Club Road, MSC 1410, West Palm Beach, FL 33406-4680, telephone (561)682-6320 or by e-mail kruff@sfwmd.gov.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD) Governing Board issued an Order Granting Waiver under Section 120.542, Fla. Stat. (SFWMD 2006-099-DAO-ROW), on July 12, 2006, to Enrique Cusco and W. Maria G. Zepa. The petition for waiver was received by the SFWMD on May 25, 2006. Notice of receipt of the petition requesting the waiver was published in the Florida Administrative Weekly, Vol. 32, No. 23, on June 9, 2006. No public comment was received. This Order provides a waiver for an existing and proposed sand cement rip-rap retaining wall and an existing fence encroaching approximately 10' (to the top of the canal bank) to remain within the south right of way of C-2 at the rear of 8217 S. W. 84th Terrace; S34/T54S/R40E, Miami-Dade County. Specifically, the Order grants a waiver from subsection 40E-6.011(4), and (6), Fla. Admin. Code, and the Basis of Review for Use or Occupancy of the Works or Lands of the

District Permit Applications within the South Florida Water Management District, incorporated by reference in subsection 40E-6.091(1), Fla. Admin. Code, which governs the placement of semi-permanent/permanent above-ground facilities within 40' of the top of canal bank within Works or Lands of the District. Generally, the Order sets forth the basis of the Governing Board decision to grant the waiver, as follows: 1) the facilities will not significantly interfere with the SFWMD's ability to perform necessary construction, alteration, operation and maintenance activities; and 2) the Order granting a waiver from the subject rule would prevent Enrique Cusco and W. Marie G. Zerpa from suffering a violation of the principles of fairness.

A copy of the Order can be obtained from: Kathie Ruff, South Florida Water Management District, 3301 Gun Club Road, MSC 1410, West Palm Beach, FL 33406-4680, telephone (561)682-6320 or by e-mail kruff@sfwmd.gov.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD) Governing Board issued an Order Granting Waiver under Section 120.542, Fla. Stat. (SFWMD 2006-100-DAO-ROW), on July 12, 2006, to Gary and Melanie Richer. The petition for waiver was received by the SFWMD on May 31, 2006. Notice of receipt of the petition requesting the waiver was published in the Florida Administrative Weekly, Vol. 32, No. 24, on June 16, 2006. No public comment was received. This Order provides a waiver for an existing seawall and pile-supported docking facility to remain within the north right of way of the C-14 Canal at the rear of 1300 S. E. 3rd Terrace; S1/T49S/R42E, Broward County. Specifically, the Order grants a waiver from paragraph 40E-6.221(2)(j), Fla. Admin. Code, and the Basis of Review for Use or Occupancy of the Works or Lands of the District Permit Applications within the South Florida Water Management District, incorporated by reference in subsection 40E-6.091(1), Fla. Admin. Code, which governs the minimum low member elevation of pile-supported docking facilities within Works or Lands of the District. Generally, the Order sets forth the basis of the Governing Board decision to grant the waiver, as follows: 1) the facilities will not significantly interfere with the SFWMD's ability to perform necessary construction, alteration, operation and maintenance activities; and 2) the Order granting a waiver from the subject rule would prevent Gary and Melanie Richer from suffering a substantial hardship.

A copy of the Order can be obtained from: Kathie Ruff, South Florida Water Management District, 3301 Gun Club Road, MSC 1410, West Palm Beach, FL 33406-4680, telephone (561)682-6320 or by e-mail kruff@sfwmd.gov.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

The Bureau of Elevator Safety hereby gives notice that it Issued an Order Granting Emergency Variance Request on June 14, 2006 in response to a petition filed on June 12, 2006, by Lee Rigby of Vertical Assessment Associates regarding Embassy Suites Hotel in Estero, Florida (VW 2006-155) and advertised in Vol. 32, No. 25 of the F.A.W. The petition sought a waiver from Rule 2.7.4.1, A.S.M.E. A17.1, 2000 Edition, as adopted by the 2004 Florida Building Code and requested to have less than the required 84 inch clearance in the machine room. The petition was granted as the clearance provided was 82 inches and the owner agreed to post sufficient warnings of the reduced clearance.

A copy of the Order can be obtained from: Agency Clerk, Department of Business and Professional Regulation, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2202.

The Bureau of Elevator Safety hereby gives notice that on June 23, 2006, it issued an Order Granting Variance Requests in response to a petition filed on March 31, 2006 and advertised in the F.A.W. Vol. 32, No. 20, by Patricia Serley of Otis Elevator regarding Lost Key Golf & Beach Club San Anton Condominium in Pensacola (VW 2006-124). The petition sought waivers from Rules 2.1.1.1.2, 2.1.1.3, 2.7.6, 2.20.1, and 2.20.9 of ASME A17.1, 2000 Edition, as adopted by Chapter 3001.2, 2004 Florida Building Code. The petitioner requested to not have a machine room and to use coated steel belts in lieu of steel cables suspending the car. The petitions were granted as it was demonstrated that this new technology provided an equivalent or greater level of safety.

A copy of the Order can be obtained from: Agency Clerk, Department of Business and Professional Regulation, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2202.

The Bureau of Elevator Safety hereby gives notice that on June 23, 2006, it issued four Orders Granting Variance Requests in response to petitions filed on April 21, 2006 and advertised in the F.A.W. Vol. 32, No. 20, by Jennifer Livingston of Otis Elevator regarding Resort at Singer Island, in Singer Island (VW 2006-102 through 107). The petitions sought waivers from Rules 2.1.1.1.2, 2.1.1.3, 2.7.6, 2.20.1, and 2.20.9 of ASME A17.1, 2000 Edition, as adopted by Chapter 3001.2, 2004 Florida Building Code. The petitioner requested to not have a machine room and to use coated steel belts in lieu of steel cables suspending the car. The petitions were granted as it was demonstrated that this new technology provided an equivalent or greater level of safety.

A copy of the Order can be obtained from: Agency Clerk, Department of Business and Professional Regulation, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2202.

The Bureau of Elevator Safety hereby gives notice that on June 23, 2006, it issued three Orders Granting Variance Requests in response to a petition filed on April 20, 2006 and advertised in the F.A.W. Vol. 32, No. 20, by Jennifer Livingston of Otis Elevator regarding The Whitney Condominiums, in West Palm Beach (VW 2006-099 through 101). The petitions sought waivers from Rules 2.1.1.1.2, 2.1.1.3, 2.7.6, 2.20.1, and 2.20.9 of ASME A17.1, 2000 Edition, as adopted by Chapter 3001.2, 2004 Florida Building Code. The petitioner requested to not have a machine room and to use coated steel belts in lieu of steel cables suspending the car. The petitions were granted as it was demonstrated that this new technology provided an equivalent or greater level of safety.

A copy of the Order can be obtained from: Agency Clerk, Department of Business and Professional Regulation, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2202.

The Bureau of Elevator Safety hereby gives notice that on June 23, 2006, it issued an Order Granting Variance Requests in response to a petition filed on April 21, 2006 and advertised in the F.A.W. Vol. 32, No. 20, by leLaine Koutebera of Otis Elevator regarding W Plaza Condominium Project in St Petersburg (VW 2006-108). The petition sought waivers from Rules 2.1.1.1.2, 2.1.1.3, 2.7.6, 2.20.1, and 2.20.9 of ASME A17.1, 2000 Edition, as adopted by Chapter 3001.2, 2004 Florida Building Code. The petitioner requested to not have a machine room and to use coated steel belts in lieu of steel cables suspending the car. The petition was granted as it was demonstrated that this new technology provided an equivalent or greater level of safety.

A copy of the Order can be obtained from: Agency Clerk, Department of Business and Professional Regulation, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2202.

The Bureau of Elevator Safety hereby gives notice that on June 23, 2006, it issued two Orders Granting Variance Requests in response to a petition filed on April 24, 2006 and advertised in the F.A.W. Vol. 32, No. 20, by Robert Gerdt of Otis Elevator regarding Jacaranda Trace in Venice (VW 2006-109 and 110). The petitions sought waivers from Rules 2.1.1.1.2, 2.1.1.3, 2.7.6, 2.20.1, and 2.20.9 of ASME A17.1, 2000 Edition, as adopted by Chapter 3001.2, 2004 Florida Building Code. The petitioner requested to not have a machine room and to use coated steel belts in lieu of steel cables suspending the car. The petitions were granted as it was demonstrated that this new technology provided an equivalent or greater level of safety.

A copy of the Order can be obtained from: Agency Clerk, Department of Business and Professional Regulation, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2202.

The Bureau of Elevator Safety hereby gives notice that on June 23, 2006, it issued an Order Granting Variance Requests in response to a petition filed on April 4, 2006 and advertised in

the F.A.W. Vol. 32, No. 20, by Rick Dayton of Otis Elevator regarding Lake Buena Vista Resort, Phase III Building 3 in Orlando (VW 2006-087). The petition sought waivers from Rules 2.1.1.1.2, 2.1.1.3, 2.7.6, 2.20.1, and 2.20.9 of ASME A17.1, 2000 Edition, as adopted by Chapter 3001.2, 2004 Florida Building Code. The petitioner requested to not have a machine room and to use coated steel belts in lieu of steel cables suspending the car. The petition was granted as it was demonstrated that this new technology provided an equivalent or greater level of safety.

A copy of the Order can be obtained from: Agency Clerk, Department of Business and Professional Regulation, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2202.

The Bureau of Elevator Safety hereby gives notice that it Issued an Order Granting Emergency Variance Request on June 23, 2006 in response to a petition filed on May 30, 2006, by Lee Rigby of Vertical Assessment Associates regarding Dunes IV in Naples, Florida (VW 2006-149) and advertised in Vol. 32, No. 24 of the F.A.W. The petition sought a waiver from Rule 2.7.4.1, A.S.M.E. A17.1, 2000 Edition, as adopted by the 2004 Florida Building Code and requested to have less than the required 84 inch clearance in the machine room. The petition was granted as the clearance provided was 80 inches and the owner agreed to post sufficient warnings of the reduced clearance.

A copy of the Order can be obtained from: Agency Clerk, Department of Business and Professional Regulation, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2202.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on June 15, 2006, the Bureau of Elevator Safety received a Petition for Variance from 5.7.12.2, A.S.M.E. 17.1, 2000 Edition, as adopted by Chapter 3001.2, 2004 Florida Building Code, limiting the size and capacity of a lift to 13ft² and 1000 lbs. The petition was received from Paul Shea of Alimak Hek Inc. on behalf of LaFarge Gypsum Plant located in Palaka, Florida (Petition VW 2006-168).

A copy of the Petition can be obtained from: Mark Boutin, Bureau of Elevator Safety, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013.

The Bureau of Elevator Safety will accept comments concerning the Petition for 14 days from the date of publication of this notice. To be considered, comments must be received on or before 5:00 p.m.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on June 28, 2006, the Bureau of Elevator Safety received a Petition for Variance from Rule 2.7.4, A.S.M.E. 17.1, 1996 edition with 1997 Addenda, as adopted by Chapter 3001.2, 2004 Florida Building Code, requiring 82 inches clearance in the machine

room. The petition was received from Lee Rigby of Vertical Assessments, for the following location: Grand Phoenician Dunes VI in Naples, Florida (Petition VW 2006-175).

A copy of the Petition can be obtained from: Mark Boutin, Bureau of Elevator Safety, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013.

The Bureau of Elevator Safety will accept comments concerning the Petition for 14 days from the date of publication of this notice. To be considered, comments must be received on or before 5:00 p.m.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on July 17, 2006, the Bureau of Elevator Safety received a Petition for Emergency Variance from paragraph 61C-5.001(7)(b), Florida Administrative Code, Sections 3003.1.5 and 3003.7.1, 2001 Florida Building Code, Section 7.4.1.6, NFPA 101, 2000 Edition and Sections 2.7.3.1, 2.11.6.2, 25.11.10.2, and 2.27.3.2.1, A.S.M.E. 17.1, 2000 Edition, as adopted by Chapter 3001.2, 2001 Florida Building Code, requiring permanent, safe and convenient access to machine rooms and overhead machinery spaces, access to at least one exit from elevator lobbies that does not require use of a key, tool, special knowledge or effort, access to machine spaces without going through tenant spaces, prohibiting locking out access to the top terminal landing, bottom terminal landing, the designated alternate landing or any landing when phase II is effective, a minimum of 10 foot-candles at landing sills when an elevator is in service and fire alarm initiating devices at each floor served by the elevator, in the machine room and in the hoist way when required by NFPA 72.

The petition was received from: Sarah Maman of Fire, Life Safety, and Security Institute, Inc. on behalf of Vivante, located in Punta Gorda, Florida (Petition VW 2006-188).

A copy of the Petition can be obtained from: Mark Boutin, Bureau of Elevator Safety, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013.

The Bureau of Elevator Safety will accept comments concerning the Petition for 14 days from the date of publication of this notice. To be considered, comments must be received on or before 5:00 p.m.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on July 17, 2006, the Bureau of Elevator Safety received a Petition for Variance from Rules 2.1.1.2, 2.1.1.3, 2.7.6, 2.20.1, and 2.20.9, A.S.M.E. 17.1, 2000 edition, as adopted by Chapter 3001.2, 2004 Florida Building Code, which require a machine room, steel ropes and non welded terminations, from Tim Hawthorne of Otis Elevator Company. The Petition is requesting a variance to allow the installation of Gen2™ elevator systems in the following locations: SunTrust Colonnade and Wellesley Condominium – Phase II, located in Orlando, FL (Petition VW 2006-187).

A copy of the Petition can be obtained from: Mark Boutin, Bureau of Elevator Safety, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013.

The Bureau of Elevator Safety will accept comments concerning the Petition for 14 days from the date of publication of this notice. To be considered, comments must be received on or before 5:00 p.m.

The Construction Industry Licensing Board hereby gives notice that it has received a Petition for Waiver or Variance, which was filed on July 7, 2006, by Craig Steven Fessler (Petitioner). Petitioner is seeking a waiver or variance of Rule 61G4-16.009, Florida Administrative Code, with regards to a limit of 325 days in which to pass all portions of the Construction License Exam. Comments on this petition should be filed with Construction Industry Licensing Board, Northwood Centre, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0750, within 14 days of publication of this Notice.

The Board will consider the Petition at its meeting, to be held on August 11, 2006, in Tampa, Florida.

For a copy of the Petition, contact: G. W. Harrell, Executive Director, Construction Industry Licensing Board, at the above address.

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Notices for the Department of Environmental Protection between December 28, 2001 and June 30, 2006, go to <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/> under the link or button titled "Official Notices."

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on July 13, 2006 the Department of Environmental Protection, Southwest District, received a petition for a reduction in permitting fees for the Mosaic Fertilizer, LLC, phosphate mines' Class V underground injection control wells, under subparagraph 62-4.050(4)(m)11. and 12., F.A.C. Public comment on this petition must be received by the person listed below no later than 14 days from the date of this notice. Petition file number is OGC No.: 06-1482.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Judy Richtar, DEP Southwest District, 13051 N. Telecom Pkwy., Temple Terrace, FL 33637-0926, (813)632-7600.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

The Board of Dentistry hereby gives notice of the issuance of an Order regarding the Petition for Variance for Jeronimo Guzman, D.M.D. The Notice of Petition for Variance was published in Vol. 32, No. 20, of the May 20, 2006, Florida Administrative Weekly. The Board considered the Petition at a duly-noticed public meeting held on June 23, 2006.

The Board's Order, filed on July 11, 2006, grants the Petition for Variance or Waiver, finding that Petitioner complied with Section 120.542(2), Florida Statutes, as he demonstrated that the purpose of the underlying statute, Section 466.006, Florida Statutes, will be achieved or has been achieved by other means as evidenced by his dental degree from the Universidad Tecnologica de Mexico, completed a three (3) month externship in Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery at the University of Texas Health Sciences Center in San Antonio, Texas, completed a sixteen (16) month internship in Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery at the University of Puerto Rico School of Dentistry, and is on the verge of graduating from the University of Puerto Rico School of Dentistry with a Postdoctoral Certificate in Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery on June 30, 2006. Petitioner complied with Section 120.542(2), Florida Statutes, because he demonstrated that strict application of subsection 64B5-2.0146(2), Florida Administrative Code, would create a substantial hardship by having a significant economic impact on Petitioner because he will not be able to be employed as a dentist and will be required to continue to pay tuition to participate in additional supplemental education programs, despite possessing almost six (6) additional years of supplemental dental education in the United States.

A copy of the Board's Order may be obtained by contacting: Sue Foster, Executive Director, Board of Dentistry, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C08, Tallahassee, Florida 32399- 3258.

The Board of Dentistry hereby gives notice of the issuance of an Order regarding the Petition for Variance for Andres J. Torres, D.D.S. The Notice of Petition for Variance was published in Vol. 32, No. 22, of the June 2, 2006, Florida Administrative Weekly. The Board considered the Petition at a duly-noticed public meeting held on June 23, 2006.

The Board's Order, filed on July 11, 2006, grants the Petition for Variance or Waiver, finding that Petitioner complied with Section 120.542(2), Florida Statutes as he demonstrated that the purpose of the underlying statute, Section 466.006, Florida Statutes, will be achieved or has been achieved by other means as evidenced by his dental degree from the Pontifical Xaverian Univeristy of Bogota, Colombia, his Master of Science of Dentistry Degree from Indiana Univeristy, his completion of a one (1) year fellowship in implant dentistry at the Loma Linda University Dental School, and his licenses to practice dentistry in Arizona and California. Petitioner complied with Section 120.542(2), Florida Statutes, because he demonstrated that strict application of subsection 64B5-2.0146(2), Florida Administrative Code, would create a substantial hardship by having a significant economic impact on Petitioner because he will not be able to be employed as a dentist and will be required to continue to pay tuition to participate in additional supplemental education programs, despite possessing a Master

of Science of Dentistry Degree from Indiana University and completing one (1) year fellowship in implant dentistry at the Loma Linda University Dental School.

A copy of the Board's Order may be obtained by contacting: Sue Foster, Executive Director, Board of Dentistry, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C08, Tallahassee, Florida 32399- 3258.

The Board of Osteopathic Medicine hereby gives notice that it has received a Petition for Variance or Waiver filed on May 23, 2006 on behalf of William Raue, an out of state of Florida Doctor of Osteopathy. Pursuant to Chapter 28-104, F.A.C., and Section 120.542, F.S., petitioner seeks a waiver of those rule provisions that relate to the Osteopathic components of the Florida Board of Osteopathic Medicine State Exam. Specifically, the Petitioner requests that the Osteopathic components that are required in his Florida Board of Osteopathic Medicine State Exam be waived due to those components having been fulfilled by Petitioner in his state exams 40 years ago in the states of Kentucky and Missouri and those states having failed to properly keep the records of Petitioner's exam 40 years ago.

Copies of the petition may be obtained by writing: Pamela King, Executive Director, Board of Osteopathic Medicine/MQA, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C06, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3256.

The Board of Pharmacy hereby gives notice of the issuance of an Order regarding the Petition for Waiver or Variance, which was filed on April 13, 2006 by Bichoy Gabra, Ph.D. The Notice of Petition for Waiver or Variance was published in Vol. 32, No. 20, of the May 19, 2006, Florida Administrative Weekly. The Petitioner was seeking a waiver of Rule 64B16-26.2031, F.A.C. entitled "Licensure by Examination; Foreign Pharmacy Graduates and the requirement of completion of 2080 internship/work experience hours pursuant to Section 465.007, Florida Statutes. The Board considered the instant Petition at a duly-noticed public meeting, held June 8, 2006, in Ft. Lauderdale, Florida.

The Board's Order, filed on June 23, 2006, denied the petition finding that the Board does not have the authority to waive a statutory requirement for applicants by examination to complete a board-approved internship program. The Board further finds that Petitioner has not established that applying the requirements of the aforementioned Rule to his circumstances would violate principles of fairness and impose substantial hardship.

A copy of the Board's Order may be obtained by contacting: Rebecca Poston, R.Ph., Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C04, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3254.

Section VI Notices of Meetings, Workshops and Public Hearings

The following state governmental agencies, boards and commissions announce a public meeting to which all persons are invited:

State Board of Administration
Financial Services Commission
Department of Veterans' Affairs
Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles
Department of Law Enforcement
Department of Revenue
Department of Education
Administration Commission
Florida Land and Water Adjudicatory Commission
Board of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund
Department of Environmental Protection
DATE AND TIME: August 15, 2006, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Cabinet Meeting Room, Lower Level, The Capitol, Tallahassee, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:
Regular scheduled meeting of the Governor and Cabinet.

The State Board of Administration will take action on matters duly presented on its agenda, which may include such matters as Executive Director's reports; approval of fiscal sufficiency of state bond issues; approval of sale of local bonds at an interest rate in excess of statutory interest rate limitation; report on investment performance; designation of banks as depositories for state funds; adoption of rules and regulations; investment of state funds pursuant to Chapter 215, F.S.; and consideration of other matters within its authority pursuant to Chapters 215 and 344, F.S., and Section 16 of Article IX of the Florida Constitution of 1885, as continued by subsection 9(c) of Article XII of the Florida Constitution of 1968. The Division of Bond Finance of the State Board of Administration will take action on matters duly presented on its agenda, which will deal with the issuance of State bonds, arbitrage compliance and related matters.

The Financial Services Commission will take action on matters duly presented on its agenda which may include, but not be limited to, matters relating to rulemaking for all activities concerning insurers and other risk bearing entities, including licensing, rates, policy forms, market conduct, claims, adjusters, issuance of certificates of authority, solvency, viatical settlements, premium financing, and administrative supervision, as provided under the Insurance Code or Chapter 636, F.S., and for all activities relating to the regulation of banks, credit unions, other financial institutions, finance companies, and the securities industry.

The Department of Veterans' Affairs will take action on matters duly presented on its agenda which may include the administration of the Department as well as actions taken to further the Department's mission of providing assistance to veterans and their dependents, pursuant to Section 292.05, F.S.

The Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles will take action on matters duly presented on its agenda, which may include such matters as approval of agency policies, taking agency action with regard to administrative procedure matters, and considering other matters within its authority pursuant to Florida Statutes.

The Department of Law Enforcement will take action on matters duly presented on its agenda which may include but not be limited to such matters as transfer of agency funds or positions, formulation of Departmental Rules, administrative procedure matters, submittal of reports as required, enter into contracts as authorized and to consider other matters within its authority pursuant to Chapters 20, 23, 120 and 943, F.S.

The Department of Revenue will act on matters duly presented on its agenda which may include approval of rules, legislative concept proposals, contracts over \$100,000, Departmental budgets, taking final action on formal and informal hearings under Chapter 120, F.S., and consideration of other matters within its authority.

The Department of Education will finalize agency action on the business of the Florida Department of Education.

The Administration Commission will take action on matters duly presented on its agenda which may include such matters as to create or transfer agency funds or positions, approve Career Service rules, administrative procedure matters, environmental matters arising under Chapter 380, F.S., comprehensive planning issues pursuant to Section 163.3184, F.S., determine sheriffs' budget matters, and consider other matters within its authority pursuant to Chapters 110, 215 and 216, F.S.

The Florida Land and Water Adjudicatory Commission will take action on matters duly presented on its agenda including appeals of local government development orders in areas of critical state concern or of developments of regional impact under Section 380.07, F.S.; and review of water management matters under Chapter 373, F.S. The Commission will also review Department of Environmental Protection's rules and orders which, prior to July 1, 1993, the Governor and Cabinet, sitting as the head of the Department of Natural Resources, had authority to issue or promulgate.

The Board of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund will take action on matters duly presented on its agenda which may include such matters as mineral leases or sales, state or sovereign land leases, sales, exchanges, dedications, and easements, Conservation and Recreation Lands (CARL) and other land purchases; land planning matters and other matters within its authority. Additionally, the Board will take action on matters presented by the Marine Fisheries Commission as set

forth in Sections 370.025, 370.026 and 370.027, F.S., and matters pertaining to the Office of Greenways Management, the Office responsible for the management of lands which formerly fell within the Cross Florida Barge Canal project corridor.

The Department of Environmental Protection, while not a Cabinet agency, will present for consideration on its agenda those matters required by law to be reviewed by the Governor and Cabinet and those pertaining to the siting of power plants, electric and natural gas transmission lines and hazardous waste facilities; coastal zone management consistency and standards adopted by the Environmental Regulation Commission.

A copy of any of the above agendas (when applicable) may be obtained by contacting each agency.

Accommodations can be made for persons with disabilities provided several days' notification is received. Please notify the Governor's Cabinet Office, (850)488-5152.

The Governor and Cabinet will proceed through each agenda, item by item, in the order given above.

CABINET AIDES BRIEFING: On the Wednesday of the week prior to the above meeting, there will be a meeting of the aides to the Governor and Cabinet Members at 9:00 a.m., Cabinet Meeting Room, Lower Level, The Capitol, Tallahassee, Florida. The purpose of this briefing is to review and gather information regarding each agenda to be considered by the Governor and Cabinet.

DEPARTMENT OF STATE

The **Department of State, Division of Historical Resources**, Historic Marker announces a conference call to which all interested persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Monday, August 14, 2006, 10:00 a.m. (EDT)

PLACE: Room 409, R. A. Gray Building, 500 S. Bronough St., Tallahassee, FL 32399-0250

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To Review Historical Marker applications.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Florida State Historical Marker Program, Bureau of Historic Preservation, Division of Historical Resources, 500 S. Bronough St., Tallahassee, FL 32399-0250.

Should any person wish to appeal any decision made with respect to the above referenced meeting, she or he may need to ensure verbatim recording of the proceedings in order to provide a record for judicial review.

Pursuant to Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, people with disabilities wishing to attend this meeting should contact the agency at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to request any special assistance.

The Advisory Board of the Northeast Regional Office, **Division of Historical Resources**, announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Friday, August 18, 2006, 11:00 a.m.

PLACE: Jacksonville Historical Society Office, 317 A. Philip Randolph Blvd., Jacksonville, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: General Business Meeting.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: St. Augustine Regional Office, P. O. Box 4168, St. Augustine, FL 32085.

Should any person wish to appeal any decision made with respect to the above referenced meeting, he or she may need to ensure verbatim recording of the proceedings in order to provide a record for judicial review.

Pursuant to Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, any handicapped person wishing to attend this meeting should contact the agency at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to request special assistance.

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES

The **Florida Agriculture in the Classroom, Inc.**, Board of Directors will hold its annual retreat:

MEETING

DATES AND TIMES: Thursday, August 17, 2006, 1:00 p.m. – 4:00 p.m.; Friday, August 18, 2006, 9:00 a.m. – 11:00 a.m.

PLACE: The Hilton Cocoa Beach, 1550 N. Atlantic Ave., Cocoa Beach, FL 32931.

The Florida **Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services** announces the following monthly public meeting of the Pesticide Registration Evaluation Committee to which all interested persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: September 7, 2006, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Bureau of Pesticides Conference Room, 3125 Conner Boulevard, Building 6, Room 606, Tallahassee, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Committee discusses and makes recommendations on pesticide registration issues impacting human health and safety and the environment.

CONTACT: Charlie L. Clark, Administrator, Pesticide Registration Section, 3125 Conner Boulevard, Bldg. 6, Rm. 601, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1650, (850)487-2130.

A copy of the meeting agenda may be obtained by contacting: Pesticide Registration Section, (850)487-2130 or from the PREC Web Site at: http://www.flaes.org/pesticide/pesticide_registration.html

The Florida **Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services** announces the meeting of the Florida Tropical Fruit Advisory Council.

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, August 10, 2006, 10:00 a.m.
PLACE: Miami-Dade Extension Office, 18710 S. W. 288 Street, Homestead, FL 33030
GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Board Meeting. The purpose of this meeting is to conduct the general business of the Florida Tropical Fruit Advisory Council.
For additional information or if you need special accommodations, call: Louise King, (305)401-1502.

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

The **Florida Conflict Resolution Consortium** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.
DATE AND TIME: Thursday, August 17, 2006, 10:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m.
PLACE: Turnbull Conference Center, Florida State University, 555 West Pensacola St., Room 123A, Tallahassee, FL 32306
GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: This is a meeting of the Florida Conflict Resolution Consortium Advisory Council for strategic planning.
A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Lisa Fowler, (850)644-7063.
Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 1 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Lisa Fowler, (850)644-7063. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).
For more information, you may contact: Lisa Fowler, (850)644-7063.

The Board of Trustees of the Florida **School for the Deaf and the Blind** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.
DATE AND TIME: Friday, August 18, 2006, 1:30 p.m.
PLACE: Center for Leadership and Development, Moore Hall, FSDB campus, St. Augustine, Florida
GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Workshop relating to matters pertaining to the Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind.
A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Elmer L. Dillingham, President, Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind, 207 N. San Marco Avenue, St. Augustine, FL 32084-2799, or by calling (904)827-2200.
Should any person wish to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at the above referenced meeting, he may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings be made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Special accommodations for persons with disabling conditions should be requested at least 48 hours in advance from the aforementioned address.

The Board of Trustees of the Florida **School for the Deaf and the Blind** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Saturday, August 19, 2006, 9:00 a.m.
PLACE: Center for Leadership Development, Moore Hall, FSDB campus, St. Augustine, Florida
GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Matters pertaining to the Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind, including workshop on Rules 6D-7.006, F.A.C., Pupil Progression Plan and Requirements for Graduation, 6D-14.002, F.A.C., Transportation Policies and Procedures and 6D-16.002, F.A.C., Human Resources Management and Development.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Elmer L. Dillingham, President, Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind, 207 N. San Marco Avenue, St. Augustine, FL 32084-2799, or by calling (904)827-2200.
Should any person wish to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at the above referenced meeting, he may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings be made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.
Special accommodations for persons with disabling conditions should be requested at least 48 hours in advance from the aforementioned address.

The public is invited to Committee meetings of the Florida **Board of Governors**. The Student Affairs Committee, the Economic Development Committee, and the Subcommittee on System Coordination will meet:

DATE AND TIME: August 9, 2006, 1:00 p.m. – 6:00 p.m.
PLACE: Cape Florida Ballroom, Student Union, University of Central Florida, Orlando, Florida
GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Discussion of recommendations from the Governor’s Commission on Access and Diversity, and need-based financial aid initiatives; Discussion of the 21st Century Technology, Research and Scholarship Enhancement Act, and criteria for Centers of Excellence and 21st Century Scholars; and Continued discussion of State University System Coordination.

A copy of the agendas may be obtained from the: Board of Governors’ website at <http://www.flbog.org>
Persons with disabilities who require assistance to participate in the meeting are requested to notify the Office of Access and Equity, (850)245-9531 (Voice), at least 7 days in advance, so that their needs can be accommodated.

The public is invited to a meeting of the **Florida Technology, Research, and Scholarship Board**.

DATE AND TIME: August 9, 2006, 2:30 p.m. – 4:00 p.m.

PLACE: Cape Florida Ballroom, Student Union, University of Central Florida, Orlando, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Inaugural Meeting; Discussion of the 21st Century Technology, Research and Scholarship Enhancement Act, and criteria for Centers of Excellence and 21st Century Scholars.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained from the: Board of Governors' website at <http://www.flbog.org>

Persons with disabilities who require assistance to participate in the meeting are requested to notify the Office of Access and Equity, (850)245-9531 (Voice), at least 7 days in advance, so that their needs can be accommodated.

The public is invited to Committee meetings and the regular meeting of the Florida **Board of Governors**. The Finance Committee will meet. The regular meeting of the Board will follow the Committee meeting.

DATE AND TIME: August 10, 2006, 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m.

PLACE: Cape Florida Ballroom, Student Union, University of Central Florida, Orlando, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Discussion and recommendation of the 2007-2008 Legislative Budget Request for the State University System; Continuing discussion of need-based financial aid; Discussion of criteria for Centers of Excellence and 21st Century Scholars; Discussion of SUS issues for the 2007 Legislative Session; Update on work of Task Force on Facilities; Update from Subcommittee on System Coordination; Consideration of regulation on Credit-by-Examination Equivalencies; Authorization to release funds from the University Concurrency Trust Fund in accordance with the Campus Development Agreement between the University of North Florida Board of Trustees and the City of Jacksonville; Consideration of Campus Development Agreement between the UF Board of Trustees, the City of Gainesville and Alachua County; Consideration of Regulation 6C-9.017, Faculty Practice Plans; Consideration of Board Appointments to University Boards of Trustees; and other matters pertaining to the Florida Board of Governors.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained from the: Board of Governors' website at <http://www.flbog.org>

Persons with disabilities who require assistance to participate in the meeting are requested to notify the Office of Access and Equity, (850)245-9531 (Voice), at least 7 days in advance, so that their needs can be accommodated.

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

The **Department of Transportation**, Florida's Turnpike Enterprise announces a public hearing to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIMES: August 22, 2006, Open House 5:30 p.m. – 6:30 p.m.; Public Hearing with a formal presentation begins at 6:30 p.m.

PLACE: Lakeland Police Department, Community Room, 219 North Massachusetts Avenue, Lakeland, Florida 33801

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: This hearing is being conducted pursuant to the provisions of Rule Chapter 14-97, Florida Administrative Code, and Section 335.18, Florida Statutes. This hearing is being noticed and held in accordance with the Section 339.155, Florida Statutes, Chapter 120, Florida Statutes, and is consistent with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. This hearing is also in compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, as amended. This hearing is being held to afford interested persons the opportunity to express their views concerning the toll rate, location, conceptual design, social, and environmental effects of the proposed project Financial Project Identification Number: 416537-2, otherwise known as the Polk Parkway/Pace Road Interchange. Potential encroachment on wetlands and floodplains may be given special consideration under Executive Orders 11990 and 11988.

A Toll Rate Public Hearing will also be held as part of the public hearing to allow the public an opportunity to comment on the proposed toll rates for the Pace Road interchange.

Anyone needing project or public hearing information including a copy of the hearing agenda, may contact: Mr. Mike Van Der Heyden, P.E., Project Manager, at Florida's Turnpike Enterprise by calling (407)264-3433 or by writing to Mr. Van Der Heyden, Florida's Turnpike Enterprise, P. O. Box 613069, Ocoee, Florida 34761-3069, or by e-mail at mike.vanderheyden@dot.state.fl.us

Anyone requesting special accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 should contact: Ms. Catherine Bradley, P.E., (407)264-3802, or by writing to Ms. Bradley, Florida's Turnpike Enterprise, P. O. Box 613069, Ocoee, Florida 34761-3069, or by e-mail catherine.bradley@dot.state.fl.us. Special accommodation requests under the Americans with Disabilities Act must be received at least seven (7) days prior to the public hearing.

The **Commercial Motor Vehicle Review Board** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: August 10, 2006, 8:30 a.m.

PLACE: Hawthorn Suites, 7601 Canada Avenue, Orlando, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: This is a monthly meeting of the Commercial Motor Vehicle Review Board for the purpose of reviewing penalties imposed upon any vehicle or person under the provisions of Chapter 316, Florida Statutes, relating to weights imposed on the highway by the axles and wheels of motor vehicles, to special fuel and motor fuel tax compliance, or to violations of safety regulations.

Any person aggrieved by the imposition of a civil penalty pursuant to Sections 316.3025 or 316.550, Florida Statutes, may apply to the Commercial Motor Vehicle Review Board for a modification, cancellation, or revocation of the penalty.

Anyone needing an agenda or public hearing information or special accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 should write to the address given below or call: Christine Jones, (850)245-7914. Special accommodation requests under the Americans with Disabilities Act should be made at least 48 hours prior to the public meeting.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Christine Jones, Executive Assistant, Commercial Motor Vehicle Review Board, 325 John Knox Rd., Bldg. K, Tallahassee, FL 32303.

DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAY SAFETY AND MOTOR VEHICLES

The Florida **Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles** announces a meeting of the Florida At Risk Driver Council to which interested persons are invited:

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, September 6, 2006, 10:00 a.m. – 4:00 p.m.

PLACE: Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To discuss general issues.

To obtain a copy of the agenda, please contact: Selma Sauls, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, MS80, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0500, (850)617-2713, email: sauls.selma@hsmv.state.fl.us

Pursuant to the provisions for the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this meeting is asked to advise the department at least 48 hours before the meeting by contacting: Selma Sauls, (850)617-2713. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the department by calling (850)617-2713.

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE INTERNAL IMPROVEMENT TRUST FUND

Notices for the Board of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund between December 28, 2001 and June 30, 2006, go to <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/> under the link or button titled "Official Notices."

STATE BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN by the **State Board of Administration** of two public meetings of the Florida Commission on Hurricane Loss Projection Methodology to which all persons are invited.

DATES AND TIMES: Thursday, August 17, 2006, 9:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m. (ET); Friday, August 18, 2006, 8:00 a.m. – 4:00 p.m. (ET)

PLACE: Room 116 (Hermitage Room), Hermitage Centre, 1801 Hermitage Blvd., Tallahassee, Florida. **TELEPHONE:** The conference call number for those who wish to participate by telephone is (850)921-2583 or Suncom 291-2583.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The meetings are to discuss and adopt the 2006 standards and Report of Activities as well as to address other general business of the Commission.

Anyone wishing a copy of the agenda for the meetings noticed above should contact: Donna Sirmons, State Board of Administration, P. O. Box 13300, Tallahassee, FL 32317-3300.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, anyone needing special accommodation to attend any of these meetings is requested to call: Donna Sirmons, (850)413-1349, five days prior to the meeting so that appropriate arrangements can be made.

FLORIDA PAROLE COMMISSION

The **Florida Parole Commission** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, August 9, 2006, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Florida Parole Commission, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Bldg. C, Tallahassee, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Regularly Scheduled Meeting for all Parole, Conditional Release, Conditional Medical Release, Addiction Recovery and Control Release Matters, as well as other Commission business.

A copy of the Agenda may be obtained by writing: Florida Parole Commission, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Building C, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2450.

Any person who decides to appeal a decision of the Florida Parole Commission with respect to a matter considered at this meeting may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, Chapter 80-150, Laws of Florida (1980).

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing a special accommodation to participate in this proceeding should contact the agency sending the notice not later than five working days prior to the proceeding at the address given on the notice. Telephone: (850)488-3417.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

The Florida **Public Service Commission** announces its regularly scheduled conference to which all interested persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: August 15, 2006, 9:30 a.m.

PLACE: The Betty Easley Conference Center, 4075 Esplanade Way, Commission Hearing Room 148, Tallahassee, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To consider those matters ready for decision.

LEGAL AUTHORITY AND JURISDICTION: Chapters 120, 350, 364, 366, and 367, F.S.

Persons who may be affected by Commission action on certain items on this agenda for which a hearing has not been held will be allowed to address the Commission concerning those items when taken up for discussion at this conference.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by any person who requests a copy, and pays the reasonable cost of the copy (\$1.00 per copy, Statement of Agency Organization and Operations), by contacting: Division of the Commission Clerk and Administrative Services, (850)413-6770 or writing to: Director, Division of the Commission Clerk and Administrative Services, Florida Public Service Commission, 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850. The agenda and recommendations are also accessible on the PSC Homepage, at <http://www.florida.psc.com>, at no charge.

If a person decides to appeal any decisions made by the Commission with respect to any matter considered at this conference, he will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which appeal is based.

Any person requiring some accommodation at this conference because of a physical impairment should call the Division of the Commission Clerk and Administrative Services, (850)413-6770, at least 48 hours prior to the conference. Any person who is hearing or speech impaired should contact the Commission by using the Florida Relay Service, which can be reached at 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

The Florida **Public Service Commission** announces its Internal Affairs Meeting to which all interested persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: August 15, 2006, Immediately following the Commission Conference which commences at 9:30 a.m. in Commission Hearing Room 148.

PLACE: The Betty Easley Conference Center, 4075 Esplanade Way, Conference Room 140, Tallahassee, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To discuss and make decisions on matters which affect the operation of the Commission.

A copy of the agenda of the Internal Affairs Meeting may be obtained by contacting: Division of the Commission Clerk and Administrative Services, Florida Public Service Commission, 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850.

Any person requiring some accommodation at this meeting because of a physical impairment should call: Division of the Commission Clerk and Administrative Services, (850)413-6770, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. Any person who is hearing or speech impaired should contact the Commission by using the Florida Relay Service, which can be reached at 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

****THIS MEETING IS SUBJECT TO CANCELLATION WITHOUT NOTIFICATION.****

EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR

The **Governor's Faith-Based and Community Advisory Council** announces a public meeting to which all persons and interested media are invited, except as provided under Section 288.9551, Fla. Stat. (2003).

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, August 1, 2006, 3:00 p.m.

PLACE: Conference Call-in Number: (850)414-5775 or 1(888)461-8118; Leader: John Brabson, Chair

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: At this meeting, the newly appointed Council will be introduced and will be briefed on past activity.

For a copy of the agenda and more information about how to attend the meeting contact: Mark Nelson, mark.nelson@vffund.org or (850)413-0909.

Pursuant to Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, any disabled person wishing to participate in this meeting in order to request any needed special assistance should contact jennie.hopkins@myflorida.com at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting.

Volunteer Florida, the Governor's Commission on Volunteerism and Community Service, Executive Committee, is pleased to announce a conference call to which all persons are invited to attend.

DATE AND TIMES: August 7, 2006, 9:00 a.m. (EST) (Date and time are subject to change.)

PLACE: Please call (850)414-0092 for call-in number and passcode.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Committee meeting business and planning.

Please contact Ysonde Jensen (850)414-0092 for a meeting agenda.

If you require a reasonable accomodation to participate, please contact: Ysonde Jensen, (850)414-0092, Voice/TTY, 72 hours in advance with your request.

The **Space Florida**, Board of Directors, Presidential Search Committee announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: August 10, 2006, 8:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m.
 PLACE: Orlando International Airport, Hyatt, Shannon Room (4th Floor)
 GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Search for President of Space Florida.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: www.spaceflorida.gov
 For more information, you may contact: Scott Openshaw, Executive Office of the Governor, (850)487-2568.

REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCILS

The District II, **Local Emergency Planning Committee** (LEPC) announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, August 2, 2006, 10:00 a.m. (Eastern Time); 9:00 a.m. (Central Time)
 PLACE: Tallahassee Fire Department, Training Division Classroom, 2964 Municipal Way, Tallahassee, Florida 32304
 GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To hold the regularly scheduled LEPC meeting.

An agenda may be obtained by writing: Apalachee Regional Planning Council, 20776 Central Avenue, East, Suite 1, Blountstown, FL 32424 or calling (850)674-4571.

If special accommodations at the meeting are required because of a disability or impairment, please contact Council Offices, (850)674-4571, prior to the meeting.

If any person desires to appeal any decision with respect to any matter considered at the above-cited meeting, such person will need a record of the proceedings. For such purpose, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made to include the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICTS

The **Suwannee River Water Management District** announces the following public meetings to which all interested persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: August 8, 2006, 9:00 a.m.
 PLACE: District Headquarters, 9225 CR 49, Live Oak, FL
 GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Board Meeting to consider District business, and conduct public hearings on regulatory and land acquisition matters. Public hearing in accordance with Section 373.59, F.S., concerning the proposed acquisition of the Riggs/Purvis

Landing Addition, 70 Acres +/-, Dixie County, using funds from the Florida Forever Trust Fund; also the proposed acquisition of the McEnany Conservation Easement, 1,105 acres +/-, Levy County, using funds from the Florida Forever Trust Fund; also the proposed acquisition of all oil, gas, phosphate and other mineral rights from the James Graham Brown Foundation over 876 acres of the R. O. Ranch in Lafayette County, using funds from timber sale revenues. A workshop will follow the Board meeting.

A copy of the agenda(s) may be obtained by writing: SRWMD, 9225 CR 49, Live Oak, Florida 32060.

If any person decides to appeal any decision with respect to any matter considered at the above cited meeting, such person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made to include the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Persons with disabilities who need assistance in order to participate in this meeting may contact: Lisa Cheshire, (386)362-1001 or 1(800)226-1066 (Florida only), at least two business days in advance to make appropriate arrangements.

R. O. Ranch Inc., a Florida non-profit corporation, announces the following meeting to which all interested persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: August 3, 2006, 7:00 p.m.
 PLACE: Fiddlers Restaurant, Steinhatchee, FL
 GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Board of Directors meeting to consider business including the development of equestrian facilities on Suwannee River Water Management District lands.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Gwen Lord, Administrative Assistant, SRWMD, 9225 CR 49, Live Oak, FL 32060.

Persons with disabilities who need assistance in order to participate in this meeting may contact: Gwen Lord, (386)362-1001 or (800)226-1066 (Florida only), at least two business days in advance to make appropriate arrangements.

The **Southwest Florida Water Management District** (SWFWMD) announces the following public meetings to which all interested persons are invited.

MANATEE CHAMBER WATER ALTERNATIVES COMMITTEE
 DATE AND TIME: Friday, August 4, 2006, 8:00 a.m.
 PLACE: Manatee Chamber Building, 222 – 10th Street, West, Bradenton, FL
 GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Consider Committee business.
 COASTAL BASIN BOARD MEETING
 DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, August 8, 2006, 1:00 p.m.
 PLACE: District Headquarters, 2379 Broad Street, Brooksville, FL

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Consider Basin business including adoption of Fiscal Year 2007 final millage and budget.

MANASOTA BASIN BOARD MEETING

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, August 9, 2006, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Sarasota Service Office, 6750 Fruitville Road, Sarasota, FL

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Consider Basin business including adoption of Fiscal Year 2007 final millage and budget.

These are public meetings; agendas are available by contacting: Southwest Florida Water Management District, Executive Department, 2379 Broad Street, Brooksville, FL.

The District does not discriminate based on disability. Anyone requiring reasonable accommodation under the ADA should contact 1(800)423-1476 (Florida only), extension 4615; TDD only 1(800)231-6103 (Florida only); Fax (352)754-6874.

The **South Florida Water Management District** announces public meetings of the Audit and Human Resources Committees to which all interested parties are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, August 8, 2006, 9:00 – Complete. The Human Resource Committee meeting will immediately follow the Audit Committee meeting. The Audit Committee and Human Resource Committee meetings scheduled for August 2 have been canceled.

PLACE: SFWMD Headquarters, Building B-1, 3301 Gun Club Road, West Palm Beach, Florida 33406

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Regular Governing Board Audit Committee and Human Resources Committee to discuss and consider District business.

All or part of this meeting may be conducted as a teleconference in order to permit maximum participation of Governing Board members.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained at the: (1) District website www.sfwmd.gov/gover/GovBoard/webpage/agenda.html or (2) by writing to the South Florida Water Management District, Mail Stop 1130, P. O. Box 24680, West Palm Beach, FL 33416-4680.

Appeals from any South Florida Water Management District Board decision require a record of the proceedings. Although Governing Board meetings and hearings are normally recorded, affected persons are advised that it may be necessary for them to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Persons with disabilities who need assistance may contact the District Clerk, (561)682-2087, at least two business days in advance of the meeting to make appropriate arrangements.

Those who want more information, please contact: District Clerk, District Headquarters, 3301 Gun Club Road, Mail Stop Code 1130, West Palm Beach, FL 33406, (561)682-2087.

The **South Florida Water Management District** announces public meetings to which all interested parties are invited.

DATES AND TIMES: Tuesday, August 8, 2006, 12:00 Noon – Complete; Wednesday, August 9, 2006, 9:00 a.m. – Complete
PLACE: SFWMD Headquarters, Building B-1, 3301 Gun Club Road, West Palm Beach, Florida 33406

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Regular Governing Board Workshop and Meeting to discuss and consider District business including regulatory and non-regulatory matters.

All or part of this meeting may be conducted as a teleconference in order to permit maximum participation of Governing Board members.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained 7 days before the meeting at the: (1) District Website <http://www.sfwmd.gov/agenda.html> or (2) by writing to: South Florida Water Management District, Mail Stop 1130, P. O. Box 24680, West Palm Beach, FL 33416-4680.

Appeals from any South Florida Water Management District Board decision require a record of the proceedings. Although Governing Board meetings and hearings are normally recorded, affected persons are advised that it may be necessary for them to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Persons with disabilities who need assistance may contact the District Clerk, (561)682-2087, at least two business days in advance of the meeting to make appropriate arrangements.

Those who want more information, please contact: District Clerk, District Headquarters, 3301 Gun Club Road, Mail Stop Code 1130 West Palm Beach, FL 33406, (561)682-2087.

The **South Florida Water Management District** announces a private closed door attorney-client session.

DATES AND TIMES: Tuesday, August 8, 2006, 12:00 Noon – Completed; Wednesday, August 9, 2006, 9:00 a.m. – Completed

PLACE: Building B-1, Auditorium, 3301 Gun Club Road, West Palm Beach, Florida 33406. (All or part of this meeting may be conducted as a teleconference in order to permit maximum participation of Governing Board members.)

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Closed door attorney-client session pursuant to Fla. Stat. Section 286.011(8)(2005), to discuss strategy related to litigation expenditures in *Tohopekaliga Water Authority v. St. Johns River Water Management District and Orange County*

Utilities Division, St. Johns River Water Management District, CUP No. 3317. The subject matter shall be confined to the pending litigation.

ATTENDEES: Governing Board Members I. Bague, M. Burt-Stewart, A. Carlson, M. Collins, N. Gutiérrez, L. Lindahl, K. McCarty, H. Thornton, M. Wade; Executive Director C. Wehle; District attorneys S. Wood, S. Echemendia, S. Nall, S. Glazier, B. Ross, C. Ross, S. Menton.

Pursuant to Florida Law, the entire attorney-client session shall be recorded by a certified court reporter. No portion of the session shall be off the record. A copy of the transcript will be made part of the public record at the conclusion of the litigation.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained: (1) District Website <http://www.sfwmd.gov/agenda.html> or (2) by writing to: South Florida Water Management District, Mail Stop 1130, P. O. Box 24680, West Palm Beach, FL 33416-4680.

Those who want more information, please contact: Director, Governing Board and Executive Services, District Headquarters, 3301 Gun Club Road, Mail Stop Code 1130, West Palm Beach, FL 33406, (561)682-6371.

The **South Florida Water Management District** announces a private closed door attorney-client session.

DATES AND TIMES: Tuesday, August 8, 2006, 12:00 Noon – Completed; Wednesday, August 9, 2006, 9:00 a.m. – Completed

PLACE: Building B-1, Auditorium, 3301 Gun Club Road, West Palm Beach, Florida 33406. (All or part of this meeting may be conducted as a teleconference in order to permit maximum participation of Governing Board members.)

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Closed door attorney-client session pursuant to Fla. Stat. Section 286.011(8)(2005), to discuss strategy related to litigation expenditures in United States of America v. South Florida Water Management District, et al. United States District Court, Southern District of Florida, Case No. 88-1886-CIV-Moreno. The subject matter shall be confined to the pending litigation.

ATTENDEES: Governing Board Members I. Bague, M. Burt-Stewart, A. Carlson, M. Collins, N. Gutiérrez, L. Lindahl, K. McCarty, H. Thornton; Executive Director C. Wehle; District attorneys S. Wood, S. Echemendia, K. Burns, S. Glazier, S. Nall.

Pursuant to Florida Law, the entire attorney-client session shall be recorded by a certified court reporter. No portion of the session shall be off the record. A copy of the transcript will be made part of the public record at the conclusion of the litigation.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained: (1) District Website <http://www.sfwmd.gov/agenda.html> or (2) by writing to: South Florida Water Management District, Mail Stop 1130, P. O. Box 24680, West Palm Beach, FL 33416-4680.

Those who want more information, please contact: Director, Governing Board and Executive Services, District Headquarters, 3301 Gun Club Road, Mail Stop Code 1130, West Palm Beach, FL 33406, (561)682-6371.

The **South Florida Water Management District** announces a private closed door attorney-client session:

DATES AND TIMES: Tuesday, August 8, 2006, 12:00 Noon – Completed; Wednesday, August 9, 2006, 9:00 a.m. – Completed

PLACE: Building B-1, Auditorium, 3301 Gun Club Road, West Palm Beach, Florida 33406. (All or part of this meeting may be conducted as a teleconference in order to permit maximum participation of Governing Board members.)

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Closed door attorney-client session pursuant to Fla. Stat. Section 286.011(8)(2005), to discuss strategy related to litigation expenditures in Friends of the Everglades, Inc. and Fishermen Against Destruction of the Environment, Inc. v. South Florida Water Management District, et al., United States District Court, Southern District of Florida, Case No. 02-80309-CV-Altonaga/Turnoff; Miccosukee Tribe of Indians of Florida v. South Florida Water Management District, et al., United States District Court, Southern District of Florida, Case No. 98-6056-CIV-Lenard/Klein; and Friends of the Everglades v. South Florida Water Management District, United States District Court, Southern District of Florida, Case No. 98-6057-CIV-Lenard/Klein. The subject matter shall be confined to the pending litigation.

ATTENDEES: Governing Board Members I. Bague, M. Burt-Stewart, A. Carlson, M. Collins, N. Gutiérrez, L. Lindahl, K. McCarty, H. Thornton; Executive Director C. Wehle; District attorneys S. Wood, S. Echemendia, S. Glazier, J. Nutt, E. Artau, M. Compagno, R. Olian.

Pursuant to Florida Law, the entire attorney-client session shall be recorded by a certified court reporter. No portion of the session shall be off the record. A copy of the transcript will be made part of the public record at the conclusion of the litigation.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained: (1) District Website <http://www.sfwmd.gov/agenda.html> or (2) by writing to the South Florida Water Management District, Mail Stop 1130, P. O. Box 24680, West Palm Beach, FL 33416-4680.

Those who want more information, please contact: Director, Governing Board and Executive Services, District Headquarters, 3301 Gun Club Road, Mail Stop Code 1130, West Palm Beach, FL 33406, (561)682-6371.

The **South Florida Water Management District** announces a public meeting to which all interested parties are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, August 29, 2006, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: The South Florida Water Management Headquarters, Building B-1, Auditorium, 3301 Gun Club Road, West Palm Beach, Florida 33406

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Quarterly meeting of the Everglades Technical Oversight Committee (TOC).

A copy of the agenda may be obtained: (1) District Website <http://www.sfwmd.gov/org/ema/toc/draftagenda.html> or (2) by writing to: South Florida Water Management District, Mail Stop 2130, P. O. Box 24680, West Palm Beach, FL 33416-4680.

Appeals from any South Florida Water Management District Board decision require a record of the proceedings. Although Governing Board meetings and hearings are normally recorded, affected persons are advised that it may be necessary for them to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Persons with disabilities who need assistance may contact the District Clerk, (561)686-8800, at least two business days in advance of the meeting to make appropriate arrangements.

Those who want more information, please contact: Dr. Garth Redfield, Environmental Resource Assessment Department, District Headquarters, 3301 Gun Club Road, Mail Stop Code 4610, West Palm Beach, FL 33406, (561)682-6611.

The **South Florida Water Management District** announces a public meeting to which all interested parties are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Friday, October 13, 2006, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: The Meet Me# is: (850)921-6433, Suncom 291-6433. South Florida Water Management District, 3A Bridge Conference Room, Building B-1, 3301 Gun Club Road, West Palm Beach, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Meeting of the Lake Belt Mitigation Committee, created pursuant to Section 373.41492, Florida Statutes, to discuss a variety of Lake Belt issues.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained: (1) District website <http://www.sfwmd.gov/org/pld/proj/lakebelt/mitigcom.htm> or (2) by writing to the South Florida Water Management District, Attention: Nilda Lutter, MSC 7350, 3301 Gun Club Road, P. O. Box 24680, West Palm Beach, FL 33416-4680.

Appeals from any South Florida Water Management District Board decision require a record of the proceedings. Although Governing Board meetings and hearings are normally recorded, affected persons are advised that it may be necessary for them to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Persons with disabilities who need assistance may contact the District Clerk, (561)686-8800, at least two business days in advance of the meeting to make appropriate arrangements.

Those who want more information, please contact: Nilda Lutter, Land Resources Department, District Headquarters, 3301 Gun Club Road, Mail Stop Code 7350, West Palm Beach, FL 33406, (561)682-2564.

DEPARTMENT OF ELDER AFFAIRS

The **Department of Elder Affairs** will hold a conference call with the signers of the Triad Resolution and other interested parties to discuss matters related to the Statewide Triad.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, August 22, 2006, 11:00 a.m.

PLACE: Call In Number is: (888)808-6959, when prompted, enter Conference Code: 4142034

For a copy of the agenda contact: Helen Anderson, (850)414-2000.

AGENCY FOR HEALTH CARE ADMINISTRATION

The **Agency for Health Care Administration** announces a teleconference meeting of the Variations Working Group and the Legal Working Group of the Governor's Health Information Infrastructure Advisory Board to which all interested parties are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, August 9, 2006, 11:00 a.m.

PLACE: Agency for Health Care Administration, 2727 Mahan Drive, Tallahassee, FL 32308. Anyone interested in participating may telephone (641)793-7500/Pass Code: 9701442#.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To study and make recommendations on the development and implementation of a Florida health information infrastructure including a strategy for promoting the use of electronic health records.

Any person requiring a special accommodation at this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact Carolyn H. Turner, (850)922-5861, at least five calendar days prior to the meeting.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Pia Neustadter, Agency for Health Care Administration, 2727 Mahan Drive, Bldg. 3, Mail Stop #16, Tallahassee, FL 32308-5403. The agenda will be posted at http://ahca.myflorida.com/dhit/Privacy_ss.shtml seven (7) days prior to the meeting.

The **Agency for Health Care Administration** announces the Enhanced Benefits Advisory Panel meeting.

DATE AND TIME: August 7, 2006, 9:30 a.m. – 12:00 Noon

PLACE: Agency for Healthcare Administration Building 3, Conference Room B, 2727 Mahan Drive Tallahassee, FL 32308, Call-in number (850)488-5778

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: This meeting is being held to afford interested persons the opportunity to gather information regarding Medicaid reform, as it relates to Enhanced Benefits.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Roger Carson, Agency for Health Care Administration, 2727 Mahan Drive, Mail Stop #48, Tallahassee, FL 32308.

Anyone needing further information, or special accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, should write to the address given above or call (850)488-3560. Special Accommodations requests under the Americans with Disabilities Act should be made at least seven days prior to the Public hearing.

The **Agency for Health Care Administration** announces the Enhanced Benefits Advisory Panel meeting.

DATE AND TIME: August 22, 2006, 9:30 a.m. – 12:00 Noon

PLACE: Agency for Healthcare Administration Building 3, Conference Room C, 2727 Mahan Drive Tallahassee, FL 32308, Call-in number (850)488-5778

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: This meeting is being held to afford interested persons the opportunity to gather information regarding Medicaid reform, as it relates to Enhanced Benefits.

Anyone needing further information, or special accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, should write to the address given below or call (850)488-3560. Special Accommodations requests under the Americans with Disabilities Act should be made at least seven days prior to the Public hearing.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Roger Carson, Agency for Health Care Administration, 2727 Mahan Drive, Mail Stop #48, Tallahassee, FL 32308.

DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES

The DMS – **Enterprise Information Technology Services**, Wireless 911 Board announces the following workshop schedule information.

DATE AND TIME: August 2, 2006, 2:00 p.m. –5:00 p.m.

PLACE: CONFERENCE #: (888)808-6959, Code: 4149636

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Wireless 911 Board Workshop via telephone conference to discuss issues related to the county costs requirements and reporting to the Governor and Legislature as mandated in proviso language included in HB5001.

DATE AND TIME: August 30, 2006, 2:00 p.m. –5:00 p.m.

PLACE: CONFERENCE #: (888)808-6959, Code: 4149636

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Wireless 911 Board Workshop via telephone conference to discuss issues related to the county costs requirements and reporting to the Governor and Legislature as mandated in proviso language included in HB5001.

If accommodation due to disability is needed in order to participate, please notify the: DMS – Enterprise Information Technology Services Office/Wireless 911 Board in writing, at least five (5) days in advance, 4050 Esplanade Way, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0950.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

The **Department of Business and Professional Regulation**, Board of Employee Leasing Companies, announces an official general business meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, August 16, 2006, 10:00 a.m. or soon thereafter

PLACE: The Hyatt Regency Tampa, 211 North Tampa Street, Tampa, Florida 33602

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: General Business Meeting of the Board.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Board of Employee Leasing Companies, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0767, or by calling their office at (850)487-1395.

If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, they will need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose they may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record will include the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the meeting by contacting the board office at (850)487-1395. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (800)955-8771(TDD).

For further information, contact: Florida Board of Employee Leasing Companies, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0767.

The Florida **Board of Veterinary Medicine** announces the following meeting to which all parties are invited to attend.

DATE AND TIME: September 12, 2006, 8:00 a.m.

PLACE: Casa Monica Hotel, 95 Cordova Street, St. Augustine, FL 32084, (904)827-0426

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: General Business meeting.

To obtain a copy of the agenda, further information, or submit written or other physical evidence, contact in writing to: Board of Veterinary Medicine, 1940 N. Monroe St., Tallahassee, Florida 32399.

If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need a record of the proceedings, and for

such purpose he/she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Any person requiring a special accommodation at this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact the Board office, (850)922-7154, at least five calendar days prior to the meeting. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Board office using the Florida Dual Party Relay System which can be reached at 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) and 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Notices for the Department of Environmental Protection between December 28, 2001 and June 30, 2006, go to <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/> under the link or button titled "Official Notices."

The **Department of Environmental Protection**, Bureau of Mine Reclamation announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: August 9, 2006, 6:00 p.m.

PLACE: Hardee County Board Room, 412 West Orange Street, Room 103, Wauchula, FL 33873

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Department of Environmental Protection and the Southwest Florida Water Management District will be presenting their findings of the Peace River Cumulative Impact Study.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Thu-Huong Clark, Department of Environmental Protection, 2051 E. Dirac Drive, Tallahassee, FL 32301, (850)488-8217, or by going to the bureau's website at <http://dep.state.fl.us/water/mines/index.htm>

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Thu-Huong Clark, (850)488-8217. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

The **Department of Environmental Protection**, Bureau of Invasive Plant Management announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: August 24, 2006, 10:00 a.m. – Completion of business

PLACE: Harbor Branch Oceanographic Institution, Johnson Education Center, 5600 U.S. 1, North, Ft. Pierce, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: A public meeting to discuss the implementation of the Statewide Invasive Species Management Plan for Florida, a comprehensive plan that coordinates the responsibilities of the state agencies to manage and prevent biological invasions.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Don C. Schmitz, Department of Environmental Protection, Division of State Lands, Bureau of Invasive Plant Management, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, M.S. 705, Tallahassee, FL 32399, (850)245-2809.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Don C. Schmitz, (850)245-2809. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

NOTICE OF RESCHEDULING – The **Department of Environmental Protection** announces a hearing to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: October 11, 2006, 9:00 a.m.; Continuing as necessary on October 12, 2006

PLACE: OUC Pershing Avenue Complex, Safety Training Room, First Floor, Electrical Distribution Building, 6003 Pershing Avenue, Orlando, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The certification hearing originally scheduled for August 15-16, 2006 is cancelled and rescheduled. Administrative Law Judge Donald R. Alexander will conduct a hearing commencing on October 11, 2006, and continuing as necessary on October 12, 2006, to take testimony and evidence relating to the environmental effects and any other appropriate matters regarding the site certification of the proposed Orlando Utilities Commission's Stanton Energy Center expansion project, pursuant to the Florida Electrical Power Plant Siting Act, Sections 403.501-.518, Florida Statutes. Judge Alexander will prepare Recommended Orders for submission to and final action by the Governor and Cabinet acting as the Siting Board, based on the hearings. Under Section 403.508(4), F.S., any person wishing to become a party to the proceedings should file a Motion to Intervene with Administrative Law Judge Donald R. Alexander, Division of Administrative Hearings, The DeSoto Building, 1230 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1550, at least 30 days prior to the hearings.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Mr. Hamilton Oven, (850)245-8002, or at the Department of Environmental Protection, 2600 Blair Stone Road, M.S. 48, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the

agency at least 48 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Landa Korokous, (850)245-8002. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

The Department of Environmental Protection, Division of Recreation and Parks, Suwannee River Wilderness Trail announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: August 9, 2006, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Emergency Management Office, 263 N. W. Lake City Ave., Lake City, FL

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Marketing and promotion of the Suwannee River Wilderness Trail.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Amy Thompson, 1(800)868-9914.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Amy Thompson, 1(800)868-9914. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Amy Thompson, 1(800)868-9914.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

The Department of Health, Board of Dentistry, announces a meeting of the Rules Committee/Rules Development Workshop, an official meeting to be held via telephone conference call. All interested parties are invited to attend the telephone conference call, which is open to the public.

DATE AND TIME: August 14, 2006, 5:30 p.m.

PLACE: Telephone Number: (850)487-8587

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To discuss proposed rule changes.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Sue Foster, Executive Director, Department of Health, Board of Dentistry, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, BIN #C08, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3258.

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be made.

Those who are hearing impaired, using TDD equipment can call the Florida Telephone Relay System at 1(800)955-8771. Persons requiring special accommodations due to disability or physical impairment should contact: Sue Foster, (850)245-4474.

The Board of Medicine hereby gives notice of a public hearing on Rule 64B8-9.009 Standard of Care for Office Surgery, to be held on:

DATE AND TIME: August 10, 2006, 6:00 p.m.

PLACE: The Sirata Beach Resort and Conference Center, 5300 Gulf Boulevard, St., Petersburg Beach, Florida 33706

The rule was originally published in Vol. 32, No. 25, of the June 23, 2006, Florida Administrative Weekly.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Larry McPherson, Executive Director, Board of Medicine, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C03, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3253.

Any person requiring a special accommodation at this hearing because of a disability or physical impairment should contact the Board's Executive Director at least five calendar days prior to the hearing. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Board office using the Florida Dual Party Relay System which can be reached at 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) and 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

The Board of Medicine hereby gives notice that pursuant to Section 286.011(8), Florida Statutes, it will be meeting in a closed session to discuss pending litigation in the matter of Fresenius Medical Care Holdings, Inc. d/b/a Fresenius Medical Care North America, a foreign corporation; Gambro Healthcare, Inc., a foreign corporation; and Davita Inc., a foreign corporation vs. John O. Agwunobi, M.D., MBA, in his official capacity as Secretary of the Florida Department of Health; and Elisabeth Tucker, M.D., in her official capacity as Chair of the Florida Board of Medicine, Case No. 4:03CV411-SPM/AK.

DATE AND TIME: Saturday, August 12, 2006, 2:00 p.m.

PLACE: The Sirata Beach Resort and Conference Center, 5300 Gulf Boulevard, St. Petersburg Beach, Florida 33706

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Attorney/Client Closed Session.

The following persons shall be in attendance: Mammen Zachariah, M.D., Mark Avila, M.D., Carmel Barrau, M.D., Fred Bearison, M.D., Robert Cline, M.D., Manuel Coto, M.D., Laurie Davies, M.D., Ronald Dyches, Frank Farmer, M.D., Onelia Lage, M.D., Monique Long, Marsha Nippert, Lisa Tucker, M.D., Raghavendra Vijayanagar, M.D., Gary Winchester, M.D., Tom Koch, Deputy General Counsel, Department of Health, Larry McPherson, Executive Director, Board of Medicine, Edward Tellechea, Board Counsel, Crystal List, Program Administrator, Nancy Murphy, Operations and

Management Consultant. The meeting shall be transcribed in accordance with the provisions of Section 286.011(8), Florida Statutes.

The **Board of Nursing** and Council on Certified Nursing Assistants will hold duly noticed public meeting, to which all persons are invited.

Council on Certified Nursing Assistants

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, August 9, 2006, 10:30 a.m.
Practice Committee

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, August 9, 2006, 6:00 p.m.
Legislative Committee

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, August 9, 2006, 6:15 p.m.
Education Meeting

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, August 9, 2006, 7:00 p.m.
Credentials Committee

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, August 10, 2006, 8:30 a.m.
Education Committee

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, August 10, 2006, 8:30 a.m.
Full Board Meeting

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, August 10, 2006, 1:00 p.m.
Full Board Meeting

DATE AND TIME: Friday, August 11, 2006, 8:30 a.m.
PLACE: Hyatt Regency Riverwalk, 225 Coastline Drive,
Jacksonville, FL 32202, (904)633-9095

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To conduct general business of the Board, Council and Committees.

The **Board of Nursing**, South Probable Cause Panel will hold a duly noticed teleconference call meeting, to which all persons are invited to attend.

DATE AND TIME: August 17, 2006, 5:00 p.m. – 7:00 p.m.

PLACE: Department of Health, Tallahassee at Meet Me Number (850)921-6455

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: For cases previously heard by the panel.

Any person requiring special accommodations at this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact the Board of Nursing, (850)245-4125, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Board office using the Dual Party Relay System at 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) and 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

A copy of the agenda item may be obtained by writing: Florida Board of Nursing, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C02, Tallahassee, FL 32399-3257.

The **Board of Osteopathic Medicine** hereby gives notice that a public workshop for the purposes of rule development on Rule 64B15-19.002, F.A.C., will be held on:

DATE AND TIME: August 12, 2006, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: The Belleview Biltmore, 25 Belleview Blvd., Clearwater, Florida 33756

A notice of rule development was published in Vol. 32, No. 27, of the July 7, 2006, Florida Administrative Weekly.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP IS: Pamela King, Executive Director, Board of Osteopathic Medicine/MQA, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C06, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3256.

Any person requiring a special accommodation at this hearing because of a disability or physical impairment should contact the Board's Executive Director, at least five calendar days prior to the hearing. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Board office using the Florida Dual Party Relay System which can be reached at 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) and 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

The **Board of Pharmacy**, Legislative/Rules Committee, announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: August 15, 2006, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: The Rosen Centre Hotel, 9840 International Drive, Orlando, FL 32819, (800)204-7234

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Discuss rule changes to Chapter 64B16, F.A.C.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Rebecca Poston, Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, BIN C04, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3254.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Garnet Keller, (850)245-4292. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Garnet Keller, (850)245-4292.

The **Board of Pharmacy**, Professional Practice Committee, announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: August 15, 2006, 1:00 p.m.

PLACE: The Rosen Centre Hotel, 9840 International Drive, Orlando, FL 32819, 1(800)204-7234

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Discussion of USP 797 and general business.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Rebecca Poston, Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, BIN C04, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3254.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Garnet Keller, (850)245-4292. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Garnet Keller, (850)245-4292.

The **Board of Pharmacy**, Consumer Relations Committee, announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: August 15, 2006, 4:00 p.m.

PLACE: The Rosen Centre Hotel, 9840 International Drive, Orlando, FL 32819, 1(800)204-7234

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Guidelines for a Pharmacist of the Year Award.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Rebecca Poston, Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, BIN C04, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3254.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Garnet Keller, (850)245-4292. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Garnet Keller, (850)245-4292.

The **Board of Pharmacy** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATES AND TIME: August 16-17, 2006, 8:00 a.m.

PLACE: The Rosen Centre Hotel, 9840 International Drive, Orlando, FL 32819, 1(800)204-7234

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Board will conduct disciplinary proceedings and general board business.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Rebecca Poston, Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, BIN C04, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3254.

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Garnet Keller, (850)245-4292. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Garnet Keller, (850)245-4292.

The Florida **Department of Health** announces a meeting of the Florida KidCare Coordinating Council to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, August 10, 2006, 1:00 p.m. – 4:00 p.m.

PLACE: Betty Easley Conference Center, Room 166, Capital Circle Office Complex, 4075 Esplanade Way, Tallahassee, FL 32399. In the event Room 166 is needed by the Emergency Operations Center, the meeting will be held at Department of Elder Affairs, Conference Room 225F, Building 4040, 4040 Esplanade Way, Tallahassee, FL

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To discuss Florida KidCare, the state children's health insurance program. The Council is charged with making recommendations to the Department, the Governor and the Legislature, as well as other state government groups about possible changes and adjustments to the Florida KidCare Program which may result in recommendations for legislative action, state agency rule change, federal agency rule or policy change, or Congressional action.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained from: Gail Vail, Department of Health, (850)245-4200, ext. 2238, Gail_Vail@doh.state.fl.us

The **Department of Health** announces a Public Hearing to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: August 8, 2006, 12:00 Noon – 1:00 p.m.

PLACE: 4025 Esplanade Way, Room 301, Tallahassee, Florida
GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Provide an opportunity for the public to comment on how the Department of Health is spending the Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant Funds. Members of the PHHSBG Advisory Council and the State Health Officer, Dr. Bonita Sorensen, will be available for questions and to take comments or recommendations.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Karen Simons, Department of Health, Bureau of Chronic Disease Prevention and Health Promotion, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin A-18, Tallahassee, Florida 32399 or via email at Karen_Simons@doh.state.fl.us

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

NOTICE OF CORRECTION – The Florida **Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission** has scheduled a special public meeting.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, August 16, 2006, 1:00 p.m. – 4:00 p.m.

PLACE: Doubletree Hotel, 4500 West Cypress Street, Tampa, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: This is the final public hearing to review and discuss substantive and procedural issues associated with the Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission and to take action on two proposed amendments. Paragraph 68B-45.004(9)(b), Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), is amended to continue the moratorium on issuance of the blue crab endorsements until July 1, 2007. Rule 68B-45.007, F.A.C., is amended to delay until July 1, 2007 the implementation of the Blue Crab Limited Entry Program. The commission may also reopen its final public hearing on proposed amendments to Rules 68A-9.007, and 68A-15.065, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), if lead management authority for Tosohatchee Wildlife Management Area is not transferred to the Commission by the Board of Trustees at its August 1, 2006 meeting.

A copy of the proposed agenda may be obtained from: The Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 S. Meridian St., Tallahassee, FL 32399-1600.

If any person decides to challenge any decision with respect to any matter considered at the above meeting, a record of the proceeding will be needed.

For this purpose, you may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made which includes testimony and evidence upon which the challenge is to be based.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in the workshop or meeting is asked to advise the Commission at least 5 calendar days prior by calling the ADA Coordinator, (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542. LEGAL AUTHORITY: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Constitution.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

The **Department of Financial Services** announces a public meeting of the Florida Board of Funeral, Cemetery and Consumer Services, to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: August 24, 2006, 11:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m.

PLACE: Crowne Plaza, Miami International Airport, 950 N. W. LeJeune Road (950 N. W. 42nd Ave.), Miami, FL 33126, (305)446-9000

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Regular Board Business.

The above date relates to the next meeting of the Board of Funeral, Cemetery and Consumer Services. The public is advised to check with Department of Financial Services staff, Ms. LaTonya Bryant, (850)413-3039, before traveling to a scheduled meeting on the date above, to ascertain whether the meeting has been cancelled. Notice of such cancellations will be posted on the home page of the Division of Funeral, Cemetery and Consumer Services, which is on the website of the Department of Financial Services, www.fldfs.com, as soon as known.

At least 7 days before each meeting, a copy of the agenda of the meeting will be available. Agendas will be available on the home page of the Division of Funeral, Cemetery and Consumer Services, on the website of the Department of Financial Services, www.fldfs.com

A copy of the agenda may also be obtained by writing: Department of Financial Services, Division of Funeral, Cemetery and Consumer Services, Attn.: LaTonya Bryant, 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0361, or by calling Ms. Bryant, (850)413-3039.

If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, the person will need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose the person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this meeting is asked to advise LaTonya Bryant, (850)413-3039, at least 48 hours before the meeting. If you are

hearing or speech impaired, contact LaTonya Bryant via the Florida Relay Service at 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice), for assistance.

FINANCIAL SERVICES COMMISSION

NOTICE OF AMENDMENT – The **Office of Insurance Regulation** announces a public hearing to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND REVISED TIME: August 1, 2006, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Key West High School, Auditorium, 2100 Flagler Avenue, Key West, Florida 33040. Contract name and number: Lori Fitzsimmons, Esquire (850)413-4158, or Sam Coskey (850)413-2616.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Citizens Property Insurance Corporation has requested rate increases for the following Monroe County coverages: homeowners insurance and mobile home owners insurance. The proposed increases are 25.4% and 20.2%, respectively, and are applicable to policies that include coverage for wind. Florida law allows the Office of Insurance Regulation to hold a public hearing for any purpose within the scope of the Insurance Code deemed to be necessary. Input from Citizens Property Insurance Corporation as well as interested parties will be received at this public hearing. If you are unable to attend this public hearing, you may e-mail your comments to the Office of Insurance Regulation at ratehearings@fldfs.com; the subject line of your e-mail should read “Citizens-Monroe Filing.”

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this hearing, please telephone the Key West High School, Auditorium, Manager, Rick Gardner, (305)797-5666, at least 48 hours before the hearing.

COMMISSION ON MARRIAGE AND FAMILY SUPPORT INITIATIVES

The **Commission on Marriage and Family Support Initiatives** announces the following meetings of the commission to which all persons are invited to attend.

PLACE: All the meetings will be held via conference call at 111 N. Gadsden Street, Suite 100, Tallahassee, FL 32301-1507

MEETING TYPE: EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, August 2, 2006, 8:30 a.m. – 9:30 a.m.

MEETING TYPE: PROGRAM COMMITTEE

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, August 2, 2006, 10:00 a.m. – 11:30 a.m.

MEETING TYPE: POLICY COMMITTEE

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, August 3, 2006, 9:00 a.m. – 11:00 a.m.

MEETING TYPE: PUBLIC AWARENESS COMMITTEE
DATE AND TIME: Friday, August 18, 2006, 10:00 a.m. – 12:00 Noon

For a copy of the agendas and more information about how to attend the meetings contact: Heidi Rodriguez, hrodriguez@ounce.org or (850)488-4952, ext. 135.

Persons with disabilities who require assistance to participate in the meeting are requested to notify the commission office at the same address or telephone number above at least seven days in advance so that their needs can be accommodated.

FLORIDA INDEPENDENT LIVING COUNCIL

The **Florida Independent Living Council** announces the following meetings.

MEETING: Advocacy Committee Meeting

DATES AND TIMES: Thursday, August 3, 2006, 1:30 p.m. (EST); Thursday, September 7, 2006, 1:30 p.m. (EST); Thursday, October 5, 2006, 1:30 p.m. (EST)

PLACE: FILC, Inc. Administrative Offices, 1018 Thomasville Road, Suite 100A, Tallahassee, Florida 32303-6271

MEETING: Planning Committee Meeting

DATES AND TIMES: Thursday, August 10, 2006, 1:30 p.m. (EST); Thursday, September 14, 2006, 1:30 p.m. (EST); Thursday, October 12, 2006, 1:30 p.m. (EST)

PLACE: FILC, Inc. Administrative Offices, 1018 Thomasville Road, Suite 100A, Tallahassee, Florida 32303-6271

MEETING: Evaluation Committee Meeting

DATES AND TIMES: Thursday, August 10, 2006, 2:30 p.m. (EST); Thursday, September 14, 2006, 2:30 p.m. (EST); Thursday, October 12, 2006, 2:30 p.m. (EST)

PLACE: FILC, Inc. Administrative Offices, 1018 Thomasville Road, Suite 100A, Tallahassee, Florida 32303-6271

MEETING: Finance Committee Meeting

DATES AND TIMES: Thursday, August 17, 2006, 1:30 p.m. (EST); Thursday, September 21, 2006, 1:30 p.m. (EST); Thursday, October 19, 2006, 1:30 p.m. (EST)

PLACE: FILC, Inc. Administrative Offices, 1018 Thomasville Road, Suite 100A, Tallahassee, Florida 32303-6271

MEETING: Nominating Committee Meeting

DATES AND TIMES: Thursday, August 24, 2006, 1:30 p.m. (EST); Thursday, September 28, 2006, 1:30 p.m. (EST); Thursday, October 26, 2006, 1:30 p.m. (EST)

PLACE: FILC, Inc. Administrative Offices, 1018 Thomasville Road, Suite 100A, Tallahassee, Florida 32303-6271

MEETING: Executive Committee Meeting

DATES AND TIMES: Thursday, August 24, 2006, 2:30 p.m. (EST); Thursday, September 28, 2006, 2:30 p.m. (EST); Thursday, October 26, 2006, 2:30 p.m. (EST)

PLACE: FILC, Inc. Administrative Offices, 1018 Thomasville Road, Suite 100A, Tallahassee, Florida 32303-6271

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To conduct the regular business of the council.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Florida Independent Living Council, 1018 Thomasville Road, Suite 100A, Tallahassee, Florida 32303-6271, (850)488-5624 or toll free (877)822-1993.

Any person who needs an accommodation to participate in this meeting because of a disability, including alternative formats, should submit a request for such accommodation in writing at least one week before the meeting date.

COMMITTEE AND TASK FORCE MEETINGS: Please note that committees and task forces of the Florida Independent Living Council will meet at various times throughout the year to carry out the work of the council; the meeting dates and times will be posted at the above address at least seven days prior to the meeting. Persons who want to be notified of such meetings may request to be put on the mailing list for such notices by writing to Molly Gosline at mg@polaris.net.

Notices of meetings and hearing must advise that a record is required to appeal. Each board, commission or agency of this state or of any political subdivision thereof shall include in the notice of any meeting or hearing, if notice of the meeting or hearing is required, of such board, commission or agency, conspicuously on such notice, the advice that, if a person decides to appeal any decision made by the board, agency or commission with respect to any matter considered at such meeting or hearing, he or she will need a record of the proceedings, and that, for such purpose, he or she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. (Florida Statutes, §286.0105)

FLORIDA ALLIANCE FOR DIABETES PREVENTION AND CARE

The members of the **Florida Alliance for Diabetes Prevention and Care**, Leadership Council announces their quarterly business meeting.

DATE AND TIME: August 8, 2006, 10:30 a.m. – 11:30 a.m., Committee Meetings; 12:30 p.m. – 4:30 p.m., Quarterly Business Meeting

PLACE: Florida Medical Quality Assurance, Inc. (FMQAI), Tampa, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Committee meetings; Quarterly Business Meeting.

This is a public meeting. If you would like to attend, have questions, or require further information, please contact: Mrs. M. R. Street, (850)245-4444, ext. 2842.

All requests for special accommodations must be received by Tuesday, August 1, 2006, by 5:00 p.m. (Eastern Time).

The members of the Florida Diabetes Advisory Council (DAC) announce their quarterly business meeting.

DATE AND TIME: August 9, 2006, 9:00 a.m. – 12:30 p.m.

PLACE: Florida Medical Quality Assurance, Inc. (FMQAI), Tampa, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Quarterly Business Meeting.

This is a public meeting. If you would like to attend, have questions, or require further information, please contact Mrs. M. R. Street, (850)245-4444, ext. 2842.

All requests for special accommodations must be received by Tuesday, August 1, 2006, by 5:00 p.m. Eastern Time.

ST. LUCIE COUNTY

The **Treasure Coast Education**, Research and Development Authority announces a public meeting to which all interested persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, August 8, 2006, 1:00 p.m.

PLACE: University of Florida Indian River Research and Education Center, 2199 South Rock Road, Fort Pierce, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Transfer of development rights, Park Manager update, lease updates, committee reports, and such other business as the Authority may deem appropriate.

Those who desire a copy of the agenda or more information should contact: Linda W. Cox, Chairman, (772)595-9999.

Anyone with a disability requiring accommodation to attend this meeting should contact: Velma Spencer, IRREC Office Manager, (772)468-3922, ext. 113, at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the meeting.

SCRIPPS FLORIDA FUNDING CORPORATION

The Board of Directors, The **Scripps Florida Funding Corporation** announces a public meeting to which all persons and interested media are invited, except as provided under Section 288.9551, Fla. Stat. (2003).

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, August 9, 2006, 10:00 a.m. (EST)

PLACE: Teleconference: (877)279-4173, Passcode: 254482

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: At this meeting, the Board will review the Scripps Florida business plan. The date, time, and/or place are subject to change. Please check <http://www.myflorida.com/myflorida/government/governorinitiatives/otted/index.html> for meeting date, time, place, and materials.

Pursuant to Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, any disabled person wishing to participate in this meeting in order to request any needed special assistance should contact sara.misselhorn@myflorida.com at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting.

CITIZENS PROPERTY INSURANCE CORPORATION

The **Citizens Property Insurance Corporation** announces a MAAC meeting to which all interested persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, August 9, 2006, 1:00 p.m. – 4:00 p.m. (EDT)

PLACE: The Omni Hotel in Jacksonville, FL

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Items of discussion include, but are not limited to, Senate Bill 1980 Implementation and Poe Transition.

For additional information, please call: Barbara Walker, 1(800)807-7647, extension 3744.

Special Accommodations: In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, people with disabilities or physical impairments who require assistance to participate in this meeting are requested to contact Barbara Walker, at least five days prior to the meeting.

The **Citizens Property Insurance Corporation** announces a Finance and Investment Committee meeting to which all interested persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, August 9, 2006, 3:00 p.m. – 5:00 p.m.

PLACE: The Omni Hotel in Jacksonville, FL

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Items of discussion include, but are not limited to, 2006 A HRA Bond Issue (Post-Financing Report) and the RFP for Investment Banks.

For additional information, please call Barbara Walker, 1(800)807-7647, extension 3744.

Special Accommodations: In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, people with disabilities or physical impairments who require assistance to participate in this meeting are requested to contact Barbara Walker, at least five days prior to the meeting.

The **Citizens Property Insurance Corporation** announces a FMAP Board of Governors meeting to which all interested persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, August 10, 2006, 8:30 a.m. – 9:00 a.m. (EDT)

PLACE: The Omni Hotel in Jacksonville, FL

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Items of discussion include, but are not limited to, the Annual Report and the 2006 Proposed Budget.

For additional information, please call Barbara Walker, 1(800)807-7647, extension 3744.

Special Accommodations: In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, people with disabilities or physical impairments who require assistance to participate in this meeting are requested to contact Barbara Walker at least five days prior to the meeting.

The **Citizens Property Insurance Corporation** announces a Board of Governors meeting to which all interested persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, August 10, 2006, 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 Noon (EDT)

PLACE: The Omni Hotel in Jacksonville, FL

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Items of discussion include, but are not limited to, Systems Status and Market Accountability Advisory Committee Report.

For additional information, please call Barbara Walker, 1(800)807-7647, extension 3744.

Special Accommodations: In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, people with disabilities or physical impairments who require assistance to participate in this meeting are requested to contact Barbara Walker, at least five days prior to the meeting.

FLORIDA TELECOMMUNICATIONS RELAY

The Florida Telecommunications Relay, Inc., announces a regular meeting of the Board of Directors to which all interested persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Friday, August 11, 2006, 1:00 p.m.

PLACE: 1820 E. Park Avenue, Suite 101, Tallahassee, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Regular meeting of the Board of Directors.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Mr. James Forstall, Executive Director, 1820 E. Park Avenue, Suite 101, Tallahassee, Florida, 32301.

The meeting is subject to cancellation for lack of a quorum or unavailability of an interpreter.

COMMUNITY BASED CARE OF SEMINOLES

The **Community Based Care of Seminole’s** Board of Director’s will meet:

DATE AND TIME: Every third Wednesday of the month, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: The CBCS Executive offices, 117 E. Lake Mary Boulevard, Sanford, Florida

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact our office, (407)333-8256.

**Section VII
Notices of Petitions and Dispositions
Regarding Declaratory Statements**

**BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE INTERNAL
IMPROVEMENT TRUST FUND**

Notices for the Board of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund between December 28, 2001 and June 30, 2006, go to <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/> under the link or button titled “Official Notices.”

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Division of Florida Land Sales, Condominiums, and Mobile Homes, Department of Business and Professional Regulation, State of Florida, has issued a Declaratory Statement In Re: Petition for Declaratory Statement, Cape Marco Property Owners Association, Inc., Docket No. 2006019339.

The Division declares that Cape Marco Property Owners Association is a condominium association as defined by Section 718.103(2), Florida Statutes, and the developer is required to comply with the transfer of control provisions in Section 718.301, Florida Statutes.

A copy of the Declaratory Statement, Docket Number 2006019339, may be obtained by writing to: Agency Clerk, Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Florida Land Sales, Condominiums, and Mobile Homes, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2217.

The Construction Industry Licensing Board hereby gives notice that it has issued a Final Order in the Petition for Declaratory Statement filed by Christopher Paoli. The Petition was published in Vol. 32, No. 11, of March 17, 2006, Florida Administrative Weekly. The Board reviewed the petition at its meeting held April 12-14, 2006, in Boca Raton, Florida. The Board's Final Order, filed in this cause on July 6, 2006, finds that the Petitioner can receive an additional 7 credits for his second completion of the computer-aided residential drafting course.

A copy of the Petition and the Board's Final Order may be obtained by contacting: Construction Industry Licensing Board, Northwood Centre, 1940 N. Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0750.

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Notices for the Department of Environmental Protection between December 28, 2001 and June 30, 2006, go to <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/> under the link or button titled "Official Notices."

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT Department of Environmental Protection, Bureau of Petroleum Storage Systems has issued an order disposing of the petition for declaratory statement filed by Handy Food Stores, Inc. on April 10, 2006. The following is a summary of the agency's disposition of the petition:

On July 6, 2006, Petitioner withdrew its petition for declaratory statement. The petition requested a declaratory statement under Chapter 28-105, Florida Administrative Code, seeking clarification regarding eligibility in the Department's

various petroleum cleanup programs. Notice of receipt of this petition was published on the Department's Internet site on May 19, 2006.

For more information write or call: Brian J. Cross, Department of Environmental Protection, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, MS 35, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000, (850)245-2242.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Department of Environmental Protection has issued an order disposing of the petition for declaratory statement filed by Teresa Perkins and Julia McIntosh on April 21, 2006. The following is a summary of the agency's disposition of the petition:

The Department denied the Petition for Declaratory Statement. The bases for denial were that the Petition failed to demonstrate that the Petitioners' substantial interests were affected by the factual scenario described in the Petition, that the Petition was based upon a hypothetical situation and that the Petition was seeking a declaration concerning the conduct of third parties rather than the Petitioners' own conduct.

A copy of the Order Disposing of the Petition for Declaratory Statement may be obtained by contacting: Lisa M. Duchene, (850)245-2242. Please refer all comments to: Lisa M. Duchene, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Mail Station 35, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000, lisa.duchene@dep.state.fl.us.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

The Board of Cosmetology hereby gives notice that it has received a Petition for Declaratory Statement filed on July 17, 2006, by Regal Nails, Salon and Spa, L.L.C. The Petitioner seeks the Board's opinion concerning Chapter 477, Florida Statutes, regarding specialty licenses and scope of practice as related to application of false eyelashes.

Copies of the petition may be obtained by writing: Robyn Barineau, Executive Director, Board of Cosmetology, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0750.

The Board of Pharmacy hereby gives notice that it has issued an Order on the Petition for Declaratory Statement, that was received from Sarah Stephens, R.Ph. The Notice of Petition for Declaratory Statement was dated March 3, 2006. Petitioner sought the Board's interpretation of Sections 465.003(6), and 465.016(1)(l), Florida Statutes, entitled "Definitions" and "Disciplinary Actions" and whether it is a violation to restock unused prescription drugs which are returned to the pharmacy provided that the drugs are recovered prior to the receipt thereof by either the patient or his/her agent and if the return and reuse of the drugs conform to the AMA conditions. The Board of Pharmacy considered the Petition at its meeting held on June 8, 2006, in Ft. Lauderdale, Florida. The Board's Order, filed on June 23, 2006, answered the Petition for Declaratory Statement in the affirmative, finding that medical drugs that have been shipped to the consumer or consumer's agent, but

not delivered to the consumer or the consumer's agent, have not been dispensed within the meaning of Section 456.003, F.S., and these medicinal drugs may be returned to the stock of the pharmacy. It is the Board's opinion that although it is legally permissible to return non-dispensed medicinal drugs to the stock of a pharmacy, it is the responsibility of the pharmacist making the decision to return the medicinal drugs to the stock of the pharmacy to exercise his or her professional judgment in deciding whether or not it is appropriate to return the medications to the stock of the pharmacy in light of the conditions under which the medications were stored prior to the return to the pharmacy.

A copy of the Board's Order may be obtained by contacting: Rebecca Poston, R.Ph., Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # C04, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3254.

Section VIII
Notices of Petitions and Dispositions
Regarding the Validity of Rules

Notice of Petition for Administrative Determination has been filed with the Division of Administrative Hearings on the following rules:

NONE

Notice of Disposition of Petition for Administrative Determination have been filed by the Division of Administrative Hearings on the following rules:

NONE

Section IX
Notices of Petitions and Dispositions
Regarding Non-rule Policy Challenges

NONE

Section X
Announcements and Objection Reports of
the Joint Administrative Procedures
Committee

NONE

Section XI
Notices Regarding Bids, Proposals and
Purchasing

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

INVITATION TO BID

The Florida State University Facilities Purchasing shall receive sealed bids until the dates and times shown for the following projects. Bids may be brought to the bid opening or sent to:

Florida State University
Facilities Maintenance, Purchasing
114F Mendenhall, Building A
Tallahassee, Florida 32306

prior to bid opening. Bidder must reference bid number, opening date and time on outside of bid package to insure proper acceptance. Bids submitted by facsimile are not acceptable. For information relating to the Invitation(s) to Bid, contact the

Bid Number: FAC92-06
Purchasing Agent: B.J. Lewis, Facilities

MANDATORY

JOBSITE VISIT: August 14, 2006, 10:00 a.m.

LOCATION: Bldg. 468, corner of
St. Augustine and Copeland

Public Bid Opening: August 24, 2006, 2:00 p.m.
FSU-Facilities Maintenance
116 Mendenhall Hall, Building A
Tallahassee, Florida 32306-4150
Facilities Maintenance Purchasing

Bid Documents: Renovation of Building 468
Florida State University

Project Manger: Joe Adams, (850)644-5141

The University of West Florida, Florida Public Archaeology Network (FPAN) has issued a Request for Proposal (RFP) to host a Regional Center of the Network. The RFP is posted on www.flpublicarchaeology.org. Proposals are due October 20, 2006.

In 2004 the Florida Legislature established and in 2005 provided continuing funding for the Florida Public Archaeology Network (FPAN) through the University of West Florida (UWF). The Network is administered by the University of West Florida through a memorandum of agreement (MOA) between UWF and the Florida Division of Historical Resources. Regional public archaeology centers will be established throughout Florida to help stem the rapid deterioration of this state's buried past and to expand public interest in archaeology. This will be achieved by a robust program of public education, through the promotion and development of archaeology-based heritage tourism, by active

involvement of the public through volunteerism, and through education and outreach to local government officials, land managers, and others whose actions affect the archaeological record.

The FPAN Coordinating Center in Pensacola and Charter Regional Centers at St. Augustine, hosted by Flagler College; Tampa, hosted by the University of South Florida; and Pineland, hosted by the Florida Museum of Natural History were established during FY 2005-2006. Four additional Regional Centers will be selected by the FPAN Board of Directors from proposals received from institutions or organizations willing to provide, at no cost, space for the center. In exchange, the host institution will receive an annual grant from the University of West Florida to provide for professional staff and operation of the center.

This Request for Proposals seeks to identify hosts for four additional Regional Centers to provide public archaeology services for four regions within Florida:

The Big Bend Region is Leon, Wakulla, Jefferson, Madison, Taylor, Hamilton, Suwannee, Lafayette, Dixie, Columbia, Gilchrist, Levy, Baker, Union, Bradford, and Alachua Counties.

The Central Region is Marion, Citrus, Hernando, Sumter, Lake, Seminole, Orange, and Osceola Counties.

The East Central Region is Brevard, Indian River, St. Lucie, Martin, Okeechobee, and Highlands Counties.

The Southeast Region is Palm Beach, Broward, Miami-Dade, and Monroe Counties.

A map showing regions of the Florida Public Archaeology Network as described above is available at www.flpublicarchaeology.org/RegionFPANMap.htm

For more information, please contact: Cheryl Phelps, Office/Grants Manager, FPAN, Email: cphelps@uwf.edu, Phone: (850)595-0050.

CALL FOR BIDS – ITB 07-01

Made by the University of North Florida Board of Trustees, a public body corporate

PROJECT, NAME, NUMBER AND LOCATION:

ITB 07-01, Physical Plant Infrastructure, Condenser Water Heat Recovery, University of North Florida, 4567 St. Johns Bluff Road, South, Jacksonville, FL 32224

QUALIFICATIONS: All bidders must be qualified at the time of bid opening in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders, Article B-2. Sealed bids will be received on:

DATE AND TIME: August 17, 2006, Until 2:00 p.m.

PLACE: University of North Florida, Purchasing Conference Room, Building Six Room #1301, 4567 St. Johns Bluff Road, South, Jacksonville, Florida 32224 at which time and place they will be publicly opened and read aloud.

PROPOSAL: Bids must be submitted in full and in accordance with the requirements of the drawings and Project Manual which may be obtained or examined at the office of: FLORIDA BLURPRINTING SERVICE, INC. (904)388-7686
ARCHITECT/ENGINEER: TLC Engineering FOR Architecture, 1809 Art Museum Drive, Suite 105, Jacksonville, FL 32207-2566, Telephone (904)306-9111

MINORITY PROGRAM: Bidders are encouraged to utilize Minority Business Enterprises certified by the Commission on Minority Business Economic and Business Development (formerly certificate done by Department of Management Services)

PRE-SOLICITATION/PRE-BID MEETING:

The bidder is required to attend the pre-solicitation/pre-bid meeting. Minority business enterprise firms are invited to attend to become familiar with the project specifications and to become acquainted with contractors interested in bidding the project. The meeting has been scheduled for:

DATE AND TIME: August 9, 2006, 2:00 p.m.

PLACE: University of North Florida, Building 6, Room 1225, (Physical Facilities) Training Room, 4567 St. Johns Bluff Road, South, Jacksonville, Florida 32224

DEPOSIT: N/A

REFUND: N/A

PURCHASE: Full sets of Bidding Documents may be examined at the local plan rooms. Full sets may be purchased through:

FLORIDA BLURPRINTING SERVICE INC. (904)388-7686

PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES: As required by Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, a contractor may not submit a bid for project if it is on the convicted vendor list for a public entity crime committed within the past 36 months. The successful contractor must warrant that it will neither utilize the services of, nor contract with any supplier, subcontractor, or consultant in excess of \$15,000.00 in connection with this project for a period of 36 months from the date of their being placed on the convicted vendor list.

CALL FOR BIDS – ITB 07-03

Made by the University of North Florida Board of Trustees, a public body corporate

PROJECT, NAME, NUMBER AND LOCATION:

ITB 07-03, UNF Reclaim Water Distribution System, University of North Florida, 4567 St. Johns Bluff Road, South Jacksonville, FL 32224

QUALIFICATIONS: All bidders must be qualified at the time of bid opening in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders, Article B-2. Sealed bids will be received on:

DATE AND TIME: August 17, 2006, Until 3:00 p.m.

PLACE: University of North Florida, Purchasing Conference Room, Building Six Room #1301, 4567 St. Johns Bluff Road, South, Jacksonville, Florida 32224 at which time and place they will be publicly opened and read aloud.

PROPOSAL: Bids must be submitted in full and in accordance with the requirements of the drawings and Project Manual which may be obtained or examined at the office of: FLORIDA BLURPRINTING SERVICE, INC. (904)388-7686

ARCHITECT/ENGINEER: TLC Engineering FOR Architecture, 1809 Art Museum Drive, Suite 105, Jacksonville, FL 32207-2566, Telephone (904)306-9111

MINORITY PROGRAM: Bidders are encouraged to utilize Minority Business Enterprises certified by the Commission on Minority Business Economic and Business Development (formerly certificate done by Department of Management Services)

PRE-SOLICITATION/PRE-BID MEETING:

The bidder is required to attend the pre-solicitation/pre-bid meeting. Minority business enterprise firms are invited to attend to become familiar with the project specifications and to become acquainted with contractors interested in bidding the project. The meeting has been scheduled for:

DATE AND TIME: August 9, 2006, 3:00 p.m

PLACE: University of North Florida, Building 6, Room 1225, (Physical Facilities) Training Room, 4567 St. Johns Bluff Road, South, Jacksonville, Florida 32224

DEPOSIT: N/A

REFUND: N/A

PURCHASE: Full sets of Bidding Documents may be examined at the local plan rooms. Full sets may be purchased through:

FLORIDA BLURPRINTING SERVICE INC. (904)388-7686

PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES: As required by Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, a contractor may not submit a bid for project if it is on the convicted vendor list for a public entity crime committed within the past 36 months. The successful contractor must warrant that it will neither utilize the services of, nor contract with any supplier, subcontractor, or consultant in excess of \$15,000.00 in connection with this project for a period of 36 months from the date of their being placed on the convicted vendor list.

NOTICE TO CONSTRUCTION MANAGERS

The University of North Florida, Board of Trustees, a public body corporate, announces that Construction Management Services will be required for the construction of a new Parking Services Building located at the University of North Florida, Jacksonville, Florida.

The new facility will be a one-story brick/concrete masonry cavity wall structure designed to be compatible with the existing campus architecture. The project site is the general area around the existing information booth located at the east

end of UNF Drive. This facility will serve as the first point of contact for all vehicles entering the campus that do not have annual parking passes and for all visitors unfamiliar with the campus. Interior spaces to be provided include administrative offices, customer service lobby, equipment and document storage areas, work rooms and support facilities. The project consists of approximately 2,783 gross square feet and construction documents are being prepared by Ebert Norman Brady Architects. The total estimated construction time is approximately 6 months.

Firms desiring to provide construction management services shall submit a letter of application and a complete "University of North Florida Construction Manager Qualifications Supplement". No submittal material will be returned.

Minority Business participation is encouraged but will not be considered in the scoring process.

As required by Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, a consultant may not submit a proposal for this project if it is on the convicted vendor list for a public entity crime committed within the past 36 months. The selected consultant must warrant that it will neither utilize the services of, nor contract with, any supplier, subcontractor, or consultant in excess of \$15,000.00 in connection with this project for a period of 36 months from the date of their being placed on the convicted vendor list.

UNF Construction Manager Qualifications Supplement forms and additional information may be obtained by contacting:

Dottie Fischetti
 University of North Florida
 4567 St. Johns Bluff Road, South
 Jacksonville, Florida 32224
 (904)620-2016 Fax: (904)620-2020

Submit seven (7) copies of application to: University of North Florida, Facilities Planning Office, Attn: Dottie Fischetti, Portable 832B, 4567 St. Johns Bluff Road, South, Jacksonville, Florida 32224-2648. Application packages must be received no later than 2:00 p.m. (local time), on August 29, 2006. Facsimile (FAX) submittals are not acceptable and will not be considered.

**SHORT LIST RANKING RESULTS FOR:
 CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT AT RISK SERVICES
 FOR CONTINUING CONTRACTS**

The following firms will be invited to participate in oral presentations and interviews on Wednesday, July 26, 2006:

- C. C. Borden Construction, Inc.
- W. G. Mills, Inc.
- Rivers and Rivers, Inc.

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE INTERNAL IMPROVEMENT TRUST FUND

Notices for the Board of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund between December 28, 2001 and June 30, 2006, go to <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/> under the link or button titled "Official Notices."

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Notices for the Department of Environmental Protection between December 28, 2001 and June 30, 2006, go to <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/> under the link or button titled "Official Notices."

CITY OF APALACHICOLA

ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS

Sealed bids will be received by the City of Apalachicola, 1 Bay Avenue, Apalachicola FL 32320 until two o'clock p.m. (2:00 p.m.) local time, August 22, 2006 at which time and place all bids will be publicly opened and read aloud, for the construction of:

FRANKLIN SQUARE PARK IMPROVEMENTS

According to drawings and specifications covering the work. Any bids received after closing time will be returned unopened.

A pre-bid meeting will be held on August 8, 2006 at 2:00 p.m. local time, at the offices of the City of Apalachicola, 1 Bay Avenue, Apalachicola, FL 32320.

Plans and specifications may be secured upon payment of \$50.00 per set from the Engineer, Baskerville-Donovan, Inc., 449 West Main Street, Pensacola, FL 32502, or from the City of Apalachicola, 1 Bay Avenue, Apalachicola FL 32320.

Each bid shall be submitted on the form supplied by the Engineer. Each bid must be accompanied by certified check or Bid Bond in the amount of five percent (5%) of the base bid as guarantee that the bidder, if awarded the contract will, within ten (10) consecutive calendar days after written notice being given of such award, enter into a written contract with the owner in accordance with the accepted bid, and give a one hundred percent (100%) performance bond and one hundred percent (100%) labor and material payment bond satisfactory to the owner. No bids will be withdrawn after the scheduled closing time for receipt of bids for a period of ninety (90) days. The owner reserves the right to waive formalities in bidding and reject any and all bids.

For the City of Apalachicola
 City Commission
 Betty Webb
 Administrator

ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS

Sealed bids will be received by the City of Apalachicola, 1 Bay Avenue, Apalachicola FL 32320 until two o'clock (2:00 p.m.) local time, August 22, 2006 at which time and place all bids will be publicly opened and read aloud, for the construction of four separate projects:

- REPAIRS TO BATTERY PARK PIERS
- REPAIRS TO ANDRIS PIER
- REPAIRS TO LAFAYETTE PARK PIER
- REPAIRS TO AVENUE C PIER

According to drawings and specifications covering the work. Any bids received after closing time will be returned unopened.

A pre-bid meeting will be held on August 8, 2006 at 2:00 p.m. local time, at the offices of the City of Apalachicola, 1 Bay Avenue, Apalachicola, FL 32320.

Plans and specifications may be secured upon payment of \$50.00 per set from the Engineer, Baskerville-Donovan, Inc., 449 West Main Street, Pensacola, FL 32502, or from the City of Apalachicola, 1 Bay Avenue, Apalachicola FL 32320.

Each bid shall be submitted on the form supplied by the Engineer. Each bid must be accompanied by certified check or Bid Bond in the amount of five percent (5%) of the base bid as guarantee that the bidder, if awarded the contract will, within ten (10) consecutive calendar days after written notice being given of such award, enter into a written contract with the owner in accordance with the accepted bid, and give a one hundred percent (100%) performance bond and one hundred percent (100%) labor and material payment bond satisfactory to the owner. No bids will be withdrawn after the scheduled closing time for receipt of bids for a period of ninety (90) days. The owner reserves the right to waive formalities in bidding and reject any and all bids.

For the City of Apalachicola
 City Commission
 Betty Webb
 Administrator

FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION

BID ANNOUNCEMENT

BID NUMBER: 06-14-0821
BID TITLE: PURSUIT, ADMINISTRATIVE
 NON-PURSUIT,
 UTILITY VEHICLES, TRUCKS,
 VANS, AND OTHER FLEET
 EQUIPMENT

ADVERTISEMENT DATES: JULY 21, 2006 AND JULY 28, 2006
PRE-BID CONFERENCE: AUGUST 2, 2006, 10:00 A.M.
PRE-BID CONFERENCE TO BE HELD AT:

MARION COUNTY SHERIFF'S
OFFICE
CONFERENCE ROOM
692 N. W. 30TH AVENUE
OCALA, FL 34475-5608

REPLIES DUE: AUGUST 21, 2006, at 12:00 NOON
BID OPENING TO BE HELD AT:

FLORIDA SHERIFFS
ASSOCIATION
COOPERATIVE BID
COORDINATOR'S OFFICE
2617 MAHAN DR. (32308)
P. O. BOX 12519
TALLAHASSEE, FL 32317-2519

BIDS MUST BE SUBMITTED ELECTRONICALLY THROUGH THE FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION'S VEHICLE BID AWARD SYSTEM. SOLICITATION DOCUMENTS AND SPECIFICATIONS CAN BE ACCESSED THROUGH WWW.FLSHERIFFS.ORG. VENDORS WHO WISH TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS INVITATION TO BID MUST CONTACT: LYNN MEEK FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION, AT LMEEK@FLSHERIFFS.ORG OR (850)877-2165.

BID ANNOUNCEMENTS

BID NUMBER: 06-07-0822
BID TITLE: FIRE/RESCUE VEHICLES
AND OTHER FLEET EQUIPMENT
ADVERTISEMENT: JULY 21, 2006 AND JULY 28, 2006
PRE-BID
CONFERENCE: AUGUST 3, 2006, at 10:00 A.M.
PRE-BID CONFERENCE TO BE HELD AT:
MARION COUNTY SHERIFF'S
OFFICE
CONFERENCE ROOM
692 N. W. 30TH AVENUE
OCALA, FL 34475-5608

BID OPENING DATE: AUGUST 22, 2006, AT 8:00 A.M.
BID OPENING TO BE HELD AT:

FLORIDA SHERIFFS
ASSOCIATION
COOPERATIVE BID
COORDINATOR'S OFFICE
2617 MAHAN DR. (32308)
P. O. BOX 12519
TALLAHASSEE, FL 32317-2519

BIDS MUST BE CONTAINED IN A SEALED ENVELOPE ADDRESSED TO THE FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION. INDICATE ON THE OUTSIDE OF THE ENVELOPE THE BID NUMBER, TITLE, OPENING DATE AND TIME. ALL VENDORS THAT ARE NOT

ATTENDING THE OPENING WILL BE REQUIRED TO HAVE THEIR BIDS TO FSA BY 5:00 P.M., ON MONDAY, AUGUST 21, 2006. VENDORS WHO WILL BE BRINGING THEIR BIDS MUST HAVE THEM SIGNED IN BY 8:00 A.M., ON TUESDAY, AUGUST 22, 2006. THE FSA OFFICE WILL OPEN AT 7:00 A.M. ALL PARTICIPATING VENDORS ARE INVITED AND ENCOURAGED TO ATTEND THE BID OPENING.

ALL QUESTIONS PERTAINING TO THIS BID SHOULD BE DIRECTED TO: LYNN MEEK OR PEGGY GOFF WITH THE FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION, (850)877-2165.

MANATEE COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR

INVITATION TO BID

The Manatee County Tax Collector seeks interested companies to bid on the following sections of their forms package and related items for mailing:

Sections One, Two, Three and Four: You must be able to: produce multi-color forms and laser print from database tables (DBF) to be provided via FTP (preferable) or CD media; process forms with NCOA software; produce an OCR scan line and postal bar code; merge multiples, sort, do insertions and mail; provide reply and outgoing envelopes; and print a tax insert in multi-color. Initial mailing on or about October 31st, with subsequent mailings on November 30th, February 28th, April 15th, May 31st, and August 31st. Approximately 200,000 completed units. 2 week turn-around is required.

Request Bid Package by August 8, 2006. For complete specifications, call (941)741-4864, or write to: Ken Burton, Jr., Manatee County Tax Collector, Attn.: Quality Assurance Dept., P. O. Box 25300, Bradenton, Florida 34206-5300.

VISIT FLORIDA

REQUEST FOR Qualifications (RFQ)

Airport Surveying
July 17, 2006
Vicki Allen
Research Manager

VISIT FLORIDA

Services required by VISIT FLORIDA from Vendors responding to this Request for Qualifications

July 17, 2006

Sections of RFQ:

- Goals
- Background
- Procedure and timing
- Outline of goods and services provided
- Specific questions for vendors Goals:

The goal of this project is to collect data according to pre-defined statistical sampling criteria, using professional interviewers conducting face-to-face interviews at Florida's 14 largest airports in order to enable an accurate representation of the ratio of domestic visitors to residents in the total enplanements from the state.

Background:

VISIT FLORIDA is the state's official source for travel planning. VISIT FLORIDA is a public/private partnership responsible for the marketing of tourism to and within Florida. VISIT FLORIDA is not a government agency.

To obtain the ratio of domestic visitors to residents flying out of the 14 largest airports in the state hires a vendor to conduct surveys at fourteen of the state's largest airports.

Within this RFQ is the procedure outlined for conducting the data collection.

Procedure and Timing:

- RFQ distributed on July 17, 2006.
- Send your qualifications and intent to received RFP and all questions in writing to Vicki Allen, Research Manager (vallen@visitflorida.org, VISIT FLORIDA, 661 East Jefferson Street, Suite 300, Tallahassee, FL 32301) no later than 12:00 p.m. (Noon) EST on July 27, 2007.
- VISIT FLORIDA will send out the RFP to all qualified vendors who respond July 31, 2007.
- Survey schedule and interviewing begins January 2007.

Duties of the Contractor

Permission to Interview

Contractor will secure permission from appropriate airport authorities for interviewing in the targeted airports on the survey dates randomly selected by VISIT FLORIDA. Should Contractor need support in gaining permission for any airport for any reason, contractor will request VISIT FLORIDA support on an as needed basis. Please note that VISIT FLORIDA has had a vendor under contract for these interviews at the same airports for the past eight years so that should ease the permission process. In cases where an airport authority might require a fee for background checks, class instruction, parking, etc., these are the responsibilities of the vendor and should be considered in the development of the overall bid, but cannot be billed separately to VISIT FLORIDA.

Airport Intelligence

It is of vital importance to the methodology that VISIT FLORIDA have complete and accurate "intelligence" related to airport departure schedules. Such information on an on-going basis is crucial to the determination of airline departure periods and defining appropriate day parts for interviewing.

Contractor will assist VISIT FLORIDA in its intelligence efforts by providing on-going "soft intelligence" on such things as airport expansions, airline additions/deletions, flight additions and deletions, airport construction, concourse changes, security requirements and any other information that might affect the reliability or validity of estimates made of visitors.

Data Collection

Trained interviewers will survey each "Ith" person passing through security. Generally, a survey team of three or more people will station themselves at locations defined in the pilot studies on the departure side of a gated security area at least 15 minutes prior to the beginning of the selected day part. At the designated starting time one member of the team will serve as "counter," counting the people passing through the gates and identifying each "Ith" person to an interviewer according to a designated sampling interval. Other members of the team will alternately approach the designated "Ith" person and administer the survey form.

In airports that have more than one security area, data collection time during any given day part will be divided among the various security areas as stated in the Monthly Sampling Plan provided by VISIT FLORIDA. For airports at which transitions must be made from sampling location to sampling location the entire field team will make the transition during the exact times specified in the Monthly Sampling Plan. At each sampling location, counters will use a counting mechanism to keep track of the volume of persons passing through each gate in a security area. Each time the "Ith" count is achieved one click on the counting mechanism will be made. The total number of persons passing through the security area can then be determined for each day part by multiplying the number on the counting machine by the interval being used and adding to this number the number of people short of achieving the final "I" that are counted. At the end of the interviewing period this figure will be recorded on the top of the survey form under the title "Final Count."

Only those persons passing through the security areas who are obviously airport or airline personnel will be excluded from the count. All other persons will be counted. In the event the "Ith" person is a child, the adult traveling with the child will be surveyed. No other substitutions will be permitted. In the event that the same passerby is identified for interception, the person will be counted twice but only approached once.

In the event that the "Ith" passerby selected for interception refuses to be interviewed or cannot be intercepted, the next "Ith" passerby will be selected for interception. In the sample table below, where an airport appears with a digit after it, like Miami 1 and Miami 2, the airport is so large, that the security clearance areas for interviewing are divided into distinct pods.

TABLE 1
 DAY PART OVERVIEW
 Airport
 Dept
 Period
 Day
 Parts
 Security
 Areas
 Team
 Size
 Ith
 intercept
 RSW 0745-2030 0645-1330 A,B 3 10
 1330-2030 A,B 3 10
 TPA 1 0600-2200 0500-1040 A,E 6 10
 1040-1620 A,E 6 10
 1620-2200 A,E 6 10
 TPA 2 0600-2200 0500-1040 D,F 6 10
 1040-1620 D,F 6 10
 1620-2200 D,F 6 10
 JAX 0600-2200 0500-1100 A,B,C 4 5
 1100-1700 A,B,C 4 5
 1700-2200 A,B,C 4 5
 MLB 0600-2030 0500-1100 A 3 3
 1100-1500 A 3 3
 1930-2030 A 3 3
 MCO 0600-2200 0500-1100 A,B,C,D 9 10
 1100-1700 A,B,C,D 9 10
 1700-2200 A,B,C,D 9 10
 SRQ 0600-2045 0500-1015 B 3 5
 1015-1530 B 3 5
 1530-2045 B 3 5
 PNS 0630-1800 0530-1145 A 4 5
 1145-1800 A 4 5
 PFN 0600-2000 0500-1230 A 2 5
 1230-2000 A 2 5
 TLH 0630-1930 0530-1230 A 4 10
 1230-1930 A 4 10
 MIA 1 0630-2400 0530-1130 A,B,C 6 10
 1130-1730 A,B,C 6 10
 1730-2400 A,B,C 6 10
 MIA 2 0630-2400 0530-1130 E,ES,D 7 10
 1130-1730 E,ES,D 7 10
 1730-2400 E,ES,D 7 10
 MIA 3 0630-2400 0530-1130 F,G,H 6 10
 1130-1730 F,G,H 6 10
 1730-2400 F,G,H 6 10
 FLL 0630-2130 0530-1100 B,C,D,F,E,H 4 10
 1100-1630 B,C,D,F,E,H 4 10

1630-2130 B,C,D,F,E,H 4 10
 PBI 0600-2045 0500-1015 A/B,C 5 10
 1015-1530 A/B,C 5 10
 1530-2045 A/B,C 5 10
 DAB 0545-2125 0445-0715 A 3 5
 0920-1550 A 3 5
 1810-2125 A 3 5
 In 2007 VISIT FLORIDA will be adding surveying at Okaloosa Regional Airport requiring a team size of two to four people.
 Contractor will also be responsible for:
 1. Design and reproduction of survey forms.
 2. Training, supervision and staffing of field personnel.
 3. Data entry and verification.
 Staff Recruitment
 Contractor will, where necessary, recruit additional personnel to satisfactorily cover all geographical interviewing locations. Similarly, contractor will reduce staff coverage during off-season periods when airport activity is lighter than usual.
 Staff Training
 Contractor guarantees that all interviewers will be adequately trained prior to the initiation of fieldwork. Contractor is responsible for all training needs of its staff. Interviewers are representing VISIT FLORIDA and must be professional in appearance. Note: Due to tighter security after 9/11 vendor must be prepared to have background checks performed on all employees to interview within the airports.
 Quality Control
 Contractor will establish quality control in two ways: field observation and ongoing interviewer evaluations. Please note that VISIT FLORIDA staff will occasionally monitor the performance of the interviewers, unannounced.
 Data Compilation and Reports
 Contractor will sum the data over day parts and prepare a Monthly Summary report for each airport. The Monthly Summary will include for each airline within each airport:
 1. The total number of boarding passengers not flying out of Florida.
 2. The total number of boarding passengers flying out of Florida.
 3. The total number of domestic visitors.
 4. The proportion of domestic visitors
 Consistent with previous VISIT FLORIDA requests, for the purpose of compilation, visitors from Puerto Rico and the U.S. Virgin Islands will be considered domestic visitors.
 An example of the format of each report is presented below.
 AIRPORT MONTHLY SUMMARY
 TAMPA
 JANUARY 2003
 Airline # Not Fly Out # Fly Out # Domestic Ratio Visitors

Contractor shall transmit the data to VISIT FLORIDA in an Excel spreadsheet and hard copy format for reporting purposes. Monthly Summary reports will be delivered to VISIT FLORIDA within 10 working days following each month of data collection.

Specific Questions for Potential Vendors:

Vendors responding to this RFQ must answer the following questions:

General

1. Indicate the company's specific expertise in this type of work.
 2. Indicate the number of years the company has been in business.
 3. Indicate the number of years and nature of the company's experience in surveying.
 4. Describe the expertise of the personnel to be utilized for each aspect of this project. Provide the following:
 - a. Number of full-time equivalents assigned to this project
 - b. Bio/resume of account executive responsible for this contract
 - c. Number of years of experience on related projects for each team member
 5. Indicate which services provided by the vendor are outsourced to subcontractors.
- If subcontractors are to be used, indicate your process for information flow and subcontractor management. For each identified subcontractor, provide answers to questions 2-5.
6. Indicate if the vendor is part of an academic institution, part of a government agency, or a certified Florida minority business.
 7. Indicate the procedures that you go through to check the background of potential interviewers.

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of Xtreme Powersports, Inc., d/b/a Xtreme Polaris Victory, are dealer operator(s): Hans Klockes, 10204 Elbow Bend, Riverview, Florida, 33569; and Randy Young, 933 Bunker View Drive, Apollo Beach, Florida 33572; principal investor(s): Hans Klockes, 10204 Elbow Bend, Riverview, Florida, 33569; and Randy Young, 933 Bunker View Drive, Apollo Beach, Florida 33572.

The notice indicates intent to relocate the franchise in a county of more than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, as amended by Chapter 88-395, Laws of Florida, to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Dealer License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312 MS65, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by U.S. Mail to: Michael W. Malone, VP Finance, CFO, Polaris Sales, Inc., 2100 Highway 55, Medina, Minnesota 55340-9800.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving the relocation of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

Section XII Miscellaneous

DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAY SAFETY AND MOTOR VEHICLES

Notice of Publication for the Relocation of a Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of More than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, notice is given that Polaris Sales, Inc., intends to allow the relocation of Xtreme Powersports, Inc., d/b/a Xtreme Polaris Victory, as a dealership for the sale of Victory motorcycles from its present location at 502 East Park Road, Plant City, Florida 33563, to a proposed location at 1019 U.S. Highway 30, South, South Tampa (Hillsborough County), Florida 33619, on or after July 12, 2006.

Notice of Publication for the Relocation of a Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of More than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, notice is given that DaimlerChrysler Motors Company, LLC, intends to allow the relocation of the Chrysler dealership presently owned by Ferman Jeep, Inc., d/b/a Ferman Jeep Chrysler, as a dealership for the sale of Chrysler vehicles, from its present location at 1307 West Kennedy Boulevard, Tampa, Florida 33606, to a proposed location at 2966 North Dale Mabry, Tampa (Hillsborough County), Florida 33607, which is to be owned, subsequent to a change of ownership, by Jerry Ulm Dodge, Inc., d/b/a Jerry Ulm Dodge, on or after September 1, 2006.

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of Jerry Ulm Dodge, Inc., d/b/a Jerry Ulm Dodge, are dealer operator(s): Gerald Ulm, Jr., 2966 North Mabry Highway, Tampa, Florida 33607; principal investor(s): Carolyn J. Ulm, 4315 Cleveland Street, Tampa, Florida 33609;

Gerald Ulm, Jr., 4313 Cleveland Street, Tampa, Florida 33609; and the Gerald H. Ulm Family Trust, 2966 North Dale Mabry Highway, Tampa, Florida 33607, of which Gerald Ulm, Jr. and Carolyn J. Ulm are co-trustees. Gerald Ulm, Jr. and Carolyn J. Ulm, also are principal investors by virtue of their status as beneficiaries of the Gerald H. Ulm Family Trust.

The notice indicates intent to relocate the franchise in a county of more than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, as amended by Chapter 88-395, Laws of Florida, to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Dealer License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312, MS65, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by U.S. Mail to: Gordy Nevers, Dealer Network Development Manager, DaimlerChrysler Motors Company, Inc., Southeast Business Center, 10300 Boggy Creek Road, CIMS 200-01-20, Orlando, Florida 32824.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving the relocation of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

Notice of Publication for the Relocation of a
Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of More
than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, notice is given that DaimlerChrysler Motors Company, LLC, intends to allow the relocation of the Jeep dealership presently owned by Ferman Jeep, Inc., d/b/a Ferman Jeep Chrysler, as a dealership for the sale of Jeep vehicles from its present location at 1307 West Kennedy Boulevard, Tampa, Florida 33606, to a proposed location at 2966 North Dale Mabry, Tampa (Hillsborough County), Florida 33607, which is to be owned, subsequent to a change of ownership, by Jerry Ulm Dodge, Inc., d/b/a Jerry Ulm Dodge, on or after September 1, 2006.

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of Jerry Ulm Dodge, Inc., d/b/a Jerry Ulm Dodge, are dealer operator(s): Gerald Ulm, Jr., 2966 North Mabry Highway, Tampa, Florida, 33607; principal investor(s): Carolyn J. Ulm, 4315 Cleveland Street, Tampa, Florida, 33609; Gerald Ulm, Jr., 4313 Cleveland Street, Tampa, Florida 33609; and the Gerald H. Ulm Family Trust, 2966 North Dale Mabry

Highway, Tampa, Florida 33607, of which Gerald Ulm, Jr. and Carolyn J. Ulm are co-trustees. Gerald Ulm, Jr. and Carolyn J. Ulm, also are principal investors by virtue of their status as beneficiaries of the Gerald H. Ulm Family Trust.

The notice indicates intent to relocate the franchise in a county of more than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, as amended by Chapter 88-395, Laws of Florida, to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Dealer License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312, MS65, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by U.S. Mail to: Gordy Nevers, Dealer Network Development Manager, DaimlerChrysler Motors Company, Inc., Southeast Business Center, 10300 Boggy Creek Road, CIMS 200-01-20, Orlando, Florida 32824.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving the relocation of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

Notice of Publication for a New Point
Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of More
than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes (2005), United Motors of America intends to allow the establishment of Andrew J. Biggar, d/b/a Orange City Cycle, as a dealership for the sale of Hyosung motorcycles at 2305 South Volusia Avenue, Orange City (Volusia County), Florida 32763, on or after July 11, 2006.

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of Andrew J. Biggar, d/b/a Orange City Cycle, are dealer operator(s): Andrew J. Biggar, 2211 Gamewell Court, Deltona, Florida 32725; principal investor(s): Andrew J. Biggar, 2211 Gamewell Court, Deltona, Florida 32725.

The notice indicates intent to establish the new point location in a county of more than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Dealer License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312, MS65, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by U.S. Mail to: Melissa Bell, Sales Support, United Motors of America, 8801 Northwest 23rd Street, Miami, Florida 33172.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving the establishment of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

Notice of Publication for a New Point

Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of Less than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes (2005), notice is given that Mod Cycles Corporation intends to allow the establishment of RPM Motorcycles, Inc., as a dealership for the sale of motorcycles (ZHEJ) manufactured by Zhejiang Taizhou Wangye Power Co., Ltd., and motorcycles (ZONG) manufactured by Zongshen Industrial Group, at 518 Southeast 2nd Street, Gainesville (Alachua County), Florida 32601, on or after July 14, 2006.

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of RPM Motorcycles, Inc., are dealer operator(s): Mark Kradofer, 518 Southeast 2nd Street, Gainesville, Florida 32601; principal investor(s): Mark Kradofer, 518 Southeast 2nd Street, Gainesville, Florida 32601.

The notice indicates intent to establish the new point location in a county of less than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, as amended by Chapter 88-395, Laws of Florida, to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Dealer License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312, MS 65, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by U.S. Mail to: Patricia Torres, Mod Cycles Corporation, 7547 Northwest 52nd Street, Miami, Florida 33166.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving the establishment of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

Notice of Publication for a New Point
Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of More than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes (2005), Mod Cycles Corporation intends to allow the establishment of Vento Motorcycles Broward, Inc., as a dealership for the sale of motorcycles (ZHEJ) manufactured by Zhejiang Taizhou Wangye Power Co., Ltd., and motorcycles (ZONG) manufactured by Zongshen Industrial Group, at 2123 North State Road 7, Hollywood (Broward County), Florida 33021, on or after July 14, 2006.

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of Vento Motorcycles Broward, Inc., are dealer operator(s): Paul Steward, 2123 North State Road 7, Hollywood, Florida 33021; principal investor(s): Paul Steward, 2123 North State Road 7, Hollywood, Florida 33021.

The notice indicates intent to establish the new point location in a county of more than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Dealer License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312, MS65, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by U.S. Mail to: Patricia Torres, Mod Cycles Corporation, 7547 Northwest 52nd Street, Miami, Florida 33166.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving the establishment of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

Notice of Publication for a New Point
Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of More
than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes (2005), United Motors of America intends to allow the establishment of Big Dog Marine Service Center as a dealership for the sale of Hyosung motorcycles at 7653 Blanding Boulevard, Jacksonville (Duval County), Florida 32244, on or after July 6, 2006.

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of Big Dog Marine Service Center are dealer operator(s): Gary Mudge, 2469 Cypress Springs Road, Orange Park, Florida 32073; principal investor(s): Gary Mudge, 2469 Cypress Springs Road, Orange Park, Florida 32073.

The notice indicates intent to establish the new point location in a county of more than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Dealer License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312, MS65, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by U.S. Mail to: Melissa Bell, Sales Support, United Motors of America, 8801 Northwest 23rd Street, Miami, Florida 33172.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving the establishment of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

Notice of Publication for a New Point
Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of More
than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes (2005), Mod Cycles Corporation intends to allow the establishment of West Coast Cycles, Inc., as a dealership for the sale of motorcycles (ZHEJ) manufactured by Zhejiang Taizhou Wangye Power Co., Ltd. and motorcycles (ZONG) manufactured by Zongshen Industrial Group, at 4511 Causeway Boulevard, Tampa (Hillsborough County), Florida 33619, on or after July 14, 2006.

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of West Coast Cycles, Inc., are dealer operator(s): William Ford, 4511 Causeway Boulevard, Tampa, Florida 33619; principal investor(s): William Ford, 4511 Causeway Boulevard, Tampa, Florida 33619.

The notice indicates intent to establish the new point location in a county of more than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Dealer License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312, MS65, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by U.S. Mail to: Patricia Torres, Mod Cycles Corporation, 7547 Northwest 52nd Street, Miami, Florida 33166.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving the establishment of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

Notice of Publication for a New Point
Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of More
than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes (2005), United Motors of America intends to allow the establishment of Grandpa's Cycle Center, Inc., as a dealership for the sale of Hyosung motorcycles at 3596 Fowler Street, Ft. Myers (Lee County), Florida 33901, on or after July 6, 2006.

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of Grandpa's Cycle Center, Inc., are dealer operator(s): Marion Stewart, 3955 Edgewood Avenue, Ft. Myers, Florida 33916; principal investor(s): Marion Stewart, 3955 Edgewood Avenue, Fort Myers, Florida 33916.

The notice indicates intent to establish the new point location in a county of more than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Dealer License Section, Department of Highway

Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312, MS65, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by U.S. Mail to: Melissa Bell, Sales Support, United Motors of America, 8801 Northwest 23rd Street, Miami, Florida 33172.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving the establishment of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

Notice of Publication for a New Point

Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of More than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes (2005), Mod Cycles Corporation intends to allow the establishment of James Sursely, d/b/a Action Orlando Motorsport, as a dealership for the sale of motorcycles (ZHEJ) manufactured by Zhejiang Taizhou Wangye Power Co., Ltd., and motorcycles (ZONG) manufactured by Zongshen Industrial Group, at 306 West Main Street, Apopka (Orange County), Florida 32712, on or after July 14, 2006.

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of James Sursely, d/b/a Action Orlando Motorsport, are dealer operator(s): Dax Sursely, 306 West Main Street, Apopka, Florida 32712; principal investor(s): Dax Sursely, 306 West Main Street, Apopka, Florida 32712.

The notice indicates intent to establish the new point location in a county of more than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Dealer License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312, MS65, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by U.S. Mail to: Patricia Torres, Mod Cycles Corporation, 7547 Northwest 52nd Street, Miami, Florida 32712.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving

the establishment of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

Notice of Publication for a New Point

Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of More than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes (2005), Cobra Scooters, LLC, intends to allow the establishment of Scooter Escapes, LLC, as a dealership for the sale of Taiwan Golden Bee (TGB) motorcycles at 1450 First Avenue, North, St. Petersburg (Pinellas County), Florida 33705, on or after July 7, 2006.

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of Scooter Escapes, LLC, are dealer operator(s): Chris Densmore, 1450 First Avenue North, St. Petersburg, Florida 33705; principal investor(s): Chris Densmore, 1450 First Avenue North, St. Petersburg, Florida 33705.

The notice indicates intent to establish the new point location in a county of more than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Dealer License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312, MS65, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by U.S. Mail to: Robert P. Bates, Vice President of Operations, Cobra Scooters, LLC, 3939 Royal Drive Northwest, Suite 139, Kennesaw, Georgia 30144.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving the establishment of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

Notice of Publication for a New Point

Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of More than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes (2005), United Motors of America intends to allow the establishment of Ray's Sunshine Cycles, Inc., as a dealership for the sale of

Hyosung motorcycles at 3616 U.S. Highway 92, East, Lakeland (Polk County), Florida 33801, on or after July 17, 2006.

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of Ray's Sunshine Cycles, Inc., are dealer operator(s): Raymond Gonzales, 1437 Morganwood Drive, Lakeland, Florida 33801; principal investor(s): Raymond Gonzales, 1437 Morganwood Drive, Lakeland, Florida 33801.

The notice indicates intent to establish the new point location in a county of more than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Dealer License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312, MS65, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by U.S. Mail to: Melissa Bell, Sales Support, United Motors of America, 8801 Northwest 23rd Street, Miami, Florida 33172.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving the establishment of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

Notice of Publication for a New Point

Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of More than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes (2005), Piaggio Group Americas, Inc. ("Piaggio"), intends to allow the establishment of Cycle Image, Inc., d/b/a Cycle Image of Daytona, as a dealership for the sale of Piaggio and Vespa motorcycles at 1459 North U.S. Highway 1, Ormond Beach (Volusia County), Florida 32174, on or after July 1, 2006.

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of Cycle Image, Inc., d/b/a Cycle Image of Daytona, are dealer operator(s): Jim Albano, 1459 North U.S. Highway 1, Ormond Beach, Florida 32174; principal investor(s): Tom Albano, 1459 North U.S. Highway 1, Ormond Beach, Florida 32174; Jim Albano, 1459 North U.S. Highway 1, Ormond Beach, Florida 32174; and Craig Bukles, 1459 North U.S. Highway 1, Ormond Beach, Florida 32174.

The notice indicates intent to establish the new point location in a county of more than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Dealer License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312, MS65, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by U.S. Mail to: Angellina Fraser-Lubin, Paralegal/Assistant Administrator, Piaggio Group Americas, Inc., 140 East 45th Street, 17th Floor, New York, New York 10017.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving the establishment of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

Notice of Publication for a New Point

Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of More than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes (2005), NP Motorsports, Inc., intends to allow the establishment of FlaCycles, Inc., as a dealership for the sale of Jialing and Qingqi motorcycles at 6022 Tamiami Trail, Sarasota (Sarasota County), Florida 34231, on or after July 1, 2006.

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of FlaCycles, Inc., are dealer operator(s): Bruce Friedlander, 6022 Tamiami Trail, Sarasota, Florida 34231; principal investor(s): Bruce Friedlander, 6022 Tamiami Trail, Sarasota, Florida 34231.

The notice indicates intent to establish the new point location in a county of more than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Dealer License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312, MS65, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by U.S. Mail to: Sigfrido A. Della Valle, President, NP Motorsports, 2520 Vulcan Road, Apopka, Florida 32703.

Office, Building 1, Room 220, MS 28, 2727 Mahan Drive, Tallahassee, Florida, 32308, on or before 5:00 p.m., August 14, 2006.

Any person who identifies any error in the fixed need pool numbers must advise the agency of the error within ten (10) days of publication of the number. If the agency concurs with the error, the fixed need pool number will be adjusted and republished in the first available edition of the Florida Administrative Weekly. Failure to notify the agency of the error during this ten day time period will result in no adjustment to the fixed need pool number for this cycle and a waiver of the person's right to raise the error at subsequent proceedings. Any other adjustments will be made in the first cycle subsequent to identification of the error including those errors identified through administrative hearings or final judicial review.

Any person whose substantial interest is affected by this action and who timely advised the agency of any error in the action has a right to request an administrative hearing pursuant to Section 120.57, Florida Statutes. In order to request a proceeding under Section 120.57, Florida Statutes, your request for an administrative hearing must state with specificity which issues of material fact or law are in dispute. All requests for hearings shall be made to the Agency for Health Care Administration and must be filed with the Agency Clerk at 2727 Mahan Drive, Building 3, Suite 3431, Tallahassee, Florida 32308. All requests for hearings must be filed with the agency clerk within 21 days of this publication or the right to a hearing is waived.

Psychiatric and Substance Abuse Net Bed Need

	Adult Psychiatric Beds Net Adjusted Bed Need	Children & Adolescent Psychiatric Beds Net Adjusted Bed Need	Adult Substance Abuse Beds Net Adjusted Bed Need
District 1	0	0	0
District 2	0	0	0
District 3	0	0	4
District 4	0	0	0
District 5	0	0	0
District 6	0	0	0
District 7	0	0	0
District 8	0	0	0
District 9	0	0	0
District 10	0	0	0
District 11	0	0	0
Total Statewide	0	0	4

NOTICE OF HOSPITAL FIXED NEED POOLS FOR COMPREHENSIVE MEDICAL REHABILITATION BEDS

The Agency for Health Care Administration has projected a fixed bed need pool for comprehensive medical rehabilitation hospital beds for January 2012, pursuant to the provisions of Rules 59C-1.008, and 59C-1.039, F.A.C. Net bed need projections for comprehensive medical rehabilitation hospital beds have been adjusted according to occupancy rate thresholds as prescribed by the above-mentioned rules. Letters of intent to apply for Certificates of Need pursuant to this notice must be filed with the Certificate of Need Program Office, Building 1, Room 220, MS 28, 2727 Mahan Drive, Tallahassee, Florida 32308, on or before 5:00 p.m., August 14, 2006.

Any person who identifies any error in the fixed need pool numbers must advise the agency of the error within ten (10) days of publication of the number. If the agency concurs with the error, the fixed need pool number will be adjusted and republished in the first available edition of the Florida Administrative Weekly. Failure to notify the agency of the error during this ten day time period will result in no adjustment to the fixed need pool number for this cycle and a waiver of the person's right to raise the error at subsequent proceedings. Any other adjustments will be made in the first cycle subsequent to identification of the error including those errors identified through administrative hearings or final judicial review.

Any person whose substantial interest is affected by this action and who timely advised the agency of any error in the action has a right to request an administrative hearing pursuant to Section 120.57, Florida Statutes. In order to request a proceeding under Section 120.57, Florida Statutes, your request for an administrative hearing must state with specificity which issues of material fact or law are in dispute. All requests for hearings shall be made to the Agency for Health Care Administration and must be filed with the Agency Clerk at 2727 Mahan Drive, Building 3, Suite 3431, Tallahassee, Florida 32308. All requests for hearings must be filed with the agency clerk within 21 days of this publication or the right to a hearing is waived.

Comprehensive Medical Rehabilitation Bed Need

	Net Adjusted Bed Need
District 1	0
District 2	0
District 3	0
District 4	0
District 5	0
District 6	0
District 7	0
District 8	0

District 9	0
District 10	0
District 11	0
Total Statewide	0

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Notices for the Department of Environmental Protection between December 28, 2001 and June 30, 2006, go to <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/> under the link or button titled "Official Notices."

DEPARTMENT OF JUVENILE JUSTICE

The Florida Department of Juvenile Justice has posted a revised draft of a policy for review and comment on MyFlorida.com at: http://www.djj.state.fl.us/policies_procedures/policyreview.html (note new Website location).

Quality Assurance "Conditional" Status (department-wide policy type B) – establishes that any Department of Juvenile Justice (DJJ) program, contracted or operated by the Department and governed by quality assurance standards, that may meet at least minimum levels of performance overall, however, fails to meet the minimum levels of performance of any tier one standard in the Quality Assurance process will be placed on "conditional" status. "Conditional" status shall trigger corrective action plans, intensive monitoring, and technical assistance until the standard's performance is improved.

This policy is posted for a single 20 working day review and comment period, with the closure date for submission of comments on this policy of August 24, 2006. Responses to comments received will be posted during the review period to the extent possible, but no later than 10 working days after the end of the review period on the above Website.

The Florida Department of Juvenile Justice has posted a revision to Chapter 8 of the proposed Detention Services Manual for review and comment at: http://www.djj.state.fl.us/policies_procedures/manualreview.html (note this is a new web page).

The second draft of the Detention Services Manual has already completed the review and comment period on June 29, 2006, and no further comments will be accepted regarding the other chapters. Comments regarding changes to Chapter 8 must be submitted no later than August 11, 2006, if they are to be considered prior to finalizing the draft manual. Comments should be sent to the person identified on the above Website.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

On July 19, 2006, M. Rony François, M.D., M.S.P.H., Ph.D., Secretary of the Department of Health, issued an Order of Emergency Restriction with regard to the license of David

Gerald Ownby, L.M.H.C. license number MH 6936. This Emergency Suspension Order was predicated upon the Secretary's findings of an immediate and serious danger to the public health, safety and welfare pursuant to Sections 456.073(8) and 120.60(6), Florida Statutes. The Secretary determined that this summary procedure was fair under the circumstances, in that there was no other method available to adequately protect the public.

On July 12, 2006, M. Rony François, M.D., M.S.P.H., Ph.D., Secretary of the Department of Health, issued an Order of Emergency Suspension with regard to the license of Darrell Clark, C.T.R. license number CRT 7831. This Emergency Suspension Order was predicated upon the Secretary's findings of an immediate and serious danger to the public health, safety and welfare pursuant to Sections 456.073(8) and 120.60(6), Florida Statutes. The Secretary determined that this summary procedure was fair under the circumstances, in that there was no other method available to adequately protect the public.

The WIC Program (the Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and Children) is soliciting comments and suggestions about its program and how service delivery can be improved to better meet the clients' needs. WIC is federally funded by the United States Department of Agriculture, and serves low- and moderate-income pregnant, breastfeeding, and postpartum women; infants; and children up to age 5. The program provides a combination of nutritious foods, nutrition education, breastfeeding support, and referrals for health care. WIC is available in all 67 counties in Florida. If you have any comments or suggestions, please direct them to Cheryl Miller, Department of Health, WIC and Nutrition Services, BIN #A-16, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1726 or by fax: (850)922-3936. Your feedback is essential and is appreciated before August 15, 2006. WIC is an equal opportunity provider.

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES

The Department of Children and Family Services has conducted a survey to determine the need for new medication (methadone) treatment service providers, pursuant to Section 397.427, Florida Statutes, and administrative rules adopted thereunder. The specific service to be added is outpatient methadone maintenance treatment. The results of the survey indicate that the need for additional outpatient methadone maintenance treatment has been established in the following Department of Children and Family Services jurisdictional area:

District 9

Prospective applicants for a license to operate outpatient methadone maintenance treatment in District 9 may direct requests for an application to the following:

District 9

Department of Children and Family Services
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Program Office
111 South Sapodilla Avenue
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401

Attention: Cathy Claud, Substance Abuse Service Director
(561)650-6860

Applications for a license will be subject to review by District 9 and rated in accordance with specific criteria established for that purpose.

The closing date for submitting applications to District 9 is Wednesday, October 25, 2006, 5:00 p.m., Eastern Standard Time.

Copies of the assessment may be obtained from:

Department of Children and Family Services
Substance Abuse Program Office
1317 Winewood Boulevard
Building 6, Room 305
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0700
Telephone: (850)413-6708
Attention: Susan B. Sweeney

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES
DIVISION OF TREASURY
BUREAU OF COLLATERAL MANAGEMENT
PUBLIC DEPOSITS SECTION

FOR PUBLIC DEPOSITORS TO RECEIVE THE PROTECTION FROM LOSS PROVIDED IN CHAPTER 280, FLORIDA STATUTES, THEY SHALL COMPLY WITH THE FOLLOWING ON EACH PUBLIC DEPOSIT ACCOUNT IN ADDITION TO ANY OTHER REQUIREMENTS SPECIFIED IN CHAPTER 280: (1) EXECUTE THE PUBLIC DEPOSIT IDENTIFICATION AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT FORM DFS-J1-1295 WITH THE QUALIFIED PUBLIC DEPOSITORY (QPD), MAINTAIN IT AS A VALUABLE RECORD, AND CONFIRM THE ACCOUNT ANNUALLY; (2) EXECUTE A REPLACEMENT FORM DFS-J1-1295 WHEN THERE IS A MERGER, ACQUISITION, NAME CHANGE, OR OTHER EVENT WHICH CHANGES THE ACCOUNT NAME, ACCOUNT NUMBER, OR NAME OF THE QPD.

THE FOLLOWING QPDS ARE AUTHORIZED TO HOLD PUBLIC DEPOSITS. THEY ARE LISTED UNDER THE STATE OF HOME OFFICE LOCATION. INSTITUTIONS MARKED WITH AN ASTERISK HAVE LIMITED THE AMOUNT OF PUBLIC DEPOSITS THEY WILL ADMINISTER AND ARE NOT ACCEPTING NEW PUBLIC

DEPOSIT ACCOUNTS. DEPOSITORIES HAVING A DATE BESIDE THEIR NAME ARE IN THE PROCESS OF WITHDRAWING FROM THE PROGRAM AND SHALL NOT RECEIVE OR RETAIN PUBLIC DEPOSITS AFTER THE DATE SHOWN. THEY MAY, HOWEVER, HAVE CERTAIN OBLIGATIONS TO THE PROGRAM AFTER THAT DATE WITH WHICH THEY MUST COMPLY BEFORE CONCLUDING THE WITHDRAWAL PROCESS.

ALABAMA

ATMORE
UNITED BANK

BIRMINGHAM
AMSOUTH BANK
COMPASS BANK
REGIONS BANK
SUPERIOR BANK

MONTGOMERY
COLONIAL BANK, N.A.

FLORIDA

APALACHICOLA
COASTAL COMMUNITY BANK

ARCADIA
FIRST STATE BANK OF ARCADIA

AVENTURA
TURNBERRY BANK

BARTOW
CITRUS & CHEMICAL BANK
COMMUNITY NATIONAL BANK AT BARTOW

BELLE GLADE
BANK OF BELLE GLADE

BOCA RATON
FIRST SOUTHERN BANK
FIRST UNITED BANK
PARADISE BANK

BONIFAY
BANK OF BONIFAY

BRADENTON

COAST BANK OF FLORIDA
FIRST AMERICA BANK
FLAGSHIP NATIONAL BANK

BRANDON

PLATINUM BANK

BROOKSVILLE

HERNANDO COUNTY BANK

CAPE CORAL

RIVERSIDE BANK OF THE GULF COAST

CARRABELLE

GULF STATE COMMUNITY BANK

CASSELBERRY

R-G CROWN BANK

CHIEFLAND

DRUMMOND COMMUNITY BANK

CLEWISTON

FIRST BANK OF CLEWISTON
OLDE CYPRESS COMMUNITY BANK

COCOA BEACH

SUNRISE BANK

CORAL GABLES

BANKUNITED, F.S.B.
COMMERCEBANK, N.A.
GIBRALTAR PRIVATE BANK & TRUST COMPANY
INTERNATIONAL BANK OF MIAMI, N.A.

CRAWFORDVILLE

CITIZENS BANK - WAKULLA
WAKULLA BANK

CRESTVIEW

FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF CRESTVIEW

CRYSTAL RIVER

CRYSTAL RIVER BANK

DADE CITY

FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF PASCO

DANIA BEACH

COMMUNITY BANK OF BROWARD

DAVIE

REGENT BANK

DEBARY

FIRST COMMUNITY BANK

DUNNELLON

DUNNELLON STATE BANK

ENGLEWOOD

ENGLEWOOD BANK
PENINSULA BANK

FERNANDINA BEACH

FIRST COAST COMMUNITY BANK
FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF NASSAU COUNTY

FORT LAUDERDALE

BANKATLANTIC
EQUITABLE BANK
LANDMARK BANK, N.A.

FORT MYERS

EDISON NATIONAL BANK
FLORIDA GULF BANK
IRONSTONE BANK

FORT PIERCE

HARBOR FEDERAL SAVINGS BANK
RIVERSIDE NATIONAL BANK OF FLORIDA

FORT WALTON BEACH

BEACH COMMUNITY BANK
FIRST CITY BANK OF FLORIDA
FIRST NATIONAL BANK & TRUST

FROSTPROOF

CITIZENS BANK & TRUST

GAINESVILLE

FLORIDA CITIZENS BANK
MERCHANTS & SOUTHERN BANK
MILLENNIUM BANK

GRACEVILLE

BANK OF JACKSON COUNTY
PEOPLES BANK OF GRACEVILLE

HALLANDALE

DESJARDINS BANK, N.A.

HOMESTEAD

COMMUNITY BANK OF FLORIDA
FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF SOUTH FLORIDA

HOMOSASSA

HOMOSASSA SPRINGS BANK

IMMOKALEE

FLORIDA COMMUNITY BANK

INDIANTOWN

FIRST BANK OF INDIANTOWN

INVERNESS

BANK OF INVERNESS

JACKSONVILLE

EVERBANK

JACKSONVILLE BEACH

OCEANSIDE BANK

KEY LARGO

TIB BANK OF THE KEYS

KEY WEST

FIRST STATE BANK OF THE FLORIDA KEYS

KISSIMMEE

FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF OSCEOLA COUNTY

LAKE CITY

COLUMBIA COUNTY BANK
PEOPLES STATE BANK

LANTANA

STERLING BANK

LEESBURG

CENTERSTATE BANK MID FLORIDA

LIVE OAK

FIRST FEDERAL SAVINGS BANK OF FLORIDA

LONGWOOD

*ORLANDO NATIONAL BANK

MADISON

MADISON COUNTY COMMUNITY BANK

MARATHON

MARINE BANK OF THE FLORIDA KEYS

MARIANNA

FIRST CAPITAL BANK

MAYO

LAFAYETTE STATE BANK

MIAMI

BAC FLORIDA BANK
CITY NATIONAL BANK OF FLORIDA
COCONUT GROVE BANK
COMMERCIAL BANK OF FLORIDA
CONTINENTAL NATIONAL BANK OF MIAMI
EAGLE NATIONAL BANK OF MIAMI
EASTERN NATIONAL BANK
ESPIRITO SANTO BANK
EXECUTIVE NATIONAL BANK
GREAT FLORIDA BANK
INTERAMERICAN BANK, F.S.B.
MELLON UNITED NATIONAL BANK
METRO BANK OF DADE COUNTY
NORTHERN TRUST BANK OF FLORIDA, N.A.
OCEAN BANK
SOFISA BANK OF FLORIDA
TOTALBANK
TRANSATLANTIC BANK
U.S. CENTURY BANK

MILTON

FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF FLORIDA

MONTICELLO

FARMERS & MERCHANTS BANK

MOUNT DORA

FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF MOUNT DORA
FLORIDA CHOICE BANK

NAPLES

BANK OF NAPLES
COMMUNITY BANK OF NAPLES, N.A.
ORION BANK
PARTNERS BANK

NEW SMYRNA BEACH

FRIENDS BANK

NICEVILLE

PEOPLES NATIONAL BANK

NORTH LAUDERDALE

SECURITY BANK, N.A.

NORTH PALM BEACH

ENTERPRISE NATIONAL BANK OF PALM BEACH

OAKLAND PARK

AMERICAN NATIONAL BANK

OCALA

ALARION BANK

COMMUNITY BANK & TRUST OF FLORIDA

INDEPENDENT NATIONAL BANK

ORANGE PARK

HERITAGE BANK OF NORTH FLORIDA

ORLANDO

CENTURY NATIONAL BANK

CNLBANK

MERCANTILE BANK

ORANGE BANK OF FLORIDA

UNITED HERITAGE BANK

ORMOND BEACH

CYPRESSCOQUINA BANK

OVIEDO

CITIZENS BANK OF OVIEDO

PALATKA

FIRST FEDERAL BANK OF NORTH FLORIDA

PUTNAM STATE BANK

PANAMA CITY

BAY BANK & TRUST COMPANY

FIRST NATIONAL BANK NORTHWEST FLORIDA

PEOPLES FIRST COMMUNITY BANK

VISION BANK

PENSACOLA

BANK OF PENSACOLA

BANK OF THE SOUTH

FIRST GULF BANK, N.A.

GULF COAST COMMUNITY BANK

PERRY

CITIZENS BANK OF PERRY

PORT CHARLOTTE

BUSEY BANK, N.A.

PORT RICHEY

GULFSTREAM COMMUNITY BANK

PORT ST. JOE

BAYSIDE SAVINGS BANK

PORT ST. LUCIE

FIRST PEOPLES BANK

ST. AUGUSTINE

BANK OF ST. AUGUSTINE

PROSPERITY BANK

ST. CLOUD

PUBLIC BANK

ST. PETERSBURG

FIRST COMMUNITY BANK OF AMERICA

SIGNATURE BANK

SYNOVUS BANK OF TAMPA BAY

SANTA ROSA BEACH

BANKTRUST

SARASOTA

PEOPLE'S COMMUNITY BANK OF THE WEST COAST

SEBRING

HEARTLAND NATIONAL BANK

HIGHLANDS INDEPENDENT BANK

SOUTH MIAMI

FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF SOUTH MIAMI

SPRING HILL

FIRST KENSINGTON BANK

STARKE

COMMUNITY STATE BANK

STUART

GULFSTREAM BUSINESS BANK
SEACOAST NATIONAL BANK

TALLAHASSEE

CAPITAL CITY BANK
HANCOCK BANK OF FLORIDA
PREMIER BANK
TALLAHASSEE STATE BANK
THE BANK OF TALLAHASSEE

TAMPA

BANK OF ST. PETERSBURG
FIRST CITRUS BANK

TEQUESTA

INDEPENDENT COMMUNITY BANK

THE VILLAGES

CITIZENS FIRST BANK

TRENTON

TRI-COUNTY BANK

TRINITY

PATRIOT BANK

UMATILLA

UNITED SOUTHERN BANK

VALPARAISO

VANGUARD BANK & TRUST COMPANY

VERO BEACH

CITRUS BANK, N.A.
INDIAN RIVER NATIONAL BANK

WAUCHULA

FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF WAUCHULA
WAUCHULA STATE BANK

WEST PALM BEACH

FIDELITY FEDERAL BANK & TRUST
FLAGLER BANK
GRAND BANK & TRUST OF FLORIDA

WILLISTON

PERKINS STATE BANK

WINTER HAVEN

CENTERSTATE BANK OF FLORIDA, N.A.

WINTER PARK

BANKFIRST
RIVERSIDE BANK OF CENTRAL FLORIDA

ZEPHYRHILLS

CENTERSTATE BANK WEST FLORIDA, N.A.

GEORGIA

ATLANTA

SUNTRUST BANK

COLQUITT

PEOPLESOUTH BANK

DARIEN

SOUTHEASTERN BANK

MOULTRIE

AMERICAN BANKING COMPANY

LOUISIANA

NEW ORLEANS

WHITNEY NATIONAL BANK

MASSACHUSETTS

BOSTON

ONEUNITED BANK

MICHIGAN

GRAND RAPIDS

FIFTH THIRD BANK

MISSISSIPPI

JACKSON

TRUSTMARK NATIONAL BANK

NEW YORK

NEW YORK CITY

BANCO POPULAR NORTH AMERICA
INTERVEST NATIONAL BANK

NORTH CAROLINA

CHARLOTTE

BANK OF AMERICA, N.A.
WACHOVIA BANK, N.A.

ROCKY MOUNT

RBC CENTURA BANK

WINSTON-SALEM

BRANCH BANKING & TRUST COMPANY

OHIO

WILMINGTON

LIBERTY SAVINGS BANK, F.S.B.

PENNSYLVANIA

PHILADELPHIA

COMMERCE BANK, N.A.

TEXAS

HOUSTON

ENCORE BANK

VIRGINIA

RESTON

CITIBANK, F.S.B.

WISCONSIN

MILWAUKEE

M&I MARSHALL & ILSLEY BANK

THE FOLLOWING IS A LIST OF INSTITUTIONS THAT
HAD A CHANGE SINCE THE LAST PUBLICATION OF
THIS REPORT.

BIG LAKE NATIONAL BANK

OKEECHOBEE

BIG LAKE NATIONAL BANK HAS MERGED WITH AND
INTO SEACOAST NATIONAL BANK (STUART) AS OF
THE CLOSE OF BUSINESS JUNE 3, 2006.

FIRST NATIONAL BANK & TRUST

BRADENTON

FIRST NATIONAL BANK & TRUST (BRADENTON) HAS
MERGED WITH AND INTO WHITNEY NATIONAL
BANK (NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA) AS OF THE
CLOSE OF BUSINESS JULY 21, 2006.

**FIRST NATIONAL BANK & TRUST OF THE
TREASURE COAST**

STUART

FIRST NATIONAL BANK & TRUST OF THE TREASURE
COAST CHANGED ITS NAME TO SEACOAST
NATIONAL BANK.

FLORIDA CITIZENS BANK

OCALA

FLORIDA CITIZENS BANK CHANGED ITS HOME
OFFICE LOCATION FROM OCALA TO GAINESVILLE.

GIBRALTAR BANK, F.S.B.

CORAL GABLES

GIBRALTAR BANK, F.S.B. CHANGED ITS NAME TO
GIBRALTAR PRIVATE BANK & TRUST COMPANY.

MONTICELLO BANK

JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

MONTICELLO BANK HAS WITHDRAWN FROM THE
FLORIDA PUBLIC DEPOSITS PROGRAM EFFECTIVE
JUNE 29, 2006.

SOUTH BANK OF FLORIDA

ORLANDO

SOUTH BANK OF FLORIDA HAS CHANGED ITS NAME
TO ORANGE BANK OF FLORIDA.

NOTICE OF CONSIDERATION OF
CEMETERY BYLAWS

The State of Florida, Board of Funeral, Cemetery and
Consumer Services, will address approval of the amended
bylaws of the following cemetery at the regular meeting to be
held on August 24, 2006, in Miami, Florida:

Curlew Hills Memory Gardens

A file pertaining to the above is available for public inspection
and copying by any person at the Alexander Building, 2020
Capital Circle, S. E., Suite 270, Tallahassee, Florida 32301.
Comments may be submitted at the above address without
requesting a hearing. Those persons whose substantial interests
may be determined by these proceedings, including
settlements, grants, and denials, are advised that they may
request a hearing concerning the notice of intent to be
conducted in accordance with the provisions of Section 120.57,

Florida Statutes. The petitions for hearing should comply with Rule 69K-6.003, Florida Administrative Code, and must be filed within twenty-one (21) days of publication of this notice. Petitions shall be filed with: Clerk, Division of Funeral, Cemetery and Consumer Services, The Larson Building, 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0361. In deference to the rights of substantially affected persons, a hearing on these matters will be held at the meeting of the Board of Funeral, Cemetery and Consumer Services to be held as outlined above. All written comments and requests to address the Board must be received by the Department at least fourteen (14) days prior to the meeting.

FINANCIAL SERVICE COMMISSION

NOTICE OF FILINGS

Notice is hereby given that the Office of Financial Regulation, Division of Financial Institutions, has received the following applications. Comments may be submitted to the Director, 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0371, for inclusion in the official record without requesting a hearing. However, pursuant to provisions specified in Chapter 69U-105, Florida Administrative Code, any person may request a public hearing by filing a petition with the Clerk, Legal Services Office, Office of Financial Regulation, 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0379. The Petition must be received by the Clerk within twenty-one (21) days of publication of this notice (by 5:00 p.m., August 18, 2006):

APPLICATION FOR A NEW FINANCIAL INSTITUTION

Applicant and Proposed Location: Community Bank, Destin, 12590 Emerald Coast Parkway, Miramar Beach, Florida 32541.

Correspondent: Rod Jones, Esquire, 300 South Orange Avenue, Suite 1000, Orlando, Florida 32801

Received: July 12, 2006

REQUEST FOR CORPORATE NAME APPROVAL

BY A FOREIGN CORPORATION

Applicant: Tom A. Bryan, President and CEO, The Bankers Bank, 2410 Paces Ferry Road, 600 Paces Summit, Atlanta, Georgia 30339

Proposed Name: The Bankers Bank

Received: July 11, 2006

Notice is hereby given that the Office of Financial Regulation, Division of Financial Institutions, has received a request by a credit union to expand its field of membership. Specific information regarding the expansion can be found at <http://www.fldfs.com/ofr/banking/cufm.asp>. Comments may be submitted to the Director, 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0371, for inclusion in the official record without requesting a hearing. However, pursuant to provisions specified in Chapter 69U-105, Florida Administrative Code, any person may request a public hearing by filing a petition with the Clerk, Legal Services Office, Office of Financial Regulation, 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0379. The Petition must be received by the Clerk within twenty-one (21) days of publication of this notice (by 5:00 p.m., August 18, 2006):

Name and Address of Applicant: Fairwinds Credit Union, 3087 North Alafaya Trail, Orlando, Florida 32826

Expansion Includes: Geographic area

Received: July 7, 2006

HARDEE COUNTY

The Hardee County Economic Development Authority will accept grant applications for projects that provide economic development and infrastructure within the geographic boundaries of Hardee County. The Authority shall rank applications to the extent of estimated available program funds based on criteria relating to administrative capacity, public benefit, economic benefits, and public use.

Applications and Program Guidelines are available at the Hardee County Board of County Commissioners Office, 412 W. Orange Street, Room 103, Wauchula, FL 33873, (863)773-9430, Fax: (863)773-0958, e-mail: bcc@hardee-county.net

Applications will be accepted from September 1, 2006, through September 30, 2006, 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m.

Please Note: Site of benefiting business for consideration of these funds must be located entirely within Hardee County.

For more information, please call (863)773-9430.

Section XIII
Index to Rules Filed During Preceding Week

**RULES FILED BETWEEN July 10, 2006
 and July 14, 2006**

Rule No.	File Date	Effective Date	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.
----------	-----------	----------------	-------------------	------------------

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

33-501.401	7/12/06	8/1/06	32/21	
------------	---------	--------	-------	--

WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICTS

Suwannee River Water Management District

40B-21.001	7/10/06	7/30/06	31/25	32/21
40B-21.031	7/10/06	7/30/06	31/25	32/21
40B-21.051	7/10/06	7/30/06	31/25	32/21
40B-21.211	7/10/06	7/30/06	31/25	32/21
40B-21.221	7/10/06	7/30/06	31/25	
40B-21.231	7/10/06	7/30/06	31/25	32/21
40B-21.251	7/10/06	7/30/06	31/25	32/21
40B-21.275	7/10/06	7/30/06	31/25	32/21
40B-21.291	7/10/06	7/30/06	31/25	
40B-21.421	7/10/06	7/30/06	31/25	32/21
40B-21.511	7/10/06	7/30/06	31/25	32/21
40B-21.531	7/10/06	7/30/06	31/25	32/21
40B-21.541	7/10/06	7/30/06	31/25	32/21
40B-21.571	7/10/06	7/30/06	31/25	32/21
40B-21.601	7/10/06	7/30/06	31/25	32/21
40B-21.621	7/10/06	7/30/06	31/25	32/21
40B-21.631	7/10/06	7/30/06	31/25	32/21
40B-21.641	7/10/06	7/30/06	31/25	32/21
40B-21.651	7/10/06	7/30/06	31/25	32/21

South Florida Water Management District

40E-7.668	7/14/06	8/3/06	32/8	
40E-7.669	7/14/06	8/3/06	32/8	32/22
40E-7.670	7/14/06	8/3/06	32/8	32/22
40E-7.671	7/14/06	8/3/06	32/8	
40E-7.672	7/14/06	8/3/06	32/8	32/22
40E-7.673	7/14/06	8/3/06	32/8	32/22
40E-7.674	7/14/06	8/3/06	32/8	32/22
40E-7.675	7/14/06	8/3/06	32/8	32/22
40E-7.676	7/14/06	8/3/06	32/8	
40E-7.677	7/14/06	8/3/06	32/8	
40E-7.678	7/14/06	8/3/06	32/8	

DEPARTMENT OF ELDER AFFAIRS

Administration of Federal Aging Programs

58A-5.0131	7/10/06	7/30/06	32/18	
58A-5.014	7/10/06	7/30/06	32/18	
58A-5.015	7/10/06	7/30/06	32/18	
58A-5.016	7/10/06	7/30/06	32/18	

Rule No.	File Date	Effective Date	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.
----------	-----------	----------------	-------------------	------------------

58A-5.0181	7/10/06	7/30/06	32/18	
58A-5.0182	7/10/06	7/30/06	32/18	
58A-5.0185	7/10/06	7/30/06	32/18	
58A-5.019	7/10/06	7/30/06	32/18	
58A-5.0191	7/10/06	7/30/06	32/18	
58A-5.023	7/10/06	7/30/06	32/18	
58A-5.024	7/10/06	7/30/06	32/18	
58A-5.0241	7/10/06	7/30/06	32/18	
58A-5.025	7/10/06	7/30/06	32/18	
58A-5.026	7/10/06	7/30/06	32/18	
58A-5.029	7/10/06	7/30/06	32/18	
58A-5.030	7/10/06	7/30/06	32/18	
58A-5.031	7/10/06	7/30/06	32/18	
58A-5.033	7/10/06	7/30/06	32/18	
58A-14.003	7/10/06	7/30/06	32/22	
58A-14.008	7/10/06	7/30/06	32/22	
58A-14.0085	7/10/06	7/30/06	32/22	
58A-14.0091	7/10/06	7/30/06	32/22	

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Division of Florida Land Sales, Condominiums and Mobile Homes

61B-75.004	7/14/06	8/3/06	32/16	32/23
------------	---------	--------	-------	-------

Division of Pari-Mutuel Wagering

61D-14.003	7/10/06	7/30/06	32/17	32/24
61D-14.006	7/10/06	7/30/06	32/17	32/24
61D-14.013	7/10/06	7/30/06	32/17	32/24
61D-14.016	7/10/06	7/30/06	32/17	32/24
61D-14.019	7/10/06	7/30/06	32/17	32/24
61D-14.022	7/10/06	7/30/06	32/17	32/24
61D-14.024	7/10/06	7/30/06	32/17	32/24
61D-14.040	7/10/06	7/30/06	32/17	32/24
61D-14.042	7/10/06	7/30/06	32/17	32/24
61D-14.056	7/10/06	7/30/06	32/17	32/24
61D-14.061	7/10/06	7/30/06	32/17	32/24
61D-14.072	7/10/06	7/30/06	32/17	32/24
61D-14.073	7/10/06	7/30/06	32/17	32/24
61D-14.081	7/10/06	7/30/06	32/17	32/24

Board of Veterinary Medicine

61G18-30.001	7/10/06	7/30/06	32/18	
--------------	---------	---------	-------	--

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

62-304.325	7/14/06	8/3/06	32/16	
62-304.505	7/14/06	8/3/06	32/16	
62-304.510	7/14/06	8/3/06	32/16	
62-304.800	7/14/06	8/3/06	32/16	
62-330.200	7/13/06	8/2/06	32/25	
62-330.200	7/13/06	8/2/06	32/25	

Rule No.	File Date	Effective Date	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.
----------	-----------	----------------	-------------------	------------------

Rule No.	File Date	Effective Date	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.
----------	-----------	----------------	-------------------	------------------

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
Board of Clinical Social Work, Marriage and Family
Therapy and Mental Health Counseling

64B4-7.008	7/13/06	8/2/06	32/23	
------------	---------	--------	-------	--

Board of Medicine

64B8-8.0011	7/12/06	8/1/06	32/9	32/19
64B8-8.0012	7/12/06	8/1/06	32/9	32/19
64B8-30.013	7/13/06	8/2/06	32/23	
64B8-30.014	7/13/06	8/2/06	32/23	

Board of Osteopathic Medicine

64B15-6.0105	7/13/06	8/2/06	32/23	
64B15-6.01051	7/13/06	8/2/06	32/23	

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

Division of State Fire Marshal

69A-64.005	7/12/06	8/1/06	32/21	
------------	---------	--------	-------	--